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PREFATORY NOTE

It is the purpose of this official publication to make available to

the public, in an orderly and accessible form, decisions issued

under regulatory laws administered by the Department of Agricul-
ture.

The decisions published herein may be described generally as de-

cisions which are made in proceedings of a quasi-judicial character,

and which, under the applicable statutes, can be made by the Sec-

retary of Agriculture, or an officer authorized by law to act in his

stead, only after notice and hearing or opportunity for a hearing.
These decisions do not include rules and regulations of general ap-

plicability which are required to be published in the Federal Regis-
ter.

The principal statutes concerned are the Agricultural Marketing
Act of 1946 (7 U.S.C. 1621 et seq,), the Agricultural Marketing
Agreement Act of 1937 (7 U.S.C. 601 et seq.), the Animal Quaran-
tine and Related Laws (21 U.S.C. Ill et seq.\ the Animal Welfare
Act (7 U.S.C. 2131 et seq.), the Federal Meat Inspection Act (21

U.S.C. 601 et seq.), the Grain Standards Act (7 U.S.C. 1821 et seq,),

the Horse Protection Act (15 U.S.C. 1821 et seq.), the Packers and

Stockyards Act, 1921 (7 U.S.C. 181 et seq.), the Perishable Agricul-
tural Commodities Act, 1930 (7 U.S.C. 499a et seq.), the Plant Quar-
antine Act (7 U.S.C. 151 et seq.), the Poultry Products Inspection
Act (21 U.S.C. 451 et seq.), and the Virus-Serurn-Toxin Act of 1913

(21 U.S.C. 151-158).

The decisions published herein are arranged alphabetically by
statute and within the statute section by date of issue or date the
decision became final after expiration of the appeal period. They
may be cited by giving the volume and page, for illustration, 1 A.D.
472 (1942). It is unnecessary to cite the docket or decision number.
Prior to 1942 the Secretary's decisions were identified by docket
and decision numbers, for example, D-578; S, 1150. Such citation of

a case in these volumes generally indicates that the decision is not

published in Agriculture Decisions.

Current court decisions involving the regulatory laws adminis-
tered by the Department of Agriculture are published herein.

in
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In re: RONNIE FARRINGTON, CLARENCE R. BROWN and SINGER
RANCH, INC. A.Q. Docket No. 185. Decided September 30, 1985.

Cattle moved without owner's statement Civil penalty Default.

Kris Ikejiri, for complainant.

Respondent, pro se.

Decision by William J. Weber, Administrative Law Judge.

DEFAULT DECISION AND ORDER AS TO SINGER RANCH, INC.

PRELIMINARY STATEMENT

This proceeding was instituted under the Act of February 2
1903, as amended, (Act) (21 U.S.C. 111 and 120) and regulations
promulgated thereunder, by a complaint filed by the Administrator
of the Animal and Plant Health Inspection Service, United States
Department of Agriculture. The complaint alleged, inter alia, that
respondent Singer Ranch, Inc., violated the Act regulations pro-
mulgated thereunder (9 CFR 71.1 et seq.,}. Copies of the complaintand the Rules of Practice Governing Proceeding under the Act
were served by the Hearing Clerk, by certified mail, upon Singer
Ranch, Inc.

s

Pursuant to section 1.136 of the Rules of Practice (7 CFR 1 136)
applicable to this proceeding, Singer Ranch, Inc., was informed in
the complaint and the letter of service that an answer should be
filed with the Hearing Clerk within twenty (20) days after service
of the complaint, and that failure to file an answer to, or plead spe-
cifically to, any allegation in the complaint would constitute an ad-
mission of such allegation pursuant to section U36(c) of the Rules
of Practice (7 CFR 1.136(c)). Singer Ranch, Inc., was also informed
that the failure to file an answer would constitute a waiver of hear-
ing, as provided in section 1.139 of the Rules of Practice (7 CFR

1,139).

Singer Ranch, Inc., filed neither an answer nor any other docu-
ment during the twenty day period. Singer Ranch, Inc.'s, failure to
lile an answer within the time provided constitutes an admission of
the allegation m the complaint pursuant to section 1.136(c) of the
Rules of Practice (7 CFR 1.136(c)). Singer Ranch, Inc.'s failure to

f^T7,^r^tatoi a Waiver f hearin* under secti "U39 of the Rules of Practice (7 CFR 1.139). Since Singer Ranch,

he 'comnlTf
**
**?***

** ***** ^tions <* ^t in

Fact
y ^ ^ and S6t f rth the Findi"g8 of
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I'MNDINCH OK FACT

1. Singer Ranch, Inc., respondent hove In, ro a corporation doing

buBinofls in Texan, whono mailing addretw w Route H, Box UOA,

Lowmvillo, TOXUH 75050.

a. On or about May 10, 1!W4, tho reHpondont moved mterMlate

from Lowtovillo, TOXUH, to Sand SpringH, Oklahoma, approximately

!W cattle in violation of section 71. IK of tho rogulationH (U t-KH

71. IK) bccauHO tho cattle woro not accompanied by an owmVN

stutemont or other document, m roquirod.

CONtM.I'HION

The respondent baa failed to filo any nnuwwr or rt^ponMi' (o any

of tho allegationa in tho complaint. Tho connwiuonct* of Much tt fail-

ure woro explained to the roupondenl in tins complaint and in (lie

letter of service that accompanied it. By itH Biloncc*. reimiident htm

admitted all of the material alltigalionH of fact in ibo complaint

and has waived a bearing.

By reason of the Finding of Fact Hot forth txwe, lh rt^iMintUuU

baa violated tho Act and rogulntionH [jromnlgattMi lbt*rtMmdt'r. Tin*

following order is therefore, latmod.

OKDKIt

Henpondent Singer Ranch, Inc., JH beroby KUUKWUHHI 11 civil uonnlty

of five hundred dollars ($500), which almll be payable lo tht* "TrPiw-

urer of tho United Stalea
11

a cortinod check or monoy wrdtr. nnd

which shall be forwarded to Krm H. lkjiri, Omc* of lh< tipnornl

Counsel, Koom 2422, South Building, United Stt^ l)v[mrlmiMit wf

Agriculture, Washington, 0. CX 20260-14W). within thirty tMOt dnyn

from the effective data of thin order.

This order shall have tha Hamo force and wffwt tm if 0nurt*d full

hearing and shall be final and effective Hfi duy niter >wrviwj f tbi

Decision and Order upon respondent* unle^ Ihero is nn nppipnl t4

the Judicial Officer within 30 days pursuant to WKriion l.ur* of thw

Rules of Practice applicable to this proceeding (7 OKH 1 1 MS*

[This default decision and order became Hiuil Novi*ntb<r 1^.'.

1086.-Ed.l
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In re: RONNIE FAIIRINGTON, DR. CLARENCE R. BROWN, and SINGER
RANCH, INC. A.Q. Docket No. 185. Decided September 30, 1985.

Cattle moved without owner's statement Civil penalty Default.

Kris Ikejiri, for complainant.

Respondent, pro se.

Decision by William J. Weber, Administrative Law Judge,

DEFAULT DECISION AND ORDER AS TO CLARENCE R, BROWN

PRELIMINARY STATEMENT

This proceeding was instituted under the Act of February 2
1903, as amended, (Act) (21 U.S.C. 111 and 120) and regulations
promulgated thereunder by a complaint filed by the Administrator
of the Animal and Plant Health Inspection Service, United States
Department of Agriculture. The complaint alleged, inter alia, that
respondent Clarence R. Brown violated the Act and regulations
promulgated thereunder (9 CFR 71.1 et seq.l Copies of the com-
plaint and the Rules of Practice Governing Proceeding under the
Act were served by the Hearing Clerk, by certified mail, upon Clar-
ence R, Brown.

Pursuant to section 1.136 of the Rules of Practice (7 CFR 1 136)
applicable to this proceeding, Clarence R. Brown, was informed in
the complaint and the letter of service that an answer should be
filed with the Hearing Clerk within twenty (20) days after service
of the complaint, and that failure to file an answer to, or plead spe-
cifically to, any allegation in the complaint would constitute an ad-

S?K ^? HT1* to

r^ion U36(c) of the Rulea

LYflTV i j,
1 '136^' Clarence R. Brown was also informed

that the failure to file an answer would constitute a waiver of hear-
ing as provided in section 1.139 of the Rules of Practice (7 CFR

Clarence R Brown filed neither an answer nor any other docu-ment during the twenty day period. Clarence R. Brown's failure to
the * vided constitute8 an a""^ f

&--T^aj 35-;iisaSrrt
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FINDINGS OF FACT

1. Clarence R. Brown, respondent herein, is an individual and a

doctor of veterinary medicine, whose mailing address is Route 1,

Box 1096, Frisco, Texas 75034.

2. On or about May 10, 1984, the respondent moved interstate

from Lewisville, Texas, to Sand Springs, Oklahoma, approximately
38 cattle in violation of section 71.18 of the regulations (9 CFR
71.18) because the cattle were not accompanied by an owner's

statement or other document, as required.

CONCLUSION

Respondent has failed to file any answer to any of the allegations

in the complaint. The consequences of such a failure were ex-

plained to the respondent in the complaint and in the letter of

service that accompanied it. By his silence, respondent has admit-

ted all of the material allegations of fact in the complaint and has

waived a hearing.

By reason of the Finding of Fact set forth above, the respondent
has violated the Act and regulations promulgated thereunder. The

following order is therefore, issued.

ORDER

Respondent Clarence R. Brown, is hereby assessed a civil penalty
of five hundred dollars ($600), which shall be payable to the "Treas-

urer of the United States" by certified check or money order, and

which shall be forwarded to Kris H. Ikejiri, Office of the General

Counsel, Room 2422, South Building, United States Department of

Agriculture, Washington, D. C. 20250-1400, within thirty (30) days
from the effective date of this order.

This order shall have the same force and effect as if entered full

hearing and shall be final and effective 35 days after service of this

Decision and Order upon respondent, unless there is an appeal to

the Judicial Officer within 30 days pursuant to section 1.146 of the

Rules of Practice applicable to this proceeding (7 CFR 1.145).

[This default decision and order became final November 13,

1985.-Ed.l
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In re; CECIL D. CHABTREE. A.Q. Docket No. 196. Order issued No-
vember 13, 1985.

Decision by Edward H. McGrail, Administrative Law Judge.

ORDER GRANTING DISMISSAL OF COMPLAINT

For the reasons set forth in Complainant's Motion to Dismiss
filed November 8, 1985, IT IS ORDERED, that the Complaint filedm this matter on August 6, 1985, be, and hereby is, dismissed.

In re: BOBBY A. GUILFOIL, D.V.M. VA Docket No. 33. Decided No-
vember 14, 1985.

Veterinary accreditation suspended for six months-Consent.

Kris H. Ikejiri, for complainant.
William E, Johnson, Frankfort; Kentucky, for respondent.

Decision by Dorothea A. Baker, Administrative Law Judge.

CONSENT DECISION

thl^Tr^"stituted ndar the regulations governingine Accreditation of Veterinarians and Suspension or Revocation ofuh
Accredit

on (9 CFR Parts 160-162), by a complaint fid bytne Adrnmiaffafnn A ;. i ___ i T .-_... c "*^ u

* Agriculture' distaff that Bobby A
regUlationS ' This decision is entered

*

de
,
C1S10n Pr Visi nS f the Rules of *****

^

set forth

admits that.the Secretary of the
'

(a) Any further procedure-

WP of f8o(, law7 discretW
'

,r
r6S

?
eCt to

'
aU

thereof;
fiscretipn, as well as the reasons or ases
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(c) All rights to seek judicial review and otherwise challenge

or contest the validity of this decision; and

2. Bobby A. Guilfoil, D.V.M. also agrees to waive any action

against the United States Department of Agriculture under the

Equal Access to Justice Act of 1980 (5 U.S.C. 504 et seq.) for fees

and other expenses incurred by him in connection with this pro-

ceeding.

FINDINGS OF FACT

1. Bobby A. Guilfoil, respondent herein, is an individual whose

mailing address is 719 West Main Street, Glasgow, Kentucky 42141.

2. Respondent is now, and at all times material herein was, a

Doctor of Veterinary Medicine and an Accredited Veterinarian in

the State of Kentucky under the provisions of the regulations of

Title 9, Code of Federal Regulations, Parts 160-162.

CONCLUSIONS

The respondent having admitted the jurisdictional facts and

having agreed to the provisions set forth in the following Order in

disposition of this proceeding, such Order and Decision will be

issued.

ORDER

Respondent's Veterinary Accreditation is hereby suspended for

six (6) months from February 6, 1985 through July* 6, 1986.

This mine pro tune order shall have the same force and effect aa

if entered after full hearing.

In re: CONSOLIDATED ENTERPRISES, INC. A.Q. Docket No. 93. Decided

November 14, 1985.

Cattle moved within Class B state Civil penalty Consent.

Kevin Thieman, for complainant.

Respondent, pro se.

Decision by Victor W, Palmer, Administrative Law Judge.

CONSENT DECISION

This proceeding was instituted under the Act of February 2,

1903, as amended (Act) (21 U.S.C. 111, 120 and 122) by a com-

plaint filed by the Administrator of the Animal and Plant Health

*
"August" was changed to July to conform to the agreement of tho parties.
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Inspection Service alleging that Consolidated Enterprises Inc. re-

spondent, violated the Act and regulations promulgated thereunder
(9 CFR 78.1 et seq.). The parties have agreed that the proceeding
should be terminated by entry of the Consent Decision set forth
below and have agreed to the following stipulations:

1. For the purposes of this stipulation and the provisions of
this Consent Decision only, respondent specifically admits that the
Secretary of the United States Department of Agriculture haa ju-
risdiction in this matter, neither admits nor denies the remaining
allegations in the complaint, admits to the Findings of Fact set
forth below, and waives:

(a) Any further procedure;

(b) Any requirements that the final decision in this proceed-
ing contain findings and conclusions with respect to all material
issues of fact, law, or discretion, as well as the reasons or bases
thereof;

(c) All rights to seek judicial review and otherwise challenge
or contest the validity of this decision; and

2. Respondent also stipulates and agrees that the United States

Department of Agriculture is the "prevailing party" in the pro-
ceeding and waives any action against the United States Depart-
ment of Agriculture under the Equal Access to Justice Act of 1980
(5 U.S.C. 504 et seq.) for fees and other expenses incurred by the

respondent in connection with this proceeding.

FINDINGS OF FACT
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Room 2422 South Building, United States Department of Agricul-

ture, 12th and Independence Ave., S.W. Washington, D. C. 20250-

1400, within thirty (30) days from the effective date of this order.

This order shall become effective on the day upon which service

of this order is made upon the respondent.

In re: GEORGE J. SCHWEIZER, JR., and CONSOLIDATED ENTERPRISES,

INC, A.Q. Docket No. 93. Order issued November 14, 1985,

Order issued by Victor W. Palmer, Administrative Law Judge,

DISMISSAL OP COMPLAINT

For good cause shown by complainant, the complaint that was
filed herein against George J. Schweizer, Jr., on August 6, 1984, is

herewith dismissed.

In re: TAMA MEAT PACKING CORPORATION. A.Q. Docket No. 200.

Order issued November 15, 1985.

Order issued by Victor W. Palmer, Administrative Law Judge.

DISMISSAL ORDER

By reason of the premises set forth in Complainant's Motion to

Dismiss Cause, filed November 12, 1985, the following Order is

hereby issued:

ORDER

The Complaint, filed August 9, 1985, in the above-entitled pro-

ceeding, is hereby Dismissed.
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In re: CLIFF MARTIN. A.Q. Docket No. 152. Decided November 18,

1985.

Cattle moved interstate Civil penalty Consent.

Jam Ruley, for complainant.

William B. Greene, Cartersville, Georgia, for respondent.

Decision by Victor W. Palmer, Administrative Law Judge.

CONSENT DECISION

This proceeding was instituted under the Act of February 2,

1903 as amended (Act) (21 U.S.C. 111 and 120), by a complaint

filed by the Administrator of the Animal and Plant Health Inspec-

tion Service alleging that the respondent violated the Act and regu-

lations promulgated thereunder (9 CFR 78.1 et seq.). The parties

have agreed that this proceeding should be terminated by entry of

the Consent Decision set forth below and have agreed to the follow-

ing stipulations: , .

1. For the purposes of this stipulation and the provisions ot

this Consent Decision only, the respondent specifically admits that

the Secretary of the United States Department of Agriculture has

jurisdiction in this matter, neither admits nor denies the remain-

ing allegations in the complaint, admits to the Findings of Fact set

forth below, and waives:

(a) any further procedure;

(b) any requirements that the final decision in this proceed-

ing contain findings and conclusions with respect to all material

issues of fact, law, or discretion, as well as the reasons or bases

thereof;

(c) all rights to seek judicial review and otherwise challenge

or contest the validity of this decision; and

2. The respondent also waives any action against the United

States Department of Agriculture under the Equal Access to Jus-

tice Act of 1980 (5 U.S.C. 504 et seq.) for fees and other expenses

incurred by the respondent in connection with the proceeding.

FINDINGS OF FACT

1. Cliff Martin, respondent, is an individual whose address is

Martin Road, Cartersville, Georgia 30120.

2. Between the dates of March 21, 1984, and May 16, 1984, the

respondent moved cattle interstate from the Roanoke Stockyards,

Inc., Roanoke, Alabama, to the People's Livestock Market, Carters-

ville, Georgia.

3. On or about the dates of May 10, 1984, and May 17, 1984, the

respondent moved cattle interstate from the Cherokee County
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Stockyards, Centre, Alabama, to the People's Livestock Market,
Cartersville, Georgia,

4. On or about July 17, 1984, the respondent moved a cow inter-

state from the Fort Payne Stockyard, Inc., Fort Payne, Alabama, to

the Carroll County Livestock Sales Barn, Inc., Carrollton, Georgia.

CONCLUSIONS

The respondent having admitted the jurisdictional facts and

having agreed to the provisions set forth in the following Order in

disposition of this proceeding with respect to the respondent, such
order and decision will be issued.

ORDER

The respondent is assessed a civil penalty of eight thousand dol-

lars ($8,000.00), payable in eight quarterly installments with the
first installment of $1,000.00 due January 15, 1986. The respondent
shall make payment by sending a certified check or money order

payable to the "Treasurer of the United States," to Jaru Ruley,
Office of the General Counsel, Room 2422, South Building, United
States Department of Agriculture, Washington, D.C. 20250-1400,
The remaining seven installments of $1,000 each shall be due on
the fifteenth of April, July and October of 1986, and January, July
and October of 1987.

In the event the respondent defaults on any of the terms of this

consent decision, the balance of the civil penalty assessed herein
shall become immediately due.

This order shall become effective on the day upon which service
of this order is made upon respondent.

In re; CLAYTON MYERS. A.Q. Docket No. 171. Decided November 27,
1985.

Cattle moved interstate Civil penaltyConsent.

Mark Dopp, for complainant.

Respondent, pro se.

Decision by Dorothea A. Baker, Administrative Law Judge.

CONSENT DECISION

This proceeding was instituted under the Act of February 2,

1903, as amended (Act) (21 U.S.C, 111 and 120) by a complaint
filed by the Administrator of the Animal and Plant Health Inspec-
tion Service alleging that the respondent violated the Act and regu-
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lations promulgated thereunder (9 CFR 78.1 et seq.\ The parties

have agreed that this proceeding should be terminated by entry of

the Consent Decision set forth below and have agreed to the follow-

ing stipulations:

1. For the purposes of this stipulation and the provisions of

this Consent Decision only, the respondent specifically admits that

the Secretary of the United States Department of Agriculture has

jurisdiction in this matter, neither admits nor denies the remain-

ing allegations in the complaint, admits to the Findings of Fact set

forth below, and waives:

(a) Any further procedure;

(b) Any requirements that the final decision in this proceed-

ing contain findings and conclusions with respect to all material

issue of fact, law, or discretion, as well as the reasons or bases

thereof;

(c) All rights to seek judicial review and otherwise challenge

or contest the validity of this decision; and

2. Respondent also stipulates and agrees that the United States

Department of Agriculture is the "prevailing party" in the pro-

ceeding and waives any action against the United States Depart-

ment of Agriculture under the Equal Access to Justice Act of 1980

(5 U.S.C. 504 et set/,) for fees and other expenses incurred by the

respondent in connection with this proceeding.

FINDINGS OF FACT

1. Clayton Myers, respondent is an individual whose mailing ad-

dress is Post Office Box 754, Muleshoe, Texas 79347.

2. On or about October 31, 1984, the respondent moved four (4)

head of cattle from the Muskogee Livestock Auction, Muskogee,

Oklahoma, to the Muleshoe Livestock Auction, Muleshoe, Texas.

CONCLUSIONS

The respondent having admitted the jurisdictional facts and

having agreed to the provisions set forth in the following order in

disposition of this proceeding, such order and decision will be

issued.

ORDER

The respondent is assessed a civil penalty of five hundred dollars

($600), The respondent shall send, payable to the "Treasurer of the
United States" a certified check or money order, to Mark' D. Dopp,
Office of the General Counsel, Room 2422 South Building, United
'States Department of Agriculture, Washington, D.C. 20260-1400,
withuvthirtv (SOVdays'from the effective date of this order.
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This order shall become effective on the date this order is served

upon the respondent.

In re: MICKEL L. WILSON, A.Q. Docket No. 177. Decided December 3,

1985.

Equine infectious anemia reactor horse shipped interstate Civil penalty Con-

sent.

Kevin Thiemann, for complainant.

Respondent, pro se,

Decision by Edward H. McGrail, Administi'ative Law Judge.

CONSENT DECISION

This proceeding was instituted under the Act of February 2,

1903, as amended (Act), (21 U.S.C. 111, 120, 122) by a complaint
filed by the Administrator of the Animal and Plant Health Inspec-
tion Service alleging that Mickel L. Wilson, respondent violated the

Act and regulations promulgated thereunder (7 CFR 75.1 et seq,}.

The parties have agreed that this proceeding should be terminated

by entry of the Consent Decision set forth below and have agreed
to the following stipulations:

1. For the purposes of this stipulation and the provisions of

this Consent Decision only, respondent specifically admits that the

Secretary of the United States Department of Agriculture has ju-
risdiction in this matter, neither admits nor denies the remaining
allegations in the complaint, admits to the Findings of Fact set

forth below, and waives:

(a) any further procedure;

(b) any requirements that the final decision in this proceed-
ing contain findings and conclusions with respect to all material
issues of fact, law or discretion, as well as the reasons or bases

thereof;

(c) all rights to seek judicial review and otherwise challenge
or contest the validity of this decision; and

2, Respondent also stipulates and agrees that the United States

Department of Agriculture is the "prevailing party" in the pro-

ceeding and waives any action against the United States Depart-
ment of Agriculture under the Equal Access to Justice Act of 1980
(5 U.S.C. 504 et seq.) for fees and other expenses incurred by the

respondent in connection with this proceeding.
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FINDINGS OF FACT

P.O.
individual whose

2. On or about September 15, 1984, the respondent shipped one
(1) equine infectious anemia reactor horse interstate from Vicks
burg, Mississippi to Winnsboro, Louisiana.

CONCLUSIONS

The respondent having admitted the jurisdiction^ facts and
having agreed to the provisions set forth in the following ordeHn
disposition of the proceeding, such order and decision will beissued.

ORDER

The respondent is assessed a civil penalty of two hundred fifh,
del ars ($250.00) which shall be payable to the "Treasurer "heUnited States" by certified check or money order, and which ha,

p
forW

oTon
e
l

* Kevin E Thiemarm, Office of the General CounseRoom 2422 South Building, United States Dep -rtmant of A^nl
tare 12th and Independence Ave., S.W., Washington DC loTn'

the ctivee cve othisoTh* order shall become effective on the day upon which servteof this order is made upon the reapondent.
"service

oved interstate without certincate-Civll penalty
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tion 78.9(b) of the regulations promulgated under the Act (9 CFR
78,9(b)). Copies of the complaint and the Rules of Practice govern-

ing proceedings under the Act were personally served upon re-

spondent James Moss.

Pursuant to section 1.136 of the Rules of Practice (7 CFR 1.136)

applicable to this proceeding, the respondent was informed in the

letter of service that an answer should be filed with the Hearing
Clerk, and that the answer should specifically admit, deny, or ex-

plain each of the allegations in the complaint. The respondent was
also informed that failure to file a request for oral hearing would
constitute a waiver of hearing.

Section 1.139 of the Rules, 7 CFR 1.139, provides that the ad-

mission by answer of all material allegations of fact contained in

the complaint shall constitute a waiver of hearing, and that upon
such admission complainant shall file a proposed decision and a
motion for adoption thereof. Further, that unless meritorious objec-
tions have been filed by a respondent, the Judge shall issue such
decision without further procedure or hearing. Although I find fur-

ther procedure or hearing unnecessary, I believe that the inclusion
of a recitation of the below listed chronology and citation of admis-
sions by respondent is necessary for clarity of the record, and
therefore modify the Proposed Decision and Order for James Moss,
as submitted by complainant.
On February 8, 1985, respondent James Moss filed a pro se

answer in which he admitted the allegations in Paragraph II of the

complaint. Respondent James Moss did not file a request for oral

hearing.

However, he did deny the material allegations of Paragraph III

of the complaint. In accordance with section 1.141 of the Rules, 7
CFR 1.141, complainant properly filed a Motion to Assign Date
for Oral Hearing on April 2, 1985. Thus, at this juncture of the pro-
ceedings, section 1.141 was not available to complainant as an
avenue to invoke the waiver of hearing provision. Additionally,
subsequent filings by respondent Moss, as well as the scheduling of
the hearing, contemplated that both respondents would participate
in the oral hearing.

By Notice of April 25, 1985, oral hearing was scheduled for

August 1, 1985, in Portland, Oregon. By letter filed July 19, 1985,
respondent Moss requested that this hearing be postponed. My
Order of July 26, 1985, rescheduled the hearing to August 29, 1985,
in order to accommodate respondent Moss, and for the further pur-
pose of providing the parties an opportunity to conclude this
matter through consent negotiations.
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On August 23, 1985, complainant filed a Motion to Dismiss Para-
graph III of the complaint with respect to James Moss. Additional-
ly, on August 23, 1985, complainant filed a Request for Adjourn-ment of Hearing and a Motion for the Adoption of Proposed Deci-
sion and Order for James Moss, together with a proposed Decisionand Order for James Moss.

By separate Orders of the undersigned, dated August 27 1985
the oral hearing scheduled for August 29, 1985, was cancelled and
rescheduled to October 30, 1985, and the Motion to Dismiss Para-
graph III of the complaint as to James Moss was granted. The
record does not show a similar Motion to Dismiss Paragraph III of
the complaint as against respondent Wood. On September 30, 1985
a Consent Decision by Bill Wood was filed and issued by the under-
signed on October 10, 1985. In the complaint, complainant had
sought a total civil penalty of $1,000, $500 per violation, againsteach respondent. Respondent Wood agreed in the Consent Decision
to settle this matter for half of this amount, $500.
On October 11, 1986, following respondent Moss' reply to com-

plainants Motion for Decision and Order for James Moss, com-
plainant requested postponement of the hearing scheduled for Oc-
tober 30, 1985, until the undersigned ruled on complainant's
Motion for Adoption of Proposed Decision and Order for James
Moss. The request was granted by my Order of October 18, 1986,and the oral hearing scheduled for October 30, 1985, in Portland,
Oregon, was postponed indefinitely. On October 18, 1985, complain-
ant filed a Renewal of Motion for Adoption of Proposed Decision
and Order for James Moss.

As previously noted, respondent Wood has entered into a Con-

sen^
Order in settlement of the allegations against him, thereby

leaving respondent Moss as the only remaining respondent in the
proceeding. Additionally, Paragraph III of the complaint has been
dismissed with respect to respondent Moss. Thus, the only matter
to be considered here are the allegations set forth in Paragraph II
of the complaint as they pertain to respondent Moss.

Parapaph
II of the complaint alleges respondent Moss moved

approximately 73 cattle interstate from Oregon, a Class A State, to

Cheney, Washington, in violation of 78.9(b) (9 CFR 79(b)) of the
regulations because the cattle, which were nonvaccinates over 18
months of age and from herds not 1 known to be affected with bru-
cellosis, were moved interstate 'without 'being accompanied by a
certificate, as required. Respondent Moss' Answer, filed February
8, 1988, stated,' in

part/'^umbdrtirof'the.qohip'Jatn't-ia a fairly ac-
curate account of the livestock shipped;" Uisf. answer latso stated
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that he did everything he was told to do by the veterinarian with

regard to the interstate movement of these cattle.

In response to complainant's Motion for Adoption of Proposed
Decision and Order for James Moss, respondent Moss stated, in

part, that, "The cattle involved in the shipment to Washington
were shipped by me." Again, he stated that he had done all he

knew to do on the advice of the veterinarian, and did not believe it

was his fault if he received wrong information with regard to the

shipment of these cattle. Thus, he stated, in essence, that he had
acted in good faith, and this was a mitigating circumstance.

As the respondent has admitted the allegations in Paragraph II

of the complaint, he has thus admitted all the material allegations
of fact contained in the complaint. Under section 1.139 of the Rules

of Practice (7 CFR 1.139), this constitutes a waiver of hearing. A
hearing is therefore unnecessary.

In the complaint, complainant requested a civil penalty of five

hundred. dollars per violation. The original complaint alleged two
violations by the respondents. In dismissing Paragraph III of the

complaint against respondent James Moss, complainant has halved

its requested sanction against him. Further mitigation is not war-

ranted. Therefore, the material allegations of fact in the complaint
are adopted and set forth as the Findings of Fact

FINDINGS OP FACT

1. James Moss, respondent, is an individual whose address is

20951 Boones Ferry Road N.E., Aurora, OR 97002.

2. On or about March 23 or 24, 1986, respondent moved approxi-

mately 73 cattle interstate from Oregon, a Class A State, to

Cheney, Washington, in violation of 9 CFR 78,9(b) because the

cattle, which were nonvaccinates over 18 months of age and from
herds not known to be affected with brucellosis, were moved inter-

state without being accompanied by a certificate.

CONCLUSIONS

In his answer, respondent James Moss admitted all the material

allegations of fact contained in the complaint. Complainant has
halved the penalty originally requested, and no further mitigation
is warranted.

By reason of the Findings of Fact set forth above, respondent
James Moss has violated the Act and regulations promulgated
thereunder. The following order is therefore issued.
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ORDER

Respondent James Moss is hereby assessed a civil penalty of five
hundred dollars ($500). The respondent shall send, payable to the
"Treasurer of the United States", a certified check or money order,
to William Jenson, Office of the General Counsel, Room 2422^
South Building, United States Department of Agriculture, Wash-
ington, D.C. 20260-1400, no later than thirty (30) days from the ef-

fective date of this order. This order shall have the same force and
effect as if entered after full hearing and shall be final and effec-
tive 35 days after service of this Decision and Order upon respond-
ent unless there is an appeal to the Judicial Officer pursuant to
section 1.145 of the Rules of Practice applicable to this proceeding
(7CFR1.145).

[This decision and order became final December 5, 1985. Ed.]

In re: TRAVIS E. FARMER. A.Q. Docket No. 127. Decided September
30, 1985; Amended Decision and Order Decided October 31,
1985.

Brucellosis exposed cattle moved interstate without permit Civil penalty.

Respondent moved brucellosis-exposed cattle interstate without a required permit.

Respondent acted entirely on his own volition and initiative. Respondent was as-

sesed a civil penalty of $600, which by amended decision and order is to be paid off

in ten equal monthly payments of $50.00.

Joseph Pembroke, for complainant.

Respondent, pro se.

Decision by William J, Weber, Administrative Law Judge,

DECISION AND ORDER

AMENDED DECISION AND ORDER

This matter involves an alleged violation of quarantine restric-

tions which prohibit cattle shipments without certain documents, 1

Respondent Farmer admitted shipping brucellosis exposed cattle

as alleged, but contended that the shipment in question was done
in accordance with "advice of ... a federal inspector." Par. 4, Re-

spondent's Answer filed 12/27/84.

The parties agreed that:

1 Act of February 2 1908, as amended, 21 UJ9JO., '111 and 120, and implement-
ing regulations, 9 CPR 78.1 et $eq, ,

,

In particular, the complaint 'alleged' violation of '

78.8(c), that is, movement of

brucellosUrexposed cattle not accompanied by a permit, as required.
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"1) On or about Sunday April 30, 1984, Mr. Farmer moved
ten head of cattle from Alabama to a holding pen in

Georgia, and then to a sale barn at Carrollton, Geor-

gia for auction.

"2) One of the above cattle tested out as a brucellosis re-

actor.

"3) Mr, Farmer was allowed to sell the brucellosis reactor

and two, or possibly three calf steers at the market.

"4) The remaining cattle were placed in quarantine by Ed
Wolfe.

"5) Mr. Farmer later returned these remaining cattle

from his holding pen in Georgia back to a pasture in

Alabama without an owner shipper statement.

Issues Presented at Oral Hearing

"1) Did Mr. Farmer act under the directions of the State

and Federal Inspectors, Roy Iverson, and/or Ed Wolfe
in returning the cattle to the pasture in Alabama?

"2) If Mr. Farmer acted under the guidance of Mr. Iverson

or Mr. Wolfe, what mitigating effect will that have on
the civil penalty requested by Complainant?"

Complainant's Exhibit #1

The evidence at the hearing confirms essentially the facts as

agreed to by the parties. The dispute revolves around a telephone
call between a "federal inspector" and Mr. Farmer during the

evening of the day the brucellosis reactor cow was discovered.
The federal animal health technician who worked in the brucel-

losis eradication program, said that Mr. Farmer called the techni-
cian at the technician's home that evening to inquire about quar-
antine questions. The technician said he told Farmer that every-
thing would be quarantined for 120 days. That meant the pasture
from which the brucellosis reactor cattle came, the pasture to

which they were taken from the stockyard, and anywhere else they
may be taken.

The quarantine often continues beyond a 120 days if other cattle

show up as brucellosis reactors. The quarantine continues until

they have all clear readings over a particular period of time from
all cattle in the herd(s).
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ar^MS&ssaw
On the other hand, respondent Farmer claims that the techni-

s.-=sssSMI

1 .

r hand, Mr. Farmer has a clear interest to have the

^^sx^^-xzz
antoed (aTthe point from which the brucellosis reactor cow came

^respondent Farmer could keep his own pastures in Georgia

free, ftorn quarantine restrictions, it would be a clear advantage to

him to do so, . ,
, u ,

No such advantage is seen on the animal technicians part, but

in fact, -to the contrary, a clear, strong occupational and program-

destroying, disadvantage, exists there, if the technician did what re-
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On balance, it appears that the testimony of the animal health

technician carries more probative value and weight than did re-

spondent's evidence.

There is more basic plausibility to complainant's side than re-

spondents. To accept respondent's position, would be to determine

that the animal health technician made a grievous, basic, funda-

mental mistake about simple, clear principles of the program he

had worked in for years.

Furthermore, it is difficult to accept the contention that the

animal health technician volunteered unsolicited advice to send

brucellosis-exposed cattle across a State line, in this context, with-

out some caveat or qualification.

The preponderance of the credible, reliable and persuasive evi-

dence supports the allegation that respondent moved seven (7) bru-

cellosis-exposed cattle from the stockyards at Carrollton, Georgia to

his (shared) pasture at Ranburne, Alabama in violation of 78.8(c)

of the regulations (9 CFR 78.8(c)), because the cattle were not ac-

companied by a required permit.

Respondent Farmer acted entirely on his own volition and initia-

tive, and did not receive any advice to return the brucellosis-ex-

posed cattle to Alabama (from Georgia) without a required permit.

Complainant seeks a civil penalty of $500.00. Great weight must
be given to the sanction recommended by the Administrators. In re

Sy B. Gaiber & Co., 31 AD 843, 845-51, (1972); In re J. A. Speight,
33 AD 280, 310-19 (1974); In re Samuel Esposito, 38 AD 613, 665

(1979).

Here, movement of brucellosis-exposed cattle warrants that sanc-

tion which is just double that commonly assessed on the weight

required to be given to complainant's recommendation for mere
technical violations, i.e., where healthy cattle are shipped without

such permits.
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ORDER

Respondent Farmer is assessed a five hundred dollar ($500.00)

civil penalty.
2

This Decision and Order shall become final 35 days after service,

unless appealed within 30 days of service (9 CFR 1.145a and 1.142c).

A copy of this Order shall be served upon the parties.

AMENDED DECISION AND ORDER

Complainant has filed a motion to amend the order, entered Sep-
tember 30 1985, averring that "Respondent, has requested that he
be allowed to pay the ($500) five hundred dollar civil penalty as-

sessed against him on September 3[0], 1985, in [ten] (10) equal

monthly payments of ($50) fifty dollars per month."

The motion should be and hereby is granted.

IT SHOULD BE AND HEREBY IS ORDERED that the Order en-

tered on September 30 1985, is amended and modified to read as

follows:

AMENDED ORDER

Respondent Farmer is assessed a five-hundred dollar ($500) civil

penalty.
2

The Respondent shall pay this civil penalty in ten (10) equal

monthly payments of fifty dollars ($50) each, beginning on the 1st

of the month following the day this Amended Order becomes final.

However, if any payment is not received by the tenth (10) day of

the month, the remaining uncollected balance shall become duo
and payable on demand by Complainant.
This Amended Order shall become final 35 days after service,

unless appealed within 30 days after service (9 CFR 1.145(a) and
1.142(c). A copy of this Order shall be served upon the parties.

[This amended decision and order became final December 10,

1985.-Ed.J

"The civil penalty shall be paid 'by certified check or money order, payable to the
Treasurer of

,
the United States, and mailed to Attorney Joseph P. Pembroke, Office

of the General Counsel, Room 2422-South Building, United States Department of

Agriculture, Washington, D. C. 20260.

The respondent shall pay the civil penalty by certified check or money order,

.payabi?
to the Treasurer of the 'United 'States, and mailed to Attorney Joseph P.

Pembroke,, Office of the General 'Counsel; Room 2422-South Building, United States
Department of Agriculture, Washington! D."C, 20250
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In re; GARY HOFFMAN. A.Q. Docket No. 99. Decided November 6,

1985.

Swine moved interstate without certificate Civil penalty.

Respondent shipped swine interstate without health certificate. That respondent

was without specific knowledge the pigs would be hauled across state lines does not

relieve him from responsibility. Respondent was assessed a civil penalty of $500.00.

Kris Ikejiri, for complainant.

William E. Kretschmar, for respondent.

Decision by Victor W, Palmer, Administrative Law Judge,

DECISION AND ORDER

PRELIMINARY STATEMENT

This is an administrative proceeding instituted by a complaint

filed on September 6, 1984, by the Administrator of the Animal

and Plant Health Inspection Service, United States Department of

Agriculture, seeking the assessment of a civil penalty against re-

spondent Gary Hoffman, under 21 U.S.C. 111, 120 and 122. The

complainant charges respondent violated the statute and pertinent

regulations on September 21, 1983, by moving swine interstate

from Ashley, North Dakota to Sank Center, Minnesota, which were

not accompanied by a requisite certificate attesting them to not be

known to be infected with or exposed to two contagious diseases (9

CFR 76.6(b)(l), 76.12 (Schedule B) and 85.7(b)).

On September 13, 1985, an oral hearing was held before me in

Bismarck, North Dakota, at which the parties stipulated certain

facts and agreed that, their post-hearing briefs would be limited to

specified issues. Briefing was completed on October 28, 1985.

FINDINGS OF FACT

1. Respondent Gary Hoffman is an individual whose address is

Lehr, North Dakota 58460.

2. On September 21, 1988, 214 swine were moved interstate from

a receiving and shipping facility in Ashley, North Dakota, conduct-

ed for American Feeder Pig Co-op by respondent Gary Hoffman, to

the American Feeder Pig Co-op receiving facility at Sauk Center,

Minnesota. The swine moved interstate unaccompanied by a certifi-

cate attesting that they were not known to be affected with or ex-

posed to hog cholera; were not vaccinated for pseudorabies; and

were not known to be infected with or exposed to pseudorabies.

3. On September 21, 1983, Gary Hoffman accepted and shipped
swine from a facility in Ashley, North Dakota, on behalf of Ameri-

can Feeder Pig, which paid him 40 cents for each pig received, and
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an additional 40 cents on each pig he shipped to local farmers, but

nothing additional on the pigs he shipped to the American Feeder

Pigs' facility at Sauk Center, Minnesota.

4. The veterinarian who inspected the pigs on September 21,

1983, was paid by American Feeder Pig on the basis of a flat

amount for his services for the day. The veterinarian inspected the

214 swine which moved interstate that day and found them to be

free of disease. However, he did not fill out and provide the certifi-

cate required by 9 CFR 76.6(b)(D, 76.12 (Schedule B), and 86.7(b)

because he was not asked to do so. His instructions in these re-

spects were normally given him by Gary Hoffman.

5. Gary Hoffman was attempting to arrange sales of the 214

swine 'to local buyers and, for that reason, failed to request the

preparation of the certificate the regulations required.

CONCLUSIONS

1. Gary Hoffman inadvertently failed to obtain and send the req-

uisite health certificate for swine moved interstate which a veteri-

narian had inspected and found to show no sign of the communica-

ble diseases that are the subject of federal regulations.

2. The appropriate civil penalty under the circumstances is $600.

DISCUSSION

Respondent contends he should not be held liable for the inter-

state shipment of swine without the required health certificate be-

cause he was only an employee and did not know these pigs would

actually be taken out of state. Respondent argues that the responsi-

bility for obtaining the necessary health certificate rested solely

with the trucker employed by American Feeder Pig Co-op who

made the decision to take the pigs to Minnesota.

Even though I accept respondent's testimony that the interstate

shipment of swine without the required health certificate was unin-

tended and inadvertent, Gary Hoffman bears responsibility and is

subject to sanction under the Act. He is a dealer in swine who had

charge of receiving and shipping operations at the Ashley facility,

and who owed a direct responsibility for compliance with the regu-
lations- The fact that he was without specific knowledge that these

pigs would, in fact, be hauled across state lines does not relieve

Him from that responsibility. He became liable for this consequence
when- ihe- '"-received1

(the 'sw^ne) for movement." See the definition of

Amoved
,,

,9

<jim
( 76,%) sindj

85,l(r). 'Moreover, it was understood
that Unless HofftnanW <local

;

buyers willing ,and able to pay more
for the oicra than
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pigs were to be moved interstate to the Sauk Center, Minnesota,

facility. t J . ,

Issuance of a warning letter, as respondent alternatively sug-

gests, would be an insufficient sanction where an experienced and

knowledgeable dealer such as respondent has failed to comply with

swine health law requirements. On the other hand, this is a first

offense and a single instance of a violation by respondent. Taking

each of these facts into consideration, a civil penalty of $500 shall

be assessed.

ORDER

Gary Hoffman, respondent, is assessed a civil penalty of five hun-

dred dollars ($500). The civil penalty shall be payable to the

"Treasurer of the United States" by certified check or money order

and shall be forwarded to Kris H. Ikejiri, Office of the General

Counsel, Room 2422, South Building, United States Department of

Agriculture, Washington, D. C. 20250-1400, within 30 days of the

effective date of this Decision and Order.

This Decision and Order shall be final and effective 30 days after

the date of service of this Decision and Order on the respondent,

unless there is an appeal to the Judicial Officer, pursuant to sec-

tion 1.145 of the applicable Rules of Practice (7 CFR 1.145).

[This amended decision and order became final December 17,

1986. Ed.]

In re: HAROLD F. (RED) DURHAM. A.Q. Docket No. 182. Decided No-

vember 8, 1986.

Cattle moved Interstate without required statement or document-Civil penalty.

Respondent moved cattle interstate on two occasions without required owner's or

shippers statement or other required document without certificate, and without

"Permit for Entry." Respondent was asseaaed a civil penalty of $2,500.00.

Jaru Ruley, for complainant.

Respondent, pro se.

Decision by John 4, Campbell Administrative Law Judge.

DECISION AND ORDER

This is an administrative proceeding for the assessment of a civil

penalty for a violation of the regulations governing the interstate

movement of .cattle because of brucellosis (9 CFR 71.18 and 78.1

et seq,\ hereinafter referred to as the regulations, in accordance
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with the Rules of Practice in 9 CFR 70.1 et seq, and 7 CPR
1.130 et seq.

This proceeding was instituted by a complaint filed on June 10,

1986, by the Administrator of the Animal and Plant Health Inspec-
tion Service, United States Department of Agriculture. On August
4, 1985, the complaint was personally delivered to the respondent
Harold F. "Red" Durham, at his residence at 903 North Meridian,

Waurika, Oklahoma. The complaint alleged that on or about

March 24, 1984, and April 12, 1984, respondent transported a total

of approximately 137 cattle interstate from Denton, Texas to Okla-

homa in violation of section 78.9(d)(3)(iv) of the regulations (9 CFR
71.9(d)(3)(iv) in that the cattle were not accompanied interstate by

a certificate or by a "Permit for Entry."

Additionally, the March 24, 1984, movement was in violation of

section 71.18 of the regulations (9 CFR 71.18) in that the cattle in

that movement were not accompanied by an owner's or shipper's

statement, or other document, containing prescribed information.

Respondent failed to file an answer, thereby admitting the allega-

tions and waiving a hearing. (See 7 CFR 1,139).

Accordingly, the material facts alleged in the complaint are

adopted and set forth herein as the findings of fact, and this deci-

sion is issued pursuant to section 1.139 of the Rules of Practice ap-

plicable to this proceeding. (See 7 CFR 1.139).

FINDINGS OF FACT

1. Harold F. (Red) Durham, herein referred to as the respondent,
is an individual whose address is Box 144, Waurika, Oklahoma
73573.

2. On or about March 24, 1984, the respondent moved interstate

approximately fifty-three (63) cattle from Denton, Texas, to Coman-
che, Oklahoma, in violation of section 71.18 of the regulations (9

OFE 171,18), in that the cattle were not accompanied interstate by
an

PWjetfs
(or shippers statement, or other document, containing

ion, as required.

, 1984, the respondent moved interstate

cattle from Denton, Texas, to Coman-
A

of section 78,9(dX3)(iv) of the regula-
tMth#fr (the cattle were not accompa-

moved interstate

Texas, to Coman-
of the regula-

accompa-
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5. On or about April 12, 1984, the respondent moved interstate

approximately eighty-four (84) cattle from Denton, Texas, to the

State of Oklahoma, in violation of section 78.9(d)(3)(iv) of the regu-

lations (9 CFR 78.9(d)(3)(iv)), in that the cattle were not accompa-

nied interstate by a certificate, as required.

6. On or about April 12, 1984, the respondent moved interstate

approximately eighty-four (84) cattle from Denton, Texas, to the

State of Oklahoma, in violation of section 78.9(d)(3)(iv) of the regu-

lations (9 CFR 78.9(d)(3Xiv)), in that the cattle were not accompa-

nied interstate by a "Permit for Entry", as required.

CONCLUSION

By reason of the facts contained in the Findings of Fact above,

the respondent has violated sections 71.18 and 78.9(d)(3)(iv) of the

regulations (9 CFR 71.18 and 78.9(d)(3)(iv)).

Therefore, the following Order is issued.

ORDER

Respondent, Harold F. (Red) Durham is hereby assessed a civil

penalty of two thousand five hundred dollars ($500.00 per viola-

tion). This penalty shall be payable to the "Treasurer of the United

States'
1

by certified check or money order, and shall be forwarded

to Jaru Ruley, Office of the General Counsel, Room 2422 South

Bldg., United States Department of Agriculture, Washington, D. C.

20250-1400, within thirty (30) days from the effective date of this

order. This order shall have the same force and effect as if entered

after a full hearing and shall be final and effective 35 days after

service of this Decision and Order upon respondent, unless there is

an appeal to the Judicial Officer pursuant to section 1.145 of the

Rules of Practice applicable to this proceeding (7 CFR 1,145).

[This decision and order became final December 17, 1985. Ed.]
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In re: RANDY SHIPP. A.Q. Docket No. 211. Decided December 18
1985.

Decision by Victor W. Palmer, Administrative Law Judge.

DISMISSAL OF COMPLAINT

For good cause shown by complainant, the complaint that was
filed herein against Randy Shipp on October 18, 1985, is herewith
dismissed.

In re; PAUL BROWN d/b/a PAUL BROWN CATTLE COMPANY. A.Q
Docket No. 202. Decided December 26, 1985.

Brucellosis-exposed cows moved interstate-Backtag and enrtag identification re-
movedCivil penalty-Consent.

Jaru Hutey, for complainant.

Respondent, pro se.

Decision by John A, Campbell, Administrative Law Judge.

CONSENT DECISION

This proceeding was instituted under the Act of February 2,

1903, as amended, (Act) (21 U.S.C. 111 and 120) by a complaint
filed by the Administrator of the Animal and Plant Health Inspec-
tion Service alleging that Paul Brown d/b/a Paul Brown Cattle

Company, respondent, violated the Act and regulations promulgat-
ed thereunder (9 CFR 71.18 and 78.8). The parties have agreed
that this proceeding should be terminated by entry of the Consent
Decision set forth below and have agreed to the following stipula-
tions:

1; For the purposes of this stipulation and the provisions of
this Consent Decision only, respondent specifically admits that the
Secretary of the United States Department of Agriculture has ju-
risdiction in this matter, neither admits nor denies the remaining
allegations in the complaint, admits to the Findings of Fact set
forth 'below, and waives;

(a) Any further procedure;
'(b) Any requirement that the final decision in this proceed-

ing contain findings, -and conclusions with respect to all material
issues of fact; law, or 'discretion, aS well as the reasons or bases
thereof;

'

'

, '(o)
r All ir%Kts to 'Seek judicial 'review 'and' .otherwise challenge

or eontest'tihe validity of 'this decisions, and
'

,

"-
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2. Respondent also waives any action against the United States

Department of Agriculture under the Equal Access to Justice Act
of 1980 (5 U.S.C. 504 et seq.) for fees and other expenses incurred

by the respondent in connection with this proceeding.

FINDINGS OF FACT

1. Paul Brown d/b/a Paul Brown Cattle Company, herein re-

ferred to as the respondent, is an individual whose address is Route

2, Antlers, Oklahoma 74523.

2. On or about April 19, 1984, the respondent moved a brucello-

sis-exposed cow interstate from the stockyard at Paris, Texas, to his

dealer premises at Rattan, Oklahoma.
3. Between the dates of April 19, 1984, and May 4, 1984, the re-

spondent removed backtag and eartag identification from a brucel-

losis-exposed cow.

4. On or about May 15, 1984, the respondent moved a brucellosis-

exposed cow interstate from his dealer premises at Rattan, Oklaho-
ma to the Supreme Beef Packers, Ladonia, Texas.

CONCLUSIONS

The respondent having admitted the jurisdictional facts and
having agreed to the provisions set forth in the following Order in

disposition of this proceeding with respect to the respondent, such
order and decision will be issued.

ORDER

The respondent is assessed a civil penalty of two thousand dol-

lars ($2000.00) The respondent shall pay the civil penalty in eight

monthly installments of $250.00 beginning January 1, 1986 with a
final payment due August 1, 1986. Each payment shall be by certi-

fied check or money order payable to the "Treasurer of the United
States," and sent to Jaru Ruley, Office of the General Counsel,
Room 2422, South Building, United States Department of Agricul-
ture, Washington, D. C. 20250-1400,

This order shall become effective on the day upon which service
of this order is made upon the respondent.
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In re: THE UNIVERSITY OF PENNSYLVANIA. AWA Docket No. 355. De-

cided November 4, 1985.

Research facility Compliance with the Act Civil penalty Consent.

Robert Ertman and Donald Tracy, for complainant.

Debra F. Fickler, Philadelphia, Pennsylvania, for respondent.

Decision by Dorothea A, Baker, Administrative Law Judge,

DECISION AND ORDER

This proceeding was instituted under the Animal Welfare Act, as

amended (7 U.S.C. 2131 et seq.\ ("Act") by a Complaint filed by the

Administrator, Animal and Plant Health Inspection Service

("APHIS"), United States Department of Agriculture, charging

that respondent violated the Act and the regulations and standards

issued thereunder (9 CFR Parts 1, 2, and 3), This decision is en-

tered pursuant to the consent decision provisions of the Rules of

Practice applicable to these proceedings (7 CFR 1.138).

The respondent admits the jurisdictional allegations contained in

the complaint, specifically admits that the Secretary has jurisdic-

tion in this matter, neither admits nor denies the remaining allega-

tions, and waives oral hearing and further procedure. Complainant

and respondent agree for the purpose of settling this proceeding to

the entry of this decision,

FINDINGS OF FACT

1. Respondent, the University of Pennsylvania, has a mailing ad-

dress of Office of the President, 101 College Hall, Philadelphia, PA
19104.

2. At all times material herein respondent operated a research

facility registered under the Act.

3. At the time of its original application for registration, respond-

ent received a copy of the regulations and standards contained in 9

CFR Chapter 1, subchapter A, and agreed in writing to comply
with said standards and regulations.

CONCLUSION

Respondent, The University of Pennsylvania, having admitted

the juriadictional facts and the parties having agreed to the entry

of this decision and order, this decision and order will be entered.

ORDER

Respondent, The University of Pennsylvania, shall comply with

each and every provision of the Animal Welfare Act (7 U.S.C.

2181 et seqO and the standards and regulations issued thereunder
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(9 CFR Parts 1, 2, and 3) and shall cease and desist from any viola-

tion thereof.

To assure that any research at the University of Pennsylvania

subject to the Animal Welfare Act is conducted in accordance with

the Act and regulations, respondent shall institute the following

actions within 30 days after the effective date of this Order:

1. The director of any research project utilizing animals, as de-

fined in the Act and regulations, must consult with the campus
veterinarian or his designee:

(a) on the proper use of anesthetics and analgesics; and

(b) on the proper care of injured animals.

It is understood that such consultations are to assure that re-

spondent establishes and maintains an adequate program of veteri-

nary care and are not intended to interfere with the actual conduct

of research.

2. Respondent shall establish an advisory committee for labora-

tory animal care, responsible to the Vice Provost for Research, to

oversee respondent's compliance with the regulations and stand-

ards issued under the Act.

(a) The committee shall include at least one member who is

not affiliated with either animal research or the animal rights

movement.

(b) The committee's oversight shall include, but not be limit-

ed to, a review of the use of anesthesia, the degree of sanitation

maintained in operating rooms, and the post-operative care given

research animals.

(c) The committee shall make quarterly reports to the Vice

Provost for Research detailing its findings concerning respondent's

compliance with the Act and the regulations and standards there-

under. Respondent shall send a copy of these reports to the Area

Veterinarian in Charge, APHIS, 2301 North Cameron St., Room

402, Harrisburg, PA 17110, for three years.

3. Respondent shall establish and maintain training programs
to assure that all individuals involved in the care and handling of

laboratory animals for research purposes are properly trained in

the standards under the Act.

4. Respondent shall distribute a copy of this Decision and

Order to all of its personnel who are responsible for the care and

handling of research animals subject to the Act. Respondent shall

maintain an ongoing information program designed to insure that

such personnel are aware of the provisions of this Decision and

Order.

5. Respondent shall, within sixty days after service of this De-

cision and OrderV send the Area Veterinarian in Charge a written
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report setting forth the steps it has taken to implement the re-

quirements of this Order.

Respondent is assessed a civil penalty of $4,000.00 which shall be

paid by a certified check or money order made payable to the
Treasurer of the United States.

This order shall have the same force and effect as if entered
after full hearing and shall become effective on the first day after
service of this Decision and Order on the respondent.

In re; JoErrA L. ANESI, d/b/a Jo's KENNEL. AWA Docket No. 267,
Order issued November 8, 1985.

Order issued by Donald A, Campbell, Judicial Officer.

ORDER FIXING EFFECTIVE DATE

On October 29, 1985, an order was issued denying respondent's
Petition for Reconsideration. No effective date was fixed in that
order since respondent stated she was going to appeal to the
United States District Court. If an appeal is taken, it must be to
the appropriate United States Court of Appeals (7 U.S.C. 2149(c)).

Since it is not known whether respondent will appeal to the appro-
priate United States Court of Appeals within the time limit, the
order previously issued in this case shall become effective 20 days
after service of this order. If within that 20-day period, respondent
files with the Hearing Clerk a copy of a notice of appeal to the ap-
propriate United States Court of Appeals, and requests a stay
order, consideration will be given to staying the administrative
order pending the outcome of proceedings for judicial review.

In re; GALEN ROTTINGHAUS. AWA Docket No. 230. Decided Novem-
ber 22, 1985.

Compliance with the ActConsent.

Robert A. Ertman, for complainant.

Respondent, pro se.

Decision by Edward H, McGrail, Administrative Law Judge.

DECISION AND ORDER

This proceeding was instituted under the Ar^mal Welfare Act, as
amended (7 U.S.C, 2131 et seq,) ("Act") by a Complaint filed by



WILBUR & SARAH CHRISTENSEN 2719

Volume 44 Number 7

the Administrator, Animal and Plant Health Inspection Service

("APHIS"), United States Department of Agriculture, charging
that respondent violated the regulations and standards issued

under the Act (9 CPR 1.1 et seq.). This decision is entered pursu-
ant to the consent decision provisions of the Rules of Practice ap-

plicable to these proceedings (7 CFR 1.138).

The respondent admits the jurisdictional allegations contained in

the complaint, specifically admits that the Secretary has jurisdic-

tion in this matter, neither admits nor denies the remaining allega-

tions, and waives oral hearing and further procedure. Complainant
and respondent agree for the purpose of settling this procedure to

the entry of this decision.

CONCLUSION

Respondent having admitted the jurisdictional facts and the par-
ties having agreed to the entry of this decision and order, this deci-

sion and order will be entered,

ORDER

Respondent shall comply with each and every provision of the
Animal Welfare Act (7 U.S.C. 2131 et aeq.) and the standards and
regulations issued thereunder (9 CFR 1.1 et seg.) and shall cease

and desist from any violation thereof.

This order shall have the same force and effect as if entered

after full hearing and shall become effective on the first day after

service of this Decision and Order on the respondent.

In re: WILBUR and SAKAH CHRISTENSEN. AWA Docket No. 235. De-
cided December 2, 1985.

Compliance with the ActConsent.

Robert A. Ertman, for complainant.
James J. Wheeler, Kaytesville, Missouri, for respondents.

Decision by William J. Weber, Administrative Law Judge.

CONSENT DECISION

This is a proceeding under the Animal Welfare Act, as amended.
A complaint issued by the Administrator of the Animal and Plant
Health Inspection Service pursuant to the Act and the applicable
Rules of Practice was served upon respondents. This decision is en-

tered pursuant to the i consent decision provision of the Jlules of
Practice (7-CFR 1.138).
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Respondents admit the jurisdictional allegations of the com-
plaint, specifically admit that the Secretary of Agriculture has ju-
risdiction in this matter, neither admit nor deny the remaining al-

legations of the complaint, and waive hearing and further proce-
dure herein. Complainant and respondents consent to the issuance
of this order.

ORDER

Respondents are ordered to cease and desist from violating the
Animal Welfare Act, as amended, and the regulations and stand-
ards issued under the Act. This order shall have the same force
and effect as if entered after a full hearing and shall be effective

upon service upon respondent.

In re; JoErrA L. ANESI, d/b/a Jo's KENNEL. AWA Docket. No. 267.
Order issued December 2, 1985.

Order issued by Donald A, Campbell, Judicial Officer.

ORDER DENYING STAY ORDER

On November 26, 1985, respondent filed a request for a stay
pending the outcome of proceedings for judicial review. Respond-
ent's request encloses a "copy of my appeal to the U.S. District
Court Eastern Division at St. Louis, Missouri." That court has no
jurisdiction of an appeal in this case. As stated in the Judicial Offi-
cer's order fixing effective date filed November 8, 1985, "[i]f an
appeal is taken, it must be to the appropriate United States Court
of Appeals (7 U.S.C. 2149(c))." The "U.S. District Court Eastern
Division at St. Louis, Missouri" is not a "United States Court of
Appeals." Since no valid appeal has been filed, no stay will be
issued.

In addition, the reasons set forth in respondent's appeal to the
District Court do not raise any serious legal issues that would war-
rant the issuance of a stay pending the outcome of any appeal. Ac-
cordingly, even if respondent files an appeal within the time limit
to the appropriate United States Court of Appeals (Y U.S.C.
2149(c)), and again requests a stay, unless it appears that a stay is

warranted, the Judicial Officer will deny the request for a stay
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In re: HOMER STEELEY. AWA Docket No. 340. Order issued Decem-
ber 18, 1985.

Order issued by William J. Weber, Administrative Law Judge.

ORDER GRANTING MOTION TO DISMISS

For good cause shown, Complainant's motion to dismiss is grant-
ed. Accordingly, is is ORDERED that the complaint be, and hereby
is, dismissed without prejudice.

In re: DONALD STUMBO, d/b/a STUMBO FARMS. AWA Docket No.
216, Order issued December 23, 1985.

Order issued by Donald A, Campbell, Judicial Officer.

REMOVAL OP STAY ORDER

The stay order previously issued in this proceeding is hereby
lifted.

The provisions of the first paragraph of the order filed on August
7, 1984, shall become effective on the day after service of this order
on respondent.
The license suspension provisions of the order issued August 7,

1984, shall become effective on the 80th day after service of this
order on respondent.
The civil penalty imposed by the order of August 7, 1984, shall be

paid within thirty (30) days after the date of service of this order
on respondent.

In re: PATRICIA BLOWERS, d/b/a WINDSONG KENNELS. AWA Docket
No. 366. Decided December 26, 1985.

Dealer Compliance with the Act Consent.

Robert Frisby, for complainant.

Respondent, pro se.

Decision by Victor W, Palmer, Administrative Law Judge.

DECISION AND ORDER

This proceeding was instituted under the Animal Welfare Act, as

amended, 7 U.S.C. 2131-2156 (1982), by a complaint filed by the

Administrator, Animal and Plant Health Inspection Service,
United States Department of Agriculture, alleging that the re-
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spondent willfully violated the regulations and standards issued
pursuant to the Act, 9 CFR 1.1-3.142 (1985). Thia decision is en-
tered pursuant to the consent decision provisions of the Rules of
Practice applicable to this proceeding, 7 CPR 1.138.

The respondent admits the jurisdictional allegations in para-
graph I of the complaint and specifically admits that the Secretary
has jurisdiction in this matter, neither admits nor denies the re-

maining allegations, waives oral hearing and further procedure,
and consents and agrees, for the purpose of settling this proceeding
and for such purpose only, to the entry of this decision.
The complainant agrees to the entry of this decision.

FINDINGS OP FACT

1. Patricia Blowers is an individual doing business as Windsong
Kennels, and her mailing address is Route 3, Box 14, Danburv
Wisconsin 54830.

2. The respondent, at all times material herein, was a dealer
within the meaning of that term as defined in the Act and subject
to the provisions of the Act and the regulations and standards
issued thereunder.

3. The respondent, at all times material herein, was licensed as a
Class A dealer (No. 35-A-145) under the Act.

CONCLUSIONS

The respondent having admitted the jurisdictional facts and the

SUch dedsion

ORDER

Respondent Patricia Blowers shall comply with each and every
provision of the Animal Welfare Act, 7 U S.C. 2131-2156 and

^regulations
and standards issued thereunder! S.CFR U-

The provisions of this order shall become effective on the first
day after service of this decision on the respondent.

Copies of this decision shall be served upon the parties.



BILL SCAMMON AND ELAINE SCAMMON 272!}

Volume 44 Number 7

In re; BILL SCAMMON and ELAINE SCAMMON. AWA Docket No. 298.
Decided December 31, 1985.

Compliance with the Act Civil penalty Consent.

Robert Erttnan, for complainant.
Charles B. Cowherd, Springfield, Missouri, for respondents.

Decision by Victor W. Palmer, Administrative Law Judge.

DECISION AND ORDER

This is a proceeding under the Animal Welfare Act. A complaint
issued by the Administrator of the Animal and Plant Health In-
spection Service pursuant to the Act and the Rules of Practice was
served upon respondents. This decision is entered pursuant to the
consent decision provision of the Rules of Practice (7 CPR Section
l.loo).

Respondents admit the jurisdictional allegations of the com-
plaint, specifically admit that the Secretary of Agriculture has ju-
risdiction in this matter, neither admit nor deny the remaining al-

legations of the complaint, and waive hearing and further proce-
dure herein. Complainant and respondents consent to the issuance
of this Order.

ORDER

1. A civil penalty of $500.00 is assessed against respondents. The
Administrator acknowledges receipt of said sum and said penalty is

hereby deemed satisfied.

2. Respondents shall cease and desist from violating the Animal
Welfare Act and the regulations and standards issued under the
Act.

3. This order shall have the same force and effect as if entered
after a full hearing and shall be effective on the first day after
service upon respondents.
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In re: UTICA PACKING COMPANY. FMIA Docket No. 35. Decided No-
vember 18, 1982.*

Conviction for bribing a supervisory Federal meat inspector on four occasions
Dismissal of complaint with prejudice following remand order from Sixth Circuit,

Decision by Donald A. Campbell, Judicial Officer.

DECISION AND ORDER ON REMAND

This matter is on remand from the United States District Court
for the Easter District of Michigan, Southern Division, for further
consideration consistent with the Order of the United States Court
of Appeals for the Sixth Circuit dated September 2, 1982,

In the Decision and Order previously filed in this case (39 Agric
Dec. 590 (1980)), the Judicial Officer withdrew federal meat inspec-
tion from respondent indefinitely, but suspended the denial for so
long as David Fenster is not associated with respondent and pro-
vides no direction or advice to and exercises no control over re-
spondent. The Order was based on David Fenster's felony convic-
tions of bribing a supervisory Federal meat inspector on four occa-
sions which, according to the Judicial Officer, warranted the deter-
minate that respondent is unfit to receive meat inspection, so
long as Dawd Fenster is associated with respondent, irrespective of
any mitigating circumstances.
The original Decision and Order was affirmed by the United^n18^^^^? Packing Co - v ' B^land, 511 F. Supp.655 E.D Mich 1981), but was remanded by the United State

Court of Appeals for the Sixth Circuit to afford the Judicial Officeran opportunity to consider the mitigating circumstances advanced
by David Fenster. In remanding the case, the Court stated (Utica
Packing Co, v. Bergland, No. 81-1388, slip op. at 6 (6th Cir, Sept. 2,

On appeal, Fenster's principal argument is ... [that]the Judicial Officer erred in refusing to consider mitigat,mg circumstances. We agree. Mitigating circumstances are
not immaterial or irrelevant, and may be considered.Whether a particular conviction is itself sufficient to war-rant withdrawal of inspection services depends upon the
facts underlying the conviction. The more closely fhe con*

Ac ttto^r^,
P

l

ici

f
S f the Federal Meat In*P- *n

Act, the more likely it alone will support a determination

_J>funfitne
SS regardless of the mitigating facts present Z

*
Case was not included in 1982 compilation. Editor.
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Wyszynski Provision Co., Inc. v. Sec. of Agriculture, 538 F.

Supp, 361, 364 (E.D. Pa. 1982).

Upon consideration of the briefs, the arguments of coun-

sel, and the record, this Court is of the opinion that this

action must be remanded to the district court with direc-

tions to afford the Judicial Officer an opportunity to con-

sider the mitigating circumstances advanced by Fenster.

This Court expresses no opinion on either the mitigating
circumstances or the merits of the action.

Consideration of the mitigating circumstances here is not for the

same purpose as in a criminal proceeding, viz.> to determine wheth-
er punishment should be reduced. In fact, there is no punishment
here. This is an administrative proceeding to protect the public in-

terest, Le., to determine whether respondent is fit to receive meat

inspection, The mitigating circumstances here are to be considered

solely in determining whether they overcome the determination of

unfitness that otherwise would be made based on the felony convic-

tions involved in this case.

Before considering the mitigating circumstances, we should look

at the felony convictions which led to the initiation of the adminis-

trative proceeding.

On April 25, 1978, David Fenster was found guilty by the United
States District Court for the Eastern District of Michigan of having
violated 18 U.S.C. 201(b) by bribing a supervisory United States

Veterinarian-Inspector on four separate occasions, Before entering
its judgment, the United States District Court handed down a
memorandum opinion and order, on April 18, 1978, which states;

"The defendant herein was charged with violations of the

bribery statute, 18 U.S.C. 201, in a four-count Indictment

returned and filed on November 15, 1977. Specifically, de-

fendant is alleged to have paid $200.00 on four separate oc-

casions (viz., November 24, December 3, December 10, and
December 17, 1976) to a U. S. Veterinarian-Inspector for

the purp'ose of influencing that official in decisions and ac-

tions regarding inspections of meat at a meat-processing

plant. On Wednesday, March 1, 1978, defendant waived his

right to trial by jury. The government acquiesced in the

waiver and the Court, having conducted an inquiry on the

record,,was satisfied that the waiver was voluntary and in-

telligent. Trial was begun on that day and concluded on
the next, What follows is a narrative exposition of the

Court's findings of fact and conclusions of law."



2726 FEDERAL MEAT INSPECTION ACT
Volume 44 Number 7

"Prior to March, 1975, health and sanitation inspections at
the Utica Packing Plant had been conducted by State offi-
cers who were, by virtue of statutory and contractual au-
thority, supervised by federal officers and who enforced
pertinent federal regulations. After March, 1975, the re-

sponsibility for inspections and enforcement devolved di-

rectly on federal authorities, and a staff of federal inspec-
tors assumed the relevant duties. At all times pertinent
here, the staff consisted of Craig A. Reed, a Doctor of Vet-
erinary Medicine, and five or six lay inspectors, Dr, Reed
having supervisory authority over the lay inspectors as-
signed to the plant. Dr. Reed was himself responsible to a
circuit supervisor and thence to a regional supervisor. The
staff worked on the plant premises and every animal was
inspected at various stages by the inspectors."

j'Utica
Packing was engaged in the slaughter and process-

ing of hogs. The production process-killing, cleaning, evis-
cera mg, sectiomng, storing, and shipping-was con t oiled

the ~ t611' ^^ federal inSpect rs
' who co^ slowhe process by reqmring the correction of particular prob-

ould^tf^ f Und t0 be actory o/whocould stop the entire process until correction of a morepervamve
unsatisfactory condition was made. For

~ a
loss of ~, a

or

a

i

"y req
f

U? **V with

^Iln rej6Cted altW*er or ap-
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"As is perhaps inevitable in that type of situation, some
friction developed between management and the inspec-
tion team. The former complained that some shut-downs
were unnecessary or had been unnecessarily prolonged;
that inspectors were too strict or picayune; that the inspec-
tors were acting arbitrarily and capriciously. On the other

hand, the veterinarian assigned to the plant considered
that his conduct and performance were proper, that the

plant needed upgrading and that the staff, in the main,
was following the regulations and enforcing them fairly."

"In September, 1976, an inspection of the plant was con-

ducted by the regional office of the U. S. Department of

Agriculture and resulted in a rating of 1 on a scale of 1

through 4, 4 being the best and 1 the worst rating assigna-
ble. This result was brought to the attention of David Fen-

ster, a part-owner of the plant, by Dr. Reed on September
21, 1976. At that meeting, Fenster suggested to Reed that
an arrangement be made between them which would be
worth $100 to $200 a week to Reed and which would

result, in return, that there be fewer stoppages of the line

and a lower condemnation rate. Thereafter, Reed attempt-
ed to contact an FBI agent whom he knew as a result of a

prior, unrelated investigation, but did not succeed in

reaching him until November, 1976. The two of them de-

vised a plan whereby Reed would appear to accept the

offer made by Fenster. Reed was provided with a concealed

body transmitter and recorder and, so equipped, met with
Fenster on the four dates delineated in the Indictment. On
each such occasion Reed received the sum of $200 from
Fenster. The conversations between Reed and Fenster
were recorded and subsequently transcribed; the tran-

scripts were received in evidence as Exhibits IB, 2B, SB,
and 4B."

"There is no doubt that David Fenster paid over the funds
to the federal officer and that it was his intent to influence

the officer in the performance of his official duties. The
issue remains, however, as to the nature of Fenster's in-

tentions, since that issue will determine whether he is

guilty of a violation contemplated in 18 U.S.C. 201(b).or
of one described in 201(0, the former carrying a ,much
higher potential penalty than the latter."
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"Section 201(b) of Title 18 of the United States Code pro-
vides for the imposition of penalties on

"
'[w]hoever, directly or indirectly, corruptly gives,

offers, or promises anything of value to any public
official

* * * with intent

'(1) to influence any official act; or

'(2) to influence such public official
* * *

to
commit or aid in committing, or collude in or
allow, any fraud, or make opportunity for the
commission of any fraud, on the United States; or

'(3) to induce such public official
* * *

to do or
omit to do any act in violation of his lawful
duty, . . .'"

"Subsection (f), on the other hand, is directed against
"
'Whoever, otherwise than as provided by law for

the proper discharge of official duty, directly or
indirectly gives, offers, or promises anything of
value to any public official,

* * *
for or because

of any official act performed or to be performed by
such public official

****

''Subsection (f) set, forth a lesser offense included' in the

ta^TtS
8

? , ^ subsection ^ the difference co s*-mg in the higher degree of criminal knowledge and pur-
pose betokened by the adverb

'corruptly/ See US vUnans 368 F.2d 725 (2d Ci, 1966), cert, lLissed mvl
80, U& v. Srewster, 506 F.2d 62 (D.C. Cir. 1974)
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called the gratuity section. It concluded, as to this ques-
tion:

"
'The bribery section makes necessary an explicit

quid pro quo which need not exist if only an ille-

gal gratuity is involved; the briber is the mover or

producer of the official act, but the official act for

which the gratuity is given might have been done
without the gratuity, although the gratuity was
produced because of the official act.'

"

"Id. at 72."

"The thrust of the two sections and the functions they
were designed to serve are radically different, and it is

from the perspective of that difference that they are to be
construed and applied. Section 201(0 is a gratuity section."

"
'It is apparent from the language of the subsec-

tion that what Congress had in mind was to pro-
hibit an individual, dealing with a Government
employee in the course of his official duties, from

giving the employee additional compensation or a

tip or gratuity for or because of an official act al-

ready done or about to be done.'
"

"U.S. v, Irwin,
354 F.2d 192 at 196 (2d Cir. 1965), cert, denied 383
U.S. 967."

"Section 201(b), on the other hand, is directed against im-

pairment of the actual and apparent integrity of public
life."

"
'The evil sought to be prevented by the deter-

rent effect of 18 U.S.C. 201(b) is the aftermath
suffered by the public when an official is corrupt-
ed and thereby perfidiously fails to perform his

public service and duty. Thus the purpose of the
statute is to discourage one from seeking an ad-

vantage by attempting to influence a public offi-

cial to depart from conduct deemed essential to

the public interest.'
"

"U.S. v. Jacobs, 431 F.2d 754
at 759 (2d Cir. 1970), cert, denied 402 U.S. 950."

"In light of these standards, the Court is satisfied that the
facts established at trial bespeak beyond a reasonable
doubt a violation of 201(b). It is clear that in offering the

payments .and later making them David Fenster had a
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more focused purpose in mind than merely to build a ro-
serve of good will toward his company on the part of influ-
ential officials. It was Dr. Reed's understanding that in
return for the money he was to alleviate Fenster 's prob-
lems, specifically by reducing the number of liue-Htoppfw
and by giving the company the benefit of the doubt with
regard to hogs of questionable soundness. This understand-
ing is borne out by the transcripts of the recorded conver-
sations between Reed and Fenster. They reveal that white
Fenster expected Reed to maintain an appearance of con-
scientious enforcement (Exhibit IB, pp. 11 and 14), he also
expected that more hogs would be passed (Exhibit IB, pp.
9, 13-14; 2B, PP . 21 and 23; SB, p. 29), that the production
line would be shut down less frequently (Exhibit IB, pp
14, 15-18 [falsify time sheets so that inspectors would have

C Stop"e fr 'he purpose of earning
3B, pp. 30-31;

pp 2 s.) M ?rrZeal US inapector
, PP. ^9-31, 35).

* In short, the evidence of a quid-pro-cmoarrangement sufricient to establish a violation rf ?0?(b
is, m the opinion of this court, overwhelming.
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meat food products, and result in sundry losses to livestock

producers and processors of meat and meat food products,
as well as injury to consumers. The unwholesome, adulter-

ated, mislabeled, or deceptively packaged articles can be
sold at lower prices and compete unfairly with the whole-

some, not adulterated, and properly labeled and packaged
articles, to the detriment of consumers and the public gen-

erally. It is hereby found that all articles and animals
which are regulated under this chapter are either in inter-

state or foreign commerce or substantially affect such com-

merce, and that regulation by the Secretary and coopera-
tion by the States and other jurisdictions as contemplated
by this chapter are appropriate to prevent and eliminate
burdens upon such commerce, to effectively regulate such

commerce, and to protect the health and welfare of con-
sumers. [Emphasis added.]

In the present case, David Fenster, respondent's president ami
half-owner, was convicted under 18 U.S.C. 201(b) of bribing tho

supervisory Federal meat inspector at respondent's plant on four

separate occasions. The Court explained that 18 U.S.C. 201(b) re-

quires that the bribe be given "corruptly" to "influence a public of-

ficial to depart from conduct deemed essential to the public inter-
est" The Court stated that "[i]n light of these standards, the Court
is satisfied that the facts established at trial bespeak beyond a rea-
sonable doubt a violation of 201(b)."

A highly qualified psychiatrist, who conducted a psychiatric
interview of David Fenster and testified on his behalf, agreed with
the Court's finding as to Fenster's purpose, stating (Tr. 622):

I do believe the finding of the Court was most likely accu-

rate, that Mr. Fenster did want to influence the officials,
which I believe is the definition of bribery, which is a
harsh sounding word, but I think he did have that inten-
tion at one point.

It is clear that David Fenster's conduct strikes at the heart of
the meat inspection program. This would be true even if we wort*
to consider the effect of Fenster's bribery attempt, if successful,
only at respondent's plant. That is, if Dr. Reed had in fact been cor-

rupted by the bribes, meat inspection at respondent's plant would
not have been conducted impartially, with the public interest in
mind,

The necessary result of Fenster's bribery, if successful, would
have been a likelihood that, at least on some occasions, unwhole-
some meat would have been introduced into commerce. As stated
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Also, meat inspectors are relatively low paid Federal employees.
Packers have, at times, paid weekly (tax free) bribes to meat in-

spectors or graders equal to or more than their Federal take-home
pay (see In re National Meat Packers, Inc., 38 Agric. Dec. 169, 171-
72 (1978)). Accordingly, if we are to be assured of having wholesome
meat and meat food products from a particular plant, we must
know without question that the plant's management will not at-

tempt to bribe any inspector at the plant.
It is the view of the Administrator of the Department's meat in-

spection program and the Judicial Officer that every person con-
victed under 18 U.S.C. 201(b) of corruptly bribing a meat inspec-
tor, with the necessary proof of criminal knowledge and purpose, is

unfit to receive Federal meat inspection, irrespective of any miti-

gating circumstances. That conduct alone so strikes at the heart of
the meat inspection program as to prove conclusively, without
regard to any mitigating circumstances, that the convicted felon is

unfit to receive Federal meat inspection.

Accordingly, in the present case, the Judicial Officer held that

respondent was unfit to receive Federal meat inspection because of
David Fenser's bribery convictions, irrespective of any mitigating
circumstances. The Judicial Officer's decision made it clear that

mitigating circumstances are to be considered in the case of felo-

nies not striking at the heart of the meat inspection program. Spe-
cifically, the Judicial Officer held (In re Utica Packing Co., 89

Agric, Dec. 590, 603 (1980));

In the Norwich Beef case, the felony which afforded the

jurisdictional basis for withdrawing inspection service in-

volved the receipt of a truck load of stolen beef. Since that

felony is not directly involved with meat inspection, all of
the facts and circumstances had to be considered to deter-
mine whether the recipient of meat inspection was unfit to

receive inspection because of that type of felony convic-
tion.

But in the present case, the felony conviction relates to

the heart of the meat inspection program. Respondent's
president and half-owner was convicted of "corruptly"
giving money to the supervisor of the meat inspectors at

respondent's plant under a statute which "is to discourage
one from seeking an advantage by attempting to influence
a public official to depart from conduct deemed essential to

the public interest" (Finding 4, supra). In view of the type
of felony involved in the present case, there is no need to

consider -any other circumstances in order to determine
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whether the conviction of this felony renders respondent
unfit to receive inspection services,

In a thoughtful and well-reasoned decision, the District Court af-

firmed the Judicial Officer's original decision in this proceeding.
Utica Packing Co. v. Bergland, 511 F. Supp, 655 (E.D. Mich. 1981),

I believe that the original administrative decision in this case is

correct, notwithstanding the reversal by the Court of Appeals. The
decision by the Court of Appeals in this case will assure the distri-

bution of unwholesome or adulterated meat in some instances.
That is, under the Sixth Circuit's opinion, if there are enough miti-

gating circumstances, a felon convicted under 18 U.S.C. 201(b) of

corruptly bribing a Federal meat inspector must, nonetheless, be
determined to be fit to continue to receive Federal meat inspection,
Since the judicial system has not had outstanding success in pre-
dicting which criminals will repeat their criminal conduct, we are
not likely to have any better batting average in predicting which
felons convicted of bribing a meat inspector will not repeat that un-
lawful conduct, or otherwise attempt to subvert the meat inspec-
tion program.

It is true that the Court of Appeals' decision indicates that in the
case of a bribery conviction, it is "likely" it will support a determi-
nation of unfitness regardless of the mitigating facts present. Spe-
cifically, the Court states (slip op. at 5):

The more closely the conduct strikes to the policies of the
Federal Meat Inspection Act, the more likely it alone will
support a determination of unfitness regardless of the
mitigating facts present.

Although that suggests that the great majority of persons con-
victed of bribery under 18 U.S.C. 201 (b) will be found unfit to re-
ceive Federal meat inspection regardless of the mitigating facts
present, it also suggests that some mitigating facts would outweigha bribery conviction. Otherwise, the Court would not have remand-ed the present case to consider the mitigating circumstances, not-
withstanding Fenster's convictions for bribing the supervisory meat
inspector,

J
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For the reasons set forth above, the decision of the Court of Ap-
peals in this case will not be followed in any case in which an
appeal does not lie to the Sixth Circuit. In all cases in which an
appeal does not lie to the Sixth Circuit, anyone who is convicted
under 18 U.S.C. 201(b) of the felony of bribing a Federal meat in-

spector will automatically be found unfit to receive Federal inspec-
tion, and Federal inspection will be withdrawn indefinitely from
the plant (unless it is appropriate, as in the present case, to contin-
ue inspection if the convicted felon is completely disassociated from
the plant).

However, since other reviewing courts might agree with the
Sixth Circuit's decision in the present case, the Adminiatrative Law
Judges should in every case receive evidence as to mitigating cir-

cumstances and indicate their opinion as to such circumstances.

Respondent relies on a number of so-called mitigating circum-
stances. David Fenster testified that prior to offering the bribes, he
felt that the inspectors were enforcing the rules unfairly, arbitrar-

ily and in a discriminatory manner at respondent's plant. He was
receiving offers to buy his plant, and he believed that the Federal
inspectors might be part of a conspiracy to induce him to sell; that
they might be stopping his production line unnecessarily so as to
earn overtime pay; and that some of the inspectors were harrassing
him because of a personal dislike for him.
There is much evidence in the record to demonstrate the reason-

ableness of Mr. Fenster's beliefs as to the inspectors. His produc-
tion line was stopped by the inspectors for an average of two or
more hours a day during the period preceding the bribes. This not
only caused respondent to have to pay over 100 employees for their
lost time, but, also, frequently prevented the plant from completing
the killing of the hogs that arrived by truck each day,
On many days during the summer of 1976 (preceding the bribes

in November and December 1976), more than 15 or 20 hogs died on
the trucks because the line had been stopped by the inspectors (Tr.
277-280). Some Federal inspectors felt that inspection at respond-
ent's plant was more strict than at its competitors' plants, and
David Fenster's son observed that at a competitor's plant the line
was not stopped for conditions which he felt were far worse than at
respondent's plant,

2

3
Weighty evidence proves that much corrective action by the inspectors at Utlca

waa justified. A Compliance Review Staff gave respondent's plant the lowest possible
rating in September 1976. If conditions were worse at competitors' plants, inspection
there might have'been too lax. Also, the record suggests that other plants have a
"kictovrt" 'rail which allows animals to be set aside without stopping the line. The
addition 'of a ,<%lolwmt!' rail should be explored by respondent.
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Respondent contends that the ring leader of the inspectors hnr*
rassing the plant was John Stadler, a close friend of Dr. Reed, who
received the bribes in this case. John Stadler "hated the block
people" at respondent's plant (Tr. 1026); he "had no use for black*"
(Tr. 1053). He also "hated Yugoslavians" (Tr. 1058), who comprise u
large portion of respondent's work force. He referred to David Fen-
ster's partner as "a stupid Yugoslavian" (Tr. 1025-26),
David Fenster is a Jew, and inspector Stadler made such obscono

and derogatory comments about Jews that decency precludes me
rom quoting his comments or even giving the record citation
(counsel for both parties are aware of the transcript reference). In
particular, Inspector Stadler had a "personal dislike or hatred
toward David Fenster" (Tr. 1050-51)
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Nazis, and, together with his mother, sister, and brother, he es-

caped from a train en route to a gas chamber. He never saw his

family again. He was recaptured and taken to a concentration
camp before being liberated in 1945.

David Fenster undoubtedly was under great stress and emotional
strain at the time of the bribery in 1976. In 1975 he lost the sight
of his right eye, after several operations. For months after the op-
eration, he had headaches and nerve problems, requiring him to
take sleeping pills, tranquilizers, and other drugs. Then his left eye
started to go bad in 1976. He consulted numerous doctors, receiving
conflicting advice as to the desirability of surgery, which subjected
him to great emotional stress. He had additional problems because
his partner drank heavily. His problems with meat inspectors, re-

ferred to above, further contributed to his stress,

Respondent contends that because of the unusually stressful cir-

cumstances referred to above, David Fenster regressed to the old

way of dealing with danger that he learned while a victim of the
Nazi Holocaust, during which period of time bribery was a neces-

sary way of life to survive.

Although David Fenster deserves much sympathy for the many
problems referred to above, they do not excuse bribery of a Federal
meat inspector, and do not cause me to change my views with re-

spect to respondent's unfitness to receive meat inspection so long
as David Fenster is associated with respondent.

I agree with Judge Taylor (Utica Packing Co. v. Bergland, 511 F.

Supp. 655, 663 (E.D. Mich. 1981), rev'd on other grounds, No. 81-
1383 (6th Cir. Sept. 2, 1982) that this argument by respondent-

is a slander not only on the Jewish survivors of the Holo-
caust but on this country, to which Fenster immigrated
and in which he has built an enterprise which his econo-
mist testified is worth $200 million to his community; in
which this record indicates that he has had access to every
level of the United States Department of Agriculture in-

cluding the Secretary of Agriculture to discuss his difficul-

ties in the Meat Inspection Program; in which a United
States Senator has sworn to his high character, as have
the aides of two State Senators (one of whom is now his

employee) and a bank President,

I further agree with Judge Taylor that this argument, if credited,
further >"establishes] the propriety of Fenster's suspension from
the meat inspection program" (ibid.). That is, if Fenster's experi-
ence- through the Nazi, Holocaust could cause him to revert to brib-

ery iftore than 30 years later because of stressful circumstances,
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there is certainly the possibility that he would again revert to brib-

ery under further stressful circumstances. Mr. Fenster's situation
could get worse, both with respect to his health and his business.

Many well run businesses have gone bankrupt or are on the verge
of bankruptcy. Accordingly, if Fenster's experiences through the
Nazi Holocaust over 30 years before had some part in leading to
the bribery involved in this case, I could not be sure that he would
not again repeat that conduct under more stressful conditions.

Accordingly, these mitigating circumstances would have no
weight with me in determining respondent's fitness to receive Fed-
eral meat inspection, in the absence of the Sixth Circuit's opinion
in this case.

Respondent also relies on the prior good record of respondent
and David Fenster, and his present good reputation, despite the
conviction. Here again, I give more weight to the facts involved in
the felony convictions than to opinions as to respondent and Fen-
ster. I have reviewed too many files where highly respected persons
testified as to a person's excellent character and reputation, despite
unchallenged evidence in the file proving that he engaged m seri-
ous fraudulent conduct, to attach any significant weight to such
testimony.

Accordingly, I would give no weight to these circumstances in de-
termining respondent's fitness to receive Federal meat inspection,m the absence of the Sixth Circuit's opinion in this case.
Respondent also relies on the fact that it is not now having any
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is the consistent policy of this Department to impose a remedial
sanction without regard to the respondent's present compliance
with the Act and without making any determination that it is

likely that respondent will again violate the Act in the future. 8 No
second chance is given. There is even less reason for giving a meat
plant a second chance where the public health is at stake as in this
case,

If a second chance were to be given to violators of the Depart-
ment's regulatory programs even where the first violation was
wilful and serious, the remedial statutes would be rendered ineffec-
tive. It is a rare case where the violator has not ceased violating by
the time the final order is issued. It is a rare case where the viola-
tor cannot produce some witnesses who regard his reputation as
good irrespective of the violation. It is a rare case where the viola-
tor would not appear to be truly sorry for his misconduct and indi-
cate that the violation will never again be committed. Accordingly,
unless we were to adopt a second chance policy as to all of the De-
partment's regulatory programs (which is not contemplated), there
is no basis whatever for adopting it in this proceeding where the
public health is at stake.

In addition, if we were to adopt a second chance policy in Meat
Inspection Act cases, it would, at least to some extent, be inconsist-
ent with the Congressional policy set forth in the statute, which
permits withdrawal of meat inspection because of conviction of a
single felony or more than one lesser violation (21 U.S.C, 671). A
second chance policy would, in effect, result in withdrawing inspec-
tion only after conviction of more than one felony.

Accordingly, in the absence of the Sixth Circuit's opinion in this

case, I would give no weight to respondent's conduct after the com-
plaint was filed in this case.

Respondent also relies on the length of time since Fenster's ille-

gal conduct. It is indeed unfortunate that so much time has

- *E,g., In re Sterling Colo. Beef Co,, 89 Agric. Dec. 184, 238-39 (1980), appeal dis-
missed, No. 80-1298 (10th Cir. Aug. 11, 1980); In re American Fruit Purveyors, Inc

,

38 Agrlc. Dec. 1372, 1387-88 (1979), aff'd per curiam, 630 F.2d 370 (5th Cir. 1980)
cert, denied, 101 S. Ct. 1701 (1981); In re Mountainside Butter & Egg Co., 38 Agric.
Dec. 789, 800 (1978) (remand order), final decision, 39 Agric. Dec. 862, 863-64 (1980)
aff'd, No. 80-3898 (D, N.J. June 23, 1982); In re L.R. Morris Produce Exch,, Inc., 37
Agrlc. Dec. 1112, 1120 (1978); In re Breckenridge Auction & Sales Co., 36 Agric. Dec.
1522, 1530 (1977); In re DeJong Packing Co., 36 Agric. Dec. 1181, 1218-21 (1977J
aff'd, 618 F,2d 1329 (9th Cir.) (2-1 decision), cert, denied, 449 U.S. 10C1 (1980)- In re

Catan?a,ro, 35 Agric. Dec. 26, 36 (1976), aff'd, No. 76-1613 (9th Cir. Mar. 9, 1977),

printed^ 36 AgriC, Dec. 467; In re </. Acevedo & Sons, 34 Agric. Dec. 120, 135, aff'd
per curiarh, 624 F.2d 977 (6th Cir. 1976); In re Miller, 33 Agric, Dec. 63, 62, 81, aff'd
per curiam, 498 F.2d 1088 (6th Cir. 1974).
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elapsed. The bribery occurred at the end of 1976. The indictment
was returned and filed on November 15, 1977, The criminal pro-
ceeding was concluded August 22, 1978. The criminal conviction
formed the basis for the present administrative proceeding, which
was initiated on October 18, 1978. The Administrative Law Judge
decided the case February 11, 1980, and the Judicial Officer decided
the case June 25, 1980. The remand order was received in Septem-
ber 1982. Although this six year period since the violation ia moat
unfortunate from the standpoint of the public interest in asmiriiiw
a wholesome meat supply, it does not afford the basis for findingthat respondent is fit to receive meat inspection with David Pen-
ster still associated with respondent.

Accordingly, I would give no weight to this circumstance, in tho
absence of the Sixth Circuit Court's opinion in this case
Respondent contends that withdrawal of meat inspection would

tercm . But under theterms of the order in this case, there is no need for inspection serv-
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nonetheless, there are, of course, degrees of bribery. In this case,
the bribery was not as flagrant as it could have been. That is, al-

though Mr. Fenster did not want the line stopped as often, there is

some basis for his belief that the line was being stopped unneces-
sarily. Also, during the bribery conversations, Mr. Fenster made it

clear to Dr. Reed that he wanted a clean plant, and that he wanted
Dr. Reed's help in achieving that objective. As to tuberculosis hogs,
although Mr. Fenster suggested several times during the bribery
conversations that borderline hogs should be passed, he also stated
on many occasions during the same bribery conversations that he
had no right to tell Dr. Reed what to do as to tuberculosis hogs,
and that Dr. Reed should use his own judgment as to them.

Second, the testimony in this proceeding indicates that the bribes
would not have been given if Dr. Reed had not misunderstood a
comment by David Fenster, and later hinted strongly to Fenster
that he wanted money from Fenster. Fenster testified that in Sep-
tember 1976 when Dr. Reed was in Fenster's office, Fenster asked
him "What do you want?" (Tr, 760). By this, Fenster meant, "What
am I doing wrong? What do you want from me? What do you want
me to do?" (Tr. 760).

Dr. Reed took Fenster's statement as suggesting a bribe, went to
the FBI, got wired-up with a tape recorder, and then went back to
Fenster's office on November 24, 1976. Dr. Reed initiated the dis-
cussion by saying, "Well, you told me, you asked me what I want?"
(Tr. 772). Dr. Reed then said, "Well you know" "You know what"
(Tr. 772). Fenster naturally took this as an invitation for a bribe,
and immediately said, "What do you want, money? Well, I'll give
you a hundred," "What do you want, you want $200?" (Tr. 772).

Although Fenster's testimony in this proceeding is different from
Dr. Reed's testimony in the criminal proceeding, Dr. Reed did not
testify in this proceeding notwithstanding the fact he was original-
ly scheduled as a witness (Tr. 902) and Judge Palmer warned com-
plainant's counsel that an adverse inference might be drawn from
the failure to call "any witness who could be available who does
not testify" (Tr. 90S). Since David Fenster did not testify in the
criminal proceeding and Dr. Reed did not testify in the administra-
tive proceeding, neither judge had an opportunity to resolve the
conflict in their testimony by observing their demeanor.
Respondent concedes that Dr. Reed's conduct was not sufficient

entrapment to constitute a defense to a criminal proceeding, but,
nonetheless, if the facts are as sworn by David Fenster at the ad-
ministrative proceeding in this case, this would be a mitigating cir-

cumstance to be considered under the Sixth Circuit's remand order
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Furthermore, David Fenster has already been precluded from
working at respondent's plant for 9 or 10 months, since a stay
order was not issued following the District Court's decision in this

case, This is not a significant factor to me since I believe that no
period of time away from a meat plant could make a person con-
victed under 18 U.S.C. 201(b) of bribing a meat inspector fit to re-

ceive Federal inspection (just as no passage of time could make a
Federal inspector who accepted a bribe fit to be reemployed as a
Federal inspector). But this is a circumstance that is as relevant as
the other circumstances referred to above.

For the reasons set forth above, I am with great reluctance and
misgiving dismissing the complaint in this case.

I would not want to eat meat from any plant managed by a
person who has been convicted under 18 U.S.C. 201(b) of corruptly
bribing a meat inspector. I deeply regret that I feel compelled by
the Sixth Circuit's remand order to cause other persons to have to
do so.

ORDER

The complaint in this proceeding is hereby dismissed with preju-
dice.

In re; FORT PLAIN PACKING Co., INC. FMIA Docket No. 75. Decided
October 11, 1985.

Withdrawal and denial of Inspection services, suspended with conditions,

Because of the felony convictions of respondent and its president for conspiracy to
violate the Federal Meat Inspection Act, respondent was alleged unfit to engage in

any business requiring inspection under the Act. Such inspection services were or-
dered withdrawn and denied, However, this order was suspended provided respond-
ent's President follow stipulations as given in the order.

Marshall Marcug, for complainant.
Peter 0, Safir, Washington, D.C., for respondent.

Decision by Dorothea A, Baker, Administrative Law Judge.

DECISION AND ORDER

PRELIMINARY STATEMENT

On September 21, 1983, the United States Department of Agri-
culture,, for purposes of convenience of reference, hereinafter some-
times referred to as the "USDA" or, the "Department," filed a
Complaint against Fort Plain Packing Co., Inc., hereinafter some-
times referred to as "Fort Plain," alleging that Fort Plain is unfit
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tive proceeding, Fort Plain had not exhausted
_

its administrative
remedies and the action was not ripe for judicial review. Fort Plain
seeks to reserve this issue for appeal, if necessary.

Hearings on this matter were held on June 18, 19, and 20, 1984,
in Washington, D. C. and on August 16, 1984, in Albany, New
York, before Administrative Law Judge Dorothea A. Baker. The
Complainant was represented by Marshall Marcus, Esquire, Office
of the General Counsel, United States Department of Agriculture,
Washington, D. C. 20250, and the Respondent was represented by
Peter 0. Safir, Esquire, of Kleinfeld, Kaplan & Becker, 1140 Nine-
teenth Street, N. W., Washington, D. C. 20036.

FINDINGS OF FACT

1. Fort Plain Packing Co., Inc., hereinafter sometimes referred to
as the Respondent, is a corporation, operating a meat packing es-

tablishment, at Route 5, Nelliston, New York 13410.

2. Respondent, is now, and at all times material herein, was the
recipient of inspection services, under Title I of the Act, at said es-

tablishment.

3. Mr. Leopold Koppel is now, and at all times material herein
was, President and Chief Executive Officer of Fort Plain Packing
Co., Inc.

4. On July 28, 1983, Respondent corporation was convicted in the
United States District Court for the Northern District of New
York, of one felony, conspiracy to defraud the Government and fe-

loniously violate the Federal Meat Inspection Act (21 U.S.C. section
601 et seq>} } in violation of 18 U.S.C. section 371,

5. On July 28, 1983, Leopold Koppel was convicted, in the United
States District Court for the Northern District of New York, of one
felony, conspiracy to defraud the Government and feloniously vio-
late the Federal Meat Inspection Act (21 U.S.C. section 601 et seq.\
in violation of 18 U.S.C. section 371.

6. As part of a plea agreement * with the United States, Leopold
Koppel executed a sworn Affidavit outlining the details and specif-
ics of the above referenced conspiracy. It is this Affidavit which
furnishes the basis for much of Complainant's case.

(

7. In the above referenced Affidavit, Mr. Koppel acknowledged
his

^

awareness of the Federal laws regulating establishments pre-
paring wholesome meat for commerce. Notwithstanding this, he ad-
mitted to giving orders to accomplish and personally participating
in, among others, the following illegal activities;

1 There is some evidence that the plea agreement, in part, was induced by reason
of fear that Mr. Koppel's son would be indicated.
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(a) Butchering of carcasses from cattle and cattle which

had died otherwise than by slaughter;

(b) Slaughter of disabled, dying or diseased cattle without

the required ante-mortem inspection;

(c) Concealment from Federal inspectors of possibly dis-

eased heads, and viscera from cattle slaughtered at

Fort Plain Packing Co., Inc.;

(d) Removal and concealment from the Federal inspectors

of growths, lesions, tumors, abscesses, cysts, bruises

and other abnormalities from cattle carcasses prior to

the completion of the required post-mortem inspection;

(e) Removal of growths, lesions, tumors, abscesses, cysts,

bruises and other abnormalities from the carcasses re-

tained by a Federal inspector for further examination

by an official veterinarian in order to deceive the re-

viewing veterinarian; and

(f) Fostering at Fort Plain Packing Company, Inc., an at-

mosphere of. conflict and confusion through verbal

abuse, harassment and intimidation of Federal em-

ployees assigned to that establishment.

8. Except for the transitional period set forth in the Order

herein, as long as Mr. Leopold Koppel is associated with Respond-

ent corporation, and possesses stock ownership therein, the Re-

spondent corporation is unfit, as that term is used in the Act, to

receive inspection services.

9. The evidence shows that if Mr. Leopold Koppel, after the tran-

sitional period provided herein, disassociates himself from the cor-

poration, and disposes of his stock ownership, and particularly if

such stock ownership is acquired by the employees pursuant to a

plan set forth at the hearing, then, in such event, the Respondent

corporation is fit to receive inspection services under Title I of the

Federal Meat Inspection Act (21 U.S.C. section 601 et seg.),

CONCLUSIONS

This was a rigorously contested proceeding and centered primari-

ly upon the sanction, if any, and the extent thereof. It is not con-

tested by either party that both the corporate Respondent and its

President Mr, Koppel each pled guilty to a felony conviction.

In addition to the appropriateness of sanction, the Respondent
has put in issue the correctness of Complainant's refusal to

produce certain documents. >
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The Respondent hue mudo a clear demand Cor production of two

documents: (1) an mtonHlfiod regulatory enforcement plan; and (2)

the intensified regulatory log for the; aubjocfc company. The Secre-

tary of Agriculture declined to produce thcao documonts.

With respect to my Decision and Order herein, although I have

not had such documents, nevertheless, I have taken into consldor-

ation the Htipulation of the Complainant's nttornoy that Iho corpo-

rate Hespondont IB in full compliance with tho applicable I'ngulu-

tions and that wort) such documents to huvo boon produced, they

would huvo reflected thin full compliance. AHHuming that thin in HO,

then the Secretary, should biwo hiH roviow of thin promulinK on

tho same assumption. However, in tho event that tho Sucrolary htm

information or documents within hiH possession which would indi-

cate otherwise or upon which reliance may bo mudo in dulermiiiiuK

the sanction herein, than, the HoHpondont bus prown-vrd its duo

procGHS argument in this regard. MHO, ontorinw into the duo proc-

ess argument, find tho mitigating circumstances horoln, is Iho con-

tention of the Respondent that tho many letters addrenfled to the

sentencing United States District Court Judge wore not considered

by tho Secretary in formulating the Complaint herein wlwroln tho

Respondent IB alleged to bo unfit to receive Federal Mewl IiiHpt'o

tion Services. The composite summarization of these lotto rollout*

tho high regard in which Mr. Koppol wa hold belli pwHonully nnd

in a budlnoBB relatlonahip, with the communlly-Ht-large. Thn (Com-

plainant maintains that those letters should not \w conHkturwl hy
tho Secretary in his detormimition of filncsH and they wt*re tulniU'

ted for the limited purpoao of showing that thore WHH wid*-Hprtiul

community support for Mr. Koppel. Two of tho uuthurtt of ih ltl-

tors teatified at the hearing and were available fur crotdM<xnmirm-

lion by tho Complainant.
One of such individuals who both testified and wrolu ti Urtt*r in

support of Mr. Kopjiol to Iho sentencing United Stutt'w Dislrkt

Court Judge was John M. King, D.V.M., a Vterimiry I'dlholngiHt

and a Professor teaching Volarlnnry Pathology at CJornwll Univnxi-

ty. Dr. King had the opportunity to examine and in fnct did wxuni"

ine the Affidavit signed by Mr. Koppel (Exliibit 5), Mr, KIIIM'H <K-

cellent qualificatlonB and extensive oxpcriunco lend grina onnloncu

to his testimony which was relevant to tho "fitntww" of ihw H4--

apondent corporation, Hia testimony related to Iho doi<r(*ct f Mttri-

ouanees of tho activitioa described by Mr. Koppol in hiw Afruluvit,

Exhibit 6, as well as tho extent to which such activities did or did

not present a danger to the public or involve nrnllera dtarinu<ntnl

to human conautnption and human health. Hia towtimony

ing these matters is regarded as credible and moat
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An evidentiary document of significance is an eight page letter

which was written by the said John M. King, D.V.M., dated August

24, 1983, in which he addressed the Honorable Howard Munson,
United States District Judge, for the Northern District of New
York. At that time and in that letter, Dr. King addressed the court

with respect to the significance of the terminology and the possible

consequences of the acts described in both the Information and in

Mr. Koppel's Affidavit submitted to his Honor in that matter. It

was Dr. King's desire to share certain information which he be-

lieved the court would find useful in evaluating the degree of seri-

ousness of Mr, Koppel's offense. Inasmuch as Dr. King testified at

the oral hearing, the Complainant had the opportunity to examine

him as to his testimony and his expert views.

A brief summary of the views of Dr. King indicate that it was hia

opinion as an expert in the field of Veterinary Pathology that

there was only a remote possibility that conditions which might

successfully be concealed by the acts outlined in Mr. Koppel's Affi-

davit and in the Information in this case would have presented any

danger to the public, or otherwise render the meat inedible. He fur-

ther indicated that conditions which would render meat unwhole-

some for human consumption are not confined to a discrete part of

the carcass, and cannot successfully be concealed by hiding or dis-

carding part of the carcass. It was said that the conditions and

growths which can successfully be concealed by such activity do not

present any danger to the public and, in his opinion once removed,
should not cause the remainder of the carcass to be condemned for

health reasons, except in extremely rare cases. Dr. King could not

remember the last time he had ever seen such a case in his 25

years of experience.

It was not Dr. King's intention to criticize the Federal meat in-
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The letters to which the Complainant strenuously objected were

written on behalf of the Respondent. Incident to the plea agree-

ment, Mrs. Koppel, wife of Leopold Koppel, sought and obtained ex-

pressions of the high regard in which Mr. Koppel is held, and of

leniency, fi'om various parties such as charities, friends, relatives,

children, business associates and others. These letters directed to

Judge Munson, United States District Court, were from outstand-

ing persons and institutions in the community. Complainant's ob-

jection went to the fact that the authors of such letters, except in

two instances as noted above, were not available for cross-examina-

tion.

The history of the Respondent's discontent with the inspecting

personnel provided to his plant pursuant to the Federal Meat In-

spection Act is one of longstanding controversy, although neither

the Respondent corporation nor Mr. Koppel had ever been convict-

ed of any crime prior to the ones which are involved in this pro-

ceeding. For instance, the Respondent Mr. Koppel addressed a

letter to his Congressman seeking assistance in a situation which

he described as being that of an inspector assigned to the Respond-
ent corporation who had acted improperly in the discharge of his

duties in carrying out meat inspection requirements.

Perhaps the plight of Respondent is best described by the Re-

spondent on Brief. It is the Respondent's position that the Secre-

tary must evaluate whether or not the sanction which he seeks is

unduly harsh and unwarranted under the circumstances. In sup-

port thereof it is the position of the Respondent, as set forth by its

counsel at the oral hearing:

"* * * the evidence will show that the USDA has an

enormous hostility towards Fort Plain Packing Company
over many years, primarily because of its president, Mr.

Leo Koppel. Mr. Koppel has been a thorn in the side of the

USDA since the early 1970's, continuously complaining

about harassment and constantly pushing both his compa-

ny and the inspectors to increase the productivity of his

plant. This often resulted in forcing USDA employees to

work harder and more days than any comparable plants.

"Beginning in 1982 with the placement of a new inspec-

tor who had previously left the service and in spite of a

hiring freeze was rehired by the service particularly to

work at Fort Plain Packing, the Department finally had

an individual who was able to collect evidence on Leo

Koppel.
* * *

Indeed, he had a private vendetta because

of a romantic liaison with one of Mr. Koppel's employees,
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who left the company in January of 1983 and was, subse-

quently, denied unemployment compensation in March of

1983.

"As will be testified to by various witnesses, there was a

marked change in the attitude of this inspector toward

Fort Plain Packing coincident with the departure of his

girl friend from the operation.
2

"As a result of unreasonable inspections and demands

placed on the company, the very economic existence of the

company was threatened. The conflict between this inspec-

tor and Fort Plain management contributed to the climate

of hostility and mistrust that may have led to the specific

acts alleged in the information.

it* * * There is no allegation or admission in the plea

documents that any meat shipped by Fort Plain was con-

taminated, unwholesome or otherwise unfit to eat,

"The fact remains, however, that the Department of Ag-

riculture was out to convict Leo Koppel. They did. He has

suffered enormous personal anguish and through the

public and trade crafts, has been subject to notoriety and

public humiliation.

"The present action is designed to put the employees of

Fort Plain Packing out of business.

"* * * two public industrial development authorities

will participate in the employee buy-out of Mr. Koppel and

in a plan to effect employee management of the operation.

This is not a pie-in-the-sky operation. Specific steps have

been taken
* *

*." (Tr. 10-13).

Both the Respondent and the Complainant recognize that the

issue for determination in this proceeding is the extent and nature

of the sanction. The Respondent is seeking to rely upon mitigating

circumstances to achieve a sanction less than that of indefinite

withdrawal of inspection services under the Act.

2 In addition, some employees, such as the boner, believed the Respondent was

treated differently from other plants by the inspector commencing in 1988, (Tr. 240-

242). This view was concurred in by the union representative;
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The Complainant maintained continuing objections to the receipt

of certain evidence in this proceeding. However, Complainant's

counsel did acknowledge in objecting to a question posed to Dr.

Prucha that the Secretary has broad powers of judicial review as

well as with respect to the circumstances which he may consider.

In entering an objection, Complainant's counsel stated:

"This witness [Dr. Prucha] is not competent to answer

that question. He is an official of an agency under the di-

rection of the Secretary. He holds no judicial authority for

judicial review. He is totally incompetent to answer with

respect to what the Secretary will or will not consider or

how it will [be] considered] in a judicial proceeding." (Tr.

610).

Complainant's counsel acknowledged that what the Secretary will

consider in mitigation and how the Secretary will consider it is a

judicial function. (Tr. 611).

Pursuant to arrangements at the oral hearing, counsel for both

parties made a joint search for final orders of litigated and decided

cases under the Federal Meat Inspection Act. According to this

joint search, the Department has issued final orders in the follow-

ing cases which are briefly summarized herein. For a more com-

plete understanding of them, the entire order in each case should

be read.

Indiana Slaughtering Co., Inc. FMIA No. 3 (November

30, 1976) wherein an indefinite withdrawal of inspection

services was sanctioned and imposed but suspended for so

long as the individual named had "no contact or dealings

with Federal meat inspection or grading service personnel,

and" complied with other conditions.

Stevens Food Inc., et al FMIA No. 10 (June 10, 1981) in-

spection services under Title I were indefinitely withdrawn

from the respondent and meat grading and inspecting

services were indefinitely withdrawn from the respondent

and any establishment operated by the respondent therein

or from any establishment in which said respondent was

an officer, director, partner or substantial investor or had

any authority with respect to the establishment.

Norwich Beef Company, Inc. FMIA No. 29 (March 7,

1979) wherein the indefinite withdrawal of inspection serv-

ice under Title I was suspended under certain conditions.

The reasons for these conditions were said to be:
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"In the present case, however, since * * *
is the princi-

pal stockholder and key figure in the respondent's busi-
ness, and the Department's loose procedure contributed to
inspection being provided to Respondent's plant for several
years, respondent should have some time in which to at-

tempt to find someone else to lead the firm. Also, [Re-
spondent] should have time within which to sell his stock
in an orderly manner. It would seem appropriate, there-
fore, to permit [Respondent] to be associated with the firm
for an additional 90 days and to have one year within
which to sell his stock." (Emphasis added).

Utica Packing Company, Inc. FMIA No. 36 (March 20,
1984) wherein the indefinite withdrawal of inspection serv-
ices was suspended provided certain conditions were com-
plied with, and there was the further proviso that the re-
spondent therein would be permitted to be associated with
the respondent firm for one year subsequent to the date
the order became final and would have one year subse-
quent to the date the order became final to dispose of his
stock.

Toscony Provision Company, Inc. FMIA No. 40 (May 18,
1984) wherein the indefinite withdrawal of inspection serv-
ices was suspended on the condition that a certain individ-
ual not be associated with the Respondent, etc. but with
the proviso that the named individual would be permitted
to be associated with the Respondent's firm for one year
subsequent to the date the order became final and would
have one year subsequent to the date the order became
final to dispose of his stock.

Wysznski Provision Company FMIA No. 41 (February 13,
1981) wherein the indefinite withdrawal of inspection serv-
ices was suspended for so long as certain conditions were
met, with the further proviso that the named individual
should be permitted to be associated with the Respondent's
firm for 90 days subsequent to the date the order became
effective and that such individual would have one year
subsequent to the date the order became effective to dis-
pose of his stock.

3-D Meat Inc. FMIA No. 55 (July 6, 1982) inspection
service was withdrawn for' a period of two years subse-
quent to the date the order became final.
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Bristol Meat Company FMIA No. 56 (February 9, 1982)
the order therein provided for the resumption of inspec-
tion of Respondent's establishment on the conditions enu-
merated therein which included the exclusion from the
kill floor of a certain individual during certain hours for
90 days; the regulation of communication between the
named individual and assigned food inspectors for a period
of 90 days; and further restriction upon such individual
with respect to his relationship to assigned inspectors.
(The Agency had requested 6 months to a year).

Omega Packing Limited FMIA No. 66 (August 13, 1984)

inspection services were withdrawn for a period of four

years and "The facts and circumstances as set forth [there-
in] shall be published."

Golden West Meat Company, Inc. FMIA No. 70, and
PPIA No. 10 (January 11, 1984) Federal inspection services

pursuant to the Federal Meat Inspection Act and the Poul-

try Product Inspection Act were withdrawn for a period of
three years from the effective date of the order.

As the Respondent has noted, and from the above referenced
cases, there has been a variance in the cases before the Depart-
ment of Agriculture as to the sanctions to be applied in cases of
this nature. Although the Respondent refers to this as being a
matter within the purview of the Administrative Law Judge to for-

mulate, and although such formulation has been done by this Ad-
ministrative Law Judge, nevertheless, I am sure that both the Re-

spondent and the Complainant recognize that this is a matter
within the discretionary authority of the Secretary who exercises
his authority in these cases through the Judicial Officer. The
courts recognize and respect the authority of the Secretary of Agri-
culture and "The Secretary's choice of sanction is not to be over-
turned unless the reviewing court determines it is unwarranted in

law or without justification in fact * * *
*." The Secretary may

make an allowable judgment in his choice of remedy and the fash-

ioning of an appropriate remedy is for the Secretary of Agriculture.
Magic Valley Potato Shippers, Inc. v. Secretary of Agriculture (C.A.

9th, No. 81-7863, April 1, 1983).

In support of its requested sanction that Federal Meat Inspection
Services should ;be indefinitely withdrawn from the Respondent,
the Complainant adduced at the oral hearing a number of substan-
tial witnesses who testified to the seriousness of the actions result-

ing in the felpny convictions of both Mr. Koppel and the Respond-
ent corporation. Included among such witnesses was Doctor Jack
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Leighty a Veterinarian of many years experience with the Depart-

ment; Doctor Ronald J. Prucha, Deputy Administrator with the De-

partment's Meat and Poultry Inspection Operations; and Mr.

Gonter, Compliance Official with the Department. The testimony of

these witnesses indicated that they regarded the actions resulting

in the felony convictions to be those of a most serious and far-

reaching nature. Mr. Gonter indicated that in his consideration of

a sanction, he took into consideration facts which led him to be-

lieve that there had been a course of conduct extending over a

three and a half year period from 1979 which represented a con-

tinuing pattern of conduct which showed a,
"* * *

complete, in my
judgment, total disdain for the spirit, intent and purposes of the

Federal Meat Inspection Act." (Tr. 25).

The principal piece of evidence upon which the Complainant

relies consists of a ten page Affidavit (Complainant's Exhibit 6)

signed by Mr. Koppel with respect to the felony conviction. With

respect to other matters relating to the three and a half year

period, the evidence does not show that any violations of the Feder-

al Meat Inspection Act occurred prior to the year 1983. The evi-

dence in the record of this case does show that Mr. Koppel made

frequent complaints about the inspectors to various people and in

attempting to rectify the situation as he saw it, engaged in corre-

spondence as well. It was noted by counsel for the Complainant (Tr.

876) that; "Mr. Koppel is not here, although everybody is testifying

as to what Mr. Koppel meant in his sworn Affidavit."

The Complainant admits and the case law 3 of the Department

reflects that mitigating circumstances may and should be taken

into consideration in a proceeding of this nature. (Tr. 91-113), Ac-

cordingly, evidence relating to mitigating circumstances was re-

ceived and has been evaluated herein"; The penalties for the crimi-

nal violations of the Federal Meat Inspection Act have already

been determined and paid. The purpose of this proceeding is not to

reexamine those results or to impose penalties in excess of those

imposed by the United States District Court Judge. The Complain-

ant's interest in this proceeding is to assure the wholesomeness of

3 See In re: Apex Meat Company, FMIA Docket No. 78 (September 6, 1985) and

the rationale and cases cited therein, As noted in that case, the statutory grant of

authority to the Secretary to withdraw meat inspection for a felony conviction is

expressly limited to a withdrawal for "such period, or indefinitely, as he deems nec-

essary to effectuate the purposes of this Act [i.e., Federal Meat Inspection Act, aa

amended]" (Emphasis, added); 81 Stat, 584, 597 (1967), codified In 21 U.S.C. section

671), And the statutory grant of authority is limited to cases where the felony is of

such nature as to support a finding that the recipient of inspection services ia unfit

to engage in any business requiring inspection as a result of the felony conviction,
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the meat which reaches the consuming public and to assure that
this particular meat facility abides by the law.

As has been noted previously, the determination of a remedy is

clearly within the administrative discretion of the agency. The
matter for determination in this proceeding relates to the nature of
the sanction.

One way to achieve the purposes of the Complainant is to with-
draw Federal Meat Inspection Services which would result in the

closing of the plant facilities of the Respondent. Another remedy
would be to achieve a sale of the plant facilities to a third party
having no prior association with the Respondent. If the plant and
facilities were sold outright to a third party with no prior associa-
tion with the Respondent there would be no apparent basis for de-

nying inspection services.

However, the Secretary has indicated in previously decided cases
that there are other alternatives available to him and which he
may exercise in his discretion. Some examples of these alternative

procedures are illustrated more fully in the cases set forth herein-
above.

In formulating a workable sanction and solution to this proceed-
ing, evidence of the mitigating circumstances has been considered

carefully together with the sanctions approved by the Secretary in
other proceedings.

Among the mitigating circumstances which are clearly shown by
the persuasive evidence of record are those of: (1) the plant at the
time of the oral hearing was operating in full compliance with the

requirements of the Agriculture inspectors;
4

(2) Mr. Koppel has re-

moved himself from the kill floor and from any association with
the inspectors at the plant; and, (3) considerable effort has been de-

voted to finding a means to keep the plant in operation, which
would be of benefit to the community and to the employees.

* However, cf. Apex Meat Company, FMIA Docket No. 78 (September 6, 1986). In
this most recent case, the Respondent therein sought to show that it was currently
putting out a product in compliance with Department regulations, The decision
therein stated:

"However, such evidence would not be sufficient to change the result in
this case,

"The argument that a respondent is presently complying with the relevant

regulatory program is made in almost every disciplinary case that comes before
the Judicial Officer, and is almost always true. Only a foolhardy respondent
would continue to violate a regulatory statute, after a complaint is filed, pend-
ing the outcome of the litigation. Exemplary conduct during the course of litiga-
tion is never considered as a weighty, mitigating circumstance.
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Whether they be called mitigating circumstances, or, circum-

stances under which the Respondent corporation seeks to retain

the inspection services, the evidence herein suggests a program

whereby the employees would obtain ownership of the corporation.

This would not appear to be objectionable to the Complainant.

However, such new ownership would have to make a showing that

it could operate on a business like and profitable basis in order to

obtain the services and funding which would be forthcoming from
the Montgomery County Industrial Development Agency and the

Mohawk Valley Economic Development Corporation, as well as sat-

isfying the requirements of the bank and/or lending institutions.

The evidence further indicates that such funding and services

would not be forthcoming unless the Respondent were allowed a

transitional period wherein the services of Mr. Koppel could be

continued in the buying and selling area. The evidence clearly

shows that Mr. Koppel is regarded as a very capable cattle buyer
and seller and that these are attributes not easily attainable. It is

this latter point that basically is the stumbling block for the Com-

plainant
5 The Complainant's objective is to remove Mr. Koppel en-

tirely from the business. This obviously would be achieved by his

relinquishing ownership in the corporation and divesting himself of

his stock ownership. However, in order to provide a basis for the

profitable operation of the business entity under new ownership, it

is clear from the evidence that a transition period would be re-

quired under conditions whereby Mr. Koppel would not be permit-
ted a presence or association with the slaughtering of the animals

and he would not be permitted to have contact with the inspectors,

However, for a period of time, until new personnel, or his son could

be trained, he would be permitted to buy and sell the cattle. Vari-

ous times of duration have been suggested by the evidence and the

duration periods have been stated to be from one and half to two

years.

If the Complainant wishes the plant to be closed and the physical
facilities sold for substantially less then they could be sold for as a

going concern, then, of course, that is within the Secretary's discre-

tion. However, if the Secretary, in keeping with other previously

s As previously noted, the crucial determining factor, with respect to sanction re-

lates to the presence or nonpresence of Mr, Koppel. For instance Mr. Prucha, the

Deputy Administrator, representing Mr. Houston, testified, among other things:

"Q Were Mr. Koppel to divest himself of ownership in that plant and, in

addition, not have any activities in the plant whatsoever, would that modify
your position?

"A I would consider it, yes." (Tr, 599).
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decided cases, and in considering the voluminous evidence of record
with respect to the mitigating circumstances of this case, decides

that the Respondent corporation as restructured and without the

presence of Mr. Koppel, is fit to continue in business, then it is a
reasonable condition that a transition period should be allowed,

There is little to be achieved by letting a potentially unprofitable

entity continue in business, and, in view of the astuteness, experi-

ence, and knowledge of the witnesses who represented various enti-

ties or were knowledgeable of various entities which would provide
the funding, it is doubtful that the financing would be forthcoming
unless there is a transitional period, within which Mr. Koppel
would be allowed to buy and sell cattle,

In view of the considerable lapse of time which has transpired
since the oral hearing and this Decision, it is believed that a transi-

tional period of one year beyond the effective date of this Decision
is both needed and appropriate, if the employee buy-out plan is to

go into effect, although this is far less than the testimony indicator

was needed at the time of the oral hearing. By transitional period
is meant that period of time during which Mr. Leopold Koppel
would be allowed to buy and sell cattle for the corporation and to

train others in the necessary abilities and techniques required, In-

herent in this formulation of a sanction in this proceeding is the

premise that the employees of the Respondent corporation can take
over the ownership of Respondent corporation and can obtain the

funding which they believed was available and which the evidence
so indicates was available, at the time of the oral hearing. In the

event change in corporate ownership and the funding as contem-

plated and as set forth at the oral hearing are not available or ca-

pable of being put into effect, or some other similar arrangement is

not available, on the effective date of this Decision and Order,

then, in such event, it is inherent in this Decision and Order that

Mr. Leopold Koppel will be permitted one year from the effective

date of this Decision and Order to divest himself of all stock owner-

ship and must disassociate himself, within six months, completely
from the operations of the corporate Respondent, including the

buying and selling of cattle, and all other activities relating to the

corporation, except those pertaining to stock ownership. During
such six month period his activities shall be confined to buying and

selling cattle and the training of others, The Brief submitted on

behalf of the Respondent indicates that as of that time [October 2fi,

1984] funding was available and accordingly the following Order m
being issued with the understanding that if funding is not available

as' ;set forth above, then the conditions so mentioned above and in

the Order shall prevail.
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Inasmuch as the facts set forth in the record, as a whole in this
case, have considerable similarity to those of the Utica Packing Co
case supra, I believe that, after considering all the circumstances'
the following Order will serve to protect the public interest to pro'mote the ends to be achieved by the Federal Meat Inspection Act
and that such Order will be in accord with the alternative sanc-
tions set forth in the above cases.

ORDER
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Leopold Koppel shall*have a period of one year from the effective

date of this Decision and Order within which to divest himself of

ownership in the Respondent corporation, and inasmuch as the evi-

dence indicates that some of the stock is owned by Laurie Koppel
(wife of Leopold Koppel), then, to the extent applicable, this Deci-

sion and Order with respect to the divesiture of stock ownership
shall be applicable to the stock of Mrs. Laurie Koppel (Tr. 371);

And provided further, that if it is determined, after opportunity
for a hearing under the Federal Meat Inspection Act, that any
term of the above provisions has not been or is not being complied
with, the suspension will be terminated and the withdrawal and
denial provisions of this Order shall become effective immediately.
The many requests, motions, and contentions of the parties have

been considered carefully, and, to the extent not ruled upon and
which are inconsistent with this Decision and Order, they are

hereby denied.

This Decision and Order will become final 35 days after service

thereof unless appealed to the Secretary's Judicial Officer within
30 days as provided for in the Rules of Practice and Procedure, 7

CFR section 1.131 et seq.

Copies hereof shall be served upon the parties.

[This decision and order became final November 22, 1986. Ed.]

In re; JAMES AUSTIN FRALEY, JR. t/a ROCKO MEATS. FMIA Docket
No. 91, PPIA Docket No. 13. Decided December 18, 1985.

Withdrawal and denial of Inspection services, suspended with conditions,

Kris Ifxtfiri, for complainant.

Marvin B, Segal, New York, New York, for respondent,

Decision by John A, Campbell, Administrative Law Judge.

STIPULATION AND CONSENT DECISION

These are proceedings under Title I of the Federal Meat Inspec-
tion Act (FMIA) as amended (21 U.S.C. 601 et seq.) and the Poul-

try Products Inspection Act (PPIA) (21 U.S.C. 451 et seg.) to with-

hold and deny inspection services under the above acts ;to respond-
ent. These proceedings were initiated by a complaint filed on June

12, 1985, by the Administrator of the United States Department of

Agriculture's Food Safety and Inspection Service. Respondent filed

,

its answer to the complaint on August 2, 1985.
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The parties have agreed that these proceedings should be termi-
nated by the entry of the Consent Decision set forth below and
have agreed to the following stipulation:

1. For purposes of this stipulation and the provisions of the
Consent Decision only, respondent admits all of the jurisdictional
allegations set forth herein, and waives:

(a) Any further procedural steps;

(b) any requirement that the final decision in this proceeding
contain findings and conclusions with respect to all material issues
of fact, law or discretion, as well as the reasons or bases thereof;
and

(c) All rights to seek judicial review or otherwise to chal-

lenge or contest the validity of this decision.

2. Respondent waives any action against the United States De-
partment of Agriculture, under the Equal Access to Justice Act of
1980, Pub. L. 96-481, which went into effect October 1, 1981, for
fees and other expenses incurred by Respondent in connection with
this proceeding.

3. This Stipulation and Consent Decision are for settlement
purpose in this proceeding only and do not otherwise constitute an
admission or denial by respondent, that it has violated the regula-
tions or statutes involved.

FINDINGS OP FACT

(a) James Austin Fraley, Jr., T/A Rocko Meats, is an applicant
seeking to operate a meat processing establishment located at
12623 Catoctin Furnace Road, Thurmont, Maryland 21788.

(b) James Austin Fraley, Jr., T/A Rocko Meats, is an applicant
tor Federal meat and poultry products inspection services under
Title I of the FMIA and under the PPIA, at the above-named estab-
lishment.

(c) James Austin Fraley, Jr., is now, and at all times material
herein was, listed as the only individual responsibly connected with
the respondent's proposed operation.

II

On three occasions between September 1965 and January 1976
James Austin Fraley, Jr., was convicted in the United States Dis-
trict Court for the District of Maryland and the United States Dis-
trict Court for the District of Columbia, of 47 felony and misde-
meanor violations of the Federal Meat Inspection Act. At least 44

pi
these aforementioned convictions were felony violations involv-

ing the illegal transportation, sale, and offer for sale of non-federal-
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ly inspected meat products with intent to defraud, in violation of

21 U.S.C. 610(b) and 676.

CONCLUSION

Inasmuch as the parties have agreed to the provisions set forth

in the following Consent Decision in disposition of this proceedings,
such Decision will be issued.

ORDER

Inspection services under Title I of the PMIA and the PPIA are,

withheld from and denied to respondent, its successors, affiliates

and assignees for a period of five years. However, said withholding
and denial shall be suspended and held in abeyance and inspection
services shall be provided to respondent so long as, in addition to

all other requirements of inspection:

1. James Austin Fraley, Sr., not participate in the conduct of

the respondent's regulated business in any way or physically be in

the facility at any time.

2. James Austin Fraley, Jr., surrender a Maryland state li-

cense, authorizing the hauling of dead animals and that he will not

participate in any business involving the handling of dead or dying
livestock or any meat products from such livestock.

3. Respondent does not accept or receive returned product due
to its condition or the condition of the box or container without

prior notice to and supervision by the on-site U.S.D.A. Inspector.
4. Respondent does not process, handle, or store custom exempt

products or game, whether for customers, employees, the owner,
friends or relatives.

5. Respondent does not process, handle or store any non-feder-

ally inspected product. This special condition precludes the process-

ing, handling or storage of state-inspected product.

6. Respondent maintains full, complete, accurate and appropri-
ate written records of its business activities.

7. Respondent does not knowingly hire or permit the employ-
ment of any person who has been convicted of any violations of the

FMIA, the PPIA, similar State and local food safety laws or of any
crime of moral turpitude.

The special conditions set forth in paragraphs 1 through 7 shall

be applicable for a period of five years. During the five-year period,

the Secretary shall have the right to summarily withdraw inspec-
tion service upon a finding by appropriate national headquarters
staff of a violation of any special condition set forth in paragraphs
1 through 7. Any summary withdrawal of inspection service shall
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be subject to respondent's right to request an expedited hearing on
the violations alleged.

After thirty months from the initial grant of inspection service,
the Pood Safety Inspection Service may consider any petition for

good cause to modify the special conditions set forth in paragraphs
3 through 7 with a view to terminate or amend some or all of the

special conditions. After five years from the initial grant of inspec-

tion, provided all of the above conditions have been followed, re-

spondent shall be issued, upon request, an unconditional grant of

inspection.
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DISCIPLINARY DECISIONS

In re: R. D, PLUNKETT. P&S Docket No. 6471. Decided November 8,

1985,

Dealer Insufficient funds cheeks -Failure to pay when due Bonding require-
ments Suspension Consent.

Ben. Bruner, for complainant.
Jack Jones, Templer, Texas, for respondent.

Decision by 'William J. Weber, Administrative Law Judge.

DECISION

This proceeding was instituted under the Packers and Stockyards
Act (7 U.S.C. 181 et seq.) by a complaint filed by the Administra-

tor, Packers and Stockyards Administration, United States Depart-
ment of Agriculture, alleging that the respondent wilfully violated

the Act and the regulations issued thereunder (9 CFR 201.1 et

seq.). This decision is entered pursuant to the consent decision pro-
visions of the Rules of Practice applicable to this proceeding (7 CFR

1.138),

The respondent admits the jurisdictional allegations in para-
graph I of the complaint and specifically admits that the Secretary
has jurisdiction in this matter, neither admits nor denies the re-

maining allegations, waives oral hearing and further procedure,
and consents and agrees, for the purpose of settling this proceeding
and for such purpose only, to the entry of this decision.

The complainant agrees to the entry of this decision.

FINDINGS OF FACT

1. R. D. Plunkett, hereinafter referred to as the respondent, is an
individual whose mailing address is 1417 McClanhan Road, Apt,
216, Marlin, Texas 76661.

2. The respondent is, and at all times material herein was;

(a) Engaged in the business of buying and selling livestock in

commerce for his own account;

(b) Engaged in the business of selling livestock in commerce on
a commission basis; and

(c) Registered with the Secretary as a dealer to buy and sell

livestock in commerce for his own account and as a market agency
to sell livestock in commerce on a commission basis.

CONCLUSIONS

The respondent having admitted the jurisdictional facts and the

parties having agreed to the entry of this decision, such decision

e entered.
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ment of Agriculture, alleging that the respondents wilfully violated
the Act and the regulations issued thereunder (9 CFR 201.1 et

seq.\ This decision is entered pursuant to the consent decision pro-
visions of the Rules of Practice applicable to this proceeding (7 CFR

1.138).

The respondents admit the jurisdictional allegations in para-
graph I of the complaint and specifically admit that the Secretary
has jurisdiction in this matter, neither admit nor deny the remain-

ing allegations, waive oral hearing and further procedure, and con-
sent and agree, for the purpose of settling this proceeding and for

such purpose only, to the entry of this decision.

The complainant agrees to the entry of this decision.

FINDINGS OF FACT

1. Randy Crook, hereinafter referred to as respondent Crook, ia

an individual whose business mailing address is Box 410 f Ringling,
Oklahoma 73456.

2. Roy Wayne Harris, hereinafter referred to as respondent
Harris, is an individual whose business mailing address is Box 410,

Ringling, Oklahoma 73456.

3. Respondents Crook and Harris are partners doing business as

Ringling Livestock Auction, and are, and at all times material
herein were:

(a) Engaged in the business of conducting and operating the

Ringling Livestock Auction stockyard, a posted stockyard under the

Act, hereinafter referred to as the stockyard;

(b) Engaged in the business of selling livestock on a commis-
sion basis at the stockyard; and

(c) Registered with the Secretary of Agriculture as a market

agency to sell livestock in commerce on a commission basis.

CONCLUSIONS

The respondents having admitted the jurisdictional facts and the

parties having agreed to the entry of this decision, such decision

will be entered.

ORDER

Respondents Crook and Harris, their agents and employees, di-

rectly or through any corporate or other device, shall cease and
desist from:

1. Failing to maintain their Custodial Account for Shippers'
Proceeds in strict conformity with the provisions of section 201.42

6'f-the regulations (9 CFR 201.42);
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2. Failing to deposit in their Custodial Account for Shippers'
Proceeds, within the times prescribed by section 201.42(c) of the
regulations (9 CFR 201,42(c)), amounts due from the sale of con-
signed livestock; and

3. Using funds received as proceeds from the sale of livestock
sold on a commission basis for purposes of their own or for any
purpose other than the payment of net proceeds to the owners con-
signors or shippers of such livestock, or for the payment of
amounts due the respondents for lawful marketing charges.
The respondents are suspended as a registrant under the Act for

1 T3
? S.

d t
?
iereafter until * me as they demonstrate ihnt

the deficit in their custodial account has been eliminated. When ro-
spondents demonstrate that the deficit in their custodial account
has been eliminated, a supplemental order will be issued in thia
proceeding terminating the suspension after the expiration of the
i-aay period.

The provisions of this order shall become effective on the sixth
day after service of this decision on the respondent.
Copies of this decision shall be served upon the parties.

In m- STATE WIDE MARKETING, INC., a corporation; RUSTY THOMP-

No fifi8

m
n ,

U^T

and L
^
RRY Ross

'
an ^dividual. P&S DocketWo. 5588. Decided November 8, 1985.

Andrew Stanton, for complainant.
Respondent, pro se.

Decision by William J. Weber, Administrative Law Judge
DEC,8,ON CONCERN, STATE WIDE MARKING, ,NC. AND LARRY ROSH

1.138).

'Ce "Wae to this proceeding (7 CFR
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ing allegations, waive oral hearing and further procedure, and con-

sent and agree, for the purpose of settling this proceeding and for

such purpose only, to the entry of this decision.

The complainant agrees to the entry of this decision.

FINDINGS OF FACT

1. State Wide Marketing, Inc., hereinafter referred to as respond-
ent State Wide, is a corporation with its principal place of business
located at Colfax, Iowa, and whose business mailing address is Box
92, Colfax, Iowa 60054.

2. Respondent State Wide is, and at all times material herein
was:

(a) Engaged in the business of buying and selling livestock in

commerce for its own account; and
(b) Registered with the Secretary of Agriculture as a dealer to

buy and sell livestock in commerce for its own account.
3. Rusty Thompson, hereinafter referred to as respondent

Thompson, is, and at times material herein was, the president and
60% shareholder of respondent State Wide. His mailing address is

23 South Lincoln, Colfax, Iowa 50054.

4. Larry Ross, hereinafter referred to as respondent Ross, is, and
at all times material herein was, the secretary and treasurer and
50% shareholder of respondent State Wide. His mailing address is

R.R. 1, Runnells, Iowa 50237.

5. Respondents Thompson and Ross direct, manage and control
all business activities of respondent State Wide.

CONCLUSIONS

The respondents, State Wide Marketing, Inc. and Larry Ross,

having admitted the jurisdictional facts and the parties having
agreed to the entry of this decision, such decision will be entered.

ORDER

Respondent State Wide, its officers, directors, agents, employees,
successors and assigns, and respondents Thompson and Ross indi-

vidually or through any corporate or other device, shall cease and
desist from;

1. Engaging in the business as a dealer while current liabilities

exceed current assets;

2, Issuing checks in payment for livestock without having and
maintaining sufficient funds on deposit in the bank account upon
which they are drawn to pay such checks; and

'3, Failing to pay, when due, the full purchase price of live-

stock,
'
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the Complaint and Notice of Huarintf, which aro admitted hy re-

spondents' failure to I'ilo an tnwwor, aro adopted and nut forth
horoin OH HndinKH of fact.

Thin deeiHi<m and order, therefore, !H tomied purnuant to Hcotion
UH!) of tho HulcH of Practice (7 CHI LIU!)).

KlNI>IN(MOI<*KAa*

1. (ii) Landy Packing Company, hereinafter refumul to UH tlio cor-

porate roHpondont, IH a corporation oi'Kani^od mul iixistuiK undor
tho IUWH of l\w Htato of MhineHota, with UH principal p!iu:<i of Inmi-
no8 locat<d in Hi;. Cloud, MlnncHota. Tlio corporate roHpondunt'B
buHint'HH inniling nctdrtiNH is P. (). Box (170, Kt Cloud, Mintu
CCOS1.

tb)<;orpral n*Hp<)Hdtmt, at all timH inattirial Iirroin, WIIH:

(J) KttKiW'ft in tho ImHineHH of ninnufacturiiiK or prrpa
meatH or untnt food producla for milo or Hhipinont in wtimnoms and

(JJ) A paekor within tho mwnuinK and Huhjoct to tho provi-
HIODH of tho Act.

(c) Junu-H Landy, horoinaftor roforntd to UH roHpondmit I,andy,
io an individual wlumo buHinoHH mnilhiK addrwN JH P. 0. Hax (i7()

St. Cloud, MtnnuHOta miOML
(d) HoHpondunl l-andy, at all tlrnoH nintorial horoin, wan:

(1) TroaHtirtsr of corporate rowpondoiU;
(li) Ownor, in combination with other family moaibm-H, of Uw

corporate rOMpondpnl; and
CD RttHpoimihlu for tho direction, munn^nnont and control of

tho corporate reHixmdont.
(o) Allan Bright, herelnuftor rofon-ed to nn roHponciont UriKht,

is an Jndlviduttl whoso business moiling addrown w P. C), Box <>?<),

St. Cloud, MlnmmolH 5(3081.

(0 Ro0pondont Bright, at oil times material heroin, wan:
(1) President of corporate rHpondont;
(2) Owrmr, in combination with other family memlwrn, of thci

corpornto reitpandonl; and
(3) RflponIbl0 for the direction, mantigomont and control of

tho corporate respondent,
2, (a) Aa of July 7, 1U84, the corporate renpondent'n current liabil-

ities exceeded its current aaseta, As of that dale, the corporate re-

apondent had eurremt liabilities totalling $4,HIH174.00, and cm-rout
nsaeta totalling $4,008,460.00, reHulting in an fxciwi of current li-

abilities over currant auet of $198,70H.()0.

Cb) As of August 29, 1984, the corporate respondents cut-rent
liabilities exceedgd ibs current anaete. AH of that dato, the corporatt*
respondent had current Liabilities totalling $i. 4^0,0115.00, and cur-
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Copies hereof shall be served on the parties.

[This decision and order became final November 12, 1985. Ed.]

In re: ALVIN BARTELS, ALLEN BARTELS and GAILEN GAGE. P&S
Docket No. 6601. Decided November 18, 1985.

Dealer Misrepresentation of weights Prohibited from inducing or causing fa-

vored treatment baaed on offering or giving money, gifts, or services Suspen-
sion Prohibited from business subject to the Act Consent.

Stephen Luparello, for complainant.

William J. O'Connor, New Ulm, Minnesota, for respondent.

Decision by Victor W. Palmer, Administrative Law Judge.

DECISION WITH RESPECT TO ALVIN BARTELS AND ALLEN BARTELS

This proceeding was instituted under the Packers and Stockyards
Act (7 U.S.C. 181 et seq.) by a complaint filed by the Administra-

tor, Packers and Stockyards Administration, United States Depart-
ment of Agriculture, alleging that the respondents wilfully violated
the Act and the regulations issued thereunder (9 CFR 201.1 et

seq,). This decision is entered pursuant to the consent decision pro-
visions of the Rules of Practice applicable to this proceeding (7 CFR
1.138).

Respondents Alvin Bartels and Allen Bartels admit the jurisdic-
tional allegations in paragraph I of the complaint as they pertain
to them and specifically admit that the Secretary has jurisdiction
in this matter, neither admit nor deny the remaining allegations,
waive oral hearing and further procedure, and consent and agree,
for the purpose of settling this proceeding and for such purpose
only, to the entry of this decision.

The complainant agrees to the entry of this decision.

FINDINGS OF FACT

1. Alvin Bartels, doing business as Bartels Livestock, hereinafter
referred to as respondent Alvin Bartels, is an individual whose
business mailing address is Winthrop, Minnesota 55396.

2. Respondent Alvin Bartels is, and at all times material herein
was:

(a) Engaged in the business of buying and selling livestock in
commerce for his own account and the accounts of others; and

, (b) Registered with the Secretary of Agriculture as a dealer to
buy and sell .livestock in commerce for his own account.
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^4.
Respondent Allen Bartels is, and at all times material herein

CONCLUSIONS

ORDER
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In Alvin UartolH and Allen HurtulH Hliall koop and
nwinlmn accountN, record:) and memoranda which Cully and eor-

rcctly diHcloHo the (rue nature of all traiiHactioim involved in their

buHinoHH Hubjocl to the I'ackoi-H and StockyanlH Act, iacludinc; hut
not limited to wain tickotn immod or rucoivod in connection witli

the purchiiHo or Hido of livestock, anil workHhoot-H nmdo or canned to

bo made in eoaaeeliim wilh Mm pui'clmHn or nnle of HveHtork.

KoHpondeut Alvin HarfelH in miMponded IIH a rej:u'H(niaI, under the

Act for a poriod of four Ml montliH.

ReHpondont Allon liarftdH in proliihited for a poriod of four

moutliH from oiiKitKinK in laiHincsH or operating nuhject to (.ho Act
na u murkot nwency, huyioj; or Hnilinw
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In re; AI.VIN HAIITKI^, AI.I.HN HAUTKI.H, and (IAII.KN

Docket, No, liiUJl. Derided November 1H, l!H,
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David D. Meyer.

Decision by Victor W, hifnit*i\ AttmmiNlmtiw faiw
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Act (7 U.8.G. IMi pt in/.} Ity cumplfiiiiL fild by tho AdininiHtni'

tor, Packflra arid Ht*'kyrdn AdmhimlrHtifivi. S'nilcd HfateH Depart-
ment of Agricrulturti, ullaglng that Ihu roM]M)ndontN wilfully violated
the Act and lh regulritumfl (HMUt'd thoreundiM 1

(! (*KK WM.l t-t

snq.). TliJi dicialort is enUtrtK) purwiuuit lo the coum-al tlecihioa pro-
visions of the Rulw of Practice applit-able lo thin proi'mling t7 t :FH
1.188).
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ly admitv that the Secretary has jurisdiction in this mutter, nnithctr

admits nor dm\m the remaining allogalitmN, wuivcw oral
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and further procedure, and consents and agrees, for the purpose ol

settling this proceeding and for such purpose only, to the entry ol
this decision.

J

The complainant agrees to the entry of tyis decision.

FINDINGS OP FACT

1. Gallon Gage, hereinafter referred to as respondent Gage, is an
individual whose address is 113 Mill Road, Lakefield, Minnesota.

2. Respondent Gage is, and at all times material herein was:

t

(a) Engaged in the business of buying livestock on a commis-
sion basis in commerce; and

(b) A market agency, within the meaning and subject to the
provisions of the Act.

CONCLUSIONS

Respondent Gailen Gage having admitted the jurisdictiona 1 facts
and the parties having agreed to the entry of this decision, such
decision will be entered.

ORDER

Respondent Gailen Gage, his agents and employees, directly or
through any corporate or other device, shall cease and desist from
receiving or accepting anything of value as a commission, broker-
age or other compensation, or any allowance except as consider-
ation for services lawfully rendered in connection with the pur-chase or sale of livestock.

Respondent Gailen Gage is prohibited from operating subject to
the Act for a period of four (4) months, effective November 1, 1986,
Copies of this decision shall be served upon the parties.

JENKINS ' P&S Docket No ' 6388 De^ed September

Market agency-Bond requlrements-Suspenaion-Civil penalty

^^r^r^::^x^s^wrth the bonding requirements, and was assessed a civil penalty of $4,000.00.



LAVERNE JENKINS 2776

Volume 44 Number 7

Eric Paul, for complainant.

W. F, Countiss, Amarllto, Texas, for respondent.

Decision by William 'J. Weber, Administrative Law Judge.

DECISION AND ORDER

This is a disciplinary proceeding under the Packers and Stock-

yards Act, 1921, as amended and supplemented (7 USC 181 et seq.\

hereinafter referred to aa the "Act", instituted by a complaint filed

on June 15, 1984, by the Administrator of the Packers and Stock-

yards Administration, United States Department of Agriculture,

The complaint alleges that LaVerne Jenkins, hereinafter re-

ferred to as the respondent, is an individual doing business as La-

Verne Jenkins Cattle and Grain Co,, with a mailing address of Box

159, Campo, Colorado. The complaint further alleges that the re-

spondent is and, at all times material herein, was engaged in the

business of buying livestock in commerce on a commission basis

and registered with the Secretary of Agriculture as a dealer to buy
and sell livestock in commerce for his own account.

The complaint further alleges that respondent continued to oper-

ate as a market agency purchasing livestock on a commission basis

despite having been notified of the termination of his $55,000.00

surety bond on May 14, 1984, and that his operations subject to the

Act required bond coverage in the amount of $85,000.00.

Such activities are alleged to be in wilful violation of section

312(a) of the Act (7 USC 213(a)) and sections 201.29 and 201,30 of

the regulations (9 CFR 201.29, 201.30).

Respondent filed an answer to the complaint on July 16, 1984,

admitting the jurisdictional allegations and denying all other alle-

gations of the complaint. An oral hearing was held in Lamar, Colo-

rado on January 22, 1985. Respondent appeared pro se, and com-

plainant was represented by Eric Paul, Office of the General Coun-

sel, United States Department of Agriculture. Two witnesses testi-

fied during the presentation of complainant's case and seventeen

(17) exhibits were admitted for complainant. Respondent conducted

cross-examination and testified on his own behalf.

FINDINGS OF FACT

1. LaVerne Jenkins, doing business as LaVerne Jenkins Cattle

and Grain Co., hereinafter referred to as the respondent, is an indi-

vidual whose mailing address is Box 169, Campo, Colorado, (admit-

ted in answer)

2. Respondent is, and at all times material herein was?

(a) Engaged in the business of buying livestock in commerce on

a commission basis; and
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prior to the effective date of such termination. In the

event that the Surety named herein writes a new bond to

replace this bond for the same Principal named herein, the

30-day termination provision will be waived, and this bond
will become terminated as of the effective date of the re-

placement bond. Immediately upon filing a claim for recov-

ery on this bond, unless the Surety believes that such claim
is frivolous, the Surety shall cause termination of this bond
in accordance with this paragraph, (emphasis added) (Form
P&SA-l (7/76); 41 FR 53771, Dec. 9, 1976)."

9. The livestock purchase transactions which eventually led to the

May 14 1984 bond termination, occurred almost eight months pre-

viously, on September 9 1983. Respondent purchased 46 head of

livestock from the Cattleman's Livestock Commission Company of

Dalhart, Texas, for a disclosed principal, Mr. Robert Kula, a Colo-

rado feedlot operator who was not registered and bonded under the
Act Mr. Kula paid for the livestock with a $16,420.18 NSF check
and Cattleman's Livestock Commission Company filed a claim

against respondent's bond (Cx 15; Stroud, Tr. 58-59; Jenkins, Tr,

74).

10. The packers and Stockyards Administration's Denver Region-
al Office notified respondent's surety on August 14 1984, with

copies going to both respondent and to the Colorado official who
acted as trustee on the bond, that the bond claim had been with-

drawn after an attorney employed by respondent had obtained pay-
ment from Mr. Kula (Cx 15; Stroud, Tr. 59; Jenkins, Tr. 76).

11. This August 14 1984 letter served two purposes; (1) it author-
ized a full release of the proceeds from the terminated surety bond;
and (2) it provided respondent, his surety, and the state official who
served as trustee on the bond with express written notice that the
bond which had terminated on May 14 1984, could not be reinstat-

ed and would have to be replaced with a new bond or bond equiva-
lent (Cx 15; Stroud, Tr. 34).

12. The new bond that respondent was required to file with the

Secretary, however, was now in the amount of $85,000, This re-

quirement had been communicated to respondent by letters dated

April 25, 1984 and June 4 1984, as well as by subsequent telephone
conversations with complainant's Denver regional supervisor, Mr.
C. James Stroud, and a marketing specialist working under his su-

pervision, Mr. Daroy White (Cs 3; Stroud, Tr. 15-16; White, Tr. 61-

62).

13. This $86,000 bond requirement represented a normal increase
of $0,OOQ ($55,000 to $75,000) based upon a sharply higher reported
dollar vqlume of livestock purchased on commission during the cal-
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endar year 1983, plus an additional $10,000 adjustment ($75,000 to

$85,000) to compensate for an unusually high second quarter pur-
chase volume of $4,953,468 (Cxs 2, 3; Stroud, Tr. 11-16).

14. Respondent has not filed a new bond with complainant,
either m the amount of $55,000 or $85,000 (Stroud Tr 17} An un-
successful attempt was made on September 5, 1964, however, to re-
instate the bond terminated on May 14 1984 apparently retroactive
to the termination date (Cx 16; Stroud, Tr. 39-41, 49- White Tr. 63-
64).

' *

15. The letter purporting to reinstate the $55,000 bond was uot
received for filing by complainant's Denver regional office. Witness
Stroud testified that the Packers and Stockyards Administration

I JnTT ! u
Permit reinstatement and accept tHis loiter

D" f k
ihe termination had already occurred

16. During the period May 16 1984 through December 28 1984,
respondent was shown to have purchased livestock on a cornmis-sum basisfrom five posted stockyards or auction markets located in
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the same level in which he reported for 1983 (Stroud, Tr, 69)," Re-

spondent's 1983 annual report (Cx 2) shows the purchase on a com-

mission basis of 24,436 head of cattle for a total buying commission

income, after expenses, of $74,345, Assuming that the dollar

volume of respondents livestock purchases remained the same for

the 3rd and 4th quarters of 1984, as reported for 1983 ($2,513,628

out of a total of $9,049,535 or 27.8%), he would have earned a net

buying commission income after expenses of some $20,668 ($74,346

X27,8%) while operating for six months without bond coverage.

Even assuming that his surety could be equitably held to a $55,000

liability to potential bond claimants after September 5 1984, by
reason of its collection of premiums and unsuccessful attempted re-

instatement (Cx 16), the bulk of such income would have been re-

ceived,while no protection of any kind was in effect.

21. The statement in the September 5 1984 letter from Lumber-
mens Mutual Insurance Company that respondent relies upon
"We now wish to reinstate this bond and consider it in full force as

if it was never cancelled" merely implies an intention to provide

coverage from May 14 1984 onward. There is no express commit-
ment to honor bond claims arising out of transactions that oc-

curred between May 14 1984 and September 5 1984, or any expla-
nation of how a claim might be handled if filed untimely (more
than 120 days after the transaction) because a claimant had made
an inquiry as to the existence of bond coverage in June and had
been advised that coverage was no longer in effect,

22. Respondent explained that he could not have obtained a

$85,000 bond prior to the oral hearing, and in fact, had not at-

tempted to do so, because he had not yet obtained the necessary
financial information from his accountant for submission to a

surety company (Jenkins, Tr. 78-79, 90-91, 93).

CONCLUSIONS OF LAW

Respondent's Operations as a Market Agency Buying Livestock in

Commerce on Commission after May 14, 1984, Constitute a Wilful
Violation of the Act and Regulations

There is no real controversy in this proceeding as to the nature
of the business, engaged in by respondent. He has admitted being
registered as a dealer and buying livestock in commerce on com-
mission (Answer; Cxs 1-3). Whether he is called a market agency
buying on commission in accord with the language of the Act or an
order buyer to follow industry custom is immaterial, In either case
he is requifed under the bonding regulations to file and maintain a
reasonable bond or approved bond equivalent (9 CFR 201.27 et.
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current noncompliance is apparently to be excused because his

surety, the selling auction market, and the Packers and Stockyards
Administration failed to take sufficient actions to help him collect

the purchase price from his principal (Jenkins, Tr. 75-77).

At no time did he recognize that he had an obligation to pay for

the livestock, take prompt action to maintain bond coverage, or

cease to operate while not in compliance. His assertion that there

was no wilful violation of the Act rings hollow when contrasted to

his actions. At most, it can be inferred that he was too busy travel-

ing back and forth buying livestock on commission to give adequate
attention to his responsibilities under the Act.

Certainly, his explanation as to why he has not obtained the

$85,000 in bond coverage required fits this pattern. He explained
that his accountant was too busy with tax work to get him the nec-

essary financial information to submit to a surety company (Jen-

kins, Tr. 78-89). Unexplained is why he did not go to his account-

ant in May 1984. Perhaps the true reason respondent has not made
a real effort to comply with the increased coverage demand is

simply that he believes it is unreasonable to require the same bond

coverage of an order buyer as a dealer buying livestock for his own
account, However, operating subject to the Act requires full compli-
ance with all of the regulations issued thereunder, not just those

regulations that are deemed reasonable by each registrant.

Respondent contends that the violations should be excused be-

cause of his lack of responsibility coupled with a good faith attempt
at compliance. Unfortunately, the acts and omissions of respondent
Jenkins cannot be passed over so simply. It is true that Mr. Jen-
kins did not "anticipate" the failure of his disclosed principal, Mr.
Robert Kula, to pay for livestock purchased on his behalf.

The possibility that one of the principals for whom respondent
purchases livestock might not pay for such livestock ia, on the

other hand, an anticipated contingency that is provided for in the

bonding regulations. Respondent voluntarily assumed the obliga-
tion (of a market agency buying livestock on commission) to make
payment for such livestock, at least up to the amount of bond cov-

erage under the Act, in the event of non-payment by a disclosed

principal.

Respondent also assumed the obligation of maintaining bond cov-

erage that fully complies with the Act and regulations or ceasing
to purchase livestock on commission. These fundamental obliga-
tions of engaging in a regulated business rested on respondent La-
Verne Jenkins in full force. They were reinforced by the entry of a

prior order of the Secretary. He was again advised with respect to

pWigations on May 25, 1984 (Darcy White, Tr. 62).
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The record in this proceeding demonstrates that respondent nei-

ther lacked responsibility for the violations here nor acted in a rea-

sonable and timely manner to comply with his responsibilities.

It is a flagrant example of a registrant operating in noncompli*
ance with the bonding requirements over an extensive period ol

time in direct violation of the terms of a prior consent order, The

public was endangered by this absence of compliance. If any other

principal for whom respondent had purchased livestock after May
14 1984 had failed to pay for such livestock, the required bond cov-

erage under the Act and regulations would simply have been un-

available. Even assuming arguendo that respondent made a good
faith attempt at obtaining the required bond protection, such

action would not alter the fact that respondent continued to operate
as a market agency buying on commission without bond coveragt
and earned substantial income from such activity. (See Complain'
ant's Finding No. 20).

It must be concluded from respondent's actions and from his fail

urea to act, that he has wilfully violated section 312(a) of the Act

and sections 201.29 and 201.30 of the regulations promulgated
thereunder (9 CFR 201.29, 201.30),

Sanctions

Sanction testimony was presented by complainant's Denver re-

gional supervisor, Mr. C. James Stroud (Tr. 66-69). He explained
(hat four sanctions were necessary: (1) a cease and desist order

against operating without filing and maintaining the required

bond; (2) an indefinite suspension until compliance with the bond-

ing requirement was achieved; (3) a suspension for a 80-day period
and (4) a $6,000 civil penalty.
Great weight must be given to complainant's recommendations

concerning sanctions. In re Sy B. Gaiber and Company, 31 Agri.
Dec. 843, 845-51 (1972); In re J. A, Speight. 33 Agric. Dec. 280, 310-

319 (1974); In re Samuel Esposito, 88 Agri. Dec. 613, 666 (1979).

Severe sanctions have been the clearly established policy for some
time now. In re Braxton Worsley, 33 Agric. Dec. 1647, 1566-71

(1974).

^

A cease and desist order is routinely imposed whenever substan-

tial noncompliance with the bonding regulations is found to have

occurred. Respondent violated the 1977 cease and desist order (Cx

1).

Respondent did not refute the evidence presented by complainant
as to the increased bond coverage required

;

($86,000)> or with re-

spect to respondent's failure to obtain a bbnd Cor approved bond
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equivalent) in any amount. Accordingly, an indefinite suspension is

warranted.

The 30 day suspension and the $5,000 civil penalty are warranted

by the lengthy period of time during which respondent operated
without any bond coverage and in express violation of the 1977

Consent Order (Stroud, Tr. 66-67).

Complainant argues that to deter similar noncompliance, a civil

penalty equal to five percent (5%) of the unsatisfied bonding re-

quirement is appropriate. This would amount to $4,250 in this in-

stance, however, rounding up to the next $1,000 increment is ap-

propriate because of the circumstances established in this proceed-

ing.

However, consideration must be given to the fact that Respond-
ent in good faith reasonably (from his limited perspective) believed

that he did have at least $55,000 bond coverage from the time he
received the September 5, 1984 insurance company letter. This
belief was not fully or legally well founded, but it is an ameliorat-

ing factor, not credited by complainant.
For this reason, the rounding off will be downward rather than

upward, to $4000, not to $5000.

The respondent's continued operations without full compliance
with the bonding regulations is an unfair trade practice. See
United States v. Hulings, 484 F.Supp. 562, 566-67 (D, Kan. 1980). If

unchecked, it would make it very difficult to enforce compliance
from other individuals who buy livestock on commission (Stroud,
Tr. 68-69),

Respondent's testimony has established that he is a careful and

experienced professional order buyer and, therefore, less likely to

get "burned" by a nonpaying principal than many other order

buyers. But, this is irrelevant. The bonding regulations can not be

applied on an arbitrary basis. Either all order buyers must be re-

quired to obtain bond coverage based on the volume of their live-

stock purchases just as are dealers who buy for speculative pur-

poses, or all order buyers should be permitted to provide a lesser

bond coverage.

The policy decision to require market agencies buying on com-
mission to maintain the same dollar amount of bond coverage as

dealers buying for their own account is well established (Cx. 17).

The regulations requiring such coverage are specifically authorized

by statute (7 USC 204) and, therefore, are entitled to the full force

and effect of law as substantive regulations, ,

Respondent has failed to demonstrate anything in his particular

operations, .sufficiently different from the order buying businesses

of other registrants as to warrant an exception. He does not buy
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exclusively for one principal as a bona fide employee of such prin-

cipal.

He buys livestock as a middleman under the Act, and has an ob-

ligation to pay for such livestock whenever his principal fails to do
so, regardless of whether the name of the principal was disclosed

prior to the purchase. See In re Hath, 36 Agric. Dec. 1812, 1810

(1977); Arnold Livestock Sales Co. \. Pearson, 383 F.Supp. 1819,
1320-23 (D. Neb. 1974); United States Fidelity & Guarantee Co. v.

Clover Creek Cattle Co., 92 Idaho 889, 452 P, 2d 993, 994-1003
(1969).

The protection provided livestock sellers by the bond required of
a market agency buying on commission (or a dealer-agent of a pur-
chaser if his compensation is not a commission) is relied upon in

the industry.

"Q. Mr. Stroud, when a purchase of livestock is made by
an individual buying on commission for a disclosed princi-

pal, is the bond of that individual liable if the principal
does not make payment?

A. Yes,

Q, With respect to sales by various stockyards, do they
rely as a general proposition on the market agency buying
on commission for payment if principal does not pay?

A. That is correct.

Q. And in releasing livestock that has been sold through
auction, is reliance placed on who buys on commission?

A. Yes.

Q. That is typical in the industry practice: reliance on
the middleman?

A. This is absolutelythis is industry practice to look to
the person who is on the market who is actually doing the
buying. Look to him for absolute payment.

Q. If the principal

Judge WEBER: Whether it's disclosed or undisclosed"

A. That's correct, Your Honor."

IV. 37-38)

Respondent's failure to obtain a new bond after May 14, 1984 de-
rived the industry of this protection, His assertion that such
y'ury was cured by a retroactive reinstatement of his $55,000 bond
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is unfounded. Moreover, respondent was compelled to admit that

his surety would have been unlikely to agree to a reinstatement if

there had been a failure to pay by a principal during June or July
of 1984 (Jenkins, Tr. 98-99).

The only way the public can be fully protected when a market

agency or dealer continues to buy livestock after termination of

bond coverage is to provide an adequate deterrent to such conduct,

The assessment of a $4,000,00 civil penalty and a 30-day suspension
in addition to the routine indefinite suspension and cease and
desist order is considered necessary by the complainant to deter

such conduct on the part of respondent and others similarly situat-

ed.

When due consideration is given to the volume of respondent's
unbonded operations, the length of time involved (approximately a

year now, as well as in 1976-77), the substantial earnings he has
derived through such operations, and his failure to take prompt
and decisive action either to head off a termination of his $55,000
bond or obtain the subsequently required $85,000 bond, it must be
concluded that these sanctions, when considered under the cited

precedents, must be assigned here.

CONCLUSION

The evidence of record and applicable precedents presented
herein clearly and convincingly establish that respondent has wil-

fully violated section 312(a) of the Act (7 USC 213(a)), and sections

201.29 and 201,30 of the regulations (9 CFR 201.29, 201.30). Re-

spondent's actions constitute an unfair and deceptive practice and
imperil the public. Therefore, the following order should be issued.

ORDER

Respondent LaVerne Jenkins, individually or through any corpo-
rate or other device, in connection with his activities subject to the
Packers and Stockyards Act, as amended and supplemented, shall
cease and desist from engaging in business subject to the Act for

which bonding is required without filing and maintaining a reason-
able bond or its equivalent, as required by the Act and the regula-
tions.

Respondent is suspended as a registrant under the Act for thirty
(80) days and thereafter until such time as he complies fully with
the bonding requirements under the Act and the regulations.
When respondent demonstrates that he is in full compliance with

suqh bonding requirements, a supplemental order will be issued

terminating this suspension after the expiration of the thirty (80)

day^suspension.



2?86 PACKERS AND STOCKYARDS ACT
Volume 44 Number 7

In accordance with section 312(b) of the Act (7 USC 218(b, i

spondent is assessed a civil penalty in the amount of Four Th
sand Dollars ($4,000.00).

The suspension will begin on the 30th day after this Decision at
Order become final.

The civil penalty shall be paid by the 120th day after the Dei
sion and Order become final.

The Decision and Order will become final 35 days after servio
unless appealed within 30 days of service (9 CFR 1.145a and 1.142cA copy of this Order shall be served upon the parties.
Uhis decision and order became final November 19, 1986.-Ed
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livestock drawn on remote, distant, or country accounts, including

any account with the State Bank of Palmer, Nebraska, for the pur-

pose of or resulting in extending the time necessary to collect such

checks, or of causing or extending delay in the collection of funds

thereon,"

On May 8, 1986, respondent appealed to the Judicial Officer, to

whom final administrative authority has been delegated to decide

the Department's cases subject to 5 U.S.C. 556 and 657 (7 CFR
2.35).

2 The case was referred to the Judicial Officer for decision

on August 27, 1985.

Based upon a careful consideration of the record, I agree with
the AU's findings and conclusions. But in view of the great impor-
tance of this case to the $83 billion livestock industry, I am setting
forth a more extensive discussion of the findings of fact and conclu-

sions of law.

Before reading the findings of fact, a brief explanation of the

statutory provision and banking scheme at issue may be helpful.

Following the bankruptcy of American Beef Packers in January
1975, which left "producers in 13 States unpaid for a total of over

$20 million in livestock sales" (S. Rep. No. 932, 94th Cong., 2d Sess,

5 (1976)), Congress amended the Packers and Stockyards Act in

1976 by requiring packers to pay promptly for livestock by check or

wire transfer of funds (7 U.S.C. 228b(a)), and providing that (7

U.S.C. 228b(c));

Any delay or attempt to delay by a market agency,
dealer, or packer purchasing livestock, the collection of

funds as herein provided, or otherwise for the purpose of
or resulting in extending the normal period of payment for

such livestock shall be considered an "unfair practice" in

violation of this chapter.

The House Report on the 1976 amendatory legislation recognizes
that one of the principal complaints by producers was the uae of

banking practices which delayed payment for livestock. The report
states (H.R. Rep. No. 1043, 94th Cong., 2d Sess. 8 (1976)):

2 The position of Judicial Officer was established pursuant to the Act of April 4,

1940 (7 U.S.C. 450c-460g), and Reorganization Plan No. 2 of 1968, 18 Fed, Reg.
S219 (1958), reprinted in 5 U.S.C, app. at 1068 (1982). The Department's present Judi-
cial Officer was appointed in January 1971, having been involved with the Depart-
ment's regulatory programs since 1949 (including 8 years' trial litigation; 10 years'
appellate litigation relating to appeals from the decisions of the prior Judicial Offi-

cer; and 8 years as administrator of the Packers and Stockyards Act regulatory pro-
gram) (December 1962-January 1971).
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The principal complaints from the producer and feeder
representatives were the lack of protection from packer
failures and from various devices (such as use of drafts or
checks drawn on distant banks) utilized by packers to
delay payment for livestock purchased. The resulting
float, which amounts to enormous sums on a national

aggregate basis, is used by packers to help finance their
operations. This group of producer and feeder representa-
tives overwhelmingly supported enactment of a Federal
statute which requires bonding of, and prompt payment
by, packers. ...
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03, 308-09, 336).
3
Respondent is, and at all times material herein

was, a packer as that term is defined in the Packers and Stock-

yards Act (7 U.S.C. 191), and is subject to the provisions of the

Act.

3. Respondent purchases cattle for slaughter in Nebraska, Iowa,

Kansas, Minnesota, South Dakota, Illinois, and occasionally in Col-

orado (Tr. 303). Respondent purchased $84,547,474 worth of cattle

during its fiscal year ending October 31, 1981, and $91,106,147

worth of cattle during its fiscal year ending October 31, 1982 (CX 8,

p. 2).

4. Respondent generally pays for its livestock purchases on the

day of purchase or the next day by giving a check to the seller or

the seller's trucker, or by placing a check in the mail (CX 1, 2, 3;

Tr. 300-02, 322-25). An analysis of all of respondent's livestock

checks (except for a few where dates were "totally obscured on the

back of the check" (Tr. 197)) during four sample periods (June 21-

July 2, 1982; July 6-10, 1982; July 12-16, 1982; September 20-24,

1982) shows that 80 of 159, or 50.3%, were dated the day of pur-

chase, and 79 of 169, or 49.7%, were dated the day after purchase

(computed from CX 1, 2, 3; Tr. 193-99). (This analysis excluded nu-

merous purchases at the Omaha stockyard, which were not paid for

by check (Tr. 198); most of those payments were made the day after

purchase (see CX 2, 3; Rule 3, Omaha Livestock Exchange Rules

and By-Laws)).

5. Respondent is, and for a substantial period of time has been, a

customer of Omaha National Bank, Omaha, Nebraska. Prior to

July 1982, respondent maintained its general checking account in

that bank, and paid for its livestock purchases with checks drawn
on that account (Tr. 49, 303-06, 310-11, 327, 341).

6. On June 28, 1982, respondent entered into an agreement with

Omaha National Bank to subscribe to Omaha National Bank's Con-

trolled Cash Disbursement Account program, under which respond-

ent continued to be a customer of Omaha National Bank, but wrote

checks on Palmer State Bank instead of Omaha National Bank. Re-

spondent paid Omaha National Bank $125 per month for the privi-

lege of writing Controlled Disbursement Account checks on Palmer

State Bank (CX 5, pp. 21, 22).

A Controlled Disbursement Account is a relatively new cash

management product offered by banks primarily to corporations.

Such accounts are widely available throughout the country (CX G;

Tr. 80, 118-20, 362, 371-74, 400),

a Some record citations are included for convenience, but no effort 1ms been made
to include all relevant record citations.
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7. Omaha National Bank is a "city" bank under the Federal Re-
serve System regulations with a 1040 "city" routing symbol. State
Bank of Palmer is a "country" bank or "country" endpoint under
the Federal Reserve System regulations with a 1041 "country"
routing symbol (CX 5, pp. 9, 13; RX 11; Tr. 37-39, 384-85). In order
for Omaha National Bank to be able to offer its customers the ben-
efits of a Controlled Disbursement Account, Omaha National Bank
entered into a Controlled Disbursement Agreement in May 1982
with Palmer State Bank under which Omaha National Bank cus-
tomers are permitted to draw checks on Palmer State Bank (which
have the country" Federal Reserve System routing symbol "1041"
encoded on them instead of the "1040" "city" routing symbol), but

icT f never sees or Processes the checks (CX 5 pp

v n,
ey ^r6 intercePted at the Federal Reserve Bank of

Kansas City, Oniaha Branch, by Omaha National Bank pursuantto an Intercept Agreement signed in May 1982 by Omaha National
sank, Mate Bank of Palmer and the Federal Reserve Bank of

Uty authorizing such interception (CX 5, p. 18). Omaha Na-Q"

,, ?
n Pr cesses the checks, and settles for them with

t> just as if the checks
instead of State Bank i

', 404-406, 411-12).

Disbursement Agreement between Omaha Na-
. and

n> ' "

(CX 5, pp. 19-20):

" NB cont e<i disbursement
open an account or accounts at its Bank, andshall allow checks to be drawn on Palmer's ABA routing

th'^l
m
Tp

ha11 eX
^

Ute an lnterce^ Agreement withthe Federal Reserve Bank of Kansas City-Omaha Branchfor he mterception of Palmer's cash letter by ONE "ndshal maintain an Automatic Cash Letter Payment Ameement with the Federal Reserve Bank of Snsas CHv-

s reserve account
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4. Palmer shall provide an account statement on each

account on a periodic basis.

5. ONE shall have the following responsibilities and

duties under this Agreement:

(a) ONE shall obtain all documentation required

by Palmer in establishing an account at their

bank.

(b) ONE shall provide a specification sheet to

the customer on required check and draft layouts,

with the customer being responsible for all print-

ing charges.

(c) ONE shall be responsible for the interception

and settlement of Palmer's Federal Reserve cash

letter.

(d) ONE shall be responsible for the lintercep-

tion and settlement of controlled disbursement

items received from the Federal Reserve.

(e) ONE shall be responsible for the settlement

of Federal Reserve differences in received cash let-

ters.

(f) ONB shall indemnify, save and hold Palmer

harmless against action taken against ONB's con-

trolled disbursement accounts,

(g) ONB shall process and settle disbursement

items using normal bank practices, and act as the

contact for any questions or problems that might
occur between Palmer and the controlled disburse-

ment customer.

6. ONB shall cause controlled disbursement customers to

maintain a $3,000.00 collected balance in their respective

accounts at Palmer as long as the account is an open and

active account.

In : the words of Mr. Nelson, Omaha National Bank's Second Vice-

president, in charge of its check processing activities (Tr, 59):

From a bank standpoint, Palmer was only giving us the

right to use the ABA number, that is their bank routing
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the documents once it has read it the first time, read the

routing number and the account number and the amount,
we segregate those out I testified to that yesterday into

Palmer items, those that are drawn strictly on Palmer cus-

tomrs, and those checks that are drawn on Omaha Nation-

al Bank or accounts of Omaha National Bank,

Once that is done, the computer automatically substi-

tutes our routing number for Palmer's and that item be-

comes is treated identical to any item that would bear

our own ABA [routing] number. So in effect, what we've

done is created a mirror image of our own account

number, super-injected it over, and told our machines,
"Don't read Palmer's ABA number; read ours."

It's sorted as if it was our own item and treated in the

return process in the bookkeeping procedures as if it was

actually our item,

10. The Federal Reserve System operates the largest check collec-

tion system in the country. Mr. Poley, Vice-President of the Feder-

al Reserve Bank of Kansas City, testified concerning a 1979 study

showing that 40% of all checks are handled through the Federal

Reserve System. The other checks are exchanged directly between

banks within a clearinghouse area or they are collected through a

private correspondent relationship between banks (Tr. 90). Some
banks choose to participate in private collection systems rather

than, or in addition to, the Federal Reserve System because they
can negotiate better deposit and credit availability schedules than

those established by the Federal Reserve System (Tr. 94).

11. When a person (such as a livestock seller) receives a check,

the bank in which he deposits the check is referred to as the "de-

positing bank," "depository bank" or "sending bank." The bank on

which the check is drawn is referred to as the "payor bank" or

"paying bank." The check goes from the depositing bank to the

Federal Reserve Bank, where it is sorted and then "presented" to

the paying bank (Tr. 374-75).

The funds can be transferred from the paying bank to the depos-

iting bank by means of ledger entries on their respective accounts

at the Federal Reserve Bank, i.e., the paying bank's account is deb-

ited and the depositing bank's account is credited. After a check

reaches the Federal Reserve Bank, the day on which the funds are

available to the depositing bank (i.e., the day on which the check

"clears" the check collection system, e.g., by a debit to the account

of the paying bank and a credit to the account of the depositing

bank) varies, depending on whether the paying bank is, e.g., a city
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bank, a country bank, or an RCPC (regional check processii
center) bank (Tr. 36-41, 51-52, 69-75, 95-107, 120, 374-413; CX 5,
"; KX 11, 12),

12. The Federal Reserve System has different "cut-off times f

different types of banks. Checks reaching the Federal Rcsor
Bank by the cut-off time applicable to the particular type of bar
on which the check is drawn are credited to the depositing ban
d.e., the funds are actually available to the depositing bank) in a
cordance with schedules published by the Federal Reserve Systei
(

",

41
'

I
1

?'
69~75 ' 95"107 ' 12 > 374'413 ' CX 5 > P- * R* 11, 12

Effective February 16, 1982, the Federal Reserve Bank of Kan*
City Omaha Branch, gave immediate credit (i.e., same day fun
availability to the depositing bank) if (i) checks drawn on an RCPbank were received by the Omaha Federal Reserve Bank by 12:0
a.m, or (n) checks drawn on a city bank (such as Omaha Nation*
Bank) were received by the Omaha Federal Reserve Bank by 8:3
a.m. Checks drawn on a country bank (such as State Rank oOmp Credit if ihe* were Kx*tod by fhOmaha Federal Reserve Bank by 3:00 p.m. (CX 5, p. 9) If a check i,

Ban

d6nnH
auC, ? ^ the Oniaha Federal Reserve Bank on Day i
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1
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Class of Item

City

Machine processable checks

RCPC

Machine processable checks

Fine sort 7

Country

All checks

Cut-OffTime Av ?biUty

8:30 a.m.

3:00 p.m.

Immediate

12:01 a.m. Immediate

2:00 a.m. Immediate

Next day

13. Effective May 27, 1983, the Omaha Federal Reserve Bank

schedules were slightly altered. The deposit or cut-off time and

fund availability schedules established by the Omaha Federal Re-

serve Bank as of that date were as follows (RX 11, p. 2):

Class of Item

City

Unsorted

Fine Sort

RCPC

Unsorted Regular

Unsorted Premium
Fine Sort

Country

Unsorted

Fine Sort

Cut-OffTime

9:00 a.m.

10:00 a.m.

12:01 a.m.

1:00 a.m.

2:00 a.m.

3:00 p.m.

4:00 p.m.

Fund
Availability

Immediate

Immediate

Immediate

Immediate

Immediate

Next day
Next day

14. The following examples illustrate the Omaha Federal Reserve

Bank's schedule (see Finding 12) for checks drawn on a city bank,

an RCPC (regional check processing center) bank and a country

1 Fine sorted items are items sorted "to a specific ABA number or routing transit

number" (Tr. 71).
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check collection system for checks drawn on country banks than

checks drawn on RCPC banks, 8

15. The additional delay, or "float," resulting from Omaha Na-

tional Bank becoming, in effect, a country bank instead of a city

bank enables Omaha National Bank to offer its customers (such as

respondent) a valuable service. Prior to the utilization of Omaha
National Bank's Controlled Disbursement Account, respondent was
unable to forecast accurately what checks would clear through the

check collection system each day. Respondent wrote its checks on

Omaha National Bank, which is a participant in the Federal Re-

serve System and, also, the Greater Omaha-Lincoln Clearinghouse
Association, a private check collection system. Omaha National
Bank is also a city bank with established banking relationships
across the country, including major money center banks. Conse-

quently, items drawn on Omaha National Bank could be and were

presented and debited throughout the day, from 3:30 a.m. until 9:00

p.m. Under these circumstances, Omaha National Bank could pro-
vide neither accurate daily forecasting of funding requirements nor

increased float to its customers (CX 5, p. 13; Tr. 39, 49-51, 373, 385).

Prior to its participation in Omaha National Bank's Controlled

Disbursement Account program, respondent had to estimate what
checks would clear the collection system each day. This resulted at

times in respondent borrowing money under its revolving note

from Omaha National Bank (which is reduced or increased each

day) and paying interest on funds put into its checking accounts
that were not actually needed that day. If respondent underesti-

mated its cash requirements for a particular day, Omaha National
Bank honored the checks, and charged respondent an "overdraft"

charge identical to the interest charge respondent would have paid
if respondent had accurately estimated its cash needs. But continu-

ous overdrafts are not regarded as a good banking practice, and
banks discourage customers from continuously having overdrafts

(Tr, 327-36, 345-48, 855-58, 401-03).

16. A Controlled Disbursement Account (i) enables the bank of-

fering the account to notify its customer each day of the exact

daily funding requirements that will be necessary that day to covei

its checks and other cash items that will "clear" that day, (ii) takes

advantage of the disbursement float inherent in the Federal Re
serve's check collection system, and (iii) permits maximum use ol

tjie customer's funds for investment or debt paydown, A customei

"There la a 9-hour time period in which country checks have more delay, 01

"float," than RCPC checks, I.e., checks deposited with the Omaha Federal Reserv<
Bank between 8:01 p.m. of Day 1 and 12:01 a.m. of Day 2 (Tr. 46, 48; CX 6, p. 9)
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such as respondent can maintain a zero-balance checking account
in which the exact funds needed each day to cover checks cleared
that day are deposited in the checking account that day.

^
17, For Controlled Disbursement Account checks written on a

"country" bank that are received by the Federal Reserve Bank on
Day 1, the Federal Reserve Bank has until noon of Day 2 to

present the items to the paying bank. However, such items are nor-

mally made available to Omaha National Bank by 10:00 p m on
Day 1 (Tr. 51-52, 72, 384). Omaha National Bank then runs the
items through its computer and is able to advise its customers by
8:00 a.m. on Day 2 as to the exact amount of money needed in the
customers's checking account on Day 2 (Tr. 30). Since the Con-
trolled Disbursement Account checks are written on a country
bank, checks presented to Omaha National Bank on Day 1 are not
credited to the depositing bank, or debited to the paying bank,
until Day 2 (Tr. 52, 384-85). Accordingly, on Day 2, a customer such
as respondent is able to borrow money, if needed, on its revolving
note and deposit the exact amount needed in its checking account
on Day 2, by means of a telephone call (Tr. 306-07, 327-28, 348,
355-56, 402-03, 423).

9

18. In order to offer a Controlled Disbursement Account to its

customers, Omaha National Bank had to limit the number of pre-
sentments in any given day (Tr. 51). Omaha National Bank identi-
fied State Bank of Palmer from among its correspondent banks aa
a suitable bank to participate with it in establishing and operating
its Controlled Disbursement Account program (CX 5, p. 13; Tr. 51-
52). State Bank of Palmer was selected because it was a country
point 125 miles from Omaha, it was sufficiently small that it was
not likely to receive direct presentments from other banks, and it

was not then a member of any clearinghouse association. Thus, vir-

tually all of Omaha National Bank's Controlled Disbursement Ac-
count checks would be presented through the Federal Reserve's
check collection system. In addition, State Bank of Palmer receives
only one presentment per day from the Federal Reserve Bank (CX
5, p. 13; Tr. 51, 384-85).

19. Omaha National Bank selected State Bank of Palmer to take
advantage of the deposit and credit availability schedules of the
Federal Reserve Bank applicable to cash items drawn on "country"
banks. By choosing State Ba'nk of Palmer rather than an RCPC
bank, Omaha- National Bank obtained additional "float," i.e., delay
in the check collection process (CX 5; Tr. 33-'37, 44-48). Some of
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Omaha National Bank's competitors originally offered Controlle

Disbursement Accounts on RCPC banks, but they switched 1

"country" banks after Omaha National Bank began using a "cou]

try" bank (Tr. 38/414).

20. When Omaha National Bank officials met with their accoui

executives who would be marketing its Controlled Disbursemei

Account program to customers, the additional "float" time fro]

the use of a "country" bank rather than an RCPG bank or cil

bank was one of the "selling points", (Tr. 44-47), The outline use

to explain Omaha National Bank's Controlled Disbursement A
count program lists as one of the seven features (Tr, 44; CX 5,

'

25):

6. Presentment times are longer than those associated

with disbursing from a bank located in a RCPC or Fed

City zone.

Omaha National Bank's "handbook for our sales people and 01

account executives to use when they are out with their customers

{Tr. 46) states (CX 5, pp. 27-28; emphasis added):

Customer Benefits

Using the State Bank of Palmer as our controlled disburs-

ing affiliate bank, we will be able to supply significant

cash management benefits to our corporate customers:

Maximum use of cash for investments, debt paydown
or funds mobilization.

Accurate daily information for greater control and

forecasting.

Decreased idle balances.

Increased utilization of disbursement float inherent in

the system.

Automated and easily integrated into Omaha Nation-

al's corporate cash management system featuring
Automated Investment Checking, the liquidity fund,

and OmniLink.

Market

Large> corporations or middle market customers that have

significant disbursing dollars.
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Competition

At the present time, U.S. National Bank is the only com-
petition in our middle market. Larger corporations will be
solicited by U.S. National and large "money center banks"
that are aggressive in cash management services.

Omaha National Advantages

Omaha National has a distinct advantage over U.S. Na-
tional by providing an additional day of disbursing float to
the customer.

Advantages to our local customers in relationship to

"money center banks*' is that we will process their checks
locally at Omaha National and not at some distant loca-
tion, facilitating stop pays, cautions, etc.

Omaha National Bank's marketing pamphlet or brochure which
was given to potential customers (Tr. 47) states (CX 5, p. 30; empha-
sis added):

Controlled Cash Disbursement

By processing your company's disbursements through an
Omaha National affiliate, same-day clearing information
can be provided at the start of your business day. Advan-
tages of controlled cash disbursement include:

Maximum use of cash for investments, debt paydown
or funds mobilization.

Accurate daily information for greater control and
forecasting.

Decreased idle balances.

Increased utilization of disbursement float inherent in
the system.

Automation and easy integration into Omaha Nation-
al s corporate cash management system.

Respondent's President did not remember whether he was shown
a copy of the foregoing marketing brochure, but he admitted that
he was shown some "literature" by the Omaha National Bank rep-
resentative and that he studied the literature (Tr. 309-10)

n\Si"c a
PPf

oxiraatoy July 12
> 1982

> Despondent has used ite
Omaha National Bank Controlled Disbursement Account to pay for

f k
?^

C
o
aSeS With Checks drawn on Stat Bank of Palmer

3-7; Tr. 194-204). All of these checks are collected through ths
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Federal Reserve Bank check collection system, and are subject to

the deferred (i.e., next day) credit availability provided by the Fed-

eral Reserve's deposit and credit availability schedule applicable to

checks drawn on "country" endpoints (CX 3, 5, p. 9; RX 11; Tr. 194-

204, 411-12).

22. Mr. Nelson, Omaha National Bank's Second Vice-President in

charge of check processing, testified that on average the increased

"float" resulting from Omaha National Bank's Controlled Dis-

bursement Account program would be a fraction of a day, 80% to

90% of a day in case of national firms, and much less for customers

located in the Omaha area. That is because there might be no

delay or there might be a full day's delay, depending on when an

item reached the Federal Reserve Bank and what type of item it

was. So in the aggregate, looking at all of a customer's Controlled

Disbursement Account checks, the delay would average a fraction

of a day (Tr. 396-99, 403, 412-13, 417, 420-21).

23. The increased "float," or delay in the collection of respond-
ent's checks, resulting from its use of Omaha National Bank's Con-

trolled Disbursement Account checks is shown by an analysis pre-

pared by complainant of almost all of respondent's livestock checks

issued during four sample periods, two before and two after re-

spondent began writing Controlled Disbursement Account checks.

(The only checks omitted were those where "dates were totally ob-

scured on the back of the check" (Tr. 197)). The first sample con-

tains the endorsement stamp dates and, also, the check clearing

dates (i.e., the dates on which respondent's account at Omaha Na-

tional Bank was debited (Tr. 195, 212), which would be the same
date Omaha National Bank's account at the Federal Reserve Bank
was debited and the depositing bank's account at the Federal Re-

serve Bank was credited (Tr. 881-86, 423-27; RX 12)) for 32 checks

issued by respondent from June 21 through July 2, 1982, before re-

spondent began using Controlled Disbursement Account checks (CX
1), Of theae 32 checks, 27 cleared through the Omaha Federal Re-

serve Bank, 10 and 24 of the 27 (or 89%) cleared the check collec-

tion system (i.e., the depositing bank was credited and Omaha Na-
tional Bank was debited) on the same day on which the check was
received by the Ornaha Federal Reserve Bank (CX I).

11

10 The Initials "FO" on Complainant's Exhibits 1-3 refer to the "Omaha Branch
of tho Federal Reserve Bank of Kansas City" (Tr. 200), The initials "SC" stand for

the Sioux City, Iowa Bank, and the initials "ONE" stand for tho Omnha National

Bank (Tr: 200}.

11 The only three exceptions out of the 27 checks clearing through the Federal

Reserve Bank were all deposited by Producer Order Buyers, Sioux City, Iowa. Each
Continued
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symbol),
the customer receives ledger credit the day of receipt, but

does not receive availability of funds until the second business day

following receipt (Tr. 166-91). He explained that the added day of

delay in the availability of funds caused by the use of one of re-

spondent's Controlled Disbursement Account checks cost a coopera-

tive association, Producers Order Buyers, $11.17 on a single check

for $22,978.06 (Tr. 127-58; CX 7).

25, When respondent began writing Controlled Disbursement Ac-

count checks for livestock purchased at the Omaha stockyard, Mr,

Cunningham, Executive Secretary of the Omaha Livestock Ex-

change (an organization of livestock commission firms), advised re-

spondent that under the Exchange rules, all livestock must be paid

for with a local check, and that if respondent wanted to do business

with his members, respondent would have to comply with the Ex-

change rules. As a result, respondent pays for livestock bought at

the Omaha stockyards with a local check (Tr. 313-17).

26, Omaha National Bank was not required to (and did not)

obtain formal approval of its Controlled Disbursement Account pro-

gram. Nonetheless, it discussed the program informally with Feder-

al Reserve System
13 and Federal Deposit Insurance Corporation

officials, who advised that the program did not appear to violate

their regulations (Tr. 58, 112, 364-67; CX 5, p. 10; RX 9, 10). The
letter to Omaha National Bank from the Regional Counsel of Fed-

eral Deposit Insurance Corporation states (CX 5, p. 10):

We have reviewed your description of The Omaha Nation-

al Bank's proposed "Controlled Disbursement Account."

In offering this product, it does not appear that the bank
would violate any federal laws or regulations which FDIC
enforces. It is possible, however, that controlled disburse-

ment accounts might be used to increase the amount of

"float" time of checks for bank customers. If this were the

case, the FDIC might find that an unsafe and unsound

banking practice existed.

27, On January 11, 1979, the Federal Reserve Board issued a

. press release discouraging the use of remote disbursement checking

. accounts, stating (CX 10):
l4

13 When the Federal Reserve official signed the Intercept Agreement involved in

Omaha National Bank's Controlled Disbursement Account program (see Findings 7-

9), he did not approve the Controlled Disbursement Account program (Tr. 112).

H The Federal Reserve Board's press release and report (CX 9, 10), received only
'aa an offer of proof (Tr. 115-16), were erroneously excluded (since they are relevant

ibaokground information), and are considered a part of the record <7 CFR
Continued
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The Board believes the banking industry has a public re-

sponsibility not to design, offer, promote or otherwise en-

courage the use of a service expressly intended to delay

final settlement and which exposes payment recipients to

greater than ordinary risks. The Board is calling on the

nation's banks to join the effort to eliminate remote dis-

bursement practices intended to obtain extended float.

There is no intention to discourage corporate disburse-

ment arrangements with banks that provide for improved

control over daily cash requirements, provided that these

arrangements do not result in the undesirable effects

noted above. Banks should provide the cash management
services needed by their customers through the use of pay-

ments methods that facilitate prompt funds availability to

payment recipients and that protect banks from unneces-

sary risk.

Attached to the Federal Reserve Board's press release quoted im-

mediately above was a Staff Report which states (CX 9, pp. 1-2);

1. Remote disbursement unnecessarily delays payment to

check recipients who rarely are able to determine the

manner in which payments are made to them.

Recipients of remotely disbursed checks may be exposed

to risk of loss associated with the longer clearing time.

Perhaps the best example of this risk was the case involv-

ing American Beef Packers, Inc., which case was the sub-

ject of recent Congressional hearings resulting in the en-

actment of legislation to require next-day final payment
for livestock transactions.

American Beef Packers paid for cattle purchased from

farmers in the midwest with checks drawn on a bank in

Oregon. When the company went bankrupt, the checks

were dishonored. Actually, payable through drafts were

used in lieu of checks by this company but banks treat

such drafts as checks and the public is generally not in-

formed of nor concerned with the technical differences.

During Congressional hearings, the point was frequently

made that the length of time required for clearing and

return of the Drafts probably caused much of the loss to

the, draft recipients. Specifically, the longer clearing time

may have affected the collectability of some of the drafts,

and the combination .of the longer clearing and longer
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return times delayed identification and claim of assets

(livestock),

Because check recipients are generally not aware of the
risks associated with remote disbursement and are not in a
position to negotiate an alternative payment instrument
(such as more readily collected checks, currency, or wire
transfer), the Board believes that the banking industry has
a responsibility not to encourage or even offer a service
that is intended solely to delay final settlement and that

thereby exposes check recipients (particularly individuals)
to greater risks.

The Board is not discouraging corporate disbursement
arrangements with banks that provide for improved con-
trol over daily cash requirements provided that the pur-
pose of such arrangements is not to delay the collection of
funds to the disadvantage of the payee or other partici-

pants in the payment system. Banks should provide the
cash management services needed and demanded by fcheir

customers using payment methods that facilitate rapid col-

lections, assure the prompt availability of funds to pay-
ment recipients, and protect banks from unnecessary risks.

Mr. Foley, Vice-President of the Federal Reserve Bank of Kansns
City, who has the senior supervisory responsibility over the check
collection system in the 10th Federal Reserve District (which in-

cludes Omaha), testified that he does not know whether Omaha
National Bank's Controlled Disbursement Account program vio-

lates the Federal Reserve System's policy statement as to remote
disbursements (Tr, 117-23).

28. On February 23, 1984, the Federal Reserve Board issued a
policy statement discouraging the use of delayed disbursement
practices that increase "the collection time for checks by at least a
day." The policy statement is as follows (emphasis added):

15

Policy Statement on Delayed Disbursement Practices

The Federal Reserve Board is concerned that the prac-
tice of delayed disbursement has become increasingly prev-
alent. Delayed disbursement consists of arrangements de-

signed to delay the collection and final settlement of
checks by drawing checks on institutions located substan-
tial distances from the payee, or on institutions located

10
Official notice was taken of this policy statement (7 CPR U41(g)(6)>.
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outside of Federal Reserve cities when alternate and more

efficient payment arrangements are available.

The increase in delayed disbursement practices has re-

duced the efficiency of the check collection system. The

concerns expressed by the Board in its 1979 policy state-

ment on delayed disbursements are still valid today. Re-

cipients are denied availability of funds to the extent that

funds would be available earlier if the transaction had

been consummated using a check disbursement point

where collection could be more readily accomplished. A
check drawn on an institution remote from the payee

often increases the costs of handling the check. First, more

institutions are likely to handle the check before it is final-

ly paid, increasing processing costs. Second, higher trans-

portation costs are incurred to move checks greater dis-

tances, It has been estimated that the incremental cost for

handling checks drawn on delayed disbursement accounts

is approximately 7 cents per item. In addition, the practice

delays the return of unpaid checks. These disbursement

practices result in increased possibilities for check fraud

and other losses, higher processing and transportation

costs, increased incidence of delayed funds availability,

and higher processing and transportation costs for return

items.

The remote location of institutions offering delayed dis-

bursement arrangements often increases the collection time

for checks by at least a day. Recipients of delayed disburse-

ment payments, moreover, are exposed to increased risk of

loss. The extended collection time for checks drawn on

such accounts increases the chances that the checks will

not be paid when presented for payment due to reasons

such as insolvency of the payor.

Finally, delayed disbursement arrangements could give

rise to supervisory concerns since a bank may unknowing-

ly incur significant credit risk through such arrangements.

The primary risk is payment against uncollected funds,

which could be a method of extending unsecured credit to

a depositor and lead to violations of legal lending limits,

Absent proper and complete documentation regarding the

credit worthiness of the depositor, paying items '

against

uncollected funds could be considered an unsafe or un-

sound banking practice; Further, even if properly docu-
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mented, such loans might exceed the bank's legal lending
limit for loans to one customer. Examiners are instructed
to review routinely a bank's practices in this area during
the course of examinations to ensure that such practices
are conducted prudently, If undue or undocumented credit

risk is disclosed or if lending limits are exceeded, examin-
ers will continue to take appropriate corrective action.

The Board believes that the banking industry has a re-

sponsibility not to offer or otherwise encourage the use of
arrangements that result in a delay in the collection and
final settlement of checks. The Board has implemented a

program designed to accelerate the collection of checks
and encourages the banking industry to seek further im-

provements in check collection and funds availability. The
Board intends to monitor the success of voluntary efforts

to reduce and eliminate the use of delayed disbursement

arrangements. In instances where delayed disbursement
abuses continue, the Board intends to pursue appropriate
action. This may include Federal Reserve operational

changes to speed up the collection of checks drawn on
these institutions.

CONCLUSIONS

Mr. Nelson, Omaha National Bank's Second Vice-President in

charge of check processing, admitted that its Controlled Disburse-
ment Account program resulted in a delay of 1 day in the check
collection process with respect to some checks, depending on when
they reached the Federal Reserve Bank (Finding 22). As to other
checks, there would be no delay, i.e., for checks reaching the Feder-
al Reserve Bank after the 8:30 a.m. cut-off time for "city" banks
and before the 3:00 p.m. cut-off time for "country" banks (Finding
14, Example 2). Accordingly, Mr. Nelson testified that the delay
from using Controlled Disbursement Account checks would average
a fraction of a day, considering all of the checks written by a cus-
tomer (Finding 22). In the case of respondent, its use of Controlled
Disbursement Account checks instead of checks drawn on its regu-
lar bank account at Omaha National Bank resulted in a 1-day
delay as to most of respondent's livestock checks (Finding 23).

Omaha National Bank officials admit that the additional "float"
time from the use of a "country" bank rather than an RCPC bank
in its Controlled Disbursement Account program was one of the

"selling points" used in selling its program to customers (Finding
20). Respondent's President admitted that he studied "literature"
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a check in the United States mail for the full amount of
the purchase price, properly addressed to the seller, within
the time limits specified in this subsection, such action
being deemed compliance with the requirement for prompt
payment.

(b) Waiver ofprompt payment by written agreement; disclo-
sure requirements

Notwithstanding the provisions of subsection (a) of this
section and subject to such terms and conditions as the
Secretary may prescribe, the parties to the purchase and
sale of livestock may expressly agree in writing, before
such purchase or sale, to effect payment in a manner
other than that required in subsection (a) of this section
Any such agreement shall be disclosed in the records of
any market agency or dealer selling the livestock, and in
the purchaser's records and on the accounts or other docu-
ments issued by the purchaser relating to the transaction.

(c) Delay in payment or attempt to delay deemed unfair
practice

Any delay or attempt to delay by a market agency,
dealer, or packer purchasing livestock, the collection of
funds as herein provided, or otherwise for the purpose of
or resulting in extending the normal period of payment for
such livestock shall be considered an "unfair practice" in
violation of this chapter. Nothing in this section shall be
deemed to limit the meaning of the term "unfair practice"
as used in this chapter.

Subsection (a) of the statutory provision just quoted requires
packers to promptly deliver or mail a check to a livestock seller or
wire transfer funds unless there has been a waiver of the prompt
payment requirements pursuant to subsection (b). In this case,
there was no waiver of the prompt payment requirements. Since
complainant; concedes that respondent mailed the livestock checksm a timely fashion as required by Subsection (a), we are concerned
here only with subsection (c).

There are several possible interpretations of subsection CO. But
under any reasonable interpretation of subsection (c), a packer's
practice of writing a check on a remote bank (or on a local bank
which, in effect, converts itself into a remote bank), thereby delay-
Ing the check clearing process, is an unfair practice.
To aid understanding, complainant interpolates bracketed num-

bers m subsection (c), and relies solely on the first bracketed
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clause, viz, (Complainant
1

*) Reply to RoHpondent'H Proponed Find-

ings, etc., nt 22)\

Any tloluy or uttompt to doluy by a market agency,

dealer, or packer purchasing livestock, [1] the collodion of

funds at) heroin provided, or [%] otherwise for the purpose
of or resulting in extending tlio normal period of puymont
for Much livoHtock nhall bo conHidorod an "unfair practice"
in violation of this chapter. Nothing in thin Hoction shall

bo doomed to limit the meaning of tho torm "unfair prac-
tice" I\H UHod in this chnptor.

KoBpondunt contends that flubttoction (<;) doon not ittwlf condemn

any delaying practice, but merely HtutoH that failure to comply
with subsection (a) IB an unfair practice, unta tho neller walvwt*

his right to prompt payment (wl)iuh in permitted by Hubnoctkm (b)).

Respondent contends that if a check iu timoly mailed, it w immate-

rial whether ifc is written on a remote bank that would delay the

check collection process by several days.

Specifically, respondent argues that the wordH "collection of

funds" in tho first bracketed clnuuo of Hubsoctkm (c) are synony-
mous with tho word "payment/

1

and that witli respect to chuekn

mailed by a packer. Congress wan concerned only with whether the

packer mailed the chocks in a timoly manner, an required by nub-
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wero used in order to express different idunH." Ikx v. Givttt Ihlton,

8 H. & C. 71, 74 (1828), per Ixird Tonclordou.

When Gongreas aald that any delay (r attempt to delay by n

packer the collection of funds n herein provided m an unfair prac-

tlco, Congreaa obviously intended to includo as an unfair practice
undor aubBOCtlon (c) the writing of a chock on a remote bank which
would delay the collection of fund from a chock timoly muitod by
u packer In accordance with subsection (a).

Furthermore, even though complainant relies only on the firnt,

'bracketed clause, the flame result would be reached undor the hm
guage of the second bracketed clause. The second bracketed cluuuu

is preceded by the word "or," which indicated that the various

members of the aontenco are to be taken separately. "In statutory
construction 'or' is to b given ita normal disjunctive meaning
unless such a construction rendora the provision in question repug*
nant to other provisions of the statue." Gay Union Corp. v, Wttl-
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lace, 112 P.2d 192, 197 n.16 (D.C. Cir.), cert, denied, 310 U.S. 647

(1940). Accord United States v. Field, 255 U.S. 257, 262 (1921),
Under the second bracketed clause, any delay or attempt to

delay "otherwise/' i.e., in any manner other than referred to in

bracketed clause 1, "for the purpose of or resulting in extending
the normal period of payment," is an unfair practice. Writing a

check on a remote bank results in "extending the normal period of

payment" for livestock. That is, when Congress was referring to a

delay in "payment," Congress was referring to more than just put-

ting a check in the mail. Putting a check in the mail is, of course
one element of "payment." (This is obvious from subsection (a{
which refers to receiving "payment" by receiving a check.) But the

legislative history shows that Congress used the word payment in a

broader sense than merely mailing or delivering a check. The legis-

lative history of the amendatory legislation shows that Congress
recognized that writing a check on a distant bank is a device uti-

lized by packers to delay payment for livestock purchased. Specifi-

cally, the House Report on the 1976 amendatory legislation states

(H.R. Rep. No. 1043, 94th Cong., 2d Sess, 8 (Apr. 14, 1976) (emphasis
added)):

The principal complaints from the producer and feeder

representatives were the lack of protection from packer
failures and from various devices (such as use of drafts or
checks drawn on distant banks) utilized by packers to

delay payment for livestock purchased. 16

Hence when Congress made it an unfair practice to do any act "for

the purpose of or resulting in extending the normal period of pay-
ment," Congress meant to include the use of checks drawn on dis-

tant banks.

A third possible interpretation of subsection (c) would be to add a

comma after the word "otherwise," thereby making the phraae "for

the purpose of or resulting in extending the normal period of pay-
ment" applicable to the first bracketed clause. But even if that
were

done.^
as shown above, when Congress referred to a delay in

^payment,"
Congress had in mind delays caused by devices such aa

"checks drawn on distant banks ... to delay payment for live-

stock purchased" (H.R. Rep. No. 1048, 94th Cong., 2d Sess. 8 (Apr.
14, 1976)),

P

As shown below, this House Report relates to the version of the prompt pay-
ment legislation which had been divided into three subsections, and subsection fcj of
that version (aet forth in the House Report) and subsection (o) of the final version
enacted into law are verbatim.

'
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The plain language of subsection (c) so clearly prohibits packers

from delaying the check collection process by writing checks on

remote banks that an extended discussion of the legislative history

of the amendatory language should not be necessary. But since re-

spondent argues its absurd construction of the Act with such vigor,

and since the issue is of such tremendous national importance, I

will take the time to set out the legislative history at length. Since

the prompt payment language went through several drafting

stages, the legislative chronology is set forth first so that legislative

discussion may be considered in the light of the language then

being discussed.

The entire prompt payment section of H.R. 8410, 94th Cong., 1st

Sess., originally contained only two sentences, viz., the language
that is now in subsection (c), with an insignificant change. Specifi-

cally, the entire prompt payment provision of H.R. 8410, 94th

Cong., 1st Sess., as introduced on July 8, 1975, by Representative
Thone (for himself and Representative Bergland) provided:

17

SEC. 8. Said Packers and Stockyards Act is further

amended by adding after section 408 (7 U.S.C. 229) a new
section 409 to read as follows:

"SEC. 409. Any delay or attempt to delay by a market

agency, dealer, or packer purchasing livestock, the collec-

tion of funds through the mails, or otherwise for the pur-

pose of or resulting in extending the normal period of pay-
ment for such livestock shall be considered an 'unfair prac-
tice' in violation of the Act. Nothing in this section shall

be deemed to limit the meaning of the term 'unfair prac-

tice' as used in the Act."

That original language is identical to the present subsection (c),

except that the phrase "through the mails" was changed to "as

herein provided" (7 U.S.C. 229b(c)) after additional provisions

were added as subsections (a) and (b) (see note 21, infra, and accom-

panying text), (The fact that the original prompt payment language
was ultimately enacted (with the insignificant change noted) is of

particular importance since, as shown below, the orginal language
was proposed for the express purpose of prohibiting packers from

delaying the check collection process by writing checks on remote

banks.)

17 Amend Packers and Stockyards Act of 1921: Hearings on HM, 8410 and Relat-

ed Bills Before the Subcomm. on Livestock and Grains of the House Comm. on Agri-

culture, 94th ,Cong., 1st Sess. 9-10 (July 12, 28 and 24, 1975) [hereinafter cited as

House Hearings],
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"SEC. 409, (a) Each packer, market agency, or dealer

purchasing livestock shall, before the close of the next

business day following the purchase of livestock and trans-

fer of possession thereof, deliver to the seller or his duly

authorized agent
20 the full amount of the purchase price:

Provided, however, That each packer, market agency, or

dealer purchasing livestock for slaughter shall, before the

close of the next business day following purchase of live-

stock and transfer of possession thereof, actually deliver at

the point of transfer of possession to the seller or his duly

authorized representative a check or shall wire transfer

funds to seller's account for the full amount of the pur-

chase price; or, in the case of a purchase on a carcass or

'grade and yield' basis, purchaser shall make payment by
check at the point of transfer or shall wire transfer funds

to seller's account for the full amount of the purchase

price not later than the close of the first business day fol-

lowing determination of purchase price.

"(b) Notwithstanding the provisions of paragraph (a) of

this section and subject to such terms and conditions as

the Secretary may prescribe, the parties to the purchase

and sale of livestock may expressly agree in writing, before

such purchase or sale, to affect payment in a manner

other than that required in paragraph (a). Any such agree-

ment shall be disclosed in the records of any market

agency or dealer selling the livestock, and in the purchas-

er's records and on the accounts or other documents issued

by the purchaser relating to the transaction.

"(c) Any delay or attempt to delay by a market agency,

dealer, or packer purchasing livestock, the collection of

funds as herein provided, or otherwise for the purpose of

or resulting in extending the normal period of payment for

such livestock shall be considered an 'unfair practice' in

violation of the Act. Nothing in this section shall be

deemed to limit the meaning of the term 'unfair practice'

as used in the Act."

Under the version just quoted, which was the version discussed

in H,R. Rep. No. 1043, 94th Cong., 2d Sess. (Apr. 14, 1976), and de-

bated in the House on May 6, 1976, mailing a check would have

been prohibited unless the parties agreed to such payment under

30 The word "agent" was subsequently changed to "representative,"



2816 PACKERS AND STOCKYARDS ACT
Volume 44 Number 7

subsection (bX However during the House floor debate on MBJ1976, Representative H,ghtower offered an amendment to INT
seller was not present-
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statutory language is being interpreted, "is worth a volume of

logic." New York Trust Co. v. Eisner, 256 U.S. 345, 349 (1921).

Turning to the "history of the times," the dominant event that
was largely responsible for enactment of the 1976 amendatory leg-
islation was the 1975 bankruptcy of American Beef Packers, Inc.,

which went bankrupt leaving producers in 13 States unpaid for a
total of over $20 million in livestock sales. As stated in the House
Report on the 1976 amendatory legislation (H.R. Rep. No. 1043,
94th Cong., 2d Sess. 5 (Apr. 14, 1976)):

Between 1958 and early 1975 167 packers failed, leaving
livestock producers unpaid for over $43 million worth of

livestock. By far the largest of such failures was that of

American Beef Packers (ABP), which went bankrupt in

January, 1975, leaving producers in 13 states unpaid for a
total of over $20 million in livestock sales. Of particular
concern to the livestock producers in this instance was the
fact that ABP's principal source of financing, General
Electric Acceptance Corp., stood ahead of them among the

bankrupt's creditors by virtue of its duly protected securi-

ty interest in ABP's inventory, etc., i.e., livestock and de-

rivative products which the producers had sold on a cash
basis and for which they had not been paid.

As of July 1, 1975, 23 States had responded to the omi-
nous trend of packer failures by enacting laws requiring
bonds of packers. In the wake of the ABP bankruptcy, sev-

eral States, including Kansas, Oklahoma, and Texas, have
enacted laws subjecting packers to strict prompt payment
requirements,

USDA figures show that in 1973 some $31 billion worth
of livestock and $4 billion worth of poultry were marketed
in the United States, representing approximately one-third

of all farm income. Livestock is probably the single most

important source of protein in the American diet. Thus,
livestock producers occupy a position of unique national

importance. No individual is engaged in a riskier endeavor
or one more vital to the national interest than the produc-
er. And no entrepreneur is so completely at the mercy of

the marketplace. The livestock producer, if he successfully
combats the vicissitudes of weather, financing, skyrocket-

ing costs, etc., must sell when his cattle are ready irrespec-
'

tive of the market. His livestock may represent his entire

year's output. And, if he is not paid, he faces ruin, While
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some may argue that business is business and that farmers
must take their chances along with everyone else, this

Committee muat view the situation from a larger perspec-
tive. We would be derelict in our responsibilities to the

American people if we failed to address the evils which
have inflicted heavy losses upon the very producers upon
whom the Nation depends for such an important part of

its basic food supply.

The Senate Report on the 1976 amendatory legislation contains

language practically verbatim to that just quoted (S. Rep. No. 932,
94th Cong,, 2d Sess. 4-6 (June 4, 1976)), except that in place of the

last two sentences just quoted, the Senate Report states (id. at G):

The meat packing industry is, of course, an integral part
of our Nation's agricultural marketing system. What is

needed to prevent future producer tragedies, as occurred

following the ABP bankruptcy, is legislation that will

afford a measure of protection to the livestock producer
and feeder and yet not be so restrictive as to reduce com-
petition in the livestock slaughtering business. H.R. 8410

accomplishes this dual objective.

Senator McGovern referred to the bankruptcy of American Beof

Packers, Inc., as the "triggering mechanism" for the 1976 amenda-

tory legislation. He stated (122 Cong. Rec. 18,837 (June 17, 1976)):

As Senators know, the triggering mechanism, for this

legislation was the 1976 bankruptcy of an Omaha based
firm, the American Beef Packers, Inc.

The bankruptcy of American Beef Packers, Inc., was repeatedly
referred to in the Senate (June 17, 1976) and House (May 6 nnd

Aug. 30, 1976) debates on the 1976 amendatory legislation (122

Cong. Rec. 12,862, 12,863, 12,864, 12,868, 12,870, 12,875, 12,879,

12,884, 18,824, 18,827, 18,828, 18,832, 18,835, 18,836, 18,887, 28,814,

28,315). The. bankruptcy of American Beef Packers, Inc., was also

referred to by President Ford when he signed the 1976 amendatory
legislation into law. He stated (Statement by the President on Sign-

ing H.R. 8410 Into Law, Weekly Comp. Pros; Doc. 1335 (Sept, 18,

1976)):

"Without this legislation, sales of livestock to meatpack-
ing firms would have continued without adequate assur-
ances of payment as was the case last year when a major

, Midwestern meatpacker went bankrupt while many of our
cattle producers were left holding over $20 million of
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worthless checks. Producers will be protected against this

kind of catastrophe in the future.

Moreover, the practice by American Beef Packers, Inc., of writ-

ing checks on distant banks was one of the specific evils sought to

be corrected by the amendatory legislation. In the Senate debate on
June 17, 1976, Senator Clark, speaking in support of H.R. 8410,

stated (122 Cong. Rec. 18,828 (1976) (emphasis added)):

Mr. CLARK. Mr, President, I rise in support of H.R. 8410,

a bill to amend the Packers and Stockyards Act of 1921 to

assure livestock producers that they will be paid for the

animals they sell, in the event of packing-plant bankrupt-
cies.

In January 1975, a disaster of major proportions struck

more than 950 producers in 18 States, Iowa and Nebraska
were the hardest hit. The catastrophe cost people in those

two States $12 million at a time when they were already

besieged by bad weather and low prices. Like a blizzard or

a drought, this disaster was sudden and devastating. The
livestock producers and businesses it hit could do little

more than try to pick up the pieces and start again. But
this was not a natural disaster. It was the financial col-

lapse of one of the Nation's 10 largest packers American
Beef Packers, Inc. of Omaha.

The producers damaged by the failure of American Beef

were not speculators. They had sold livestock for cash, ex-

pecting to be paid. More than 1 year later, many producers
and others are still wondering how it could have hap-

pened. The full answer may never be known, but the Pack-

ers and Stockyards Administration sent the Congress a

report that provides some fascinating and disturbing con-

clusions, "Deception and callous disregard for the livestock

producers; distant bank accounts; special payments to

friends; and improper accounting methods" each had a

part in the collapse of American Beef and the $21 million

loss to producers that followed it, according to the report;

and, to compound the disaster, it seems that the company
continued to purchase livestock even though it knew the

checks paid to livestock producers were worthless.

The Congress cannot help those victims. Nor can it help
the victims of more than 174 other packer failures that

cost livestock producers another $25 million over the past
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18 years. But Congress can and must do something to pre-
vent this awful tragedy from happening again.

Official notice was taken by the Judicial Officer of the Packers
and Stockyards Administration Report to Congress (July 8, 19751
referred to by Senator Clark. The report states (id. at 6):

au

SUMMARY

The following [five] practices were engaged in by ABP
and Beefland with the overall result of imposing a $20 mil-
lion loss on the livestock community:

(1) The deliberate use of distant bank accounts to create
an unreasonably large float which resulted in more live-
stock producers not being paid.

Senator Dole, who supported H.R. 8410 122 Cong. Rec. 18.8H2
(June 17, 1976)), also referred to American Beef Packers' "mnniim-
lation by using distant banks," stating (122 Cong. Rec. 18,884 (June
17, 1976));

Because of this situation in recent years, packers have
commenced mailing checks to sellers which take several
days to arrive and to clear the bank, 3 to 5 days can
hardly be considered a cash sale and with the mail service
being what it is today, it may be longer than 3 or 5 daya.
That is not the fault of either party.

This extended interpretation of "cash sale/' its manipu-
lation by using distant banks, coupled with other particu-
lar circumstances surrounding the American beef packers

Respondent complains that it was deprived of the right to crouMSxnmiriu wllh
respect to this report But there is no right or need to cross-examine with reaped M

^gislative
facts, as distinguished from adjudicatory facts. In re Speight, 33 Agrk.

L)ec. 280, 313 (1974). It is settled that opportunity for cross-examination In required

s 7 nT TJo, ,?* o
CaUve faCtS are in diaPute'" Davi8' Administrative Law nwiti*

IK Yn,ii , .

PP<)> e also> Davi8' Administrative Law Treatise 15,08, .03.
.U5, .06, .10, .12, .14 (1958 and 1970 Supp.). The Packers and Stockyards AdminijfUrt-
ion report is relevant here only to show what the Packers and Stockyar<fa Adminis-
tration told Congress-not to show that the report accurately presented tha (belli. In
any event, however, the report is sufficiently described for our purposes hero in Lto
remark by Senator Clark. In .addition, the exact language quoted aa paragraph (II
from the Summary of the Report is set forth in Representative Bedell's summary of

^P01* from the p^ers and Stockyards Administration"
: ffeanngs pn S, 1532 and S. 2034 Before the Subcomm. on A#i-

nd ** fP*** of the Senate Comm, on
g" lst^ 2^ (July 19 and 2Bi 1975) [horfllna(ur
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bankruptcy, caused nearly 1,000 farmers to hold worthless

checks amounting to over $20 million last year.

Representative Harkin also referred to American Beef Packers'

distant bank accounts in stressing the need for prompt payment

and the other amendatory legislation under discussion. He stated

(122 Cong, Rec. 12,884 (May 6, 1976) (emphasis added)):

Mr. Chairman, I rise in support of H,R. 8410 as reported

from the Committee on Agriculture. I feel that this bill is

a needed update in the Packers and Stockyards Act which

reflects the shifts in marketing techniques over the past

several decades.

This need was brought to national attention in January

1975, by the bankruptcy of American Beef Packers, Inc.,

which left nearly 1,000 livestock producers holding close to

$21 million in bad checks with only a hope of an equitable

final settlement. . . .

The Packers and Stockyards Act was passed to insure

the packer and producer conduct business in a fair and

honest manner. The transgressions of American Beef

Packers, Inc., have indicated that the packers can bend the

law to serve their own interest at the expense and without

the knowledge of the producer.

For example, American Beef maintained bank accounts

in, Seattle, Wash., and Salem, N,C., to increase the float

time for clearing checks. Obviously this float worked to en-

hance the credit position of ABP and resulted in the mag-

nitude of the loss to producers.

Many critics of the bill have also pointed out that the

prompt payment provision is unreasonable. However, ac-

cording to my information, similar language has func-

tioned quite well in Kansas, Oklahoma, and Texas. Such a

provision is definitely needed.

Representative Poage, Chairman of the Subcommittee on Live-

stock and Grains, and a proponent of H.R. 8410, in explaining the

prompt payment provisions of the bill at the outset of the House

debate, referred to the practice of packers writing drafts on distant

banks. He stated (122 Cong. Rec. 12,862 (May 6, 1976)):
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Next, there is a provision in the bill, and I suppose it is

the most controversial in the bill, about prompt payment.
There have been great delays in the payment. Some of the

packing companies have been paying by issuing drafts on a
bank. If they are doing business down in Texas and Okla-
homa, they give a draft on a bank in Walla Walla, Wash. I

suppose, if they are doing business out there, they give n
draft on a bank in Tallahassee, Fla. But, they have given
drafts on distant points so that it took quite some time to

get the payment through.

Similarly, Representative Hightower, a supporter of H.K. 8410
(122 Cong, Rec, 12,868 (May 6, 1976)), referred to the practice of
packers writing checks on remote banks. He stated (122 Cone Rec
12,873 (May 6, 1976)):

There was considerable abuse of the mail privilege
under previous practice of purchasers using the mail by
the use of a bank account perhaps 1,000 miles away from
the point of purchase of livestock in order to pay, and they
enjoyed the benefit of a considerable float time.

Although legislative history involving discussions at congression-
al hearings is not nearly as weighty, in construing a statute, aa leg-
islative reports and floor debates,

24 the congressional hearings and
business meetings relating to the amendatory legislation were
filled with references to checks and drafts drawn on remote banka,
and the need to enact prompt payment provisions to remedy that
abuse.

At the July 23, 1976, session of the House Subcommittee on Live-
stock and Grains hearings, Mr. B. H. Jones, then Executive Vice-
President of the National Livestock Feeders Association (NLFA),
who is presently the Administrator of the Packers and Stockyards
Administration who signed the complaint in this case, testified and
submitted a prepared statement on behalf of the NLFA setting
forth its views concerning the several bills under consideration,
NLFA indicated a clear preference for H.R, 8410, which was intro-
duced at the request of the NLFA, and was ultimately enacted,
with amendments.

Mr. Jones, on behalf of the NLFA, testified as to the original
two-sentence version of the prompt payment provision (which is

718 F '2d 1249
' 12E2-53 (7th Gir ' 1983>- rt*'* 104 a

42 0980
P'2d 148> 147 (6th Cir ' 1979)> cert- denied> 445 U 'S -
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now subsection (c), with the trivial amendment discussed above) as

follows (House Hearings, supra note 17, at 73, 75, 78, 80):

Of the bills introduced, we prefer the structure and lan-

guage of H.R. 8410, which was introduced at the request of

the NLFA. . . .

[L]et us look at H.R. 8140, section by section, along with

the provisions of the other bills, to show how the afore-

mentioned objectives of giving livestock producers and

feeders an equitable priority position and substantially re-

ducing their risk in dealing with packers will be accom-

plished by the amendments to the P & S Act contained

therein:

Section 8 [which is now subsection (c), with the trivial

amendment discussed above] Extending Float Time

Intentionally extending the normal period of payment

for livestock by delaying the collection of funds such as

drawing checks for livestock on distant banks constitutes

a flagrant violation and is a common practice among pack-

ers. Such a practice seriously jeopardizes the position of

the livestock seller, as was vividly demonstrated in the

case of American Beef.

American Beef intentionally extended its float time by

drawing checks on a Spokane, Washington bank in pay-

ment for cattle purchased and slaughtered in the Midwest;

by drawing checks for cattle slaughtered at its Colorado

plant on a bank in Greenville, North Carolina; and by

other collection techniques tailored specifically for such

purpose.

Many of the checks returned to cattle and hog sellers

would have been paid prior to the bankruptcy filing had

the checks been drawn on banks in the proximity of the

transaction locations. In fact, it was a matter of weeks

before some producers and feeders found out their checks

had not cleared.
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chain which allow, and in fact encourage, situations such

as this to occur,

For example: Once a feeder sells his slaughter cattle to

packer, several things happen: First, the trucks pull in,

load the cattle, take them to the slaughterhouse, and three

or four days or a week later, a check or draft is mailed.

Assuming good mail service, the check may be received by
the seller in three to four more days, and deposited in the

seller's bank. Then the check (or draft) must go through
the normal clearance process before collected funds are

credited to the account of the seller. Since the check is

transported by mail, it has become common practice for

the packer to draw the checks on a bank branch in some
remote location like Gila Bend, Arizona. Check clearance

will take an average of seven days after the check is depos-
ited.

This delay in payment to the seller of cattle directly
causes a major inequity, and because of related inadequa-
cies of commercial law, sets up a very dangerous situation.

As a result of this delay in collection of funds, if you
assume that each seller of cattle receives collected funds
after the sale, the cattle industry is losing some $9-10
thousand per day in interest. It is grossly unfair to have
the seller of a raw commodity finance the next level of the

marketing chain to that extent.

In addition, Glenn Been, President of the Texas Cattle Feeders,
testified (House Hearings, supra, note 17, at 173:

2. All checks should be drawn on banks so located as not
to artificially delay collection of funds, This too will reduce
the float and give a quicker warning of nonpayment.

Similarly, hearings were held in July 1975 before the Subcom-
mittee on Agricultural Production, Marketing, and Stabilisation of

Prices of the Senate Committee on Agriculture and Forestry on the

problems uncovered as a result of the bankruptcy of American Beef
Packers, Inc., and on proposed legislation to correct those problems.
Numerous witnesses testified to the need for and desirability of

stringent statutory requirements providing both for prompt pay-
ment by, cash, check or wire transfer and a prohibition on the use

by packers of banking practices calculated to delay the collection of
funds (Senate Hearings, supra note 23), viz., Senator Clark at 1;

Representative Thone at 26; Representative Bedell at 29; Herb
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Albers, Jr., President, Nebraska Livestock Feeders Association at

86-87; John K. Blythe, Kansas Farm Bureau at 101; jtolc Eidcl,

Montana Stockgrowers Association at 112; Henry Kibler, Arixona

Cattle Feeders Association at 122-23; B. H. Jones, National Live-

stock Feeders Association at 156. See, alflo, Robert Lounsfot>*."x-y> Sec-

retary of Agriculture, Iowa Department of Agriculture at 41; John

Greig, President, Iowa Cattlemen's Association at 85; Ronald

Lorenz, Nebraska Farm Bureau at 120; Dale Gullickson, Marketing
Director, South Dakota Department of Agriculture at 144; *xiid Wil-

liam H, Webster, American National Cattlemen's Association at

152-53.

From the foregoing legislative history, it is clear that x*espwul-
ent's argument, i.e., that subsection (c) does not prohibit delaying
tactics such as writing checks on remote banks, ignores the iniiin

thrust of the legislative concern (as revealed in the House Itoporl,

the Senate and House floor debates and hearings, and tlie House

Business Meetings) that prompted enactment of the 197 C* prompt
payment legislation.

Additional legalative history not relating specifically to delay

caused by checks written on remote banks also demonstrates that

subsection (c) of the prompt payment legislation was enacted to

impose additional requirements on buyers, and was not Cos con-

tended by respondent) merely intended to state that f&ilure to

comply with subsections (a) and (b) is unlawful.

For example, during the discussion of Representative Hi^h-
tower's amendment, which is the amendment that parariite Uie

mailing of a check if the seller is not present, Representative High-
tower stated that postdating a check would violate subsection (c) of

the prompt payment provision. He stated (122 Cong. Reo. 12,874

(May 6, 1976)};

Mr. MYERS of Indiana. . . .

Mr. Chairman, I ask the gentleman from Texas, tho
author of this amendment, Mr. Hightower, a question.
Since this amendment does amend section 409, if postdat-
ing a check would not be a violation of the intent of sec-
tion 409(o).

Mr. HIGHTOWER. Yes, paragraph (c) of that section says
that any delay or attempt to delay by a market agfoncy
would be an unfair practice.

Mr. MYERS of Indiana, Under this amendment, then, it
is true that the postdating of a check would be in violation
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of the provisions of paragraph (c) of section 409, is that a

fact?

Mr. HIGHTOWER. It is.

Mr. MYERS of Indiana. And, therefore, would be an ille-

gal act?

Mi1

. HIGHTOWER. That is correct.

Similarly, Senator Helms explained that if "the purchaser sends

an insufficient funds check, he would be in violation of the prompt

payment requirement, since the purpose or result of such action

would be to extend the normal payment period" (122 Cong. Rec.

18.83B (June 17, 1976)). The language Senator Helms was referring

to is the language of subsection (c) (clause 2 discussed above). In ad-

dition, Representative Hagedorn explained that the prompt pay-

ment section would "protect against instances where packers or

market agencies have attempted to stall the collection of funds

through a variety of delaying practices" (122 Cong. Rec. 12,870

(May 6, 1976)).

From the foregoing, it is clear that subsection (c) was intended to

prohibit a variety of delaying tactics, such as postdating a check or

writing an insufficient funds check. Under respondent's interpreta-

tion of subsection (c), neither of those practices would be prohibit-

ed, nor would any other delaying tactic be prohibited as long as the

purchaser dropped a check in the mail within the time limit speci-

fied in subsections (a) and (b). Respondent's construction does vio-

lence not only to the plain language of subsection (c), but also to its

legislative history.

Respondent argues that the primary purpose of the prompt pay-

ment legislation was to eliminate delay caused by the use of drafts.

That certainly was one major purpose of the amendatory legisla-

tion. But, as shown above, there is an enormous amount of legisla-

tive history showing that Congress also intended to eliminate delay

caused by packers writing checks on remote banks.

Respondent relies on Senator Helms' fear that the prompt pay-

ment legislation "may smack a bit of legislative overkill." Senator

Heltna stated (122 Cong. Rec. 18,832 (June 17, 1976));

While I strongly support the bill, I am concerned that

the prompt payment provision, section 7, may smack a bit

of legislative overkill. I do not question the necessity for a

prompt payment provision. However, I do believe that

such a provision should be commercially feasible and effec-

tive. If a requirement. places such a heavy burden on the

packing industry as to conflict with normal and realistic
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This situation must be corrected. The risk livestock sell-

ers now face in dealing with packers must be substantially

reduced. No single provision of law can attain these objec-

tives. However, the combination of provisions contained in

H.R. 8410 is our best assurance that the past leases suf-

fered by producers because of packer bankruptcies will not

continue in the future.

Respondent also relies on the following brief explanation of sub-

section (c) of the prompt payment provision in the House Report
(H.R. Rep. No. 1043, 94th Cong., 2d Sess. 7 (Apr. 14, 1976) (emphasis
added by respondent)):

Any delay or attempt to delay by a market agency,
dealer, or packer purchasing livestock, the collection of

funds as provided pursuant to subsection (a) or (b) or other-

wise for the purpose of or resulting in extending the

normal period of payment for such livestock shall be con-

sidered an "unfair practice" in violation of the Act.

Respondent argues (Respondent's Proposed Findings of Fact, etc.,

filed March 15, 1984, at 33):

The underlined language shows beyond doubt that the

phrase "as herein provided" refers to the actual physical

delivery of a check as required in subsection (a) or such

provisions for delivery as are agreed upon pursuant to sub-

section (b),

Of course, as explained above, the phrase "as herein provided" in

subsection (c) refers to the payment methods referred to in subsec-

tions (a) and (b). The phrase "as herein provided" was first substi-

tuted for "through the mails" when the bill under discussion was
amended to prohibit payment through the mails. But there is noth-

ing in that change to suggest that Congress intended thereby to

limit the meaning of "delay" in "the collection of funds," or

"delay" "for the purpose of or resulting in extending the normal

period of payment." In fact, on the next page of the same House
Report relied on by respondent, it is stated that the "principal com-

plaints from the producer and feeder representatives were the lack

of protection from packer failures and from various devices (such
as use of drafts or checks drawn on distant banks) utilized by pack-
ers to delay payment for livestock purchased" (id. at 8). As shown
above, the legislative history shows that Congress intended in sub-

section (c) to address the producers' complaints about checks drawn
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checks violates subsection (c). It causes a 1-day delay in most of re-

spondent's livestock checks (Finding 23), Accordingly, respondent's
use of Controlled Disbursement Account checks is unlawful.

Respondent argues that Controlled Disbursement Account checks
are a lawful business practice used throughout the nation. Even if

that were true, it would be irrelevant. Livestock purchasers subject
to the Packers and Stockyards Act are subject to restrictions not

applicable to other check writers. Congress decided that in view of
the special circumstances relating to the livestock industry, live-

stock producers and sellers need the unique protection provided by
the 1976 prompt payment provisions.

Although it is irrelevant whether Controlled Disbursement Ac-
count checks violate Federal Reserve Board policy or Federal De-

posit Insurance Corporation policy, Controlled Disbursement Ac-
count checks present problems under the policies of both agencies

(Findings 26-28).

As stated by the Regional Counsel of the Federal Deposit Insur-

ance Corporation, "controlled disbursement accounts might be used
to increase the amount of 'float' time of checks for bank customers.
If thia were the case, the FDIC might find that an unsafe and un-

sound banking practice existed" (Finding 26).

In addition, on January 11, 1979, the Federal Reserve Board
issued a press release discouraging the use of remote disbursement

checking accounts. The Vice-President of the Federal Reserve Bank
of Kansas City did not know whether Omaha National Bank's Con-
trolled Disbursement Account program violates that policy state-

ment, and, therefore, the validity of Omaha National Bank's Con-
trolled Disbursement Account program is at least questionable,
under the Board's January 11, 1979, policy statement. (Finding 27),

Furthermore, Omaha National Bank's Controlled Disbursement
Account program seems clearly contrary to the Federal Reserve
Board's February 23, 1984, policy statement, which disapproves of

delayed disbursement practices that increase "the collection time
for checks by at least a day" (Finding 28). Omaha National Bank's
Controlled Disbursement Account checks increase the collection

time for respondent's checks by a full day in most instances (Find-

ing 23), Hence Omaha National Bank's Controlled Disbursement
Account program seems to be a delayed disbursement practice con-

demned by the B'oard's February 23, 1984, policy statement, But, as

stated above,' it is totally irrelevant in this case whether or not

Omaha National Blank's Controlled Disbursement Account program
violates the Federal Reserve Board policy. It is enough that re-

spoftdent'S.use of the bank's Controlled Disbursement Account pro-
gram violates the Packers and Stockyards Act.
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against "[a]ny delay" in subsection (c).
28

Irrespective of when a

check is mailed, it is an unfair practice to write a check on a

remote bank that delays the check collection process.

Respondent argues that even if a delay in the check collection

process occurred because of its use of Omaha National Bank's Con-

trolled Disbursement Account program, the delay is not necessarily

harmful to livestock sellers since some banks give immediate credit

as good as cash to a livestock seller on the day that he deposits his

check in the bank. (The record shows that not all banks follow that

practice (Finding 24)), Respondent also argues that because of its

financial strength, an additional day of float could not impair its

ability to ultimately pay all livestock sellers. However, both of

those arguments should be addressed to the congressional forum

rather than to this forum.

The legislative history shows that Congress was told that a delay
in the check collection process is damaging to livestock sellers since

(i) it increases the risk of loss to livestock sellers in the event of a

packer's bankruptcy, and (ii) it denies livestock sellers of interest

on their money for the period of the delay. If respondent can show

28 In addition, a packer has no absolute "right" under the Act to mail or deliver

a check on the day after purchase, The legislative history of the prompt payment

legislation shows that Congress intended for the seller, rather than the buyer, to

have the option aa to how payment should be made. When Representative High-
tower introduced his amendment permitting payment by mail, he explained (122

Cong. Rec. 12,873 (May 6, 1976)):

Mr. Chairman, first of all, we think it is important to emphasize that the

seller, the producer, if he is there and wants cash payment, is entitled to cash

payment.
Senator Huddleston, in opposing an amendment offered by Senator Helms (subse-

quently defeated) that would have given packers the absolute right to mail a check

(122 Cong, Rec, 18,832 (June 17, 1976)), stated (122 Cong. Rec. 18,883 (1976)):

However, I must oppose the amendment that is being offered by the Sena-

tor from North Carolina, basically on two points.

First, it takes from the seller the option for making the decision as to how

payment is made and transfers it to the buyer.

Second, the amendment offered by the Senator from North Carolina loosens

up the process in favor of the purchaser.
Senator Clark similarly opposed Senator Helms' amendment "because it would

take the option of how payment should be made away from the seller and give it to

the packer" (122 Cong. Rec. 18,834 (June 17, 1976)). Other Representatives and Sena-

tors similarly recognized that payment options under the prompt pay legislation

rest with the seller (122 Cong, Rec. 12,829, 12,873-75, 18,832, 18,834, 18,836 (1976)).

The record here shows that many of respondent's checks are "picked up either by
the feeder, the seller, or by the driver" (Tr. 828-24; see Finding 4), which indicates

that many of the -sellers have chosen to have the check issued on the day of respond-

ent's purchase,
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that those legislative facts are not applicable to respondent, i

should seek a congressional exemption from the prompt payrnen
legislation. Wisely or unwisely (wisely, I believe), Congress prohibil
ed [ajny delay" in "the collection of funds" (7 U.S.C, 228b(c)'
and the legislative history shows that Congress intended by tha
language to prohibit any delay in the check collection process. Ac
cordmgly, the issue is not open for consideration in an adjudicator'
proceeding as to whether a 1-ay delay in the check collection proc
ess should be permitted where it is beneficial to packers, and thi
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nesses to ho called by complainant and n summary of their expect*

cd testimony.
For the foregoing reasons, the following order should be isimcd.

(Respondent's Motion to Dismiss, in which respondent contends it

was denied n fair hearing, is dismissed as frivolous.)

OllDKK

Respondent Beef Nebraska, Inc., its officers, directors, agents and

employees, directly or through any corporate or other device, in

connection with its operations as a packer, shall cease and desist

from tailing checks in payment for livestock drawn on remote, dis-

tant, or country accounts, including any account with State Bank
of Pttlmor, Palmer, Nebraska, for the purpose of or resulting in ox-

tending the time nocesnury to collect such checks, or of causing or

extending delay in the collection of fundu thereon,

Tills order shall become effective on the 80th day after service

hereof on respondent.

In re: EARL KKUNR d/b/a MOUNT AUBURN LIVESTOCK. P&S Docket

No. GGOfl. Decided December 2, 1085.

Dcntcr MnrUct ttKcncy Fnllurc to [my or to jmy when due- Iiumfflcicnt fund*

Allan Kalian, for

Wesley II. //f/MwiflB, Wnltirloo, Iowa, for mipomleml.

Decision by William </, Weber, Administrative Law

DKUHION

This proceeding was instituted under the Packers and StockynrdH
Act (7 U.S.C. 181 el sec/.) by a Complaint filed by the Administrator,

Packers and Stockyards Administration, United Slates Department
of Agriculture, alleging that the financial condition of the respond-
ent does not meet the requirements of the Act and that the re-

spondent wilfully violated the Act. This decision is entered pursu-
ant to the consent decision provisions of tho Rulea of Practice ap-

plicable to this proceeding (7 CFB 1.188).

The respondent admits tho jurisdictlonal allegations in para-

graph I of the Complaint and specifically admits that tho Secretary
hoe jurisdiction in this matter, neither admits nor denies the ro

maining allegations, waives oral hearing and further proceduro,
and consents and agrees, for the purpose of settling this proceeding
and for such purpose only, to the entry of this decision.
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The complainant agrees to the entry of this decision,

FINDINGS OF PACT

1. Earl Keune, hereinafter referred to as the respondent, is an
individual doing business as Mount Auburn Livestock. Respond-
ent's mailing address is First Street, Box 130, Mt. Auburn, Iowa
52313.

2. Respondent is, and at all times material herein was:

a) Engaged in the business of a dealer buying and selling live-
stock in commerce; and

b) Registered with the Secretary of Agriculture as a dealer to

buy and sell livestock in commerce for his own account, and aa a
market agency to buy livestock in commerce on a commission
basis.

CONCLUSIONS

The respondent having admitted the jurisdictional facts and the
parties having agreed to the entry of this decision, such decision
will be entered.

ORDER

Respondent, his agents and employees, directly or through any
corporate or other device, in connection with his business aa a
dealer or market agency under the Act, shall cease and desist from;

1. Failing to pay or failing to pay, when due, for livestock; and
2. Issuing checks in purported payment for livestock without

having and maintaining sufficient funds on deposit in the bank ac-
count upon which they are drawn to pay such checks when pre-
sented,

Respondent is suspended as a registrant under the Act for a
period of three (3) months and thereafter until he demonstratea
that he is no longer insolvent. When respondent demonstrates that
he is no longer insolvent, a supplemental order will be issued in
this proceeding terminating the suspension, after the expiration of
the three (3) month period.

The provisions of this Order shall become effective on the sixth
day after service of this Order on the respondent.

Copies of this decision shall be served upon the parties
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In re; LOUIE W. ARGOE. P&S Docket No. 6618. Decided December

10, 1985.

Dealer Bonding requirements Prohibited from operating subject to the Act-

Civil penalty Consent.

Stephen Luparello, for complainant.

WilliamS. Robinson, Columbia, South Carolina, for respondent.

Decision by John A, Campbell, Administrative Law Judge.

DECISION

This proceeding was instituted under the Packers and Stockyards

Act (7 U.S.C. 181 et seq.) by a complaint filed by the Administra-

tor, Packers and Stockyards Administration, United States Depart-

ment of Agriculture, alleging that the respondent wilfully violated

the Act and the regulations issued thereunder (9 CFR 201.1 et

seg.). This decision is entered pursuant to the consent decision pro-

visions of the Rules of Practice applicable to this proceeding (7 CFR

1.138).

The respondent admits the jurisdictional allegations in para-

graph I of the complaint and specifically admits that the Secretary

has jurisdiction in this matter, neither admits nor denies the re-

maining allegations, waives oral hearing and further procedure,

and consents and agrees, for the purpose of settling this proceeding

and for such purpose only, to the entry of this decision.

The complainant agrees to the entry of this decision.

FINDINGS OP FACT

1. Louie W. Argoe, hereinafter referred to as the respondent, is

an individual whose business mailing address is Route 2, Orange-

burg, South Carolina 29115.

2, The respondent is, and at all times material herein was:

(a) President of Argoe Livestock, Inc., a corporation organized

and existing under the laws of the State of South Carolina. Said

corporation, under the direction, management and control of re-

spondent Argoe, is registered with the Secretary of Agriculture as

a dealer to buy and sell livestock in commerce for its own account,

although such registration has been inactive since 1983.

(b) Engaged in the business of a dealer buying and selling live-

stock in commerce for his own account; and

(c) Not registered with the Secretary of Agriculture in an indi-
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CONCLUSIONS

The respondent having admitted the jurisdictional facts and the
parties having agreed to the entry of this decision, such decision
will be entered,

ORDER

Respondent, directly or through any corporate or other device,
shall cease and desist from engaging in business in any capacity for
which bonding is required under the Packers and Stockyards Act
without filing and maintaining a reasonable bond or its equivalent'
as required by the Act and the regulations.

Respondent is prohibited from operating subject to the Act until
such time as he complies fully with the registration and bonding
requirements under the Act and the regulations. When respondent
demonstrates that he is in full compliance with such registrationand bonding requirements, a supplemental order will be issued in
this proceeding terminating this prohibition.
In accordance with section 312(b) of the Act (7 U.3.C. 218(b)) re-

in the of Three liun -

oo
of this decision shall be served upon the parties.

t>e a T\ i

' " "" * 1 a* 11'i *uiu -UAWltKJNUK J.
. F&S Docket No. 6552. Decided December 11, 1985.

Packer-insufficient funds checks-Failure to pay when due-Civil penalty-Con-

Peter Train, for complainant.

Respondent, pro se.

D*** by Victor W. Palmer, Administmtive Law Judge .

DECISION AS TO DIRECT MARKET MEAT CO., INC., AND GERALD
NAEHRING

AoM7 lflT^ted "nder the Packers and Stockyards

tiie A^li / ! V C mplaint and Notice
and

, alleging that the re-

decision is entered pursu-
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to the consent decision provisions of the Rules of Practice ap-
plicable to this proceeding (7 CFR 1,138).

t Respondent Direct Meat Co., Inc. and Gerald Naehring admit the
JUrisdictional allegations in paragraphs I and II of the Complaint

Notice of Hearing as they pertain to them and specifically
that the Secretary has jurisdiction in this matter, neither

nor deny the remaining allegations, waive oral hearing and
further procedure, and consent and agree, for the purpose of set-

tling this proceeding and for such purpose only, to the entry of this

Decision,

The complainant agrees to the entry of this decision.

FINDINGS OF FACT

1. Direct Meat Co., Inc., hereinafter referred to as the corporate

respondent, is a corporation whose business mailing address ia

11664 Gondola Drive, Cincinnati, Ohio 45241.

2. The corporate respondent at all times material herein was:

Ca) Engaged in the business of buying livestock in commerce
For the purposes of slaughter, and of manufacturing or preparing
meat and meat food products for sale or shipment in commerce;
and

(b) A packer within the meaning of and subject to the provi-
sions of the Act.

3. Gerald Naehring and Lawrence J, Amann, hereinafter re-

ferred to as the individual respondents, are individuals whose busi-

ness mailing address is 11664 Gondola Drive, Cincinnati, Ohio
45241.

4. The individual respondents at all times material herein were;

(a) President and Vice-President, respectively, of the corporate
respondent; and

(b) Jointly responsible for the direction, control and manage-
ment of the corporate respondent.

6. The individual respondents at all times material herein were

packers within the meaning of and subject to the provisions of the

Act.

CONCLUSIONS

Respondents Direct Meat Co., Inc. and Gerald Naehring having
admitted the jurisdictional facts and the parties having agreed to

the entry of this decision, such decision will be entered,

ORDER

Respondent Direct Meat Co., Inc., its officers, directors, agents,

and employees, and respondent Gerald Naehring, individually or as
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an officer, agent or employee of respondent Direct Meat Co,, Inc.,

directly or through any corporate or other device, in connection

with their operations subject to the Packers and Stockyards Act,

shall cease and desist from:

1. Issuing checks in payment for livestock without having and

maintaining sufficient funds on deposit and available in the bank

account upon which they are drawn to pay the checks when pre-

sented;

2. Failing to pay, when due, for livestock purchases; and

3. Failing to pay for livestock purchases.

In accordance with section 203(b) of the Act (7 U.S.C. 193(b)), re-

spondent Gerald Naehring is assessed a civil penalty in the amount
of $600.00 (Five Hundred Dollars),

The provisions of this order shall become effective on the first

day after service of this decision on the respondents.

Copies of this decision shall be served on the parties.

In re: JAMES McGuiNNESS. P&S Docket No. 6664, Decided Octoboi*

31, 1985.

Dealer Market agency Insufficient funds checks Failure to pay when due--

Suspension Default.

Robert Swartzendruber, for complainant,

Respondent, pro se.

Decision by Dorothea A. Baker, Administrative Law Judge,

DECISION AND ORDER UPON ADMISSION OF FACTS BY REASON OF
DEFAULT

This is a disciplinary proceeding under the Packers and Stock-

yards Act, 1921, as amended and supplemented (7 U.S.C. 181 ct

*eq.), herein referred to as the Act, instituted by a complaint filed,

>y the Administrator, Packers and Stockyards Administration,
Jnited States Department of Agriculture, charging that the re-

pondent wilfully violated the Act and the regulations promulgated
hereunder (9 CFR 201.1 et seq.\

Copies of the complaint and Rules of Practice (7 CFR 1.180 et

eg.) governing proceedings under the Act were served on the re-

pondent by certified mail. Respondent was informed in a letter of

ervice that an answer should be filed pursuant to the Rules of

'ractice and that failure to answer would constitute an admission
f all the material allegations contained in the complaint.
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Respondent has failed to file an answer within the time pre-

scribed in the Rules of Practice, and the material facts alleged in

the complaint, which are admitted by respondents failure to file

an answer, are adopted and set forth herein as findings of fact

This decision and order, therefore, is issued pursuant to section

1.139 of the Rules of Practice (7 CFR 1.139).

FINDINGS OF FACT

1 (a) James McGuinness, doing business as McGuinness Live-

stock, hereinafter referred to as the respondent, is an individual

whose business mailing address is 363 Emerald Hills Drive, P. O.

Box 31175, Billings, Montana 59107,

(b) The respondent is, and at all times material herein was;

(a) Engaged in the business of a dealer buying and selling

livestock in commerce for his own account; and

(b) Registered with the Secretary of Agriculture as a dealer

to buy and sell livestock in commerce for his own account and as a

market agency to buy livestock in commerce on a commission

basis. , ,

2. (a) Respondent, in connection with his operations as a dealer,

on or about the dates and in the transactions set forth in para-

graph II of the complaint, purchased livestock and in Purported

payment therefor issued checks which were returned unpaid by the

bank upon which they were drawn because respondent did not

have and maintain sufficient funds on deposit and available in the

account upon which the checks were drawn to pay such checks

when presented.

(b) Respondent, on or about the dates and in the transactions

specified above, purchased livestock and failed to pay, when due,

for such livestock purchases.

(c) As of April 22, 1985, there remained unpaid by the respond-

ent a total of $139,613.13 for such livestock purchases.

CONCLUSIONS

By reason of the facts found in Finding of Fact 2 herein, respond-

ent has wilfully violated sections 312(a) and 409 of the Act (7 U.S.C.

213(a), 228b).

ORDER

Respondent James McGuinness, his agents and employees, direct-

ly or through any corporate or other device, in connection with his

activities subject tp the Packers and Stockyards Act, shall cease

and desist from:



PACKERS AND STOCKYARDS ACT
Volume 44 Number 7

1. Issuing checks in payment for livestock purchased without
having and maintaining sufficient funds on deposit and available
in the account upon which such checks are drawn to pay such
checks when presented;

2. Failing to pay, when due, for livestock purchases; and
3. Failing to pay for livestock purchases.

Respondent is suspended as a registrant under the Act for a
period of six (6) months.

This decision and order shall become final without further pro-
ceedings 35 days after service hereof unless appealed to the Judi-
cial Officer within 30 days after service (7 CFR 1.139, 1.145)

Copies hereof shall be served on the parties.
[This decision and order became final December 11, 1085 Ed 1

Peter Train, for complainant.
Jama M, Kefauver, Washington, D,C, for respondent.

Decision by Dorothea A. Baker, Administrative Law Judge.

DECISION
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agrees, for the purpose of settling this proceeding and for such pur-

pose only, to the entry of this decision.

The complainant agrees to the entry of this decision.

FINDINGS OP FACT

1. Dubuque Packing Company, hereinafter referred to as re-

spondent Dubuque, is and at all times material herein was, a cor-

poration with its principal place of business located at 7171 Mercy

Road, Suite 200, Omaha, NE 68106.

2. Respondent Dubuque is, and at all times material herein was:

(a) Engaged in the business of buying livestock in commerce

for the purposes of slaughter, and of manufacturing or preparing
meats or meat food products for sale or shipment in commerce; and

(b) A packer within the meaning of and subject to the provi-

sions of the Act.

CONCLUSIONS

Eespondent Dubuque Packing Company having admitted the ju-

risdktional facts and the parties having agreed to the entry of this

decision, such decision will be entered.

ORDER

Respondent Dubuque Packing Company, its officers, directors,

agents and employees, successors, and assigns, directly or through

any corporate or other device, shall 'Cease and desist from;

1. Directly or indirectly giving or offering to give, or permit-

ting or causing to be given, money or any gift or gratuity of more

than nominal value to, or for the benefit of, any officer, director,

agent, employee or representative of any customer or prospective

customer as an inducement to influence such persons to purchase
or promote the purchase of meat, meat food products, poultry or

poultry products from respondent;
2. Soliciting or accepting favored treatment for respondent

from any customer or prospective customer of respondent, through

the offer or gift of money or any gift or gratuity of more than

'nominal value to, or for the benefit of, any officer, director, agent

or employee of a customer, or prospective customer, in connection

with the purchase by said persons of meat, meat food products,

poultry or poultry products from respondent; and

3. Making or offering to make brokerage commission or mer-

chandising service payments in connection with the sale and distri-

bution of meat, meat food products, poultry or poultry products to

any person unless such person actually rendered brokerage or mer-

chandising services.
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Respondent Dubuque Packing Company shall prepare and main*
tain records and memoranda sufficient to fully disclose tho deUiils
of all brokerage commission or merchandising service payments
and of all gifts and gratuities of more than nominal value given by
respondent Dubuque in connection with the sale and distribution of
meat, meat food products, poultry or poultry products including,*
but not limited to, the following:

1. Name and business affiliation of the recipient;
2. The date the payment, gift or gratuity was given;
3. The name of respondent's employee involved in the transac-

tion;

4. A description of the gift or gratuity, including its value; and
5. The purpose of the payment, gift or gratuity.

In accordance with section 203(b) of the Act (7 U.S.C. 193(b)J, ro-

spondent Dubuque is hereby assessed a civil penalty of Thirty
Thousand Dollars ($30,000.00).

The provisions of this order shall become effective on the first

day after service of this decision on respondent Dubuque Packing
Company.

Copies hereof shall be served on the parties.

i re; SIMPSON LIVESTOCK COMPANY. P&S Docket No. 6648. Decided
October 30, 1985.
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informed in a letter of service that an answer should be filed pur-

suant to the Rules of Practice and that failure to answer would

constitute an admission of all the material allegations contained in

the complaint.

Respondent has failed to file an answer within the time pre-

scribed in the Rules of Practice, and the material facts alleged in

the complaint, which are admitted by respondent's failure to file

an answer, are adopted and set forth herein as findings of fact.

This decision and order, therefore, is issued pursuant to section

1.139 of the Rules of Practice (7 CFR 1.139).

FINDINGS OF FACT

1. (a) Simpson Livestock Company, hereinafter referred to as the

respondent, is a corportion whose business mailing address is Route

8, Box 58, McMinnville, Tennessee 37110.

(b) Respondent is, and at all times material herein was:

(1) Engaged in the business of a dealer buying and selling

livestock in commerce for its own account, and a market agency

buying livestock in commerce on a commission basis; and

(2) Registered with the Secretary of Agriculture as a dealer

to buy and sell livestock in commerce for its own account and as a

market agency to buy livestock in commerce on a commission

basis.

2. The Packers and Stockyards Administration notified respond-

ent on April 16, 1985, that the surety bond it maintained to secure

the performance of its livestock obligations under the Act was inad-

equate, and that it was necessary to file a bond or bond equivalent

in the amount of $16,000.00 before continuing in dealer or market

agency operations. Respondent was further notified that if it con-

tinued its livestock operations without adequate bond coverage or

its equivalent, it would be in violation of section 312(a) of the Act

and sections 201.29 and 201.30 of the regulations. Notwithstanding

such notice, respondent has continued to engage in the business of

a dealer buying and selling livestock in commerce for its own ac-

count, and a market agency buying livestock in commerce on a

commission basis, without maintaining adequate bond coverage or

its equivalent, as required by the Act and the regulations.

CONCLUSIONS

By reason of the facts found in Finding of Fact 2 herein, respond-

ent has wilfully violated section 312(a) of the Act (7 U.S.C. 218(a)),

and sections 201.29 and 201.30 of the regulations (9 CFR 201.29,

201,30).
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ORDER

Respondent Simpson Livestock Company, its officers, directors,
agents and employees, successors and assigns, directly or through
any corporate or other device, shall cease and desist from engaging
in business in any capacity for which bonding is required under the
Packers and Stockyards Act, as amended and supplemented, and
the regulations, without filing and maintaining a reasonable bond
or its equivalent, as required by the Act and the regulations.
Inasmuch as respondent has demonstrated that it is in full com-

pliance with the bonding requirements under the Act and the regu-
lations, no suspension of registration is warranted.

In accordance with section 312(b) of the Act (7 U.S.C. 2130))), re-

spondent is assessed a civil penalty in the amount of Five Hundred
Dollars ($500.00).

The provisions of this order shall become effective on the sixth
day after this decision becomes final. Copies hereof shall be served
upon the parties.

Pursuant to the Rules of Practice, this decision becomes final
without further proceedings 35 days after service unless appealed
within 30 days after service as provided in sections 1.142 and 1.145
of the Rules of Practice (7 CFR 1.130 et seq.).

[This decision and order became final December 13, 1986. KdJ

-n re: ALLEN H. RIFFEE. P&S Docket No. 6477. Decided December
16, 1985.

Dealer-Market agency-Failure to properly weigh livestock-Paying on the
of false or incorrect weights-Failure to maintain and operate scales to insure (ic

curacy Bonding requirements-Suspension Consent.

Stephen Luparello, for complainant.
Arthur G. Canhiotte, Woodstock, Virginia, for respondent,

Decision by John A, Campbell, Administrative Law Judge.

DECISION

This proceeding was instituted under the Packers and Stockyards
Act (7 U.S.C. 181 et seq.) by a complaint filed by the Administra-
tor, Packers and Stockyards Administration, United States Depart-
ment of Agriculture, alleging that the respondent wilfully violated
the

Act^and
the regulations issued thereunder (9 CFR 201,1 et

seq.). This decision is entered pursuant to the consent decision pro-
visions of the Rules of Practice applicable to this proceeding (7 CFR
9 1.138).
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The respondent admits the jurisdictional allegations in para-

graph I of the complaint and specifically admits that the Secretary

has jurisdiction in this matter, neither admits nor denies the re-

maining allegations, waives oral hearing and further procedure,

and consents and agrees, for the purpose of settling this proceeding

and for such purpose only, to the entry of this decision.

The complainant agrees to the entry of this decision.

FINDINGS OF FACT

1. Allen H. Riffee, hereinafter referred to as the respondent, is

an individual whose business mailing address is Route 2, Box 470,

Edinburg, Virginia 22824,

2. The respondent is, and at all times material herein was:

(a) Engaged in the business of a dealer buying and selling live-

stock in commerce for his own account; and

(b) Engaged in the business of a market agency buying live-

stock in commerce on a commission basis.

3. Respondent is registered with the Secretary of Agriculture as

a dealer to purchase livestock for slaughter only.

CONCLUSIONS

The respondent having admitted the jurisdictional facts and the

parties having agreed to the entry of this decision, such decision

will be entered,

ORDER

Respondent Allen H. Riffee, his agents or employees, directly or

indirectly through any corporate or other device, in connection

with his operations subject to the Packers and Stockyards Act,

shall cease and desist from:

1. Weighing livestock at other than their true and correct

weights;
2. Issuing scale tickets, purchase invoices or other accounts of

sale on the basis of false or incorrect weights;

3. Paying the sellers or consignors of livestock on the basis of

false or incorrect weights;

4. Failing to maintain and operate livestock scales owned or

controlled by the respondent is such a manner as to insure accu-

rate weights and otherwise in strict conformity with the require-

ments of section 201.73-1 of the regulations; and

6. Engaging in business in any capacity for which bonding is

required under the Act and the regulations without having and

maintaining a reasonable bond or its equivalent, as required by the

Act and the regulations.
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Respondent is suspended as a registrant under the Act for f

period of four (4) months and thereafter until such time as ho is ir
full compliance with the bonding requirements under the Act ami
the regulations. When respondent demonstrates that he is in full

compliance with such bonding requirements, a supplemental order
will be issued in this proceeding terminating the suspension after
the expiration of the four (4) month period.
The provisions of this order shall become effective on the sixth

day after service of this order on the respondent.
Copies of this decision shall be served upon the parties.

In re; SEMO LIVESTOCK EXCHANGE, INC., and CHARLES W. POEPPKI,-
MEYER, JR. P&S Docket No. 6517. Decided December IS), 1990.

Market agency-Dealer-Bonding rcquircments-Suspension-Consent.

Stephen Luparelh, for complainant.
Donald Rhodes, Bloomfield, Missouri, for respondent.

Decision by Dorothea A. Baker, Administrative Law Judge,

DECISION

This proceeding was instituted under the Packers and Stockyards
Act (7 U.S.C. 181 et seq,) by a complaint filed by the Administra-
tor, Packers and Stockyards Administration, United States Depart-ment of Agriculture, alleging that the respondents wilfully violated
the Act and the regulations issued thereunder (9 CFR 201.1 et

seq.}. This decision is entered pursuant to the consent decision pro-
visions of the Rules of Practice applicable to this proceeding (7 CFR
9 1,138).

The respondents admit the jurisdictional allegations in para-
graph I of the complaint and specifically admit that the Secretory
has jurisdiction in this matter, neither admit nor deny the remain-
ing allegations, waive oral hearing and further procedure, and con-
sent and agree, for the purpose of settling this proceeding and for
such purpose only, to the entry of this decision.
The complainant agrees to the entry of this decision.

FINDINGS OF FACT

1. SEMO Livestock Exchange, Inc., hereinafter referred to as cor-
porate respondent, is a corporation whose principal place of busi-
ness is located in Charleston, Missouri. Corporate respondent's
business mailing address is Route 2, Bloomfield, Missouri 63825.

2, Corporate respondent is, and at all times material herein waa;
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(a) Engaged in the business of buying livestock on a commis-

sion basis in commerce; and

(b) Registered with the Secretary of Agriculture as a market

Agency to buy livestock on a commission basis in .commerce, and as

* dealer to buy and sell livestock in commerce for its own. account.

3. William W. Poeppelmeyer, Jr., hereinafter referred to as the

'^dividual respondent, is an individual whose mailing address is

ftoute 2, Bloomfield, Missouri 63825.

4. Individual respondent, at all times material herein, was:

(a) President of the corporate respondent; and

(b) Responsible for the direction, management and control of

all business activities of the corporate respondent.

CONCLUSIONS

The respondents having admitted the jurisdictional facts and the

Parties haveing agreed to the entry of this decision, such decision

will be entered.

ORDER

SEMO Livestock Exchange, Inc., its officers, directors, agents,

successors and assigns, and Charles W. Poeppelmeyer, Jr., directly

or through any corporate or other device, in connection with their

business subject to the Act, shall cease and desist from engaging in

business in any capacity for which bonding is required under the

Act and the regulations without filling and maintaining a reasona-

ble bond or its equivalent, as required by the Act and the regula-

tions.

The respondents are suspended as registrants under the Act for a

period of sixty (60) days and thereafter until such time as they

comply fully with the bonding requirements under the Act and the

regulations. When respondents demonstrate that they are in full

compliance with such bonding requirements, a supplemental order

will be issued in this proceeding terminating this suspension after

the expiration of the sixty (60) day period.

The provisions of this order shall become effective on the sixth

day after service of this order on the respondents.

Copies of this decision shall be served upon the parties.
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In re: HARING MEATS AND DELICATESSEN, INC., and J FRANK
HARING. P&S Docket No. 6583. Decided December 19, 1986.

Packer-Failure to pay when due-Failure to pay full purchase price-Civil penal,
ty *tjonsen t,

Dennis Becker, for complainant.
Richard R. Fowler, Mansfield, Ohio, for respondent.

Decision by Dorothea A. Baker, Administrative Law Judge,

DECISION

This proceeding was instituted under the Packers and StockyardsAct (7 U.S.C. 181 et seq.) by a Complaint and Notice of Hearing
Filed by the Administrator, Packers and Stockyards Administra-
tion, United States Department of Agriculture, alleging that the re-

spondents violated the Act. This decision is entered pursuant to the
consent decision provisions of the Rules of Practice applicable to
this proceeding (7 CFR 1.138).

The respondents admit the jurisdictional allegations in para-
gragh I of the Complaint and Notice of Hearing and specificallyadmit that the Secretary has jurisdiction in this matter, neither
admit nor deny the remaining allegations, waive oral hearing and
further procedure, and consent and agree, for the purpose of set>

ttmg this proceeding and for such purpose only, to the entry of thia
decision.

*

The complainant agrees to the entry of this decision.

FINDINGS OF FACT

1. Haring Meats and Delicatessen, Inc., hereinafter referred to as
the corporate respondent, is an Ohio corporation whose business
mailing address is 1095 National Parkway, Mansfield, Ohio 44906.
^.Corporate respondent is, and at all times material herein was:

(a) Engaged in the business of buying meats and meat food
products m commerce for purposes of manufacturing or preparing
meats or meat food products for sale or shipment in commerce; and

(W A packer within the meaning of and subject to the provi-
sions of the Act.

3. J. Frank Haring, hereinafter referred to as the individual re-
spondent, is an individual whose mailing address is 2089 Alta West
Koad, Mansfield, Ohio 44903.

4. The individual respondent is, and at all times material herein
was:

(a) President and a director of the corporate respondent;
(b) Owner, in combination with his wife, of 100% of the out-

standing stock of the corporate respondent; and



LEE BREITSPRECHER 2851

Volume 44 Number 7

(c) Responsible for the direction, management and control of

the corporate respondent.

CONCLUSIONS

The respondents having admitted the jurisdictional facts and the

parties having agreed to the entry of this decision, such decision

will be entered.

ORDER

Respondent Haring Meats and Delicatessen, Inc., its successors,

officers, directors, agents and employees, directly or through any

corporate or other device, and respondent J. Frank Haring, his

agents or employees, directly or through any corporate or other

device, shall cease and desist from:

1. Failing to pay, when due, the full purchase price for meat

and meat food products; and

2. Failing to pay the full purchase price for meat and meat

food products.

In accordance with section 203(b) of the Act (7 U.S.C. 193(b)), re-

spondent J. Frank Haring is assessed a civil penalty of Two Thou-

sand Five Hundred Dollars ($2,500.00).

The provisions of this order shall become effective on the first

day after service of this order on the respondents.

Copies of this decision shall be served upon the parties.

In re; LEE BREITSPRECHER. P&S Docket No. 6621. Decided December

19, 1986.

Dealer Failure to pay when due Insufficient full funds checksSuspension

Consent.

Barbara Harris, for complainant.

Respondent, pro se.

Decision by John A. Campbell, Administrative Law Judge,

DECISION

This proceeding was instituted under the Packers and Stockyards

Act (7 U.S.C. 181 et seg.) by a complaint filed by the Administra-

tor, Packers and Stockyards Administration, United States Depart-

ment of Agriculture, alleging that the respondent wilfully violated

the Act. This decision is entered pursuant to the consent decision

provisions of the Rules of Practice applicable to this proceeding (7

CFR 1.138).
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The complainant agrees to the entry of this decision,

FINDINGS OF FACT
1. Lee Bmltam-nw .,.,. ^ B^ hereinafter

2. Respondent, at all times material herein, was:
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In re: VAN DER GEEST & SONS, INC. P&S Docket No. 6484. Decided

December 26, 1985.

Dealer Drugs administered to livestock Civil penalty Consent.

Jory Hochberg, for complainant,

Keith Kostecker, Wausau, Wisconsin, for respondent.

Decision by Victor W. Palmer, Administrative Law Judge.

DECISION

This proceeding was instituted under the Packers and Stockyards

Act (7 U.S.C. 181 et seg.) by a Complaint filed by the Administra-

tor, Packers and Stockyards Administration, United States Depart-

ment of Agriculture, alleging that the respondent wilfully violated

the Act and the regulations issued thereunder (9 CFR 201.1 et

seq,). This decision is entered pursuant to the consent decision pro-

visions of the Rules of Practice applicable to this proceeding (7 CFR

1.138).

The respondent admits the jurisdictional allegations in para-

graph I of the Complaint and specifically admits that the Secretary

has jurisdiction in this matter, neither admits nor denies the re-

maining allegations, waives oral hearing and further procedure,

and consents and agrees, for the purpose of settling this proceeding

and for such purpose only, to the entry of this decision.

The complainant agrees to the entry of this decision.

FINDINGS OF PACT

1. (a) Van Der Geest & Sons, Inc., hereinafter referred to as re-

spondent Van Der Geest, is a corporation with its principal place of

business located in Merrill, Wisconsin. Its business mailing address

la N2224 Bus. 51 North, Merrill, Wisconsin 54452.

(b) Respondent Van Der Geest is, and at all times material

herein was;

(1) Engaged in the business of buying and selling livestock in

commerce for its own account;

(2) Registered with the Secretary of Agriculture as a dealer

to buy and sell livestock in commerce and as a market agency to

buy livestock in commerce.

CONCLUSIONS

Respondent Van Der Geest having admitted the jurisdictional

facts and the parties having agreed to the entry of this decision,

euch decision will be entered,
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ORDER

Respondent Van Der Geest, its officers, directors, agents, and em-
ployees, directly or through any corporate or other device, shall
cease and desist from:

1. Preparing and issuing certifications or any other documents
which state that drugs have not been administered to livestock, or
that if drugs have been administered to livestock that the with-
drawal period specified on the drug label has been followed, when
such certifications or statements are incorrect; and

2. Representing in any manner to purchasers of livestock, to
1 - or employees of such purchasers, or to any other persons in-m the margin., or slaughter of livestock, that drugs haveno bn H > a gs avenot been administered to livestock, or that if drugs have been ad-

ministered to livestock the withdrawal periods fpecified on the

correct
* f n Wed

' whan SUch ^presentations are in-
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ORDER
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tion, United States Department of Agriculture, alleging that the re-

spondent willfully violated the Act. This decision is entered pursu-
ant to the consent decision provisions of the Rules of Practice ap-

plicable to this proceeding (7 CFR 1.138).

This respondent admits the jurisdictional allegations in para-

graph I of the Complaint and specifically admits that the Secretary

lias jurisdiction in this matter, neither admits nor denies the re-

maining allegations, waives oral hearing and further procedure,

and consents and agrees, for the purpose of settling this proceeding
and for such purpose only, to the entry of this decision.

The complainant agrees to the entry of this decision.

FINDINGS OF FACT

1. Lloyd N, Dagley, hereinafter "the respondent," is an individ-

ual doing business as Lloyd's Meat Distributing with a business

mailing address at 7900 West Lawn, Westchester, California 90045.

2. The respondent at all times material herein was;

(a) Engaged in the business of buying and selling livestock in

commerce for his own account; and

(b) A dealer within the meaning of and subject to the Act.

CONCLUSIONS

The respondent having admitted the jurisdictional facts and the

parties having agreed to the entry of this decision, such decision

will be entered.

ORDER

Respondent, individually or through any corporate or other

device, in connection with any business or operation subject to the

Act, shall cease and desist from:

1. Failing to pay, when due, the full purchase price of live-

stock;

2. Failing to pay the full purchase price of livestock; and

3. Issuing checks in payment for livestock without having suffi-

cient funds on deposit and available to pay such checks when pre-
sented.

Respondent is prohibited from engaging in business as a market

agency or dealer subject to the Act for a period of five years, pro-

vided, however, that a supplemental Order will be issued terminat-

ing this prohibition at any time after the expiration, of 30 days
upon demonstration by respondent that all unpaid livestock sellers

have been paid in full, and provided further that this prohibition

may be modified upon application to the Packers and Stockyards
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Administration to permit respondent's salaried employment
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(b) A dealer within the meaning of and subject to the provi-

sions of the Act; and

(c) Not registered with the Secretary of Agriculture,

CONCLUSIONS

The respondent having admitted the jurisdictional facts and the

parties having agreed to the entry of this decision, such decision

will be entered.

ORDER

Respondent Watson, his agents, employees and assigns, directly

or indirectly through any corporate or other device, shall cease and

desist from;

1. Engaging in business in any capacity for which bonding is

required under the Packers and Stockyards Act, as amended and

supplemented, and the regulations, without filing and maintaining

an adequate bond or its equivalent, as required by the Act and the

regulations; and
2> Failing to pay, when due, for livestock purchases.

Respondent is prohibited from operating subject to the Act for a

period of 30 days and thereafter until he complies with the bonding

requirements under the Act and the regulations. When he demon-

strates his compliance with the bonding requirements, a supple-

mental order will be issued removing the prohibition after the expi-

ration of the 30 day period.

The provisions of this order shall become effective on the sixth

day after service of this decision on the respondent.

Copies of this decision shall be served on the parties.
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Peter Train, for complainant.

Respondent, pro se.

Decision by William J. Weber, Administrative Law Judge
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4, Respondent Dave Mulso Cattle Company was engaged in the

business of a dealer buying and selling livestock in commerce for

its own account, and a market agency buying livestock in com-

merce on a commission basis.

5, Respondent Mulso was, at all times material herein:

(a) Owner, in combination with his wife, of all the corporate

stock of respondent Dave Mulso Cattle Company; and

(b) Responsible for the direction, management and control of

respondent Dave Mulso Cattle Company.
6, On May 17, 1982, respondent Mulso incorporated his business

under the trade name of Sirloin, Inc., with his wife Susan K. Mulso

as incorporator and sole owner of the corporate stock.

7, Sirloin, Inc., hereinafter referred to as respondent Sirloin, is a

corporation whose mailing address is 1328 Orchard Drive, P.O. Box

542, Brookinga, South Dakota 57006.

8, Respondent Sirloin was, at all times material herein:

(a) Engaged in the business of buying and selling livestock in

commerce as the agent of respondent Elkton;

(b) A dealer within the meaning of that term as defined in the

Act, and subject to the provisions of the Act; and

(c) Directed, managed and controlled by respondent Mulso.

CONCLUSIONS

Respondents David Mulso, Dave Mulso Cattle Company, and Sir-

loin, Inc., having admitted the jurisdictional facts and the parties

having agreed to the entry of this decision, such decision will be

entered.

ORDER

Respondents David Mulso, Dave Mulso Cattle Company, and Sir-

loin, Inc., their agents and employees, directly or through any cor-

porate or other device, shall cease and desist from:

1. Misrepresenting to their principals, or to other purchasers of

livestock from respondents, the original purchase weights or the

original purchase prices for such livestock;

2. Preparing and issuing, or causing to be prepared and issued,

in connection with the purchase or sale of livestock, accounts of

purchase, invoices, billings, or any other document showing false,

inaccurate or misleading weight or price entries for such livestock;

3. Collecting payment from the purchasers of livestock on the

basis of false, inaccurate, or misleading weight or price entries on
accounts of purchase, invoices or billings;
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4. Filling orders for their principals with livestock previously
purchased for their own account without disclosing that they
owned the livestock;

5. Inserting or failing to insert in accounts of purchase, in-
voices, billings or any other document prepared in connection with
the purchase or sale of livestock, any entry, statement or infer-
maion by reason of which insertion or omission a false or mislead-
ing record is made, in whole or in part, of such livestock purchase
or sale transaction;

t

6. Issuing checks in payment for the purchase of livestock
without having and maintaining sufficient funds on deposit and
available in the bank account upon which the checks are drawn to
pay the checks when presented;

7. Failing to pay, when due, the full purchase price of live-
stock; and

8. Failing to pay for livestock.

Respondent David Mulso, individually, or through any corporateor other device including Dave Mulso Cattle Company and Sirloin,

Lll8U8P d M a ^trant der ^e Act for a period of
three (S) years.

"

The> provisions of this order shall become effective on the sixth
day after service of this order on the respondents.

MISCELLANEOUS ORDERS

Order issued by Edward H. McGrail, Administrative Law Judge.
ORDER DISMISSING COMPLAINT



MISCELLANEOUS 2861

Volume 44 Number 7

In re: SAM SIMMONS. P&S Docket No. 5548. Order issued December

3, 1985.

Order issued by John A. Campbell, Administrative Law Judge.

SUPPLEMENTAL ORDER

On March 16, 1978, an order was issued in the above-captioned

matter which, inter alia, suspended respondent as a registrant

under the Act for seven (7) days and thereafter until he demon-

strates that he is no longer insolvent.

Although respondent has not demonstrated that he is no longer

insolvent, another registrant under the Act has agreed to be legally

responsible for all respondent's purchases and has provided the

necessary bond to secure those purchases. Accordingly,

IT IS HEREBY ORDERED that the suspension provision of the

order issued March 16, 1978, is amended to permit the respondent

to operate as a dealer so long as he is cleared by a non-suspended

registrant who has obtained the appropriate reasonable bond or its

equivalent. Respondent Simmons shall clearly and explicitly

inform all persons from whom he purchases livestock that his pur-

chases are being cleared and that he is not legally responsible for

the payment of his purchases, as well as providing them with the

name and address of the person who is clearing his purchases. The

order shall remain in full force and effect in all other respects.

In re: GERALD F. UPTON, d/b/a DEGRAFF LIVESTOCK SALES. P&S
Docket No. 6196. Order issued December 4, 1985.

The Judicial Officer ruled on reconsideraion that cease and desist orders will be

Issued In P&S cases. The Eighth Circuit's opinion in Farrow, setting aside a 46-day

suspension order as to two buyers who agreed not to compete, is erroneous and will

not be followed in future cases, A violation is willful if a person intentionally does

an act irrespective of evil motive or reliance on erroneous advice, or acts with care-

less disregard of statutory requirements.

Order issued by Donald A. Campbell, Judicial Officer.

RULING ON RECONSIDERATION

On October 2, 1985, the Judicial Officer filed the Decision and

Order in this proceeding in which a cease and desist order was not

issued for the following reason (slip op. at 34):

Although a cease and desist order has routinely been

issued in cases -of this nature, I believe that it should be

pmitted in this case and in future cases where it is now
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The Administration has three options available to it

when a respondent has violated a cease and desist order. It

can proceed with a second administrative proceeding; it

can seek to enforce the order through the district court; or

it can proceed both administratively to assess administra-

tive sanctions, including suspensions and civil penalties
where warranted, as well as through the courts to obtain

injunctive relief. The Administration has exercised all

three options in the past where appropriate circumstances
warranted it, and will continue this policy in the future.

The availability of all three options constitutes an effective

and important tool of the Administration in dealing with
violations of the Act.

Although the imposition of a substantial civil penalty
and suspension of registration as authorized by the Act
constitutes an effective penalty for violations of the act,

the order requiring respondent to cease and desist from

particular practices also has deterrent effect. Long after

payment of the civil penalty has been completed, the cease

and desist order remains applicable. Both the respondent,
as well as others within the industry similarly situated,

are aware of the continuing effect of such orders in con-

straining respondent's behavior, Even in cases such as

this, where respondent's actions were found to be careless

rather than deliberate or wilful, the cease and desist order

acts as a continuing deterrent to remind respondent of the

need to continually assure himself that he is operating ac-

curate equipment and using appropriate procedures to

insure correct and accurate weights of livestock weighed
on his scales.

Finally, an order requiring the respondent to cease and
desist from certain practices provides specific notice to the

respondent, as well as the industry, as to the kind of prac-

tices and business conduct the Administration considers to

be in violation of the Act. Cease and desist orders are fre-

quently broader than the specific violation which further

provides the industry with the knowledge of what the Ad-
ministration considers to be unfair, deceptive or unjustly

discriminatory,
i

For the reasons set forth by complainant, cease and desist orders

will be issued in all Packers and Stockyards Act cases where viola-

tions 'are found.



2864 PACKERS AND STOCKYARDS ACT
Volume 44 Number 7

explanation is appropriate as to why I decided

ton n /n ,
ive dedsion aa *>tion in In re Farrow, 42 Agric. Dec__ (Sent 21 IW

a^sae '

curred it
agreed that a violation

P ices at

OP a 7

lea,
held

pound cows

"
With

,
th
l
J that 6limi-on of one of the

/
6 Wdder tended to reduce ^Petition

' " S reSUlt' reated a likeHhood *at the
PUrchaS6d would be redu^d

"
WlP

C Urt Set aside the 4May suspension
de8ist rder

' beca"se th

f r deemin the

en e ^ ^ed
on my 36 year,' experi-

purchrra of pounT"^^ the tw Pri ^'
flagrant^tSX''.^.^^ * ^"^

T*
of anv Pvnf f ! .

& 45"day 8USPension order,

rl^Tny ^ the reC rd in that resPect>

and S^T^^ the 6Xpert pinion of a
and Stockyards Administration who teati-

*

iditor representing the
'e a recommendation to
md the entire record in



MISCELLANEOUS 2865

Volume 44 Number 7

this case, of what sanction that the Packers and Stock-

yards would impose for the violations herein alleged?

A. Yes. The Packers and Stockyards Administration is

requesting a cease and desist order from the alleged viola-

tion, and suspension of respondents as registrants under
the Packers and Stockyards Act for the period of 45 days.

Q. Is this for both respondents, each to receive 45 days?

A. Yes,

Q. Could you tell the Court on what basis you have
reached this recommendationor that the Packers and

Stockyards Administration, who you are representing,
reached this sanction?

A. This sanction was reached under policy that we con-

sider the activity alleged here to be unfair and deceptive,
and that we feel that the more buyers there are in the

market, the more chance the farmer has of getting more

money, because this is why it goes to an auction market
rather than selling direct off the farm.

We consider this to be a serious violation, and in light
of that, we have asked for a suspension that we feel is uni-

form.

Other cases which have gone to hearings we look at

the deterrent factor both as to the respondents and to

others in the industry.

Q. And you've heard the testimony today about how cru-

cial such a sanction would be to the respondents, and

you've taken all this into consideration?

A, Yes. Our primary responsibility is to protect the pro-
ducer.

Q. And you have taken into account that although a

pound cow or a cull cow may be the bottom of the market,
it is still an important part of that market?

A. Right. In the economic times which the farmers find

themselves in now, I believe every dollar is important to

them.

Although I inferred that Farrow and Knoke knew that their

agreement not to compete was unlawful, I would have imposed the
same 45-day suspension order irrespective of whether they knew
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Nor can we subscribe to the proposition that the test of

willfulness in this context is to be evil purpose or criminal

intent, for this is not a criminal statute.

For the foregoing reasons, the court's decision in Farrow will no
be followed by this Department in any future case, even in ftitur

cases that will be reviewed by the Eighth Circuit. (Hopefullj
Farrow is a judicial aberration that will not be repeated.)

In view of the considerations advanced by complainant in its Pe
tition for Reconsideration, the following order should be issued.

ORDER

Respondent Gerald F. Upton, his agents and employees, individ

ually or through any corporate or other device, shall cease an<

desist from:

1. Weighing livestock at other than their true and correc

weights;
2. Issuing scale tickets, purchase invoices or other accounts o

sale on the basis of false and incorrect weights;
3. Paying the sellers or consignors of livestock on the basis o

falae and incorrect weights;
4. Collecting from purchasers of livestock on the basis of falsi

and incorrect weights; and
6. Failing to maintain and operate livestock scales owned o:

controlled by respondent in such manner as to insure accurati

weights and otherwise in strict conformity with the requirement!
of 201.73-1 of the regulations (9 CFR 201.73-1).

Respondent is hereby assessed a civil penalty of $2,500 payabli
not later than the 90th day after service of this order, to be paid b;
certified check made payable to the Treasurer of the United States

and mailed to the Assistant General Counsel, Packers and Stock

yards Division, Office of the General Counsel, Room 2446-South
United States Department of Agriculture, Washington, D.C. 20250

Respondent is suspended as a registrant under the Act for i

period of 28 days.

The suspension provisions of this order shall become effective or

the 30th day after service of this order; Provided, however, that i

by any means or device whatever, all or part of the suspensior
period is not effectively served during the period indicated above
the effective date of the beginning of the suspension period (or th<

part thereof not effectively served) shall be (i) the date fixed by t

court of competent jurisdiction which issues an appropriate ordei

with respect thereto, or (ii) upon a showing made by complainam
that it is not likely that auch an order will be entered by any court
the date subsequently fixed by the Judicial Officer (jurisdiction if
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hereby retained by the Judicial Officer indefinitely for this limited

purpose).

In re: JOHN BUCHHOLZ. P&S Docket No. 6593. Order issued Decem-
ber 4, 1985.

Order issued by Dorothea A, Baker, Administrative Law Judge.

DENIAL OF MOTION TO SET ASIDE CONSENT DECISION

Having considered the pleadings herein, including the Respond-
ent's Motion to Set Aside Consent Decision, filed November III,

1985, and the Complainant's Answer to Respondent's said Motion,
filed November 29, 1985, the following Order is issued:

ORDER

The Respondent's Motion to Set Aside Consent Decision, filed Nit-

vember 13, 1985, is hereby DENIED.
Copies hereof shall be served upon the parties.

In re: STATE WIDE MARKETING, INC., a corporation, RUSTY THOMP-
SON, an individual, and LARRY Ross, an individual. P&S Docket
No. 6588. Order issued December 6, 1985.

Order issued by William J. Weber, Administrative Law Judge,

ORDER AMENDING DECISION

Complainant moves to amend the consent order, filed November
8, 1985, to exclude State Wide Marketing, Inc. from the purview of

the consent order.

IT SHOULD BE AND HEREBY IS ORDERED that the com-
plainant's motion to amend is granted.
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In re- SARGENT LIVESTOCK COMMISSION COMPANY, INC., LORRY MAR-

SHALL and PAUL SWANSON. P&S Docket No. 6624. Order issued

December 17, 1985.

Order issued by John A. Campbell, Administrative Law Judge.

ORDER DENYING MOTION FOR A STAY

On November 29, 1985, Respondent, Lorry Marshall, filed a "Sug-

geation In Bankruptcy", indicating that the instant proceeding is

stayed by virtue of said respondent's filing of a voluntary bank-

ruptcy petition. Complainant filed an opposition on December 12,

1985, to respondent's suggestion.

For the reasons stated in complainant's opposition, respondent

Marshall's motion for a stay is denied.

Upon the filing of a motion for oral hearing, the matter will be

assigned to a Judge to schedule an oral hearing.
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REPARATION DECISIONS

URBAN "SHORTY" ARNZEN v. ELKTON LIVESTOCK, INC,, WKS VAN
DYKE, DAVID MULSO, TRI-STATE LIVESTOCK AUCTION Co , INC,
and PAUL DEN HERDER. P&S Docket No. 6129. JACK BnW
BROOKS, BOYD BURTCH, SANDRA BfiUTCH, DARRYL CRASCO, iKKffE

CRASCO, LUKE CRASCO, MAYNARD CRASCO, OUVILLK JAKE
CRASCO, WILL CRASCO, DARCIE DONEY, WANDA DONKY, BKH
FEWER, JAMES FEWER, LOREN FLADLAND, LARRY HAYNKS, RAY-
MONO HEGLESON, CARL J. IVERSON, BRUCE KIRKALDIR, KAYMQN&
J. KNUDSON, MEISSNER RANCHES, INC., SHAWN MEISSNKH, THI
MILLER COLONY, INC., STEVEN PANKRATZ, JACK QUISNO, and
GERALD J. "BUD" WALSH, Admr., Estate of Gerald M. Walsh i>

SAME. P&S Docket No. 6167. NOEL CAPDEVILLE u, SAMB. P&S
Docket No. 6165. CORN EXCHANGE BANK v. TBI-STATB LIVE-
STOCK AUCTION Co., INC,, ELKTON LIVESTOCK, INC., SIHIXJIN
INC., DAVID MULSO, and PAUL DEN HERDER. P&S Docket No'
6166. Decided November 1, 1985.

Dealer-Insufficient funds checks-Dishonored checks-Order for the payment of

money,
The complaints of all parties except Corn Exchange Bank alleged sales of llvnrtotk
to fclkton Livestock, Inc., and receipt of checks dishonored for Insufficient fur*
Complainant Corn Exchange Bank alleged honor of check drawn on tlio Klkton
count in reliance on items deposited therein but dishonored by Tri-Stnlc, TrJ-SUto
entered bankruptcy October 14, 1983. The four proceedings were conaolidnlecl for

oral hearing. Respondents Elkton Livestock, Inc., Wes Van Dyke, and Dnvkt Mubt
were ordered to pay various sums to the complainants, except complaint of Corn fc
change Bank was dismissed. All complaints were dismissed as to ragpoiulont lil
Den Herder.

John J. Casey, Presiding Officer,

David R. Craryand Craig A. Raby, Sioux City, Iowa.
Dean J, Miller, Caldwell, Idaho.

Michael F, Pieplow, Sioux Fails, South Dakota.
Steven W. Sanford, Sioux Palls, South Dakota.
Respondent David Mulso, pro se.

Respondent Sirloin, Inc., pro se.

Decision by Donald A. Campbell, Judicial Officer,

DECISION AND ORDER AS TO ALL RESPONDENTS EXCEPT TIU-STATK
LIVESTOCK AUCTION CO., INC.

PRELIMINARY STATEMENT

These are four reparation proceedings under the Packers and
Stockyardsi Act, 1921, as amended, begun by written complaint re-
ceived as follows: from Mr. Arnzen February 1, 1983; from Mr.
Broadbroofe and others February 22; from Mr. Capdeville March 7;
and from the Corn Exchange Bank March 7. The first three com-
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plaints alleged in substance sales of livestock to respondent Elkton

Livestock, Inc. (Elkton) and receipt of checks which were dishon-

ored for insufficient funds because certain items deposited in the

Elkton checking account were dishonored by respondent Tri-State

Livestock Auction Co., Inc. (Tri-State). The complaint of the Corn

Exchange Bank alleged in substance honor of checks drawn on the

Eklton account in reliance on items deposited in that account

which were dishonored by Tri-State, and that a certain transfer by

Tri-State of proceeds of sale of livestock was unlawful. The

amounts claimed were: for Mr. Arnzen $141,290.82; for Mr. Broad-

brooka and others a total of $324,231.66; for Mr. Capdeville

$28,427.25; and for the Corn Exchange Bank $1,190,281.80.

Copies of the complaint of Mr. Arnzen were served on all re-

spondents named therein on February 25, 1983. Copies of the com-

plaint of Mr. Broadbrooks and others, and the complaint of Mr.

Capdeville, were served on Elkton and Wes Van Dyke on March 26,

and on the other respondents named therein on March 28. Copies

of the complaint of the Corn Exchange Bank were served on Elkton

on March 26, and on the other respondents named therein on

March 28.

AH respondents except Sirloin, Inc. duly filed answers. No issue

waa raised about timeliness of any answer. Each answer was served

on each party other than the one filing it. A reply was filed on

behalf of complainant Arnzen on April 18, 1983, which was served

on all respondents in that case. Requests were duly filed for oral

hearings.

Tri-State entered bankruptcy on October 14, 1983, No. 83-04290,

Northern District of Iowa. Accordingly under 11 U.S.C. 362(a)(l) all

these proceedings were stayed as to that respondent. All went for-

ward as to the other respondents.

Motions to dismiss for lack of jurisdiction were filed on behalf of

respondent Paul Den Herder, which were denied on October 31,

1983 by order of the presiding officer, properly we find, for reasons

stated therein.

The four proceedings were consolidated for oral hearing, the

rights of the litigants turning on the pleadings and proof in their

respective proceedings notwithstanding the joint trial. AmJur 2d

Actions 166 et $eq. The hearing was held on November 16, 1983

in Great Falls, Montana and December 6, 7, and 8, 1983 in Sioux

Falls, South Dakota, before John J. Casey of the Office of the Gen-

eral Counsel of this Department. Complainants Arnzen, Broad-

brooks and others, and Capdeville were represented by Dean J.

Miller, Esq<, Caldwell, Idaho and Craig A. Raby, Esq.,,
Sioux City,

t , _ A ^
Change Bank was represented by Mi-
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G. Respondent David Mulso, Brookings, South Dakota, at all

times material herein engaged in business as a dealer buying and

selling livestock in commerce either for his own account or as the

agent of Elkton.

7. Respondent Paul Den Herder, Sioux Center, Iowa, at all times

material herein engaged in business as a dealer buying and selling

livestock in commerce as the agent of Tri-State of which he was

President. That was a corporation engaged in business as a market

agency selling livestock in commerce on commission and as a

dealer buying and selling livestock in commerce for its own ac-

count, operating on a posted stockyard of the same name at Sioux

Center, Iowa, and so registered with the Secretary under the Act.

8. All dates referred-to herein are in the year 1982 unless other-

wise stated,

9. At all times material herein Elkton had current liabilities in

excess of its current assets and, when livestock was obtained in its

name and by issuing checks on the Elkton checking account, such

checks were drawn on insufficient funds in the hope of covering

them later. Respondent Wes Van Dyke knew these facts well. Re-

spondent David Mulso knew well that, when he obtained livestock

in Elkton's name and by issuing checks on the Elkton checking ac-

count, the checks were drawn on insufficient funds in the hope of

covering them later.

10. On December 1 complainant The Miller Colony, Inc., a Mon-

tana corporation, sold and delivered livestock to Elkton for an

agreed price of which $8,309.50 was not paid.

11. On December 3 complainant Urban "Shorty" Arnzen sold

and delivered livestock in response to an order placed by phone by

respondent David Mulso in the name of Elkton. In purported pay-

ment for them Mr. Mulso issued and mailed him three checks on

the Elkton checking account dated December 6 for the agreed

prices, respectively, of $48,633.12, $48,090.66, and $44,567.14, for a

total of $141,290.82. All three checks were drawn on insufficient

funds and were later returned unpaid.

12. On dates as follows, complainants sold and delivered livestock

to respondent David Mulso acting in the name of Elkton, or to

others under direction of Mr. Mulso acting in the name of Elkton,

for agreed prices, and received checks in purported payment, issued

on the Elkton checking account by Mr. Mulso, which checks were

drawn on insufficient funds and were later returned unpaid, as fol-

lows;
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December 6;

Jack Broadbrooks

Larry Haynes
Raymond J. Knudson

December 7;

Noel Capdeville
Ben Fewer

(person for whom he acted)
James Fewer

December 8:

Darryl Crasco

LukeCrasco

(person for whom he acted)
Irene Crasco

Orville Jake Crasco

(persons for whom he acted)
Maynard Crasco

Darcie Doney
Wanda Doney

Will Crasco

Raymond Helgeson

(persons for whom he acted)
Boyd Burtch

Sandra Burtch

$8,702.90

9.612.05

$2,822.88

8,682.01

4,468.75

$28,427,25

10,322.06

7,176,66

$11,476,55

31,683.90

18,214.95

5,630.06

49,644.30

268.30

1.928.85

1>994,60

5,104.20

40,157.00

Meissner Ranchps T ru. i ,ranches, Inc. (through Joe Meissner) $18,668.36

183.88

(person for whom Joe Meissner acted)onawn Melasner
Jack QuUno
Gerald J. "Bud" WaJRh A^^ c, . ,

M. Walsh
h ' Admr" Brtate

December $;

I^oren Pladland
.Steven Pajikratz

50,717.10

606.43

24,921.80

23,602.00

3,138.00

3,974.00

itWn 9 of the
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CONCLUSIONS

Elkton was founded early in the year when Mr. Wes Van Dyke

approached Mr. David Mulso, then both of them met with Mr,

Dennis Hart, Agricultural Representative of the Corn Exchange

Bank, then all three of them met with Mr. Harold E. "Jack" He-

gerfeld, President of that bank. Messrs. Van Dyke, Mulso and Hart

knew each other and had done business with each other before; Mr,

Hegerfeld had known Mr. Van Dyke "all his life." A checking ac-

count in that bank was opened in the name of Elkton (the Elkton

checking account) on which Mr. Mulso and Mr. Van Dyke were au-

thorized to draw checks.

With Mr. Hegerfeld's approval the Corn Exchange Bank granted

a line of credit (the Elkton line of credit) which in August was

raised to $170,000, at 17% interest. Mr. Hart described it (Sioux

Falls Tr. 488) as a "revolving line of credit to Elkton Livestock

which would be an in and out situation. If one day they needed

funds on it, we would advance it. If deposits were in the following

day, it would be applied back to the note." However this testimony

and Complainants' Exhibit 5, the statement issued by that bank on

the Elkton checking account for the period from December 9, 1982

to January 7, 1983 (the Elkton checking account statement), are

not consistent as explained below,

We note as a fact, without any comment intended, that the

Etkton checking account statement does not reflect return without

payment of any item. That is, for an item deposited in that account

but later returned to the Corn Exchange Bank by another, the

statement contains a credit entry for the deposit but no offsetting

debit entry for the return. Also, for an item drawn on that account

but returned by that bank, the statement contains no entry.

Throughout the continuation in business of Elkton, less than a

year, Mr. Van Dyke was its President, sole Director, and sole

shareholder, and Messrs. Van Dyke and Hart were its only officers.

Mr. Van Dyke went on one expedition to Montana in which he ne-

gotiated some purchases of cattle in the name of Elkton, and at

that and other times he signed contracts and checks for a total of

20% of the cattje bought in the name of Elkton. Mr. Mulso had a

. checkbook on ihe Elkton checking account in the Corn Exchange

Bank which, he used to obtain cattle in the name of Elkton. His

connection with Elkton was at first direct and was later through

Sirloin, Inc. which was owned by his wife Mrs. Susan Mulso. He
would- report transactions to Mr. Hart, at that bank, who kept a

second .checkbook (called the "small checkbook") on the same

checking account .with which among other things he would act as
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paymaster for Mr. Mulso and make repayments to that bonk oa

the Elkton line of credit.

The business in which Elkton and Mr. Mulso actually engaged
was buying and selling cattle as a dealer, both on speculation and

as agent for others. As to whether Messrs. Van Dyke and Mulso

represented to Messrs. Hart and Hegerfeld that the enterprise
would be only an order buyer, buy only when it had orders frora

others so that its income would be commissions only and its risi

would be limited, and not a speculator, hoping to profit ftm
market price fluctuation and subjecting itself to the risk thereof
the testimony was conflicting.

The following are undisputed. Nothing was ever paid into Elkto
as capital. If there ever was a time when Elkton had current assei
in excess of current liabilities, it was not at any time mnteria
herein. Further, all checks issued on the Elkton checking nccoun
to obtain livestock at the times material herein were drawn on ir

sufficient funds in the hope of covering them later. ;

In early October an advance of $150,000 was requested, by Mi

Mulso in the name of Elkton from Mr. Paul Den Herder afl Pros
dent of Tri-State, on 562 steers consigned in the name of Elkton I

Tri-State and in the latter's yard waiting to be sold on commissioi
Mr. Mulso explained that he had a banker calling for money. Tf
advance was paid on Friday, October 8. Tri-State sold tho steers f<

net proceeds exceeding $150,000 the following week, and deduct*
the $150,000 when it remitted the net proceeds on Friday, Octob
15. Thereafter Tri-State paid a number of such advances ogairt
cattle consigned to it in the name of Elkton, and deducted t]

amount of each when it remitted the net proceeds tho follow!;
Friday. In each of these instances, Mr. Hart or Mr, Hogerfold
the Corn Exchange Bank in Elkton, South Dakota would phone t)

Mulso home in Brookings, South Dakota and tell Mrs. Mulso,:
Mr. Mulso if he was there, an amount to be deposited in the Elkt
checking account. Then Mr. Mulso would tell Mrs. Mulso that T
Stte was the place to go for money. (He sometimes told her otli

places but those are not involved in these proceedings.) Than M
Mulso would drive from Brookings, South Dakota to Tri-Stat
place of business in Sioux Center, Iowa to pick up a check, T)
was a round trip of more than 200 miles and had to be complet
Sf

8
S P

'IS'
fche Same day to get the advance check to Mr- Hart

Mr. Hegerfeld 'at the Qorn Exchange Bank before it closed, ]

WStefe ciottduoted a weekly auction on Friday, though it m
If^:

6^^^?^!^ 1^1
'

6
,

8 throush the week - Tri-State rJ

involving small amounts, isaue<)l
, after the auction, for the p
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was mailed to her.
wiui-nn nnd all were

notice th t they were
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handwritten signature, "Tri-State Livestock by David Mulso." Most
were executed by Mrs, Mulso, signing Mr. Mulao's name; a few
were executed by Mr, Mulso.

Mr. Den Herder, on examination by opposing counsel who called
him as an adverse witness, testifed (Sioux Falls Tr. 110 et seqj:

A. I initiated the conversation. I told David [Mulso], I

said, well, I think it is ridiculous for Susan [Mulso] to be

traveling this approximately 300 mile round trip back and
forth to Sioux Center [Iowa, the Tri-State place of busi-

ness] to pick up these advances, and we had used draft

books in many other instances prior to this, and I said why
don j

t I issue a draft book to you, and that way she doesn't

have to make the trip. You can call us and tell us you are

going to draw a draft on us, and when that thing hits my
bank I will, they will call me and I will approve it, and we
will just handle it that way. I said it is real simple, we can
handle it this way,

A. * * *
[T]his money was going only to Elkton Live-

stock as advances on the cattle that were on our premises.

Q. Apparently the distinction between whether this con-

templated book was a book of drafts or a book of checks is

something that has come up between some of you folks in
the past. What can you tell me about your understanding
of the nature of the instruments that came in that book?

A, Well, I instructed my bookkeeper to contact our bank,
and I said now make sure you have got the right ones, be-
cause with the computers and so on coming in, I did have
a draft book which was embarrassing to me, that was out
with a good client of mine, and it had the wrong coding on
the bottom and it got kicked back, like I had turned it

down, which I had no intent of doing. So I said make sure
he gets a new one so that it is proper, so that we aren't
embarrassed in that kind of a situation. I said you get a
draft book, and if Susan comes down, you give it to her or
mail it up, whichever, and I told him how it was going to

work, that they were to call us each time they drew a
draft, and that when the bank called, of course, I have
always approved the drafts when the bank calls, This was
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my impression of how it was to work. I did not see the

draft book quote checkbook, whatever we are calling it

now, I did not see it until after the fact, physically, myself,

Q. The preparation of the book was done at your direc-

tion, delivered to Mrs. Mulso at your direction?

A. Yes, I was responsible for it, but I did not see it. I

gave the instructions, but I did not see it myself.

Q. As each of these various instruments was issued and

then presented at Northwestern State Bank for payment,

did you in fact receive telephone calls from the bank in

connection with each of these, to your recollection?

A. Yea.

[Sioux Falls Tr. 135 et seq.] Q. We have had this confusion

over terms, whether it is a draft book or a checkbook, and

I understand that in the early going you and David Mulso

talked about it as a draft book?

A. This is correct.

Q. Although you have been advised by your banker and

your counsel that it is in fact a check book?

A. Yes.

Q You were aware from the start, that is the start of

this checkbook, that it would be Mrs. Mulso that would be

actually signing the checks, even though it would be David

Mulso's name that would appear?

A. Yes.

Q, So she was authorized signatory on that checkbook

for David?

A. Well, there was no signature card, but she wa's, it was

just a verbal understanding.

Mr. Mulao, on examination by opposing counsel who called him as

an adverse witness, testified (Sioux Falls Tr. 310):
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Q. And it was at that meeting [November 5] then that
Mr. Den Herder initiated the suggestion that he'd give you
or your wife a checkbook?

_

A. Yes. At that time we referred to it as a draft book but
it's been proven it is a checkbook, yes.

Thus the record shows that Mr. Den Herder agreed to issue, and
directed the issuance of, a draft book, not a check book, and at the
times material herein believed that the instruments were drafts,
not checks. It also shows that the arrangement with the North-
western State Bank, where Tri-State had its checking accounts,
was such that each instrument required specific authorization from
Mr. Den Herder before that bank would pay it, and there was no
arrangement with that bank for payment without further approvalwhen they reached it if covered by deposits. Who made the decision
to issue printed forms of the sort usual for checks, or the decision
that the instruments were to be signed "Tri-State Livestock by
Uavid Mulso, or whether it was someone in Tri-State or someone
in that bank, or whether this was done thoughtlessly or for a
reason, the record does not show.
About what Mr. Mulso told the Corn Exchange Bank personnel

about the arrangement with Tri-State in early November, Mr.
Mulso did not, and was not asked to, testify. Mr. Hegerfeld, on ox-
amination by counsel for that bank who called him as a witness,
testified (Sioux Falls Tr. 391-2):

Q. What was it that was told to you?

A. Well, that it was, he [Mr. Mulso] could write checks
tor immediate credit and go through the normal channels.

On cross-examination he testified (Sioux Falls Tr. 421):

Q. And what was it you learned about it [the book of
blank forms]?

A That Dave or Sue were supposed to write checks on it
and deposit them in the normal course of business. :

Ha*' examinat*n ^ counsel for the Corn Exchange Bank
called him as a witness, testified (Sioux Falls Tr. 494);

Q. As best you can recall, would you relate the substance
ol that conversation?

A. He told me that Mr. Den Herder was going to givehim a checkbook that they could issue checks on for depos-
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it at our bank to eliminate the travel of Susan to Sioux

Center every other day or whatever it may have been.

Q, Was there any discussion as to how it would be han-

dled * * *
?

A. That it would be a check that could be run through

normal banking channels.

Whatever the instruments appeared to be, whatever Mr. Mulso

told the Corn Exchange Bank personnel about them, and whatever

the latter personnel believed them to be, it is not necessary for our

purposes to decide whether they were drafts or checks. For that

reason, and since every one of them was executed by one of the

Mulsoa, we will call them "Mulso instruments." The first was

dated Tuesday, November 9, for $401,294.38.

As before, on each such occasion, Mr. Hart or Mr. Hegerfeld

would phone the Mulso home and tell Mrs. Mulso, or Mr. Mulao if

he was there, an amount to be deposited. Then such an instrument

would be filled out for that amount and delivered to Mr. Hart or

Mr. Hegerfeld the same day, usually by Mrs. Mulso, but occasional-

ly by Mr. Mulso. Mr. Hart, on examination by counsel for the Com

Exchange Bank who called him as a witness, testified (Sioux Falls

Tr, 492-3):

Q,
* * * When checks came in to the [Corn Exchange]

bank from Montana ranchers, why don't you just explain

to the hearing examiner how procedurally that is handled

or was handled for the Elkton account?

A. The checks would come in with our regular cash

letter of the morning, and after they were pre-sorted in

our machines, we'd take a look at them to see the volume

of the checks, to see if Elkton had enough on deposit to

cover them. If not, I would give Susan Mulso a call and

say you need so many dollars to cover the amount of

checks you have.

Q, The figure you would give her would be just a tally of

the checks that were presented for payment that day?

A. Yes.

However this testimony and the Elkton checking account state-

ment are not consistent as explained below.

As to whether someone at Tri-State would be phoned and told

about a Mulso instrument when it was executed the testimony was

conflicting.
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Some Mulso instruments were executed and deposited in the
Corn Exchange Bank at times when there were not sufficient ani-
mals consigned in the name of Elkton to Tri-State and in the lat-

ter's yard to cover them. However, such animals had arrived to

cover the instruments by the time they reached the Northwestern
State Bank and Mr. Den Herder directed that bank to pay them, in

all instances except, Mr. Den Herder, on examination by opposing
counsel who called him as a witness, testified (Sioux Falls Tr. 129),

"Possibly once, but then I knew they were on the road." See also
Mr. Mulso's testimony on cross examination (Sioux Falls Tr. 846-9*
On Wednesday, December 1, it was alleged on behalf of Tho

Miller Colony, Inc., that complainant sold and delivered livestock
to Elkton for an agreed price of which $8,309.60 was unpaid. Tho
allegations of that complainant's sale, delivery and failure of pay-
ment were not established by evidence, were denied by Mr. Mulw,
but were admitted by Elkton and Mr. Van Dyke, in their answers!
On Friday, December 3 complainant Arnzen sold and delivered

livestock for agreed prices and received checks as detailed above In

the Findings of Fact. Mr. Mulso in the name of Elkton ordered
those animals in a phone call with Mr. Arnzen at the latter

1

* place
of business in Cottonwood, Idaho. After the animals were shipped,
Mr. Arnzen told the weights and prices per cwt. to Mr, Mul in

another phone call, and Mr. Mulso then mailed him three checks
for the agreed prices, dated Monday, December 6. All three chocks
were drawn by Mr. Mulso on the Elkton checking account in the
Corn Exchange Bank, showed on their faces that they were issued
for livestock, and were returned unpaid.

In the week ending Friday, December 3, four Mulso instrument*

Ar"mfrer Date ofExecution Amoitni

18
Wednesday, November 24 $12,500,00

(not numbered) Saturday, November 27 ?79S,<i80,G?
14

Tuesday, November 30 $107,08120
16

Friday, December 3 $104,7Qtf.78

for a total of $1,017,734.55, reached the Northwestern State Bank
for payment. Tri-State had to borrow to honor them, which re-

quired Mr. Den Herder to go to that bank. This was done. Trl-State
paid the interest on that loan. This was the first time Tri-State had
to borrow to

,

honor such instruments. Mr. Den Herder told Mr.
Mulso in substance that he objected to such borrowing, and that
the consignments by Mr? Mulso in the name of Elkton were exceed*
ing what Tri-State could handle, .



URBAN ARNZEN v. ELKTON LIVESTOCK, INC. 2883

Volume 44 Number 7

On Monday, Tuesday, Wednesday and Thursday, December 6, 7,

8 and 9, the Montana ranchers other than The Miller Colony, Inc.

sold livestock for agreed prices and received checks aa detailed

above in the Findings of Fact. All those checks were issued by Mr.

Mulso, were drawn on the Elkton checking account in the Corn Ex-

change Bank, showed on their faces that they were issued for live-

stock, and were returned unpaid. For Messrs. Broadbrooks, Haynes,

Knudson, Capdeville, and Helgeson, and Boyd and Sandra Burtch

for whom Mr. Helgeson acted, the places where delivery was taken

in the name of Elkton are not shown in the record. For all the

others, the record shows clearly the places where delivery was

taken in the name of Elkton; all those places were in Montana.

The record contains some testimony of Mr. Mulso (Sioux Falls

TV. 324, 326) that enough cattle were shipped to
Tri-State^to

cover

the Mulso instruments. However, as to what was done with those

particular animals obtained from those Montana ranchers, that is,

whether all of them, some of them, or none of them, were shipped

to Tri-State, the record is inconclusive.

On Friday, December 10, complainant Arnzen sold and delivered

livestock to Elkton other than the ones mentioned above. However

on Mr. Arnzen's behalf Mike donaldson successfully reclaimed

those animals at Tri-State where they had been consigned in the

name of Elkton but before they had been sold, as further discussed

below.

In the week ending Friday, December 10, three Mulso instru-

ments:

Number Date ofExecution
Amount

16 Saturday, December 4 $600,000.00

!7 Monday, December 6 $464,809.21

IB Tuesday, December 7 $158,022.06

for a total of $1,222,831.27, reached the Northwestern State Bank

for payment. Tri-State had to borrow again to honor them, which

required Mr. Den Herder to go to that bank again. This was done.

This time Tri-State deducted the interest on the loan from the net

proceeds of sale of cattle consigned in the name of Elkton as. fur-

ther discussed below. ,

On Friday, December 10, Mulso instrument number 19, dated

Wednesday, December 8, for $159,463,82, reached the Northwestern

State Bank for payment. To honor it would have required Mr. Den

Herder to go to that bank to borrow for the third time m two

weeks. As previously stated, he had told Mr. Mulso that he objected
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n* J S e^ that the consi^nts ^ Mr. MulBo in thename of Elkton were exceeding what Tri-State could handto A.
President of and on behalf of Tri-State he directed that bank to fehonor that instrument number 19. It was marked "uncoltectrf
funds.' Who made the decision to mark that instrument
lected funds, or whether it was someone in Tri-Stato or Honu-onnin that bank or whether that marking was done thoughtlessly or
for a reason, the record doea not show,
Friday as previously stated was the day Tri-State routinely i-ted accounts and issued a check for the net proceeds of sale of live-

stock consigned m the name of Elkton and sold since tho pr8Vioiw
Friday. That week Tri-State sold 6,222 animals which hi Znconslgned to it in the name of Elkton. After deduction for Mrf

akenTn^T^ *' ^ "*
> *"* ***

dST ?i, T
them

?
arlier that week, as well as ouilomftiy

deductions, the net proceeds were $589,310 93
On Saturday December 11, Mr. Mulso went to TrMHaUrti p] f^of business in Sioux Center, Iowa and met with Mr. Don I-linfor

there. They reviewed the accounts of the sales by Tri-State the pre-vious week of cattle consigned in the name of Elkton and, *\m
JK in

K
8

f
Ument

i?r?
er 19 f r ^159 '463 -82 had been dlshoiuiml

Sm??fn w ?
Mr ' Muls C0uld not have g tten a check fw *h*W10.93 net proceeds to the Corn Exchange Bank boibra noon

which was its closing time that day, Mr. Den Herder phoned Mm,Mulso who was m Brookings, South Dakota and directed her lo
execute an instrument for $589,310.93 and take it to that bank, flhi

thSU u?.
SUCh instrument n^ber 20. It was deposited in

the Elkton checking account and was honored as usual.
Satu"dav> December 11, at the opening of buntnom^ Bank records showed the Elkton chocking uc-^ a
E08 -10 Credit balance and the Elkton line of

oJT* a $170 '000 '00 debi* balance. After credit otto,
0.93 deposit and debit of the "checks and othor dobiu"

* u
y
,
n the Elkton checkin ^wunt statement, the

i T ^ checkin& amount as having a $206,1172.07
balance. As above that statement does not contain any entry

* Um f Muls ^rtrument number 19 for
r he retUrn Without P^ment of any item.

J ?r
ent
^

es^at bank made a $169,900.00 entry irt ita

g ?
6 Elkt n checkinS account an^ ^ediUng the

* ^ Elkt lie of credit. This reduced the

Q
in the Decking account

H
? /72

,
7)rd reduced the fl^re for ^e debit ML-

line of credit.from $170,000.00 to $100.00. This In effect
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would have been a transfer by that bank of $169,900,00 from the

ELkton checking account to the Elkton line of credit if the credit

balance figure for the checking account had represented only col-

lected funds, which it did not.

Also on Saturday, December 11, in the meeting at Tri-State's

place of business, Mr. Mulao agreed that the volume of cattle con-

signments to Tri-State in the name of Elkton would be reduced to a

weekly limit of 2,500 head, which would amount to about

$1,000,000.00,

On Monday, December 13, when Mr. Den Herder arrived at Tri-

State's place of business, he found 10 loads of cattle consigned in

the name of Elkton. He was surprised since he had been telling Mr.

Mulso that such consignments were exceeding what Tri-State could

handle, he had met with Mr. Mulso at that place of business in

Sioux Center, Iowa on Saturday, and he figured that Mr. Mulso

would have been en route home on Friday. Mr. Mulso had had

others buying in the name of Elkton but Mr. Den Herder did not

learn this until later.

On that day, Monday, December 13, Mulso instrument number

21 was deposited in the Corn Exchange Bank. At the opening of

business that bank's records showed the Elkton checking account

as having a $36,472.07 credit balance and the Elkton line of credit

as having a $100.00 debit balance, which would leave $169,900.00

available on the line of credit. "Deposits and other credits" of a

total of $26,948.61 (not counting that instrument number 21), and

"checks and other debits" of a total of $935,939.65, are shown for

that day on the Elkton checking account statement. Adding

$36,472.07 and $26,948.61 then subtracting $936,939.65 would leave

a shortage of $872,518.97. No advance was paid under the line of

credit; if the full amount shown on the records as available,

$169,900,00, had been advanced, the shortage would have been

$702,618.97. The amount of that instrument number 21 was

$882,939.10. How that amount was figured the record does not

show.

Mr. Mulso testified that, when he went to Tri-State's place of

business on Saturday, December 11, he did so at the request of Mr.

Hart because of the dishonor the day before of Mulso instrument

number 19 for $159,463.82, to collect the money and straighten the

matter out, and that after that meeting he (Mr. Mulso) phoned Mr.

Hart and assured him that the matter had been straightened out.

Mr. Hart, on examination by counsel for the Corn Exchange Bank

who called him as a witness, testified (Sioux Falls Tr. 601 et seq.)i
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A. The first notice of dishonor I received on the $159,000
check was Monday, December 13.

Q. Why do you say that?

i

re
f
S n : sPedflcally ^call it is because Jack [He-

gerfeld] had been out of town on business the previous
week, and Jack was in the bank on Monday, and he was in
the bank at the time I received the call and the notice of
the return on the 159,000.

Q.
* * * Can you relate that call about the 159,000 in

terms of time to the deposit of the $882,000 Item?

8M nnVTif1
*"*

"? ,
before we got the deP sit of the

?fn /^ T

reCmV6d the oal1
' J called Susan Mulso and

H, 7
crf that call

> and that they also hod
worth of checks presented to us that day for pay-

contact Dave

SUb8eqUentl* " the check would

taltJtn M
Wa l ^S^ C ntacted ^ Dave He

areofInH f^?,
HerdSr and that the 159

'000 " takencare of and that they on-could issue the 882,000

t ab Ut midni^ht' Mr.
n cattle Ioaded and nt inrf

credibly in substen^Tf
011 t68tified (Sioux Palls Tr ' 8-H)

Jurt gotten intoTown S"*
heT Ca 'Hng from Montana, he hnd

day so he did not ve^'tnn T^ fir8t ph ne Oal1 he made *hBt

$882,9310 and Sou U
*

instram^ "ber 21 for

Herder then
n0t have disoussed * Mr. Don

reton omutlst^
Exch^f Ba^ t Jearned of tho

figured from the SSTT^l?"
' U for $169'463 ' 82 cannot be

ou8Iy stated it doe not J
g aCC Unt statem t since as previ-

any ofthoTe Lt uments Ae sho^ T^.' refleCt the return of

knew 'about the retori rf n,

*owi
j n

(*ve it is clear that Mr. Hnrt
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Northwestern State Bank so that he could read that marking, what

if anything he was .told about it by phone before he
physically^

re-

ceived it from that' bank, and whether he was told at that time

that the reason for its return was uncollected funds, or was told

that the reason was dishonor by Tri-State or Mr, Den Herder,

which would be inconsistent with a belief that that and the later

such instruments were checks, the record does not
show.^

The following is not shown clearly in the record but is apparent

from the above. Mr. Hart knew on Saturday, December 11, that

Mulso instrument number 19 for $159,463.82 was being returned

unpaid to the Corn Exchange Bank for whatever explanation he re-

ceived. Mr. Mulso phoned him after meeting with Mr. Den Herder

that day to tell him that the matter had been straightened out.

The instrument to which Mr. Mulso referred in that phone call was

not number 21 for $882,939.10, but number 20 for $589,310.93.

Whatever Mr. Mulso told Mr. Hart, for some reason the latter did

not understand that all the funds which would have been remitted

by number 19 were remitted by number 20, as well as other funds,

so that number 19 would not be honored notwithstanding that the

matter had been straightened out to Mr. Mulso's satisfaction.

Whatever the phone call Mr. Hart received about number 19 on

Monday the 13th, it was not the first he heard about that instru-

ment being returned unpaid, but it was when he first understood

that it would be unpaid notwithstanding Mr. Mulso's meeting with

Mr. Den Herder on Saturday the llth.

On Wednesday, December 15, Mulso instrument number 22 was

deposited in the Corn Exchange Bank. At the opening of business

that bank's records showed the Elkton checking account as having

a $1,391.38 credit balance and the Elkton line of credit as having a

$16,100.00 debit balance, which would leave $153,900.00 available

on the line of credit. "Checks and other debits" of a total of

$132,850.21 are shown for that day on the Elkton checking account

statement. Subtracting $132,850.21 from $1,391.38 would leave a

shortage of $181,458.83. No advance was paid under the line of

credit; the full amount shown on the records as available,

$153,900.00, exceeds the shortage. The amount of that instrument

number 22 was $147,878.96. How that amount was figured the

record does not show,

On that day, Wednesday, December 15, Mulso instrument

number 21 for $882,939.10 reached the Northwestern State Bank

for payment. Mr. Den Herder as President of and on behalf of Tri-

State directed that bank to dishonor that instrument. On examina-

tion by his own counsel, he testified (Sioux Falls Tr. 663 et seq.);
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A. * * * With the volume of cattle we were handlingwe were stepping on the toes of local competition. In other
words, we had expanded our operation so that we were
probably selling some cattle that my next door competitor
probably sold to his good friends and relatives. So there
was some internal strife amongst the order buyers and
sales people and dealers all around. Everybody was in a
little bit of a turmoil, because suddenly we were sellingmore cattle than, quote, our share. So there was back door
stuff coming in. My own banker had inquiry about the va-
lidity of what was going on. So naturally as you get these
things, you get the gut feeling maybe there's something in
the wood pile. But yet I had no justification for this. So I
continued on in what I thought was good faith. But when
the draft come in on Wednesday for 882,000, having known
that I was absolutely settled up on Saturday the llth
owing no money, I knew it was physically impossible!
knowing where Dave [Mulso] was, that he could have DOS-
sibly paid for $882,000 worth of cattle by Monday morning,
because he was in Eastern South Dakota and in Iowa on
Friday, Saturday and most of Sunday. He didn't get to
town, he testified he didn't get to town, in Montana until
midnight that night, and you cannot pay for cattle until
you have them weighed. So I knew it was physically im-
possible for $882,000 worth of cattle, even if it had been
wire transfers, to be paid for. It's at that point that my
light went on and I said, hey, I am not paying advances,
l m paying for something else, and that was not the intent.

Q. Then so you didn't pay the draft?

A. Right. I did not honor it.

Q. What happened the next day on Thursday?

*
A
A?"

hursday 1 was
.^tting calls. Already on Wednes-

day Mr. Donaldson was in town representing himself and
Mr. Arnzen, and he shed some additional light on the situ-
ation saying that he laid claim to the cattle for himself,Mike Donaldson, and for Mr, Arnzen, and I was receiving
innumerable calls from ranchers and bankers and lawyers,
maimyout of Montana, stating claim to the livestock that
was either on our premises or en route, It's at that time,andthe telephone records, will reflect, when I called Corn
tehange Bank>and talked to Mr, Hart, and as Mr. Hart
testified, did .talk to him, about whether or not Elktpn Live-
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stock or the Corn Exchange Bank would honor
Elktpn

Livestock's checks, and I spelled it out to him, I felt quite

clearly, that I would not sell livestock that I did not know

to whom it belonged.
* * *

I said I'm not going to make

the decision who owns the livestock. If it belongs to Elkton

Livestock, if it belongs to Corn Exchange Bank, or if it be-

longs to all the ranchers in Montana, I said I don't know

anymore, I said I'm not going to sell this livestock. He as-

sured me that all livestock that was loaded was paid for, I

said okay, so I'll proceed,

I think I sold cattle on Tuesday. I don't know if I sold

any cattle on Wednesday. I think I quit, I don't believe I

sold any cattle on Wednesday private treaty. I had an op-

portunity to and I turned it down. Naturally I didn't sell

any on Thursday, it was hot at our place of business.

I had, like I said, I had the ranchers calling, I had the

lawyers calling, and then on Friday they engulfed me, I

had a big audience Friday. I had truckers demanding pay-

ment from me for trucking, ranchers claiming ownership

to livestock, etc,

Mr. Hart, on examination by counsel for the Corn Exchange

Bank who called him as a witness, testified (Sioux Falls Tr. 498 et

seq.);

Q. Mr. Den Herder, I believe, has already testified that

he believes he called you in the afternoon of Wednesday,

December 15. Do you have that recollection?

A. It's possible.
* * * It would have been after banking

hours.

Q. Whether it was Wednesday or Thursday of that week,

tell us as best you recall the substance of Mr. Den Herd-

er's conversation with you.

A. Well, I can recall when he called he was wondering

about-he heard we weren't paying checks drawn on

Elktpn Livestock account for cattle purchased in Montana

or wherever. I assured him we had been paying checks on

everything that we had deposits. I don't recall just what

all went on in that conversation. At that time I don t

think we discussed anything about the 882,000 or the

147,000, 1 had a discussion later on with Paul [Den Herder]

that same day.
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Q. Two calls the same day?

A. Yes.

Q. Up to the time of his telephone call, had you dishon-
ored any checks on the Elkton account to Montana ranch-
ers?

A. Not up to the time of his first call.

Q. Tell ua the substance of his second call then,

A. I believe from the time I talked to him the first time
and the second time, that we had had some calla from
Montana or something, and I told the people then that we
didn't want any more cattle shipped out of there, that we
thought there might be a problem, that we were going to

shut everything down until we got it resolved.

Q. When you first heard of this situation, did you at-

tempt to get ahold of Mr. Mulso?

A. I did.

Q. For what purpose?

A. Tell him to discontinue business for the present and
come home so we could straighten out and see what was
happening.

About their first phone call on Wednesday, December 15, Mr,
Den Herder testified (Sioux Falls Tr. 124) that he called Mr. Hart
because of "rumors * * * that the Corn Exchange Bank won not

honoring checks out in Montana, and I wanted to know whose
cattle I was selling." The record shows that in that first call they
did not discuss either the $882,939.10 Mulso instrument number 21
which Mr. Den Herder directed to be dishonored that day, or th<

$147,878.96 instrument number 22 which was deposited in the Corn
Exchange Bank that day. On cross examination about the timea ol

day of those actions and that first phone call, thus whether elthei
of those actions had been taken before that first phone call, Mr
Den Herder (Sioux Falls Tr. 679-81) suggested checking telephone
records, which are not in the record. Then he was asked and h(
testified:

Q. So there was a period of hours after you dishonored
that $882,000 item, and during which time you had been in
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contact with the Corn Exchange Bank, that you failed to

notify them of that dishonor, true?

A. Yes.J-J., 4.UU.

Notwithstanding Mr. Hart's above-quoted testimony, the record

shmvcSy tha? some checks drawn on the Elkton checking ac-

muvt were dishonored by the Com Exchange Bank before Wednes-

Z DlcembTr 15. Mr. Arnsen teBtified (Sioux Falls Tr 64) that he

leaned ta Idaho of the return of his December 6 Elkton checks

"around the 12th, 15th, somewhere in that area." As quoted above

Mr Den Herder testified that Mr. Donaldson on Mr. Arnzena

behalf seeking to reclaim the above-mentioned cattle which Mr.

Ainfn had sold on Friday the 10th, appeared at Tri-State s place

of business on Wednesday the 15th. Mr. Darryl Crasco testified

ffireat Falls Tr. 11-12) that he learned in Montana of the dishonor

if Hs Elk on check on the Monday following December 8, whuih

would b Monday the 13th. Also Mr. Helgeson testified (Great FaHs

Tr 73) that he learned in Montana of the dishonor of his Elkton

checks on the next Wednesday after December 8, which would be

the 15th.

On Thursday, December 16, in a meeting at the Corn Exchange

Bank Messrs. Hart and Hegerfeld informed Messrs. Mulso and Van

Dyke that Elkton was out of business.

On Friday, December 17, Mulso instrument number 22 for

$147 878 96 reached the Northwestern State Bank for payment Mr

DenHeraeYas President of and on behalf of Tri-Sta e directed that

bank to dishonor that instrument. There were cattle consigned in

the name of Elkton to Tri-State and in the latter's yard but clearly

by then there were adverse claims to them.

On Friday, December 17, officers and counsel for the Corn
Jkx-

chang Bank' demanded the proceeds of sale of the cattle oona.gned

in the name of Elkton and in Tri-State's yard, in a meeting with

officers and cOUnsel for the Northwestern State Bank and counsel

for Tri-State. On behalf of Tri-State a commitment, was mad .that:,

. pending resolution of the question of who wa8 entitled to them, the

'

^oTS
1

De^beTS Tri-State sold the cattle consigned u,

th^ame ofElkton and not specificaUy identified as their own^
reclaimed bv unpaid sellers, and escrowed the net proceedB,

SSSd, to a special account in the Northwestern State Bank

All such cattle were from Montana according to their brands and

al Swing Tuesday, December 21, Mr. Den Herder as Presided

of andTon behalf of Tri-State transferred the proceeds to the Mon
tana Department of Livestock Brand Enforcement Division.
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Respondents Mulso, Van Dyke and Den Herder were each within
the definition of a "dealer" in section 301 of the Act, 7 U S C 201
at the hmes material herein, on the basis that, as the record clear'
y shows, each was regularly engaged in buying, selling, or both,
livestock m commerce either on his own account or as the agent of
the respective corporation with which he was affiliated. The defini-
tion refers to the business in which a person is engaged, not to the
capacity in which he is registered. Section 309 of the Act provides
for reparation orders against dealers for violation of certain provi-
sions including section 307 which contains a prohibition of unjust
practices discussed below. Reparation orders we have issuedm^^^^ the Act have been uPheId in *** v- WW^630 F.2d 586, 39 Ag. Dec. 888 (8 C. 1980) and Thomas SL Lane et. al
v. Gail F. Sohler etc., CV-81-86-Bu, U.S.D.C., D. Mont., 1983. 42
Ag. Dec--- '

The purchases from Mr. Arnzen and the Montana ranchers in
these cases constituted violations of the Act by Elkton and Mr.
Mulso, and so did any other purchases of livestock, by Mr, Mulso in
the name of Elkton, or by Mr. Mulso through others in the name of
Mkton, white the latter was insolvent or by use of checks on themton checking account drawn on insufficient funds without dis-
closmg such facts to such sellers. The Act is so drawn as to prohibit
unfair or unjust practices by livestock dealers and we have inter-
prated such prohibitions to include such actions. Mid-States Live-
stock 37

^Ag
Deo 547, aff'd., Dale Van Wyk v. Bergland, 570 F.2d^

.

U 9 n 99
g
K ?

6

u. I
71 (8 G 1978) ' See also section 409 of th* Art, 7

U.b.U 228b u. ,

(which was added to the Act by PX. 94-410 after the
Mi*-States> We), and Vance v. Reed, 496 F.

hv nsn o
eC ' 1U7 (MlD ' Tenn" Nashville Div-> 198( Note

tnat i u.bC, 204 provides for suspending registrants, which in-
cludes livestock dealers, for insolvency. See also Rowse v. Platte

Ag'

V
' '

' ' "F. Supp. 1065, 604 F. Supp. 1463, __ Ag. Dec._ (D. Nebr. 1986).

H.Wif *?
in

1

onsi
.

8tent wi*h other authority, "Deception is estab-
lished by the obtaining of something of value through the use of a
cnecK which the perpetrator knows is worthless. * * * This guilty
knowledge is the mens rea of the offense. Specific intent to defraud

! i^lnT
al

,

element'" State v' Srnith> 80 N.W.2d 90, 92-3

f** Inc' v' McCl > 346
V' Western

' G 1965); Colborn

'***"*'m N'w-2d
v, ou

, 1985); State v, Wood. 666 P.2d:,,,,!
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763 (Mont. 1983); Curtis v. Vlotho, 313 N.W.2d 469, 471, fn. 5 (S.D.

1981); and C.J.S. False Pretenses 21.

As above, the prohibitions in section 307 and certain other sec-

tions of the Act were written as prohibitions of unfair or unjust

practices. In so writing those prohibitions, Congress had in mind

the futility, in regulating a dynamic and changing industry, of

specifying every act which should be prohibited, and intended, by
those prohibitions and the provisions for administrative proceed-

ings, to delegate broad discretion to the Secretary, subject to judi-

cial review to prevent abuse, to determine from time to time what

specific acts would be prohibited. This is clear in the following re-

marks in the debates on the Act, as 61 Cong. Rec. 1887:

Mr. ANDERSON. * * *

It was asserted by the gentlemen who preceded me, to

whom I have referred, that if there was to be a regulation

of this industry it should be in direct prohibitions of law.

We have been trying direct prohibitions of law for more

than 100 years. They have proven absolutely inadequate

for the regulation of industries as large and as industrially

powerful as these with which we are now dealing.

Industry is progressive. The methods of industry and of

manufacture and distribution change from day to day, and

no positive iron-clad rule of law can be written upon the

statute books which will keep pace with the progress of in-

dustry. So we have not sought to write into this bill arbi-

trary and iron-clad rules of law. We have rather chosen to

lay down certain more or less definite rules, rules which

are sufficiently flexible to enable the administrative au-

thority to keep pace with the changes of methods in distri-

bution and manufacture and in industry in the coun-

try.
* * *

See discussion, Chevron, U.S.A., Inc. v. Natural Resources Defense,

, U.S. 104 S. Ct, 2778, 2781 et seq,, reh. den., U.S.

,
105 S. Ct. 28 (1984),

Our reasoning for interpreting the prohibitions on unfair or

unjust practices to include dealers' buying livestock while insol-

vent, or by use of checks drawn on insufficient funds, without dis-

closing such facts to sellers, should be obvious from what happened
in this case. Such a buyer, whatever his high hopes and good inten-

tions, subjects sellers to the risk of failure of the buyer's venture.

That risk ought to be borne by the buyer, and by others if they can

be found to undertake that;
:rielfc willingly and without being de-
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ceived for whatever their prospects of a profit from the ventur, if

..that risk on
unsuspecting sellers is an injustice to

m499, bU4(D. S.D. 1977). An otherwise insolvent buyer is notsolvent by a line of credit under which advances of fund" d

Checking account to make a repayment on that line of credit, Alsoan otherwise insolvent buyer is not made solvent by an n C
"ances a""n ?

6

SnredS f/e8ale f g ds n >***2*
them S 1 PrTd8

' t0 ver NSF ohecke used

free mSet o I ' mat? f fect> not law
' Prices *<*

;! en goods remain to be '^old in such a

v
^ansactloM ^volved in these proceedings !lis

I'

AmZen and the Montana ncher8 would^ aCtlng f r himself alone
> aa a *"*

ay .T
" ^ agent for Elkton

' becau^ t

part acte eth
" T^ f^ Act

' t0rt
' or wrongdoing o,, hk

Cncy M 8S34S wre ^ throuSh ^ers. See Restatement,

Agency
2d 343, 344, and 348, reading in pertinent part as M

n act otherwise

,

the fact that he acted at
prmcipal or on account of the prinoi

,
> as he ^u!d be for

personal conduct, for the consequences of an-
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other's conduct which results from his directions if, with

knowledge of the circumstances, he intends the conduct, or

its consequences
* * * *

[ 348.] An agent who
* * *

knowingly assists in the com-

mission of tortious fraud or duress by his principal or by

others is subject to liability in tort to the injured person

although the fraud or duress occurs in a transaction on

behalf of the principal.

See also Rochester Methodist Hosp. v. Travelers Ins. Co., 728 F.2d

1006, 1012 (8 C. 1984); Bechtel v. Liberty Nat. Bank, 534 F,2d 1335,

1339, fn. 6 (9 C. 1976); McAlvain v. General Ins. Co. ofAmerica, 97

Idaho 777, 554 P.2d 955 (1976); Haafke v. Mitchell 347 N.W.2d 381

(Iowa 1984); McCarty v. Lincoln Green, Inc., 620 P.2d 1221 (Mont.

1980); and Bettelyoun v. Sanders, 90 S.D. 559, 243 N.W.2d 790

(1976). If Mr. Mulso did not know that Elkton was insolvent, he cer-

tainly knew that he was obtaining livestock by issuing NSF checks

in the hope of covering them later, and that the sellers who re-

ceived those checks did not know this or consent to it.

Mr. Mulso will not be held liable to The Miller Colony, Inc. since

the allegations of its sale and failure of payment were denied by

him in his answer and not established by evidence.

Mr. Van Dyke is also personally liable to Mr. Arnzen and the

Montana ranchers for the wrong that was done to them by persons

acting in the name of Elkton and by use of NSF checks drawn on

the Elkton checking account. He was President of that firm and

(Sioux Fails Tr. 165-6, 171) he knew that livestock was being

bought in the name of that firm while it was insolvent, and^
with

checks on the Elkton checking account which were drawn on insuf-

ficient funds in the hope of covering them later, and did nothing to

stop it. "As a major corporate officer [he] could not avoid liability

by emulating the three fabled monkeys, hearing, seeing and speak-

ing no evil." Briggs Transp. Co. v. Starr Sales Co., Inc., 262 N.W.2d

S05, 811-2 (Iowa 1978). See also Kizzier v. United States, 598 F,2d

1128, 1131-3 (8 C. 1979); Smith v. Great Basin Grain Co., 98 Idaho

266, 661 P.2d 1299, 1311-2 (1977); Poulsen v. Treasure State Indus-

tries, Inc., 626 P.2d 822, 829 (Mont. 1981); Bettelyoun, supra', and

AmJur2d Corporations 1382 et seq,

The issue of liability to the Corn Exchange Bank of Elkton, Mr.

Mulso, Sirloin, Inc., or any combination thereof (that bank did not

claim against Mr, Van Dyke herein), so far as is shown in the

record, is not sufficiently related to the business of buying and sell-

ing livestock to be properly the concern of the Secretary of Agricul-

ture under the reparation provisions of the Act Elkton was only a
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depositor and a borrower as to that bank, and its livestock business
was purely incidental to its business with that bank, Mr. Mulso
and Sirloin, Inc. were only acting in the name of Elktoti, a deposi-
tor and borrower, as to that bank. However the issue of liability to
that bank of Mr. Den Herder is a question of market agency dispo-
sition of proceeds of sale of consigned livestock, which is very dear-
ly a matter regulated under the Act. United States v, Donahue
Sros., 59 F.2d 1019 (8 C. 1932). Section 309 of the Act provides for

filing of a reparation complaint by "Any person complaining of

anything done or omitted to be done by any stockyard owner,
market agency, or dealer * * *

in violation of the provisions of
sections * * *

307 * * * '

The phrase "any person" clearly in-
eludes a bank. In summary we have jurisdiction over a reparation
claim filed by a bank, against a person subject to the reparation
provisions of the Act, as to matters regulated under the Act.

All complainants' claims against Mr. Den Herder personally are
based on his direction to issue the book of blank forms whicli wore
used for the Mulso instruments, his later refraining from recallingthat book, his orders to dishonor such instruments numbered 19,
41, and 22, and his transfer of the net proceeds, of the sales in the
week ending December 17, of livestock consigned to Tri-Stato in the
name of Elkton and not specifically identified as their own and re-
claimed by unpaid sellers, from the special account in the North-
western State Bank to the Montana Department of Livestock
Brand Enforcement Division. All those actions were taken by him

" ^u /
1 behalf of Tri-State but> a8 sown abovQ in

nTvTrf
hablllfc

?
f Mr' Van^ this

from
liability in and of itself.

n
C Urt of the Second Judi"*' Circuit,

chn* B nb J?
a*ot\-State wa. held liable to the Corn Ex-

'

* 1
n0t

-

have the record of that courfc ProceedingW
l

aV6
' VS*8"" that the basifl for that liabilityWa

f
a h lder in due course of th ^reD diahon-^ and that the transfer of P^ee* was aW0n
?JWu

to that bank. We do not express any
Uability f Tri-State to anyone, it being

proceedinS8 bei^ tayed under 11

ow
W6 6XpreSS an^ Pinion about ^at

tor4U U S nS IP
ChlC

nf.
*"** Exchange v. Beak-

proceedings,
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Mr. Arnzen, or the Montana ranchers. What we hold is that, what-

ever the liability of Tri-State on the basis of the record of that

court proceeding, personal liability of Mr. Den Herder is not estab-

lished by the record of these administrative proceedings.

As above the record shows the following. Mr. Den Herder as

President of and on behalf of Tri-State agreed to issue a draft book

to facilitate advances against consigned livestock. What he directed

to be issued was a draft book, not a checkbook, and what he be-

lieved at the times material herein had been issued was a draft

book, not a checkbook. Such printed forms were issued, and such

instructions were given to Mrs. Mulso for signing them, as were in-

consistent with his direction to issue a draft book. Also "uncollect-

ed funds" was marked on Mulso instrument number 19. These

latter actions were taken, not by wrongdoing of Mr. Den Herder,

but by mistakes of others about which he learned only after De-

cember 17. (We note that "uncollected funds" was also marked on

such instrument number 21, and that "payment stopped" was

marked on number 22, we know not by whom or why.) As ex-

plained hereinafter, so far as is shown in the record of these ad-

ministrative proceedings, Mr. Den Herder's order to issue a draft

book was not unlawful, his orders to dishonor such instruments 19,

21 and 22 were issued without reason to doubt that they were

lawful, and his transfer of proceeds to the Brand Enforcement Divi-

sion was entirely lawful.

Issuance of a draft book to facilitate advances against consigned

livestock is a common practice among livestock market agencies

selling on commission. We take official notice of this; see also the

Maly decisions, infra. The record shows that Tri-State in this con-

nection was receiving animals on consignment, making advances

against them through what Mr. Den Herder thought was a draft

book of a sort commonly used in the industry, selling them, and re-

mitting the net proceeds; in themselves none of such actions would

be unusual for such enterprises as Tri-State, livestock market agen-

cies selling on commission. As above the record shows that the

book of blank forms was used as part of a program violatrve of the

Act, buying livestock without the funds to pay for them and issuing

NSF checks in the hope of covering them with the proceeds, or^ad-

vancea against the proceeds, of sale of the livestock on consign-

ment. From that misuse of the book of blank forms, a conclusion

that Mr. Den Herder directed the issuance of the book for the pur-

pose of such misuse does not follow. Mr. Den Herder admitted to

an "operating assumption" of such misuse. However, the only basis

for that assumption shown in the record would be losses which he

knew had been sustained on "forward contracts" with Tri-State,
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number 19 since, as shown on the Elkton checking account state-

ment, after the credit of the amount of number 20, which was paid

in full, and the debit of all checks then presented for payment, Uio

checking account credit balance was over $200,000, or well in

excess of the amount of number 19. What reduced the credit bal-

ance in that checking account thereafter that day was the above-

mentioned $169,900 entry made by that bank in its records,
^

When Mr. Den Herder issued his order to dishonor Mulao instru-

ment number 21 for $882,939.10 on Wednesday, December 16, 10

testified credibly, there were not sufficient cattle consigned in tho

name of Elkton and in the Tri-State yard to cover it. If Mr. Mulao

had reported to him, or "turned in" in his phrase, in a phone call

after the instrument was deposited in the Corn Exchange Bank on

Monday the 13th, cattle on the road sufficient to cover it, thiH

would not make any difference in the liability for dishonoring it bo-

cause, as above, a market agency is not generally obliged to make

an advance against consigned livestock as such. Also, as above,

Wednesday the 15th was the day he first heard from others that

that bank had dishonored Elkton checks which had been issued for

livestock. The record does not show the times of day when he heurd

this and when he issued the order to dishonor the instrument^
if he

heard this before he issued that order, no one could expect him to

rely on cattle reported as on the road but not yet there to cover nn

advance.

When Mr. Den Herder issued his order to dishonor Mulso instru-

ment number 22 for $147,878.96 on Friday, December 17, the culllu

then consigned in the name of Elkton and in the Tri-State yurd

were clearly subject to adverse claims which remained to be ro-

solved so they could not cover an advance.

In these proceedings much was made of Mr. Den Herder's "oper-

ating assumption" that Elkton was obtaining livestock with NSF
checks in the hope of covering them later and that tho Corn Ex-

change Bank was paying such checks on the uncollected funds rep-

resented by the Mulso instruments. On the basis of that "operating

assumption" it was urged that he must have known that hia thnso

orders to dishonor such instruments would cause failures of pay-

ment for livestock consigned in the name of Elkton to Tri-Stato for

sale, and against which those instruments were drawn, and would

cause that bank to lose the amounts of such checks paid. To ur^c*

this is to disregard the fact that Tri-State did not retain the net

proceeds of sale of such livestock. Through instrument 20 for

$589,310.93, the net proceeds of the sales of such livestock in tho

week ending December 10, against which instrument 19 for

$159,463.82 was drawn, were paid into the Elkton checking account
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This is not to interpret the Act by its own force alone aa provid-
ing a trust of such funds as against a secured creditor of Ellctori-

Such a holding, in In re Samuels & Co., Inc., 483 F.2d 557 (5 O*

1973), in which that Court referred to "a trust imposed by remedial
statute," was reversed in Mahon v. Stowers, 416 U.S. 100 (197 4J.

That was private litigation to which the Secretary and the United
States were not parties. The published decisions in that litigation

(see also 510 F.2d 139 and 526 F.2d 1238) show that the parties did
not raise and the courts did not consider the issue whether, whex* **

person subject to the Act obtains animals by violation of the Act,
constructive trust is provided by other authority outside the Act-

If those proceeds had fallen into the possession of a person wKo
gave value, without notice of the wrong done to such sellers, it

would have been a different matter. However that did not happen
and neither the Corn Exchange Bank nor Elkton ever obtained pOB-
session of those proceeds so far as the record shows. As previously
stated, as to what was done with the particular animals obtained
from Mr. Arnzen and the Montana ranchers, the record is incon-
clusive. Also it does not show the sources of the animals sold t>y
Tri-State for the account of Elkton in the week ending December
17, except that they all had come from Montana. Mr, Hegerfeld on
cross examination testified (Sioux Falls Tr, 425);

Q. Now, when you demanded it [on December 17], the

proceeds, were you told by somebody that the purported

owners of these cattle were also demanding the proceeds?

A. Yes.

Q. So that you then knew that there were unpaid seller

producers of livestock looking for the same proceeds?

A. Yes.

Q, If you got the proceeds, you were going to keep them,

weren't you?

A. Yes.

Q, You weren't going to pay the guys that owned the

cattle?

A. No.

Also, ,as, above, that bank dishonored, just before December

checks drawn on the EJktpn ; checking account which showed, on
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of those cases, which contain some important differences from the

facts of these ones. See for the facts our administrative decisions

which were affirmed in those court decisions, Hays Livestock v,

Maly Livestock, 29 Ag, Dec. 216, 423, 788 (1970); Rush County Sale

Co. v. Maly Livestock, 29 Ag. Dec. 386, 553, 922 (1970); Plainville

Livestock v. Maly Livestock, 29 Ag. Dec. 393, 552, 920 (1970); and

Rice v. Wilcox, 34 Ag. Dec. 1651, 35 Ag. Dec. 212 (1976). Those

cases, like these ones, involved livestock bought by dealers and sold

on consignment by market agencies. The market agencies were

held liable to the unpaid sellers. However the market agencies re-

tained the proceeds which, in the events in dispute in these cases,

Tri-State did not.

In Hays the dealer purchased livestock from the complainant-

sellers and gave in payment drafts drawn on the market agency,

which sold the livestock, dishonored the drafts, and kept the pro-

ceeds. We held the market agency liable, not on the basis of issu-

ance of a draft book, but on the basis of other actions of its officers,

advice given directly to a complainant that such drafts would be

honored, a promise given directly to a complainant to phone back

if such drafts would not be honored and failure to do so, and ap-

pearances in person with the dealer at complainants' sales when

the dealer used such drafts to make purchases. These actions, not

issuance of a draft book, were what we held to have induced the

complainant-sellers to rely on the market agency and clothed the

dealer with apparent authority to purchase cattle and draft on it.

We added in the Hays decision, 29 Ag. Dec. at 222, "Furthermore,

[market agency] knew that the livestock had not been paid for

when it retained the proceeds of resale," and similar findings in

the other decisions, 29 Ag. Dec. at 392 and 399. The Tenth Circuit

affirmed our result. It wrote, 498 F.2d at 932, 33 Ag. Dec. at 1181:

* * * The Secretary in our case relied upon an estoppel

theory in much the same way [a reference to Branscome,

infra]. And [market agency] argues that there can be no

estoppel here for want of the requisite reliance on the rep-

resentations incident to the drafting practice. The Secre-

tary also held, however, that it was unjust and unreason-

able for [market agency] to retain the proceeds from the

resale of livestock with knowledge that the shippers of the

livestock had not been paid. We are persuaded by this rea-

soning and hence do not reach the issue of estoppel/

Such action other, than issuance of the book of blank forms, to

induce the complainants to rely on Tri-State and to clothe Elkton

or Mr. Mulso with apparent authority to act for Tri-State, and such
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retention of proceeds by Tri-State, are not shown in the record of
these proceedings.

Rice, contrary to some language in the Eighth Circuit decision
did not involve dishonor of any instrument. In that case the denier
had been buying livestock from complainants and paying for them
a week later with checks issued by the market agency. For tho two
purchases in dispute, there was no check issued. The market
agency was held liable to the complainant-sellers on account of the
cattle purchased in one of the transactions but not the other Tho
transaction in which the market agency was held liable was tho
one in which he retained the proceeds of sale of the animals, The
Xice administrative decision contains the following, 34 Ag Dec nt
16o2 et seq,:

On September 5, 1973, when [market agency] and [dealer]
settled their account and [market agency] retained the pro-
ceeds of sale of the cattle which [dealer] had consigned to
him for sale that day, [market agency] knew that a sub-
stantial proportion of [dealer's] purchases, for approxi-
mately six months, had been paid for by checks drawn on
[market agency's] cattle account. Therefore, if [market
agency] did not have actual knowledge that some or all of

C
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' a
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The hearing officer concluded that [market agency] knew
or should have known that the cattle had not been paid

for by [dealer], that he had not notified [complainant-sell-

ers] prior to the sale of his intention to not loan money to

[dealer] for the purchase, and that he nevertheless re-

tained the proceeds of the sale.

As above, such retention of proceeds by Tri-State is not shown in

the record of these proceedings.

It should be understood in reading those appellate decisions that

each of them involved an issue whether we have jurisdiction to

order payment of reparation on account of a single transaction. On
this see discussion in Mid-South Order Buyers, Inc. v. Platte Valley

Livestock, Inc., 210 Nebr. 382, 315 N.W,2d 229, 41 Ag. Dec. 48

(1982). See also Neugebauer v. Ryken, Civ. 74-4018, U.S.D.C., D. So.

Dak., So. Div., 1975, 34 Ag. Dec. 1712. That issue has not arisen in

these proceedings.
The Corn Exchange Bank also relied on Branscome v,

Schoneweis, 361 F.2d 717 (7 C. 1966). See also the administrative de-

cision which was affirmed therein, Grenada Livestock Exchange v.

Schaneweis, 21 Ag. Dec. 1105 (1962). That case involved cattle or-

dered by one Woodrum to be shipped to a market agency where

they were sold in Woodrum's name. It was undisputed that re-

spondents Woodrum and Schoneweis were partners in the market

agency. Schoneweis contended that the purchase in question had

been made by Woodrum for his own account and not for the part-

nership. Schoneweis was held jointly liable with Woodrum to com-

plainant-sellers for the price of the cattle ordered by Woodrum on

the basis of remarks Schoneweis had made directly to complain-

ants, and checks on the partnership bank account which

Schoneweis had previously written to complainants for livestock or-

dered by Woodrum, creating a partnership by estoppel. There are

no such facts about Tri-State in the record of these proceedings.

The Corn Exchange Bank also relied on Lewis v. Butz, 512 F,2d

681 (8 C, 1976). See also the administrative decision which waa af-

firmed therein, Lewis and DeJong, 33 Ag. Dec. 1294 (1974). That

case involved livestock purchased by one DeJong and shipped to

one Lewis. The evidence showed clearly that DeJong and Lewis had

entered into a joint venture agreement to purchase livestock and

divide the profits equally. Lewis contended that DeJong had made

the purchase after termination of the venture. DeJong testified

that he made the purchase pursuant to the joint venture. Certain

actions of Lewis were held to be consistent only with this and in-
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Elkton line of credit was an attempt, based on that lack of under-

standing, due to that failure of communication, to transfer funds

which were not there. As above, on Monday the 13th that bank un-

derstood that number 19 would not be paid after all, so that the

Elkton checking account had $159,463.82 less than the bank's

records showed it to have, so that the $169,900 entry involved funds

which were not there, but it failed to reverse any part of that

$169,900 entry. For that failure the record contains no explanation
other than the obvious incentive to secure its $169,900 repayment,
if not from its depositor and borrower, then from the latter's other

creditors.

It further appears that the action of the Corn Exchange Bank
before Wednesday, December 15, dishonoring checks drawn on the

Elkton checking account, was what induced some of the unpaid

persons from whom cattle had been obtained in the name of Elkton

to stop cattle in transit to Tri-State, and to reclaim cattle consigned
to Tri-State, and thus burst the bubble which that bank had helped
to inflate.

Of course, any amount ordered herein to be paid on account of

animals obtained in the name of Elkton should be considered paid
to whatever extent the particular claimant receives payment for

the same animals from the proceeds paid to the Montana Depart-
ment of Livestock Brand Enforcement Division or any other source.

Prejudgment interest is included in the language of section 309(e)

of the Act, 7 U.S.C. 210(e), "pay to the complainant the sum to

which he is entitled." Our orders to pay prejudgment interest were

affirmed in Hays and Rice, supra. See also discussion in Rowse,

supra. Recently, in General Motors Corporation v. Devex Corp., 461

U.S. 648, 651-3 (1983), the Supreme Court noted that prejudgment
interest was awarded in successful patent infringement actions

before the applicable legislation specified a right to it. See also

Bergkamp v. Carrico, 700 P.2d 98 (Idaho App. 1985); Iowa Code

535.3; M,C.A. 27-1-211; and S.D.C.L. 21-1-11. The rate of such

interest is taken from the notice published at 45 F,R. 37872, June

6, 1980.

This decision and order is the same as a decision and order

issued by the Secretary of Agriculture, being issued pursuant to

delegated authority, 7 CFR 2.35, as authorized by Act of April 4,

1940, 54 Stat. 81, 7 U.S.C. 450c~450g. See also Reorganization Plan

No. 2 of 1963, 5 U.S.C., 1976 Ed,, appendix pg. 764.

On a petition to reopen a hearing, to rehear or reargue a pro-

ceeding, or >to reconsider an order, see Rule 17 of the Rules of Prac-

tice,^ CJFR 201.117.
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On a complainant's right to judicial review of such an order &H
5 U.S.C. 702-3 and United States v. 7.C.C, 337 U.S. 426 (1949). On
respondent's right to judicial review of such an order, seeI'jWa/j
Livestock Commission v. Hardin et al, 446 F.2d 4, 30 Ag. Dec, 10& :

(8 G. 1971) and Fort Scott Sale Co., Inc. v. Hardy, 670 F. Supp *1U4
Ag. Dec (D. Kan. 1983).

This order constitutes "an order for the payment of money'
within the meaning of section 809(0 of the Act, 7 U.S.C, 21(KO
which provides for enforcement of such orders by court action.

It is requested that copies of all pleadings filed by any party, in

any subsequent litigation involving this decision and order, bo filed
with the Packers and Stockyards Division, Office of the General
Counsel of this Department. It is further requested that, if the con-
struction of the Act or the jurisdiction to issue this order becomes
an issue in any such litigation, prompt notice of such fact be given
to that Division, so that the question can be taken up whether (he
United States will participate as intervenor or amicus curino in

support of our construction of the Act and our jurisdiction.

ORDER

Within 30 days of the date of this order, respondents Blkton
Livestock, Inc., Wes Van Dyke, and David Mulso shall, jointly and
severally, pay to complainants, with interest at the rate of VA% per
annum from February 1, 1983, until paid, as follows:

Urban "Shorty" Arnzen: $141,290.82
Jack Broadbrooks: 2 K22 HH
Boyd Burtch:

'G72.(iO
Sandra Burtch:

G72,fiO
Noel Capdeville; 28,427 2fi

Darryl Crasco:
ll.-17fKr.fi

rene Crasco:
weo<ftB

Luke Crasco:
18.2U.3fi

Maynard Crasco: 258.80
Orville Jake Crasco:

48,044 BO
Will Crasco:

6|10120
DarcieDoney: Ij02a8(s
Wanda Doney: 1.804.60
Ben Fewer:

10,822.05
-
James Fewer:

7ilVf>-65
Loren Pladland: 818&OQ

:

Larry Haynes: g^Q,
Raymond Helgeson; 40,167.00
.GarlJ.Iverson: gsWoO
Bruce Kirkaldie:

60,717.10
Raymond J. Knudson:

'

4)408.76
Meissner Ranches, Inc.;'

IsiaSfcJEM
Shawn Meisanen '

'6Q6.'48
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Steven Pankratz: 3,974.00

JackQuisno: ",921.80

Gerald J. "Bud" Walsh, Admr., Estate of Gerald M. 23,602.90

Walsh:

In addition to the above, respondents Elkton Livestock, Inc. and

Wea Van Dyke shall jointly and severally pay to complainant The

Miller Colony, Inc., with interest thereon at the rate of 13% per

annum from February 1, 1983 until paid, $8,309.50.

All complaints are hereby dismissed as to respondent Paul Den

Herder.

The complaint of the Corn Exchange Bank is hereby dismissed as

to respondents Elkton Livestock, Inc., David Mulso, and Sirloin,

Inc.

Copies hereof shall be served on the parties.

16 CASES (See List at End of the Decision) Against B. J. HOLMES

SALES INTERNATIONAL, INC., GARY W. HUNT d/b/a COASTAL

CATTLE COMPANY, DAVID R. MONELL d/b/a DAMONE SALES &

SERVICE, and LLOYD WOODRUFF. P&S Docket No. 6286. et. seq.

Decided November 8, 1985.

DealerFailure to pay Order for the payment of money Default,

Complainant, pro se,

Respondent, pro se.

Decision by Donald A, Campbell, Judicial Officer.

DECISION AND ORDER AS TO RESPONDENTS MONELL AND WOODRUFF

PRELIMINARY STATEMENT

These are reparation proceedings under the Packers and Stock-

yards Act, 1921, as amended, 7 U.S.C. 181 et seq, begun by com-

plaints received on various dates in early 1983, alleging in sub-

stance failure to pay for livestock purchased.

Copies of each complaint, and of an *^^^. |

by the Packers and Stockyards Administration of this

and filed in each proceeding pursuant to the RuleB

were duly served on each respondent. A copy of the r

vestigation report was duly served on each complainant

Respondent Woodruff at the time of service of each complaint

and Svestigation report was informed that an answer thereto was
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required to be filed within 20 days, that failure to file an t\mvft-i
within that time would be deemed an admission of all tho ul lega-
tions contained in the complaint, and that upon such Imlura the
file would be forwarded to the Office of the Secretary for isnunnce
of a default order. No answer was received from Mr. Woodruff. Ac-

cordingly under Rule 6 of the Rules of Practice, 9 CFK 202.100 a
default order may be issued against him in each proceeding based
on all evidence in the record including information contained in
the investigation report and evidence received at the oral hearing.
Respondents Holmes and Hunt subsequently entered bankruptcy.

Accordingly these proceedings are stayed under 11 U.S.C. Writ)
as to them. Cross claims of the Holmes firm are in abeyance. TJia

a

PZ SS""^ as to claims of th oomplnlnnnta
against Messrs. Monell and Woodruff.
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Complainant Amount n ,Amount Complainant Amount

Buckley
'
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Sheldoa lLo
Zehr ^g650
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CONCLUSIONS

At the hearing complainants in these proceedings, although duly

notified, did not appear in person or by counsel or other represent-

ative, and no evidence was offered or received in support of their

claims, with one exception, Mrs. Searl, who appeared and testified.

Respondent Woodruff also, although duly notified, did not appear
in person or by counsel or other representative. The findings of fact

are based on the allegations in the complaints deemed to be admit-

ted by Mr. Woodruff as previously stated, the investigation reports,

and the testimony received at the hearing.

Mr. Monell testified that, in all purchases of livestock made by
him and involved in the 65 cases, he was acting as agent for Mr.

Hunt and he disclosed this to the sellers. His testimony was credi-

ble and the record contains no evidence to the contrary. He is not

liable for the unpaid price of any of such livestock on that basis.

Sweeney v. Herman Management, Inc., 85 App. Div. 2d 34, 447

N.Y.S. 2dl64(2Dept. 1982).

On possible liability of Mr. Monell in court under his surety bond

see United States Fid. & G. Co. v. Clover Creek Cattle Co., 92 Idaho

889 452 P. 2d 993 (1969) and Arnold Livestock Sales Company, Inc.

v. Pearson, 383 F. Supp. 1319 (D, Nebr. 1974).

Mr, Monell testified that in all the transactions involved in these

proceedings, respondent Woodruff purchased the livestock for

resale to Mr. Hunt. Mr. Monell's testimony was credible and the

record does not contain any evidence to the contrary.

Mr. Woodruff as a dealer violated the Act, committing an unfair

or unjust practice within the meaning of the Act, in buying live-

stock and failing to pay for it. Section 409 of the Act, 7 U.S.C. 228b

and Vance v. Heed, 495 F. Supp. 852, 39 Ag. Dec. 1117 (M.D. Tenn.,

Nashville Div. 1980).

The complaint of Mr. Tabolt was received on March 23, 1983,

more than 90 days after December 22, 1982, the date of the transac-

tion alleged in it. The Act at section 309, 7 U.S.C. 210 requires such

a complaint to be filed within 90 days after the cause of action ac-

crues. We have no basis for a finding that we have jurisdiction in

Mr, Tabolt's case,

This decision and order is the same as a decision and order

issued by the Secretary of Agriculture, being issued pursuant to

delegated authority, 7 CFR 2.35, as authorized by Act of April 4,

1940, 54 Stat. 81, 7 U.S.C, 450c-450g. See also Reorganization Plan

No. 2 of 1953, 5 U.S.C., 1976 ed., app. p. 764.

On a petition to reopen a hearing, to rehear or reargue a pro-

ceeding, or to reconsider an order, see Rule 17 of the Rules of Prac-

tice, 9 CFR 202.117.
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J, Maurice Aubin v. B. J. Holmes Sales International, Inc., Gary W.

Hunt d/b/a Coastal Cattle Company, David R. Monell d/b/a

Damone Sales & Service, and Lloyd Woodruff Jr.

P&S Docket No. 6343

Stephen N. Bernat v. B. J. Holmes Sales International, Inc., Gary

W. Hunt d/b/a Coastal Cattle Company, David R. Monell d/b/a

Damone Sales & Service, and Lloyd Woodruff Jr.

P&S Docket No. 6344

Terry L. Buckley v.J5. J. Holmes Sales International, , Inc., Gary W,

Hunt d/b/a Coastal Cattle Company, David R. Monell d/b/a

Damone Sales & Service, and Lloyd Woodruff Jr.

P&S Docket No. 6347

John P. Conway v. B. J. Holmes Sales International, Inc., Gary W.

Hunt d/b/a Coastal Cattle Company, David R. Monell d/b/a

Damone Sales & Service, and Lloyd Woodruff Jr.

P&S Docket No. 6294

Thomas C. Gillette v. B. J. Holmes Sales International, Inc., Gary
W. Hunt d/b/a Coastal Cattle Company, David R. Monell d/b/a

Damone Sales & Service, and L}oyd Woodruff Jr.

P&S Docket No. 6293

Sylvia Hebert v. B, J. Holmes Sales International, Inc., Gary W.

Hunt d/b/a Coastal Cattle Company, David R. Monell d/b/a

Damone Sales & Service, and Lloyd Woodruff Jr.

P&S Docket No. 6345

Richard L. Miller v. B. J. Holmes Sales International, Inc., Gary W.

Hunt d/b/a Coastal Cattle Company, David R. Monell d/b/a

Damone Sales & Service, and Lloyd Woodruff Jr.

P&S Docket No. 6319

H. Ben Mitchell v. B, J. Holmes Sales International, Inc., Gary W.

Hunt d/b/a Coastal Cattle Company, David R, Monell d/b/a
Damone Sales & Service, and Lloyd Woodruff Jr.

P&S Docket No, 6317

Richard Morrow v. B. J. Holmes Sales International, Inc., Gaty W.

Hunt d/b/a Coastal Cattle Company, David R. Monell d/b/a
Damone Sales & Service, and Lloyd Woodruff Jr.

P&S Docket No. 6286

Patrick T, Patterson v. B. J. Holmes Sales International, Inc. t Gary
W. Hunt d/b/a Coastal Cattle Company, David jR. Monell d/b/a
Dampne Sales & Service, and Lloyd Woodruff Jr,

P&S Docket No. 6375
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P&S Docket No. 6289

P&S Docket No. 6291

P&S Docket No. 6346

P&S Docket No. 6356

P&S Docket No. 6339

Complainant, pro se,

Respondent, pro se.

- p&s
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Copies of the complaint, and of an investigation report prepared

by the Packers and Stockyards Administration of this Department

and filed in this proceeding pursuant to the Rules of Practice, were

served on respondent on September 23, 1983. A copy of the investi-

gation report was served on complainant on September 24. An

answer and request for oral hearing was received from respondent

on October 17. A copy thereof was served on complainant on De-

cember 5. No issue was raised about timeliness of the answer.

An oral hearing as requested was held on April 6, 1984 in Pratt,

Kansas before John J. Casey of the Office of the General Counsel of

this Department. Complainant appeared without counsel. Respond-

ent appeared by David G. Daniel, Manager, without counsel, Four

witnesses testified. No exhibits were received. No brief was filed,

It is undisputed that on December 6, 1982, of certain sheep which

complainant had consigned to respondent for sale, some were sold

at auction and some were bought by respondent in market support

transactions.

Complainant contended that respondent, through its employee

Dwayne West, guaranteed before the sale that he, complainant,

would "clear" $25.00 per head net after expenses of sale. We have

for many years forbidden a market agency to guaranty the price at

which consigned livestock will be sold. 9 CFR 201.64. Thus we will

not order reparation to be paid on the basis of any such guaranty if

given.

Complainant testified that respondent through Mr. West prom-

ised to start bidding at $27.50. It is undisputed that respondent did

not do so. Witnesses for respondent testified that market conditions

were such at the time and place of sale that no bid would have

been obtained for the sheep at $27.50, and that the custom of the

industry is such that, if an auctioneer starts bidding at a particular

price, and receives no bid at that price, he "backs down until a

bid is received. That testimony was credible and of course there is

no assurance that a bid will be received at a particular starting

price. Complainant obtained the highest price obtainable at auction

at the time and place at which his sheep were sold, so tar as the

record shows. n

A finding that respondent agreed to buy the sheep ^com-
plainant, rather than sell them as agent for complainant, is not

Complainant could nave set a minimum hold price below which

the sheep were not to be sold but were to be returned to him. How-

ever, so far as the record shows, he did not,
,

This order is the same as an order issued by the Secretary ,

riculture, being issued pursuant to delegated authority.
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farm, taken to the Union Stockyards, consigned to a market agency

there, and sold the next day, December 14, 1982. Mr. Reynolds Sr.

and Jr. both testified credibly that there were 15 loaded onto the

truck at the farm. They did not go with them to the stockyard.

Mr. Johnson did not count the animals either at the farm or

upon unloading at the stockyard. He unloaded the animals into the

chute there, filled out a printed form issued by the stockyard com-

pany so as to show 15, and left the form in the clip provided for it.

The chute was not locked or attended. He then departed.

Mr. Keith Jorgenson, a stockyard employee, testified credibly

that he counted 14 when he removed the animals from the chute

where Mr. Johnson had left them, and noted this on the same

form. Since his count was different from what Mr. Johnson had

written on the form, he counted them again when he penned them,

and wrote "14-rechecked" on the form.

Mr. Johnson contended that one animal must.have been stolen

from the chute between the time when he departed and the time

when Mr. Jorgenson moved them from there to the pens. As an ex-

planation for the difference in the head counts of the consignor and

the stockyard company, this of course is reasonable, but it was not

established by evidence. The only thing certain is that there was a

difference in the head counts.

On the above-mentioned form which the stockyard company pro-

vided and Mr. Johnson used, there was a legend printed that a re-

ceipt would be furnished if requested. Witnesses for the stockyard

company testified credibly that this was true, that a receipt would

have been furnished if requested. Also, Mr. Johnson was the one

who made the choice to depart instead of remaining until a stock-

yard company employee counted the animals. In view of this it

seems fair to conclude that the possibility that there would be a

difference in the head counts was a matter in which Mr, Johnson

decided to take a chance.

This order is the same as an order issued by the Secrotary of Ag-

riculture, being issued pursuant to ^legated authority, 7 U-K

2.35, as authorized by Act of April 4, 1940,-fcl Stat 81, 7 U-S-C.

450c-450g. See also Reorganization Plan No. 2 of 1&53, 5 U.S.U,

1976 ed,, app. p. 764.

On a petition to reopen a hearing, to rehear or reargue a
^pro-

ceeding, or to reconsider an order, see Rule 17 of the Rules of Prac-

tice. 9 CFR 202.117.
'

'

, -

On a complainant's right to judicial reviewf
such an order see 5

U.S.C. 702-^3 and United States-v, LC.C,, 337 U.S. 426,
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Copies hereof shall be served on the parties.
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them. The cross claims of the Holmes firm are in abeyance. The

proceeding went forwrd only as to the Southworth claim against re-

spondents Monell, Ishler and Snowden, and the Snowden claim

against Mr, Monell.

A total of 65 Delated cases including this one were consolidated

for hearing, the rights of the parties turning on the pleadings and

proof in their respective proceedings notwithstanding the joint

trial. AmJur2d Actions 156 et seq. The oral hearing was held on

May 20, 1985 in Syracuse, New York before John J. Casey of the

General Counsel of this Department, No party was represented by

counsel. Six witnesses testified. No exhibits were received. No brief

was received.

At the hearing complainant Southworth and respondents Ishler

and Snowden although duly notified did not appear in person or by

counsel or other representative, and no evidence was offered or re-

ceived in support of the claim of Mr, Southworth or the cross claim

of Ms. Snowden. .

The evidence in the record, that is, the investigation report, is

not sufficient to support the Southworth claim against Ms. Ishler

or Ms. Snowden. What is in the investigation report about those

two respondents reflects at most the allegations of Mr. Southworth.

The record contains no evidence whatever in support of the

Snowden claim against Mr. Monell.
.

At the hearing Mr. Monell testified that, in all purchases of live-

stock made by him and involved in the 65 cases, he was acting as

agent for Mr. Hunt and he disclosed this to the sellers. His testimo-

ny was credible and the record contains no evidence to the con-

trary. He is not liable for the unpaid price of any of such livestock

on that basis. Sweeney v. Herman Management, Inc., 86 App. uiv.

2d 34, 447 N.Y.S. 2d 164 (2 Dept. 1982).
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This order is the same as an order issued by the Secretary of Ag-

riculture, being issued pursuant to delegated authority, 7 CFR

2.35, as authorized by Act of April 4, 1940, 54 Stat, 81, 7 U.S.C.

45Qc-450g. See also Reorganization Plan No, 2 of 1953, 5 U.S.C.,

1976 ed., app. p. 764.

On a petition to reopen a hearing, to rehear or reargue a pro-

ceeding, or to reconsider an order, see Rule 17 of the Rules of Prac-

tice, 9 CFR 202.117.

On a complainant's right to judicial review of such an order see 5

U.S.C, 702-3 and United States v. I.C.C., 337 U.S. 426.

The claim of Mr. Hitchcock is dismissed as to Mr, Pratt.

Copies hereof shall be served on Mr. Hitchcock and Mr, Pratt.

WILLIAM A. BOSSARD, WILLIAM W, BOSSARD, and DONALD R. BOS-

SARD d/b/a WILL-TRI FARMS v. GARY W. HUNT d/b/a COASTAL

CATTLE COMPANY, DAVID R. MONELL d/b/a DAMONE SALES &

SERVICE, and GAIL SNOWDEN. DAVID R. MONELL d/b/a DAMONE

SALES & SERVICE v. B. J. HOLMES SALES INTERNATIONAL, INC.

GAIL SNOWDEN v. SAME. B. J. HOLMES SALES INTERNATIONAL,

INC. v, H. PETER SINCLAIR. P&S Docket No. 6377. DONALD

TIEDE v, B. J. HOLMES SALES INTERNATIONAL, INC., GARY "W.

HUNT d/b/a COASTAL CATTLE COMPANY, DAVID R. MONELL d/b/

a DAMONE SALES & SERVICE, and GAIL SNOWDEN. P&S Docket

No. 6335. Order Issued November 8, 1985.

Complainant, pro se.

Respondent, pro se,

ORDER OF DISMISSAL AS TO RESPONDENT MONELL

These are reparation proceedings under the Packers and Stock-

yards Act, 1921, as amended, 7 U.S.C. 181 et seq., begun by com-

plaints received in early 1983, alleging in substance failure to pay

for livestock purchased.

Copies of each complaint, and of an investigation report prepared

by the Packers and Stockyards Administration of this Department

and filed in each proceeding pursuant to the Rules of Practice,

were duly served on each respondent. A copy of the respective in-

vestigation report was duly served on each complainant.

Respondents Holmes and Hunt subsequently entered b
,

Accordingly, these proceedings are. stayed under 11 U.S.C.

as to them. The cross-claims of the Holmes firm are in abeyance.

The proceedings went forward only as to the claims against Mr.

Monell.
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LLOYD WOODRUFF, JR. v. B. J. HOLMES SALES INTERNATIONAL, IN&,

GARY W. HUNT d/b/a COASTAL CATTLE COMPANY and DAVID> K.

MONELL d/b/a DAMONE SALES & SERVICE. P&S Docket JNO.

6342. Order issued November 8, 1985.

Complainant, pro se.

Respondent, pro se.

ORDER OF DISMISSAL AS TO RESPONDENT MONELL

This is a reparation proceeding under the Packers and Stock-

yards Act, 1921, as amended, 7 U.S.C. 181 et seq., begun by a com-

plaint received in early 1983, alleging in substance failure to pay

for livestock purchased. j

Copies of the complaint, and of an investigation report prepared

by the Packers and Stockyards Administration of this Department

and filed in the proceeding pursuant to the Rules of
^actice

^

were

duly served on each respondent. A copy of the investigation report

was duly served on complainant. u-^L-nnrrfrv
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Complainant, pro se.
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represented by counsel. Six witnesses testified. No exhibits were re-

ceived. No brief was received,

At the hearing complainant Duell and respondent Meek al-

though duly notified did not appear in person or by counsel or

other representative, and no evidence was offered or received in

support of their claims.

The evidence in the record, that is, the investigation report, is

not sufficient to support the Duell claim against Mr. Meek. What is

in the investigation report about Mr. Meek reflects at most the al-

legation of Mr. Duell.

The record contains no evidence whatever in support of the

Meek claim against Mr. Monell.

At the hearing Mr. Monell testified that, in all purchases of live-

stock made by him and involved in the 65 cases, he was acting as

agent for Mr. Hunt and he disclosed this to the sellers. His testimo-

ny was credible and the record contains no evidence to the con-

trary. He is not liable for the unpaid price of any of such livestock

on that basis. Sweeney v. Herman Management, Inc., 85 App. Div.

2d 84, 447 N.Y.S. 2d 164 (2 Dept 1982).

On possible liability in court under his surety bond see United

States Fid. & G. Co, v. Clover Creek Cattle Co., 92 Idaho 889, 452 P.

2d 993 (1969) and Arnold Livestock Sales Company, Inc. v. Pearson,

383 F. Supp. 1319 (D, Nebr. 1974).

This order is the same as an order issued by the Secretary of Ag-

riculture, being issued pursuant to delegated authority, 7 CFR

2.35, as authorized by Act of April 4, 1940, 54 P* Q1 7 TT n

460c-450g. See also Reorganization Plan No. 2



2926 PERISHABLE AGRICULTURAL COMMODITIES ACT

Volume 44 Number 7

DISCIPLINARY DECISIONS

In re; STOOPS AND WILSON, INC. PACA Docket No. 2-6875. Decided

October 15, 1985.

Failure to pay promptly Publication of the facts Default.

Edward M. Silverstein, for complainant.

Respondent, pro se.

Decision by Victor W. Palmer, Administrative Law Judge.

DECISION AND ORDER

PRELIMINARY STATEMENT

This is a disciplinary proceeding under the Perishable Agricul-

tural Commodities Act, 1930, as amended (7 U.S.C. 499a et $eq)

hereinafter referred to as the "Act", instituted by a complaint filed

on July 8, 1985, by the Acting Director, Fruit and Vegetable Divi-

sion, Agricultural Marketing Service, United States Department of

Agriculture. It is alleged in the complaint that during the period

April through September 1984, respondent purchased, received,

and accepted, in interstate and foreign commerce, from 57 sellers,

502 lots of fruits and vegetables, all being perishable agricultural

commodities, but failed to make full payment promptly of the

agreed purchase prices, in the total amount of $1,691,863.10.

A copy of the complaint was served upon respondent which com-

plaint has not been answered. The time for filing an answer having

run, and upon the motion of the complainant for the issuance of a

Default Order, the following Decision and Order is issued without

further investigation or hearing pursuant to section 1.139 of the

Rules of Practice (7 CFR 1,139).

FINDINGS OF FACT

1. Respondent, Stoops & Wilson, Inc., is a Missouri corporation

whose address is 11800 West 63rd Street, Shawnee, Kansas 66203

2. Pursuant to the licensing provisions of the Act, license numbei

137820 was issued to respondent on January 29, 1952, This licensi

was renewed annually, but terminated on January 29, 1985, pursu

ant to Section 4(a) of the Act (7 U.S.C. 499d(a)) when responden

failed to pay the required annual license fee.

3. As more fully set forth in paragraph 5 of the complainl

during the period April through September 1984, respondent pui

chased, received, and accepted in interstate and foreign commerct

from 57 sellers, 502 lots of fruits and vegetables, all being perist

able agricultural commodities; but failed to make full paymen
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promptly of the agreed purchase prices, in the total amount of

$1,691,863.10.

CONCLUSIONS

Respondent's failure to make full payment promptly with respect

to the 502 transactions set forth in Finding of Fact No. 8, above

constitutes willful, repeated and flagrant yulatumB of Section 2 of

the Act (7 U.S.C.499W, for which the Order below is issued.

t to noted that although respondent did not file an awer to *

complaint served upon it and therefore is deemed to have admitted

all of the material allegations of the complaint, 1 OTB { UWW,

answers were filed by two persons, Mssrs. Charles Blevin and

SeTen Flosi, each of whom had been notified that he was consid.

ed to be responsibly connected with the corporate respondent. It

Sdefr thaUtto the determination that each was responsibly con-

ne ed wUh the respondent and not the mote of to, comp amt

aeainst respondent which Mssrs. Blevin and FloSl seek to chal-

lenge Such"challenges must be brought pursuant to the ruta, of

practice governing such matters which rules of practice are found

a 7 CFB 47.47 This forum has no jurisdiction
to hear the, ohal-

onges by Mssrs Blevin and Flosi to the determination that they

Ire responsibly connected with the corporate respondentJSe 7

CFH 1.131. Accordingly, the complainant's motion to strike tne

answers of Mssrs. Blevin and Flosi is granted.

ORDER

A finding is made that respondent has committed w.lful,fla

grant and repeated violations of Section of the, Art CTUB

499W, and the facts and circumstances set forth above, shall be

'"conjiamant's motion to strike the answers of Mssrs. Charles

Blevin and Steven Flosi is granted. .

.
.

This order shall take effect on the llth day after this Decision

becomes final, , .^^HnrRs under
Pursuant to the Rules of Practice^ n̂f^

the Act, thi8 Decision will become final without ^
ihes 35 days after service hereof unless appealed to the

K party

y
toTh^^proceeding within 80 days after ?

ed Sections 1.139 and 1.145 of the Rules of Practice (7

and 1.146),

Copies hereof shall be served upon parties.

unl AM,^A rmter became final November 28, 1985.
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In
INC- PACA

Failure to pay prompt-Publication of the facts-Default.

Andrew Stanton, for complainant.
Respondent, prose.

Decision by William J. Weber, Administrative Lau, Judge.

DECISION AND ORDER

PRELIMINARY STATEMENT

"
lots of fruits and "rfTi frOm 10 Sellers '

modities, but fa^7 to mlkl tnil
**" agriculturai
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of Praofe ff CT
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ot' lic
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when
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. suan o t
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TT'lT f the Aot'

reniredTnuaUvE ' n^ Vember 8
' 19

to Se^tioHa) of'th! I ^T? ^ n Nove^er 8, 1984, pursu
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merit promptly of the agreed purchase prices, 'in the total amount
of $112,962.28.

CONCLUSIONS

Respondent's failure to make full payment promptly with respect
to the 33 transactions set forth in Finding of Fact No. 3, above, con-
stitutes willful, repeated and flagrant violations of Section 2 of the
Act (7 U.S.C. 499b), for which the Order below is issued.

ORDER

A finding is made that respondent has committed willful, fla-

grant and repeated violations of Section 2 of the Act (7 U.S.C.
499b), and the facts and circumstances set forth above, shall be
published.
This order shall take effect on the llth day after this Decision

becomes final,

Pursuant to the Rules of Practice governing procedures under
the Act, this Decision will become final without further proceed-
ings 35 days after service hereof unless appealed to the Secretary
by a party to the proceeding within 30 days after service as provid-
ed in sections 1.139 and 1.145 of the Rules of Practice (7 CFR 1.139
and 1,145).

Copies hereof shall be served upon parties.

[This decision and order became final November 30, 1985. Ed.]

In re: CHRISTOPHER R. SIMMONS d/b/a GREATER AMERICAN PRODUCE
Co. PACA Docket No. 2-6620, Decided December 4, 1985.

Failure to pay promptlyPublication of the facts.

Edward M, Silverstein, for complainant.
Leonard A, Goldman, Los Angelea, California, for respondent.

Decision by Dorothea A, Baker, Administrative Law Judge.

DECISION AND ORDER

PRELIMINARY STATEMENT

This is a disciplinary proceeding under the Perishable Agricul-
tural Commodities Act, 1980, as amended (7 U.S.C. 499a et seq,\

hereinafter referred to as the "Act"), instituted by a complaint
filed on August 20, 1984, by the Director, Fruit and Vegetable Divi-

sion, Agricultural Marketing Service, United States Department of

Agriculture.
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The complaint alleges that during the period November 19S3
through April 1984, Respondent failed to make full paymcnW:11

,

6"' f th6 8greed PUrChaSe *
"

; m the total amount of $1,189,877.64 for 384 lota of perish-

'

ered n p f .T"8"* A C Py f the ""Pt wasserved upon Respondent. Respondent filed an Answer to tho com-

am nLrymg^ alleSatio^' Respondent has now filed anamended answer admitting all the factual allegations sot forth fn6 8
to theIS /

So

FINDINGS OF PACT

2 PurZnf?.1 T

6356
' Anaheim

> California 92806.u * -L UIHLlHrir. TA Tho lirtA^A^J __

780927
S'ngiSi0nS f *he Aot'

20 ' 1978 ' This

over Reapondent

Respondet
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amount of 8
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commerce.
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CONCLUSIONS

with relLYf lu"
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TtoTf ,
h
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above, for whioh the Order be,ow ^ ^

ta **?* " "earing in ..
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M"fr was filed December 2> 198S,
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ORDER

A finding is made that Respondent has committed willful, fla-

grant and repeated violations of Section 2 of the Act (1 U.S.C.
499b), and the facts and circumstances set forth above, shall be
published.

This order shall become effective on December 9, 1985.

Copies hereof shall be served upon the parties.

In, re: BENCHMARK BROKERAGE, INC. PACA Docket No. 2-7005, De-
cided December 4, 1985.

Fnllure to pay promptlyPublication of the facts.

Edward M, Situerstein, For complainant,
Respondent, pro se.

Decision by Dorothea A. Baker, Administrative Law Judge.

DECISION AND ORDER

PRELIMINARY STATEMENT

This is a disciplinary proceeding under the Perishable Agricul-
tural Commodities Act, 1930, as amended (7 U.S.C. 499a et seq.-,

hereinafter referred to as the "Act"), instituted by a complaint
filed on November 14, 1985, by the Director, Fruit and Vegetable
Division, Agricultural Marketing Service, United States r*-*
nient of Agriculture.
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on March
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CONCLUSIONS

^
and repeatea*

payment promptly with relpecT to th!?'
*^ t0 mflk

Findings of PactNo 4 hZ f u ,
ransactlon set forth in* ract JNo. 4 above, for which the Order below is issued.

ORDER

set

This order shall become effective on December 2 1985
Cop,eS hereof shall be served upon the parties"

MISCELLANEOUS DISCIPLINARY DECISIONS
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In re: BENCHMARK BROKERAGE, INC. PACA Docket No. 2-7005.
Order issued December 9, 1985.

Order issued by John A. Campbell, Administrative Law Judge.

ORDER GRANTING MOTION TO CHANGE EFFECTIVE DATE

A Decision and Order in the above-captioned matter was issued
upon consent of the parties, on December 4, 1985. In the Decision
and Order, it was noted that the effective date thereof was to be
December 2, 1985. Complainant, by Motion filed December 9, 1986,
moves that the effective date be changed to December 4, 1985, to
coincide with the date of issuance of the Decision and Order. For
good cause shown, complainant's Motion is granted, and it is or-
dered that the December 4, 1985, Decision and Order is hereby
amended to provide that its effective date is December 4, 1985.
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REPARATION DECISIONS

Contract terms,Price
a^tment-Disml^d.

Complainant, pro se.

Respondent, pro se.

Decision by Donald A. Campbell, Judicial Officer.

DECISION AND ORDER

PRELIMINARY STATEMENT
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1984, and were received and accepted. On January 23, 1984, 528

cartons were federally inspected. On February 1, 1984, respondent

prepared and sent. to complainant a "problem report" stating the

inspection results,

5. On approximately January 26, 1984, complainant sold to re-

spondent 176 cartons of 6x7 tomatoes at $6.00, or $880.00, plus

S2&.40 palletizing for a total of $906.40, f.o.b.

6. The tomatoes sold on January 26, 1984, were shipped in inter-

state commerce to respondent's customer, and were received and

accepted.

7. On approximately February 1, 1984, complainant sold to re-

spondent 206 cartons of 5x6 tomatoes at $14.00 per carton, or

$2,884.00, 432 cartons of 5x6 tomatoes at $16.00 per carton, or

J6.9I2.00, 611 cartons of 6x6 tomatoes at $13.00 per carton, or

$7,943,00, and 216 cartons of 6 x7 tomatoes at $10.00 per carton, or

J2.160.00, plus $219.75 palletizing, for a total of $20,118.76, f.o.b.

8. The tomatoes sold on February 1, 1984, were shipped in inter-
state commerce to respondent's customer, and were received and
accepted. On February 9, 1984, 1,249 cartons out of the 1,465 origi-

nally shipped were federally inspected, On February 11, 1984, re-

spondent prepared and sent to complainant a "problem report" re-

lating the inspection results.

9. After receiving the problem reports for the January 9, 1984,
and February 1, 1984, shipments, complainant's salesman, Tom
Banks, called respondent's salesman, Glenn Thomaaon, and asked
what they were about. After Thomason explained what the reports
represented, Banks stated that he would pay no attention to them
and advised respondent to send federal inspections on the loads in-
volved. Respondent sent the applicable inspection reports to com-
plainant on February 16, 1984.

10. On or about March 8, 1984, Thomason spoke with Banks over
the telephone, and they agreed to price adjustments of $1.50 per
carton for the January 9, 1984, load, and $2.00 per carton for the
February 1, 1984, load. Thomason confirmed these price adjust-
ments in a March 8, 1984, letter to Banks, which states as follows,
in relevant part;

As per phone conversation regarding allowances on to-
matoes that showed problems, we are taking the following
adjustments per you on these invoices:

Gulf Lake #3703, your #0505, adjusting $1.50 petf case on
all 1,465 cases.
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G
u^ f,

ke #3389
' your * 0305

' Busting $2.00 per case on
ail 1,606 cases.****** *

These are based on inspections forwarded to you under
separate cover, and I assume that you don't need another
copy. If so, just let me know.

Thank you for your consideration in finally getting these
resolved.

11. Respondent eventually paid complainant $17,928.90 for the
January 9, 1984, shipment, and $17,921.25 for the February 1 1984
shipment. Respondent paid complainant an additional $38,98845
by check, mcluding $906.40 for full payment of the January 26,iy4, shipment, with the remainder constituting payment for an-
other transaction not included in the complaint,

fn,l
Re

T
SPOnden

i
h
?
S failed to pay comPlainant any additional sum

for the January 9, 1984, and February 1, 1984, shipments.
Id. A formal complaint was filed on September 19, 1984, which

here' T6 m nthS fr m When ^ all6ged CaUS6S f aCti 11
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however, as there is strong evidence in the record supporting re-

spondent's claim of mutually agreed upon price adjustments. In a

March 8, 1984, letter to complainant's Tom Banks, contained in me

report of investigation, respondent's Glenn Thomason refers to

price adjustments arrived at with Mr. Banks of $1,50 per carton for

each of the 1,465 cartons of the January 9, 1984, shipment and

$2.00 per carton for each of the 1,606 cartons of the February 1,

1984, shipment. Complainant does not deny receiving this letter,

nor does complainant dispute the existence of these adjustments, it

is respondent's burden to prove the existence of an agreement to

alter the original contract terms (American Banana Co, Inc. v.

Marvin Gray, 41 Agric. Dec. 539 (1982)), and it is clear that re-

spondent has sustained such burden.

Complainant has been paid all to which it is entitled, and its

complaint must be dismissed.

ORDER

The complaint is hereby dismissed.

Copies of this order shall be served upon the parties.

BEEFSTAKE TOMATO GROWERS INC. v. CORGAN & SON, INC. PACA

Docket No. 2-6734. Decided November 7, 1985.

Burden of proof Breach of warranty.

Where reepondent failed to provide any evidence to sustain its burden, of

proving

a

breach of warranty, respondent is liable for the contract price of the tomatoes

purchased, received, and accepted from complainant.

Complainant, pro se.

Respondent, pro se.

Decision by Donald A, Campbell, Judicial Officer,
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plaint was served upon respondent, which filed an answer thereto,
denying liability.

Since the amount claimed as damages does not exceed $15,000.00,
the shortened procedure provided in section 47.20 of the Rulea of
Practice (7 CFR 47.20) is applicable. Pursuant to such procedure,
the report of investigation is considered to be part of the evidence,
as is the verified complaint. The answer, since it is not verified, is
not considered part of the evidence. The parties were given an op-
portunity to submit additional evidence in the form of verified
statements and to file briefs, but elected not to do so.

FINDINGS OF FACT

1. Complainant, Beefstake Tomato Growers Inc., is a corporation
whose address is Rt. 2, Box 1700, Naples, Florida.

^

2. Respondent, Corgan & Son Inc., is a corporation whose address
is 161-162 N.Y.C. Terminal Market, Bronx, New York. At the time
ot the transaction involved herein, respondent was licensed under
the Act.

8. On approximately June 2, 1984, complainant sold to respond-ent a truckload of tomatoes consisting of 1,584 cartons of 6x6 to-

f^Tdf 5
Pri e f $6<0 Per Carton

> Plus *237 -60 for PaMets and
$950.40 for degreenmg, for a total price of $10,692.00, f.o.b.

4. The truckload of tomatoes was shipped in interstate commerce
to respondent, which accepted it upon arrival

^
date

' paid comP^nant W24.00 for the
8> g $3 '168> aUflgedly due and owing to

n Novembe' 26, 1984, which
When the cause of action herein a*

CONCLUSIONS

""?****
sold "* Dipped to respondent a

& C ntraCt Price of *W,68&00, f.o.b. Re-
and acceptin^ the "<"*' ^
? tomatoes arrived ^h ^i-
$7 '524 '00 At P-d - all to which
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(1983). RespondentM^^T!^' 42 A^ic ' Dec* mnas BUb* no -evidence, .such aa a
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federal inspection report, to substantiate its claim that the truck-

load of tomatoes was abnormally deteriorated upon arrival. There-

fore, respondent is liable for the entire contract price of $10,692.01),

less the $7,524.00 already paid, or $3,168.00.

Respondent's failure to pay complainant the sum of $3,168.00 is a

violation of section 2 of the Act, for which reparation should be

awarded, with interest.

ORDER

Within 30 days from the date of this order, respondent shall pay

to complainant, as reparation, $3,168.00, with interest thereon at

the rate of 13 percent per annum from July 1, 1984, until paid.

Copies of this order shall be served upon the parties.

BATTAGLIA PRODUCE SALES, INC. v. EMERSON H.E^ d/b/a EM-

ERSON ELLIOTT PRODUCE. PACA Docket No. 2-6747. Decided No-

vember 7, 1985.

Burden of proof-Breach of warranty-Liability limited to produce 9hlpped.

Where respondent failed to provide evidence that the P

packed, and that the small peppers were in breach of warran
.

dttlon. respondent IB liable for the agreed upon contractP^S'^
enfs liability is limited to the peppers actually shipped, which dinere

that had been ordered,

Complainant, pro se.

Respondent, pro se,

Decision, by Donald A. Campbell, Judicial Officer.

DECISION AND ORDER
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complaint concerning the way the peppers were packed, or the con-

dition of the small peppers. As the peppers were accepted, respond-

ent became liable for the contract price, less damages resulting

from any breach of warranty. It is respondent's burden to prove

the breach and damages by a preponderance of the evidence (Farm

Market Service Inc. v. Albertson's Inc., 42 Agric. Dec, 429 (1983)),

and respondent has not provided any evidence to support its allega-

tions. Therefore, respondent is liable for the contract price of the

accepted peppers. However, complainant's bill of lading makes it

clear that the quantities of medium large and small medium pep-

pers that were shipped differed from the quantities sold. Therefore,

respondent's liability is limited to the peppers actually shipped,

which consisted of 253 cartons of extra large, 497 cartons ot

medium large, and 400 cartons of small, for a total contract price of

$5,890.80. Respondent's failure to pay this sum to complainant is a

violation of section 2 of the Act, for which reparation should be

awarded, with interest.

ORDER

Within 30 days from the date of this order, respondent shall pay

to complainant, as reparation, $5,890.80, with interest thereon at

the rate of 13 percent per annum from Auguat 1, 1984, until paia.

Copies of this order shall be served upon the parties.

SHANE FARMS, INC. v. CORGAN & SON, INC. PACA Docket No, 2-

6754. Decided November 7, 1985.

F.O.B. aale Reparation awarded.

Stanley K. Smnn, Mount Vernon, Wa8hington, for complainant.

Respondent, pro se.

Decision by Donald A. Campbell, Judicial Officer,
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A copy of the report of investigation made by the Dopnrtmen!was served upon the parties. A copy of the formal complaint wa
served upon respondent, which filed an unverified anawor thei*
denying liability to complainant. Although the amount claimed in
the formal complamt exceeds $15,000.00, the parties waived oral
hearing and the shortened method of procedure provided in o
tion 47.20 of the Rules of Practice (7 CFR 47.20 T ,,,!*Pursuant to this procedure, the verified complaint I, SS"
part of the evidence in the case, as is the Department' I ralrtrf
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merit basis. Both affidavits affirm that the four shipments were

sold at the f.o.b. prices stated in the complaint. We conclude on the

basis of all of the evidence that respondent purchased the aspara-

gus at the prices set forth in the complaint, totaling $64,122.20, and

accepted such asparagus upon arrival. Respondent has not proved

any defense to complainant's claim. Accordingly, we conclude that

respondent's failure to pay complainant the balance of $16,414.73 is

a violation of section 2 of the Act for which reparation should be

awarded to complainant with interest.

ORDER

Within thirty days from the date of this order, respondent shall

pay to complainant, as reparation, $16,414.73, with interest thereon

at the rate of 13 percent per annum from July 1, 1984, until paid,

Copies of this order shall be served upon the parties.

GADSDEN TOMATO Co. u. CORGAN & SON, INC. PACA Docket No. 2-

6750. Decided November 8, 1985.

Liability for contract price of accepted produce-Payment not for produce alleged

in the complaint.

Respondent found liable for the contract price of a load of tomatoes which thei com-

plaint alleged had been purchased, received, and accepted, where respondent alleged

that it had made payment for tomatoes, and complainant provided evidence that

such payment was for a load of tomatoes not included in the complaint.

Complainant, pro se.

Respondent, pro se.

Decision by Donald A. Campbell, Judicial Officer.

DECISION AND ORDER

PRELIMINARY STATEMENT

This is a reparation proceeding under the Perishable Agricultur-

al Commodities Act, 1930, as amended (7 U.S.C. 499a et seq.). A

timely complaint was filed in which complainant seeks ei repara-

tion award against respondent in the amount of $7,524.00 in con-

nection with the sale and shipment to respondent of a truckload of

tomatoes in interstate commerce.
'

A copy of the report of investigation prepared by the Department

was served upon each of the parties, A copy of the formal com-

plaint was:served on respondent, which filed an answer thereto de-

nying liability., >

'

-
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Since the amount claimed as damages does not exceed $15 00000
the shortened procedure provided in section 47.20 of the Rulw nf
Practice (7 CFR 47.20) is applicable. Pursuant to such proSre
the report of investigation is considered part of the evidence as is
the verified complaint. The answer, since it is not verified ia not
considered part of evidence. The parties were given an opportunity
to submit additional evidence in the form of verified statements
and to file briefs, but elected not to do so.

FINDINGS OF FACT

1. Complainant, Gadsden Tomato Co., is a corporation whose ad-
dress is P.O. Box 1018, Quincy, Florida.

2. Respondent, Corgan & Son, Inc., is a corporation whose ad-
dress is 161-163 N.Y.C. Terminal Market, Bronx, New York. At the
time of the transaction involved herein, respondent was licensed
under the Act.

3. On approximately June 30, 1984, complainant sold to respond-
ent a truckload of tomatoes consisting of 1,584 boxes at $100 per
box, plus $237.60 for palletizing and $950.40 for processing, for a
total sales price of $7,524.00, f.o.b.

4. On June 30, 1984, complainant loaded the 1,584 boxes of toma-
toes onto a truck bearing license number S33996 Fla., with re-

spondent's place of business as its destination. The driver was in-
structed to refrigerate the load at 54F. A bill of lading wns pro-
pared reflecting this information, and signed by the driver,

_

5. On June 30, 1984, the truckload of tomatoes was shipped, in
interstate commerce, to respondent, who received and accepted it

upon arrival.

6. On July 2, 1984, complainant sent respondent an invoice re-

flecting the contract terms, including the sales price of $7,624.00.
Respondent never made any objection upon receipt of this invoice.

7. Respondent has failed to make any payment for the truckload
of tomatoes at issue,

8. A formal complaint was filed on December 3, 1984, which was
within nine months from when the cause of action herein accrued.

CONCLUSIONS
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$7,524.00. The June 29, 1984, load is obviously the one to which re-

spondent refers to in its answer, Respondent thus does not allege

payment for the June 30, 1984, load which is the subject of the

complaint herein.

Complainant has presented a bill of lading which indicates that

it loaded 1,584 boxes of tomatoes on a truck for shipment to re-

spondent. Complainant has also included a copy of its invoice to re-

spondent, showing the date of billing as July 2, 1984, There is noth-

ing in the record showing that respondent did not receive and

accept the truckload of tomatoes. In addition, there is no evidence

that respondent objected upon receipt of complainant's invoice.

Therefore, it is clear that by accepting the tomatoes without objec-

tion, respondent became liable for the agreed contract price there-

for. Farm Market Service, Inc. v. Albertson's, Inc., 42 Agric. Dec.

429 (1983).

Respondent's failure to pay complainant the agreed contract

price of $7,524.00 is a violation of section 2 of the Act, for which

reparation should be awarded, with interest.

ORDER

Within 30 days from the date of this order, respondent shall pay

to complainant, as reparation $7,524.00, with interest thereon at

the rate of 13 percent per annum from August 1, 1984, until paid.

Copies of this order shall be served upon the parties.

MENDELSON-ZELLER Co. v. OTAY PACKING Co. PACA Docket No. 2-

6978. Decided November 20, 1985.

Payment of undisputed amount.

Decision by Donald A. Campbell Judicial Officer.

ORDER REQUIRING PAYMENT OF UNDISPUTED AMOUNT

This is a reparation proceeding under the Perishable Agricultur-

al Commodities Act, 1930, as amended (7 U.S.C. 499a et Seq.\ A

timely informal complaint was filed on February 18, 1985, and a

formal complaint was filed on July 1, 1985. Complainant seeks to

recover $25,023.00, which amount is alleged to be the total pur-

chase price for tomatoes sold to and accepted
^by^pondent

in

transactions occurring between October 4 and 16, 1984. **"**
filed an answer to the formal complaint on September 16, 1986, aoV

mitting that $23,970.00 of the amount claimed by complainant was
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mplainant on acc unt of the transact t

Section 7(s) of the Act (7 U.S.C. 499g(a provides, in part;

If after the respondent has filed his answer to the coo.

ted'l^ ' -

aPP
f

6arS thel '

ein that the resPdent has adi.il.ted lability for a portion of the amount claimed i,, the
complaint as damages, the Secretary . . . may &

"'

order directing the respondent to pay the complain (hund sputed amount . . . ]eaying the regponde
P
t

,

s ^for the disputed amount for subsequent determination.

Accordingly under the authority of the above quoted section ,*

$23

n
970

n
nn

S

p
a11 m

, *,
mplainant' an undisputed^ 1S ^^TX* f

?iS am Unt Sha11 be made ^ 30 da^from the date of this order with interest thereon at the rate of 3
percent per annum from November 1, 1984
Respondent's liability for payment of the disputed amount is leftfor subsequent determination in the same manner and !

order for ther.wUuiC: ao u no oraer tor the payment of the

Copies of this order shall be served upon the parties.

CAL-MEX DISTRIBUTORS, INC. . GEORGE VILLALOBOS d/b/a

P.O.B.
sale-Inspection-Accountings^Reparation awarded.

George 5. W/iiHen, Presiding Officer.

Complainant, pro se,

Respondent, pro se.

Decision by Donald A. Campbell, Judicial Officer.
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served upon respondent who filed an answer thereto denying liabil-

ity to complainant.

Although the amount claimed in the formal complaint exceeds

$15,000.00, the parties waived oral hearing, and the shortened

method of procedure provided in section 47.20 of the Rules of Prac-

tice (7 CPR 47.20) is applicable. Pursuant to this procedure the

verified pleadings of the parties are considered a part of the evi-

dence in the case, as is the Department's report of investigation. In

addition, the parties were given an opportunity to file evidence in

the form of sworn statements. Complainant filed an opening state-

ment, respondent filed an answering statement, and complainant

filed a statement in reply. Eespondent filed a brief which has not

been considered, since it was not filed within the time allowed.

FINDINGS OP FACT

1. Complainant, Cal-Mex Distributors, Inc., is a corporation

whose address is P.O. Box 1717, Chula Vista, California.
^

2. Respondent, George Villalobos, is an individual doing business

as Teksun Brand International, whose address is 1865 Decatur

Drive, San Jose, California. At the time of the transactions in-

volved herein respondent was licensed under the Act.

3. On or about the dates set forth below complainant sold and

shipped to respondent perishable produce in the following quanti-

ties and sizes, and at the following prices:

IN- S5
VOICE DfflgJP-

6480 3/9/84 396 Fits. Pink

Tomatoes

1320 Fits. Pink

Tomatoes

P&C

6481 8/12/ 695 Fits, Pink

84
Tomatoes

756 Lgs. Pink

Tomatoes

54 Lgs. Pink

Tomatoes

108 Pink

Tomatoes

P&C

SIZE EACH

5x6 7.00 2,772.00

5x6 6.00 7,920.00

.60 858.00

11,550.00

5X6 6.00 3,954.00

6x7 5.00 3,780.00

7X7 4- 216.00

6x7 5.00 540.00

.60 868.00

9,278.00
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Tomatoes
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B6580

107 Lgs. Pink
Tomatoes

54 Lgs. Pink

Tomatoes

P&C

25 To-

matollo

P&C

6x6 6.00 642.00

6x7 5.00 270.00

.50 609.50

G586 4/2/84 528 Fits. Pink

Tomatoes

729 Fits. Pink

Tomatoes

216 Lga, Pink

Tomatoes

216 Lgs. Pink

Tomatoes

P&C

6,569.50

5.00 125.00

.50 12.60

137.50

6,707.00

5X5 7,00 3,696.00

5x6 6.00 4,752,00

6X6 7.00 1,612.00

6X7 6.00 1,296.00

.50 876.00

12,132.00

$82,849.00

4. All of the produce listed above originated in Mexico and was

shipped by complainant from its place of business in Chula Vista,

California to respondent in San Jose, California. Respondent re-

ceived and accepted all of the above produce on arrival, and has

not paid complainant any part of the purchase price thereof.

5, The formal complaint was filed on May 14, 1984, which was

within nine months after the causes of action herein accrued.

CONCLUSIONS

Complainant alleges that the produce referred to in Finding of

Fact 3 was sold to respondent on a f.o.b. basis, and that such

produce was accepted by respondent at destination, but that re-

spondent has failed to pay any part of the purchase price thereof,

Respondent admits that the produce was received on approximate-
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ly the dates of shipment set forth in Finding of Fact 3, but denta
that such produce was sold on a f.o.b. basis, but rather alleges that
Lcjomplamant asked respondent for assistance in selling the prod-uct on an 'open basis' and to report sales, less cost of freight and

commission. In addition respondent alleges that complainant
shipped the product over respondent's objection, and that when
complainant was asked if respondent should get a federal inxncc*
toon respondent was told, in effect, that such was not necessaryHowever respondent submitted copies of five federal inspecliim
certificates in an effort to show that the tomatoes arrived in bad
condition. Respondent also alleges that complainant held the toma-
toes too long, and at too low a temperature, and knowingly Bliiuiicd
tomatoes to respondent which complainant could not sell to anyone
else. Respondent complains that complainant failed to submit docu-
mentation of inspections admittedly made of the tomato whrn
hey crossed the boarder from Mexico into California, and allotfcatnat in so failing complainant violated section 47.3(3) of the Kuloa
of Practice (7 CFR 47.3(3)). Respondent alleges that complninimt
tailed to submit the inspections because if submitted they would
have shown that complainant held the tomatoes in its warehouse
too long.

The first issue to be decided is whether the tomatoes wore oM to
respondent on a f.o.b. basis for the prices set forth in tho com-
plaint, or whether the tomatoes were on an open basia as confid-
ed by respondent. Complainant attached to its formal ooinpluint
copies of invoices and bills of lading for each of the shipmentBoth of these documents show the tomatoes sold at the price* mi

35LT f^ ?Vf FaCt a ResP ndent "Ueged in its answorJnnstatement that it returned each of the invoices with notations

NrT4si S1nan'lmits receivinS only three of theso invoice*

dWnof nff f ;-

and 6586) back from resPndent, and nnpcmdoiil

nf ^ testimon
/ concerning the time or fact of mailing u* to

Co 5 * r 1Ce

t
S
f F wler PackinZ Co - v" Associated Oh

coDiafnm
'

.
Ag

f
iC< Dec ' 87 (1977) ' Respondent attaehoil

SrtttSn ^"T? ^ anawe S statement. Each h 8 a hand-written note, and also shows the prices marked out with an "X".
attach "nts ^ ^ statement in roply

W6re returned bv respondent to

the oriSinal "otes written by re-

u
the n tes Shown on the

, .

the pnces on the actual
Had comP^inant not submitted

y respondent
.

fl
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submissions that respondent had returned invoices to complainant

which constituted a, protest against the prices set forth on the in-

voice. The notes which respondent wrote on the invoices admittedly

returned do not constitute such a protest standing alone. The note

at the bottom of invoice no. 6481 stated: "I have not finished this

load I will call you when I do. O.K. SIR G.V.". The note at the

bottom of invoice no. 6482 stated merely: "We are working on them

will call you. O.K. SIR G.V." and the note at the bottom of invoice

no, 6586 stated: "Under Federal Inspection". We conclude on the

basis of all of the evidence that respondent has failed to prove its

contention that the tomatoes were sold on an open basis. Respond-

ent has also failed to prove by a preponderance of the evidence

that there was an agreement between the parties after arrival and

acceptance that the tomatoes be sold on a consignment basis.

Respondent submitted copies of five federal inspection certifi-

cates purporting to cover the subject tomatoes. However, all of

these certificates are dated either April 4, or April 5, 1984, which is

from 5 to 26 days after arrival of all but the last load of tomatoes.

Consequently these inspection certificates cannot be accepted as an

indication of the condition of any of the tomatoes included on the

first eight loads. See Max Feldbaum & Sons v. Alderiso, 27 Agric.

Dec. 763 (1968); Heitzman Produce .v. Palella, 26 Agric. Dec. 921

(1967); and Pan-American Fruit Company v. Halem Hazzouri, 25

Agric. Dec. 681 (1966). In addition some of respondent's statements,

reported on the inspection certificates, as to which tomatoes were

covered by the certificates are obviously incorrect. For instance on

certificate G-008553 it is reported under "remarks" that "Appli-

cant states above lot is remainder of 396-2 layer and 640-3 layer

cartons originally received on March 24, 1984." However, under

"products inspected" the inspector disclosed that some of the toma-

toes inspected were size 6x7. The March 24, 1984, shipment of to-

matoes included no size 6x7 tomatoes, but some of the earlier ship-

ments did include 6x7 tomatoes. Apparently this inspection certifi-

cate covered some tomatoes that were received even earlier than

the March 24, 1984, date stated by respondent. As there are similar

problems with some of the other certificates we are unable to say

that the certificates which purport to cover the tomatoes shipped

in the last load, April 2, 1984, actually do cover such tomatoea.

Respondent submitted a "report of sales" covering the last eight

shipments of tomatoes. The report does not claim to cover the first

shipment. This "report of sales" is not adequate as an accounting

in that it nowhere discloses the dates on which the sales were

made, and gives only an average sale price for each of the sizes of

tomatoes out of each shipment, rather than a break down of all of
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the sales for each shipment. In addition the "report of sales" shows
a substantial number of cartons of tomatoes dumped, but it is no-
where disclosed on what date the dumping took place, nor was the
report of sales accompanied by timely dumping certificates The
five federal inspection certificates dated April 4, and April 5 1&8J
although they show in some cases very large amounts of decay, aie
not adequate as dumping certificates, since there is no way to know
how long the tomatoes covered by such certificates were held prior
to the inspections,

Respondent has complained throughout this proceeding that com-
plamant violated section 47.3(3) of the Rules of Practice by fail
to submit copies of inspection reports made of the tomatoes when
they crossed into this country from Mexico. The section of the
Rules of Practice cited by respondent states as follows:

The informal complaint should, so far as practicable, be
accompanied by true copies of all available papers relating
to the transaction complained about, including shipping
documents, letters, telegrams, invoices, manifests, inspec-
tion certificates, accounts sales, and any special contracts
or agreements."

Respondent has interpreted this section as though it were a man-
datory requirement. Such is not the case. This section of the Rules
o Practice is advisory in nature, and intended merely to aid a com-
plamant m the proof of its case. There is no requirement that a
complainant or respondent submit any evidence whatsoever in a
"Deeding under the Apt, A ,T.f, r ^i,, _* i......
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ORDER

Within 30 days from the date of this order, respondent shall pay

to complainant, as reparation, $82,649.00, with interest thereon at

the rate of 13 percent per annum from May 1, 1984, until paid.

Copies of this order shall be served upon the parties.

PIONEER MARKETING COMPANY u. JOHN R. HOFFMAN, JR., PRODUCE

Co. PACA Docket No. 2-6711. Decided November 21, 1985.

F.O.B, sale-Acceptance-Payment to wrong party-Failure to pay-Reparation

awarded. . .. , . .

Where respondent purchased, received, and accepted load of lettuce, it is liable to

seller for full purchase price even if it made payment to wrong party.

Complainant, pro se,

Respondent, pro se,

Decision by Donald A. Campbell, Judicial Officer.

DECISION AND ORDER

PRELIMINARY STATEMENT

This is a reparation proceeding under the Perishable Agricultur-

al Commodities Act, 1930, as amended (7 U.S.C. 499a et seq.\ A

timely complaint was filed in which complainant seeks a repara-

tion award against respondent in the amount of $2,904.00 in con-

nection with a transaction, in interstate commerce, involving let-

tuce, a perishable agricultural commodity.

A copy of the Department's report of investigation was served on

both parties. Respondent also was served with a copy of the com-

plaint, and filed an answer thereto denying any liability to com-

plainant.
Since the amount claimed as damages did not exceed $15,000.00,

the shortened method of procedure provided in section 47.20 of the

Rules of Practice (7 CFR 47.20) was followed. Pursuant to this

procedure, the verified pleadings of the parties are considered a

part of the evidence of the case, as is the Department's report of

investigation. In addition, the parties were given the opportunity to

file further evidence by way of sworn statements, but neither of

them did so, Also, neither party filed a brief.

FINDINGS OP FACT

1, Complainant, Pioneer Marketing Company, is a corporation

whose mailing address is P.O. Box 2034, Yuma, Arizona 85364.
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2. Respondent, John R. Hoffman, Jr., Produce Co., is a corpora-
tion whose mailing address is Units 21-23-25, Louisville Pradiwa
Terminal, Louisville, Kentucky 40218. At all material times, the re-

spondent was licensed under the Act.

3. On or about February 20, 1984 in the (jourae of interstate com-
merce, complainant, by oral contract, sold to the respondent n par-
tial truckload of lettuce, consisting of 480 cartons, at an agreed
price of $5.00 per carton plus 80 cents cooling, and 25 cents broker-
age, for a total f.o.b. price of $2,904.00. The contract was negotiated
by Taylor-Bvers Co., Inc., ("Taylor-Byers"), P.O. Box 819, Sharps*
burg, North Carolina 27878. Taylor-Byers issued a broker's memo-
randum on February 20, 1984, #14355, confirming the above agree,
ment. The lettuce was received and accepted by the respondent,
The respondent has not paid complainant for the shipment.

4. On or about April 4, 1984, respondent issued a check to Taylor-
Byers in the amount of $1,947.00. This check was negotiated by the
latter company.

5. The complaint was filed on October 18, 1984, which was within
nine months after the cause of action herein accrued.

CONCLUSIONS

The dispositive issue in this case concerns whether or not Clio

parties entered into an agreement whereby the complainant would
sell and the respondent would buy a partial truckload of lettuce

consisting of 480 cartons. This is the position asserted by the com-
plamant. The complainant's position is consistent with its invoices,

"ith the broker's memorandum issued bv Tavlor-Rvoi-s. Tta
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Taylor-Byers. Respondent has offered no probative evidence to

counter these documents. We must conclude that complainant has

satisfied its burden of proving that it had a contractual relationship

with respondent with respect to the 480 cartons of lettuce, that re-

spondent received and accepted them, and that respondent has

failed to pay for them. 1

Therefore, on the basis of all of the evidence, we conclude that

the respondent is obligated to the complainant in the amount of

the contract price of $2,904.00. The respondent's failure to pay com-

plainant this amount is a violation of section 2 of the Act for which

reparation plus interest should be awarded.

ORDER

Within thirty days of the date of this order, respondent shall pay

complainant $2,904.00 plus interest in the amount of 13% per

annum from April 1, 1984, until paid.

Copies of this order shall be served upon the parties,

Six L's PACKING COMPANY, INC. v. EMERSON-ELLIOTT PRODUCE.

PACA Docket No. 2-6727. Decided November 21, 1985.

Probative value of inspection-Suitable shipping condition warranty applicable

only at Contract destination.

Where respondent accepted tomatoes contract destination in Florida and then

shipped them to his customer in Puerto Rico, inspection in Puerto Rico, which in-

cluded undetermined proportion of tomatoes from another shipment, was insuffi-

cient to show breach at contract destination in Florida. Reparation awarded to com-

plainant for balance of purchase price.

Complainant, pro se.

Respondent, pro se.

Decision by Donald A. Campbell, Judicial Officer.

DECISION AND ORDER

PRELIMINARY STATEMENT

This is a reparation proceeding under the Perishable Agricultur-

al Commodities Act, 1930, as amended (7 U.S.C. 499a et seq.). A

.
* We note that, on April 4, 1984, respondent issued a check to Taylor-Byers for

$1,947.00 which it claims was payment for 330 cartons of lettuce at $5.90 per carton.

There is no proof of this, In fact, the contract price for the lettuce was $6.05 per

carton. Also, in any event, even if respondent paid Taylor-flyers $1,947.00 for the

lettuce, Taylor-Byers was not the proper payee, and respondent still remains obli-

gated to complainant, Adam v. Perna, 81 Agric. Dec, 431 (1972),
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timely complaint was filed in which complainant sought nn award
of reparation against respondent in the amount of $16,704,00 in
connection with two shipments of tomatoes in interstate commerce.
A copy of the report of investigation made by the Department

was served upon the parties. A copy of the formal complaint WAH
served upon respondent, which filed an answer thereto adtniUintf
liability to complainant for the entire amount of the September 7,

1984, shipment of tomatoes, or $8,784.90, and for $5,042.50 of Iho
amount due on the August 17, 1984, load of tomatoes, or a total ad-
mitted liability of $13,827.40. Respondent denied liability to coin-

plainant for a balance of $2,876.60 in connection with the August
17, 1984, load of tomatoes. On March 26, 1985, an order waf) Jasued
in favor of complainant against respondent requiring the paymyn I

of $13,827.40 as an undisputed amount. Respondent's liability fur

payment of the disputed amount was left for subsequent determi-
nation in the same manner and under the same procedure IIH iFntj
order for the payment of the undisputed amount had been iHswwl.

Although the amount claimed in the formal complaint oxccoctod

$15,000.00, the parties waived oral hearing, and the ahortoned
method of procedure provided in section 47.20 of the Rules of Prac-
tice (7 CFR 47.20) is applicable. Pursuant to this procedure, thr*

verified pleadings of the parties are considered a part of the vi-

dence in the case, as is the Department's report of investigation. In

addition, the parties were given an opportunity to file evidence in

the form of sworn statements. Complainant did not file an opening
statement. Respondent filed an answering statement. Nelthor pnrlv
filed a brief.

FINDINGS OP FACT

1. Complainant, Six L's Packing Company, Inc., ia a corporation
whose address is P.O. Box 1987, Hollywood, Florida.

2. Respondent, Emerson Elliott, is an individual doing buaint^
as Emerson-Elliott, whose address is P.O. Box 745, Coflselberry.
Florida. At the time of the transactions involved herein respondent
was licensed under the Act.

*.% or about August 17, 1984, complainant sold to reupondenL

w
te oad ^sisting of 1284 packages of extra large Shicfc-

ay Pflda brand tomatoes at $6.00 per package, plus Ifi cento

, and $22.50 for a temperature recorder,

*984 ' comP*ainant shipped the tomatoes from

' Pennsylvania to respondent at con*

Florida. The tomatoes were accept-
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ed by respondent on arrival in Casselberry, Florida, and subse-

quently shipped by respondent to Puerto Rico.

5. The formal complaint was filed on November 2, 1984, which

was within nine months after the cause of action herein accrued.

CONCLUSIONS

In its answer respondent asserted that he owed complainant only

$5,042.50 for the load of tomatoes shipped on August 17, 1984, be-

cause "the customer did not pay the full amount." Respondent

then referenced attachments to the answer which consisted of a

federal inspection certificate, and its invoice to its customer which

showed the original invoice amount crossed out with $5,800.50 writ-

ten in. Respondent's answering statement merely consisted of the

resubmission of its answer. Consequently the federal inspection cer-

tificate attached to the answer is the only possible justification for

respondent's failure to pay the balance of the purchase price on the

August 17, 1984, shipment of tomatoes. This inspection report dis-

closes that the tomatoes were inspected on August 23, 1984, at 3:00

p.m. in Puerto Rico. There is no showing as to when the tomatoes

arrived at contract destination in Florida. The suitable shipping

condition warranty provided in the regulations in connection with

a f.o.b. sale assures delivery without abnormal
deterioration^

only

"at the contract destination agreed upon between the parties." (See

7 CFR 46.43(j). See also B & L Produce v. Florance Distb. Co., 37

Agric, Dec, 78 (1978). In addition the inspection report covered 1400

cartons of tomatoes stacked at the cooler belonging to respondent's

customer. The remarks at the close of the inspection certificate

state that according to the applicant the tomatoes were unloaded

from a trailer bearing the same number as that shown by com-

plainant's invoice to have been the trailer on which the tomatoes

were shipped, and also from an additional trailer. There is no

showing as to what portion of the 1400 cartons came from which

trailer. Although the inspection report shows all of the tomatoes as

bearing the "Shickshinny Pride" brand, it is obvious that an unde-

termined portion of the tomatoes came from another shipment. It

is also obvious that this could not have been the second shipment,

as to which respondent admitted complete liability, since such ship-

ment of tomatoes was not shipped until September 7, 1984. We con-

clude that respondent has failed to show the condition of the toma-

toes on arrival at:contract destination in Casselberry, Florida, and
consequently has ^failed to show any breach of contract on the part
of complainant.

Since respondent accepted the tomatoes, and has not proven any
breach of-contract on ;the^ part, of complainant, respondent is liable
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to complainant for the full purchase price thereof, or $7,119.10.
Complainant was previously awarded $5,042.50 of this amount by
our order of March 26, 1985. Consequently respondent's remaining
liability to complainant is for $2,876.60. Respondent's failure to pay
complainant such amount is a violation of section 2 of the Act for
which reparation should be awarded to complainant with interest.

ORDER

Within thirty days from the date of this order, respondent shall

pay to complainant, as reparation, $2,876.60, with interest thereon
at the rate of 13% per annum from September 1, 1984, until paid.
Copies of this order shall be served upon the parties.

JACK T. HUMPHREYS d/b/a HALLMARK PRODUCE COMPANY v. THAD-
DEUS J. SOBIECH d/b/a TED SOBIECH. PACA Docket No. 2-G757.
Decided November 22, 1985.

Waiver of oral hearing-Failure to raise specific defense in answer-JurlsdlcUon
to award freight charge.

Where respondent failed to raise specific defense to complainant for purchase
price of produce received by respondent, complainant awarded reparation. Respond-
ent was found to have waived oral hearing by not objecting to inadvertent use of
shortened procedure. Secretary was found to have jurisdiction over alleged freight
charge which were a component of the contract between the parties.

Complainant, pro se.

Michael 8, Gottlieb, Middletown, New York, for respondent,

Decision by Donald A. Campbell, Judicial Officer.

DECISION AND ORDER

PRELIMINARY STATEMENT

This is a reparation proceeding under the Perishable Agricultur-
al Commodities Act, 1930, as amended (7 U.S.C. 499a et seq.). A
timely complaint was filed in which complainant sought an award
of reparation against respondent in the amount of $46,335.75, in
connection with the shipment in interstate commerce of eight
trucklots of onions.

A 'Copy of the report of investigation made by the Department
was .served upon the parties. A copy of the formal complaint was

upon Despondent, which filed an answer thereto denying li-

complainant.

in the formal <>niplaint exceeds $15,000.00,
an .oral hearing in his answer. However,
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the proceeding was inadvertently set down as a non oral hearing

case to be heard under the shortened method of procedure provided

in section 47.20 qf the Rules of Practice (7 CFR 47.20). On March

28, 1985, the presiding officer wrote a letter to complainant giving

complainant 20 days from the date of receipt of the letter in which

to file an opening statement under the shortened method of proce-

dure. A copy of this letter was sent to respondent's attorney. In

this letter the presiding officer stated in relevant part as follows:

Although the amount involved herein exceeds

$15,000.00, the parties have waived oral hearing. Accord-

ingly, the shortened method of procedure will be followed

as provided in section 47.20 of the Rules of Practice.

Respondent's attorney made no objection to this letter, and on

May 10, 1985, a letter was addressed directly to respondent's attor-

ney giving respondent opportunity to file an answering statement

pursuant to the shortened method of procedure. There also was no

objection as a consequence of this letter. Since respondent was

made aware of the fact that the shortened method of procedure

would be followed, and has at no point in this proceeding voiced

any objection to the following of such procedure we conclude that

respondent has waived oral hearing.

Neither party filed any evidence under the shortened procedure.

Both parties were given opportunity to file a brief, and complain-

ant submitted a letter in which he stated the respondent had paid

in full for all of the invoices which formed the basis of the com-

plaint with the exception of one. Complainant stated that the only

amount remaining due on this one invoice was freight in the

amount of $2,070.00.

FINDINGS OF FACT

1. Complainant, Jack T. Humphreys, is an individual doing busi-

ness as Hallmark Produce Co. whose address is P.O. Box 1267, Ed-

inburg, Texas.

2. Respondent, Thaddeus J. Sobiech, is an individual doing busi-

ness as Ted Sobiech whose address is P.O. Box 158, Pine Island,

New York. At the time of the transactions involved herein respond-

ent was licensed under the Act.

3. On or about May 23, 1984, complainant sold and shipped to re-

spondent 900 fifty pound sacks of Pre-Pak Yellow Onions at $7.80

per sack, or a total price of $7,020.00 delivered. Respondent re-

ceived and accepted the onions at its place of business in Pine

Island, New York, and has paid complainant $4,960.00, leaving a

balance still due and owing of $2,070.00.
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4. The formal complaint was filed on November 28 1984 whkhwas within nine months after the causes of action heroin nccrurf.

CONCLUSIONS

As set forth in the preliminary statement complainant, by an ad-
mission in his brief, admitted receiving payment for nil of the
transactions set forth in the formal complaint except ono That
transaction is the one which is the subject of finding of fiwt 3
above. Respondent's answer admitted arrival of all of tho commod-
ities at destination but denied, in general terms, any liability lo

complainant. A letter from respondent's attorney which accompa.med the answer stated in relevant part that "In sum mid sub-
stance, the respondent claims that he has paid to tho comptatmint
substantially all of the sums due and owing for any perishable ngri-
cultural commodities received." It appears from the admiwtfon in

complainant's brief that this statement is "substantially" correct.

However, respondent's failure in his answer to specify tho nature
of any defense in regard to the May 23, 1984, shipment of onions
leaves us with no alternative but to find that respondent h liatb
to complainant for the remainder of the purchase price of such
onions.

On August 2, 1985, after being served with complainant's brief,

respondent's attorney filed a letter with the hearing clork nllcgintf
that the remaining disputed amount of $2,070.00 was for freight on
the shipment which is the subject of finding of fact 3, and that con-

sequently the Department has no jurisdiction to adjudicate the dis-

pute. Respondent's determination that the amount of $2,070.00 con-
cerns freight is based upon documents of an evidentnry nalura
which were submitted along with complainant's brief, Those docu-
ments indicate that, rtip ahinmonf mo * ^^v^iu. u,iiij *~
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commodity, then the liability between the parties for such freight

charges arises out of the transaction, and the Secretary does have

jurisdiction.

We conclude that respondent is liable to complainant for the> bal-

ance of the purchase price of the onions shipped on May 23, 1984,

or $2,070.00. Respondent's failure to pay complainant such amount

is a violation of section 2 of the Act for which reparation should be

awarded to complainant with interest.

ORDER

Within thirty days from date of this order, respondent shall pay

to complainant, as reparation, $2,070.00, with interest thereon at

the rate of 13 percent per annum from July 1, 1984, until paid.

Copies of this order shall be served upon the parties.

GOLDEN STATE DISTRIBUTORS v. WILJEMAN BROS, & ELLIOT, INC,

PACA Docket No. 2-6676. Decidecj November 26, 1985.

Brokerage CounterclaimBurden of proof. !

Where respondent fails to sustain its burden of proving that broker/complainant

failed to carry out its duties as a broker, broker/complainant awarded brokerage

earned.
;

Edivard M, Silverstein, Presiding Officer,

Steve Williams, Visalia, California, for complainant.

Philip T. Hamburg, Visalia, California, for respondent.

Decision by Donald A. Campbell, Judicial Officer.

DECISION AND ORDER

PRELIMINARY STATEMENT

This is a reparation proceeding under the Perishable Agricultur-

al Commodities Act, 1930, as amended (7 U.S.C. 499a et seq.). A

timely complaint was filed in which complainant seeks a repara-

tion award against respondent in the amount of $1,^7AUU in con-

nection with six transactions, m interstate commerce, involving

perishable agricultural commodities.

A copy of the Department's report of investigation, as well as a

copy of the supplemental report of investigation, were served on

both parties. Respondent also was served with a copy of the ormal

complaint, and filed an answer thereto denying any liability'to

complainant. Respondent also filed a counterclaim against com

plainant in which it seeks a reparation award against
^

Complainant

in the amount of $7,013.86 in connection with one of the six trans-
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actions which were made the subject of the complaint. Complain-

apondtt

" oounterdaim denying any liability tore-

Since the amount claimed as damages did not exceed $16,000 00the shortened method of procedure provided in section 47 20 of hoRules, of Practice (7 CFR 47.20) was followed. Pursuant to this
procedure the verified pleading of the parties are considered a paof the evidence of the case, as is the Department's reports of inves
tagation. In addition, the parties were given the opportunity to filefurther evidence by way of sworn statements, but neither party didso. 1

Also, neither party filed a brief.
V

FINDINGS OF FACT

plainant, Golc

iling address if

nia 93710,

1. Complainant, Golden State Distributors, is a corporationwhose maUmg address is 1212 E. Brandywine Lane, Fresno'S"
2. Respondent, Wileman Bros. & Elliot, Inc., is a corporationwhose ma ling address is P.O. Box 308, Cutter, California 93615

A
A At all material times, both parties were licensed under the

6
' 1983 ' throueh June 10

> 1983, com-

rrd ^v ,

S 3
f"""" n behalf of V*<*

fruits T.1
*raT tlons in WnB various shipment* of

S^teS?f? > agrioultural commodities, in interstate

toTlfi; t
broke So earned by complainant with regard

ompSLan tSST? t
$96 ' ' As * eaCh f these *-t

complainant issued brokers memoranda of sale. Althoueh it
c

respondent dw no

uneiilqs, "? ?**
*ransactions mentioned in J4 above, on

spondent anrf A r
P T"'D

neftiated a transaction between re-

eTateed to stil r, 'S P6"^1 "1^ whereby respond-

V t6
/ 1

W Cart nS f VJ- Red Beaut P1 8'

PlUS

brokerage services. Respondent was sent a copy of

dep 8ition

.
) and wffer

e RuleB

V CTR 4^ACCOrrndv^^^ ^accordance with the Rul
?fl

of Practice,

ing.
Accordingly, it Is not considered to be in evidence in thig proceed

1 -
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the brokers' memorandum, and did not object to any of the terms

contained therein.

fc Respondent invoiced A. Cancelmo for the 1,560 cartona of

plums.
The terms on the respondent's invoice no. 1-218-11, which

it sent to A. Cancelmo on June 11, 1983, were the same as those on

complainant's June 13, 1983, brokers' memorandum, i.e., respond-

ent billed A. Cancelmo for the 1,560 cartons of plums at $12.00 per

carton, plus 70$ per carton for cooling, and $22.50 for a Ryan re-

corder, for a total f.o.b. price of $19,834.50.

7. Respondent, on June 11, 1983, shipped the 1,560 cartons of

plums to A. Cancelmo. Before the shipment arrived, respondent

became aware that A. Cancelmo had had problems with two loads

of plums which it had shipped to A. Cancelmo on June 4 and 10,

1983.
2 As a consequence of the problems with these two loads, re-

spondent diverted the 1,560 cartons of plums shipped on June 11,

1983, to Chas. H. Elkins, Inc. ("Elkins"), in New Yor : City, New

York. On June 15, 1983, the 1,560 cartons of plums, without having

been inspected, were sold by Elkins at auction for respondent s ac-

count of $12.25 per carton, or $19,110.00. Other loads of Red

Beauts, the same variety of plum as involved herem, sold on that

day for $21.00 and $15.00 per carton.

. On August 9, 1983, respondent filed an
^

informal c

with the Department regarding the load of 1,560 Red
j

was within nine month, after its cause of act.w accrued.

given the opportunity, respondent declined to file a formal com

P

'fon October 14, 1983, complainant filed an*$g**
regarding the brokerage on the six

tf
ansactions made *he su

J^ ^
the complaint. This was within nine months after in

action accrued.

CONCLUSIONS

Complainant alleges that it P^id^^fĥ ^
ices on six transactions and that^^^^^^ in the

$1,272.00 owed it for these services. Aii
du||ivejy estab-

record has been reviewed and *uc* e
7;n ^pondent's

behalf

iishes that complainant did act as a.** "

t doejj indeed

on these six transactions, and that
-JW*" for^^ wr

complainant the $1,272,00 dtaH^.
Respondent's failure to pay .complainant

-

'

-re a.ong^^
brokered by complainant. C jS^
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of section 2 of the Act for which reparation plus interest should I

awarded.

Respondent's counterclaim deals with one of these six trim
tions. It alleged, but has failed to prove, that respondent liml tot
about having sold that load of 1,560 cartons of Red Beauta to A
Cancelmo, The evidence submitted by the parties establishes that
this load was sold to A. Cancelmo, but that, because of problems
encountered by A. Cancelmo on two previous loads, respondent"*!!
verted the plums to a New York City dealer for auction sale Hc

'

spondent has failed to prove its counterclaim by a
preponderance

of the evidence. The counterclaim must therefore be disinkwl
Bushwick Comm'n Co. v. Maloney, 18 Agric. Dec. 1029 (1959)

ORDER

Within 30 days of the date of this order, respondent shall nay to

complainant $1,272.00, as reparation, with interest thereon nt (lie
rate of 13% per annum from July 1, 1983, until paid.
The counterclaim is dismissed.

Copies of this order shall be served upon the parties.

-IBBY'S FRESH FOOD COMPANY, INC. v. EMBRSON H. ELUOTT d/b/n
EMERSON ELUOTT PRODUCE. PACA Docket No. 2-6716. Decided
November 26, 1985.

Collecting: agent-Failure to remit to principal-Failure to submit cvldence-M
ability for full amount of claim.

im t-Yiumct 1.1

unverified answer and no evidence, ma
and complainant's verified claims are given full credit

Thomas C. Heinz, Presiding Officer,

Complainant, pro se.

Respondent, pro se.

Decision by Donald A. Campbell, Judicial Officer.

DECISION AND ORDER
This is a reparation proceeding under the Perishable Agricullur-al Commodi ies Act, 1930, as amended (7 U.S.C. 499a et ?.).

A
t mely complaint was filed in which complainant sought a repara-tion award against respondent in the amount of $16,772.99 in con-

the plum" were flold to * ^aler for a prfei of

y shows that the dealer had the load auotloned
, and that the proceeds on auction were $19,110.00,
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section with the sale and shipment of four truddoada of watermel-

served upon the
'^P.^^ ^n effec denying liability as

r

-
vestigation is considered par of ^ ence as

&_

-
brief.

FINDINGS OF FACT

I. Complainant, Libby's Fresh Food

tion with a mailing address at P. 0. Box

,

a
ness as Emerson Elliott Produce

^^ a mamg a

Box 745, Casselberry, Florida 32707. At the, urn

invdved herein respondent wasb---^^ ghipped one

3, On or about June 19, 1984,^T*^ to Cruce Produce,

trucklot of watermelons ^h^T^Opo^^ ^ eom.

Salina, Kansas. Responded n*atod he con ^^^
plainant's agent and agreed f^

~
mpiainant .

from the buyer and to remi $4 62(^ J

1

and shipped one

4. On or about June 19, 1984,
Pjr" ^ pounds to Scheid

half of a trucklot of watermelons^^f^g half of the

and

a total of $4,462.62 to comp a.

"^ t gold and shipped one

6. On or about June 24 1984 c mP
Friesland, Wisconsin

trucklot of watermelons to Alsum Proa .

ooroplainant's agent

Respondent negotiated
the contract ot
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and agreed to invoice and collect the sale amount from the buyei
and to remit $3,949.62 to complainant.

6. On or about July 7, 1984, complainant sold and shipped one
trucklot of watermelons to Four Seasons, Denver, Pennsylvania
Respondent negotiated the contract of sale as complainant's agent,
and agreed to invoice and collect the sale amount from the buyer
and to remit $3,756.22 to complainant.

7. Respondent has not remitted to complainant any part of the
amounts he had agreed to remit to complainant in the sales of wa-
termelons he negotiated on behalf of complainant on Juno 19 1984
June 24, 1984, and July 7, 1984.

8. A formal complaint was filed on November 7, 1984, which was
within nine months of the time the causes of action herein accrued.

CONCLUSIONS

In his answer, respondent in effect concedes he brokered the sale
of four trucklots of complainant's watermelons and agreed to col-
lect and remit the sales proceeds to complainant as alleged in the
complaint. Further, respondent effectively admits he received pay-

^ q Tf f
bUyer8 ' but failed to remit the PK*to ^ complain-

n̂ p^QQMf
6 T?tUte8 a violatton of section 2 of the Act (7

U.&.U & 499b) for which reparation may be awarded.
Respondent previously has been ordered to pay the $1G.R80.H

J 91* f , ,
WeS to comPlain nt. As to the remainingid claimed by complainant, since respondent's answer wu

er

.

at
.

h> and he submitt d no evidence to support his
that answer that he doea not owe this
nn0t be credited ' unlike complainant's

and op
A

enin& statement to the contrary,^ DeC< 1213t 1215 (1960)-

to pay $1 '392 - 15 plus interest

ORDER

f this order
' ^Pondent dull pay

$1 '392 ' 15 ' ^th interest thoroon, at

"'I
aTn 5

r m Au^8t 1. W84, until paid,
order shall be served upon the parties.
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GLOBAL TRADING INC. u. LIMPERT BROS., INC. PACA Docket No. 2-

6679. Decided December 11, 1985.

Rejection, partial unloading precludes, reasonable time for, notice must be in clear

and unmlstakcable terms Sale by sample, failure to have sample federally in-

spectedSubstandard U
(

.S. Grade not necessarily evidence of unmerchantable

quality Failure to submit evidence of damages.

Where complainant contracted to sell frozen pineapple to respondent which would

conform to a previously submitted sample, respondent was found to have accepted

the pineapple and to have failed to prove that the pineapple did not to the sample.

Although the pineapple was found to be U.S. Grade D or Substandard this was held

not to be in itself evidence of unmerchantable quality. Complainant was awarded

reparation in the amount of the full purchase price of the pineapple.

George S. Whitten, Presiding Officer.

David B. Ward, Greenville, South Carolina, for complainant.

Mitchell H. Kizner, Vinelan, New Jersey, for respondent.

Decision by Donald A, Campbell, Judicial Officer.

DECISION AND ORDER

PRELIMINARY STATEMENT

This is a reparation proceeding under the Perishable Agricultur-

al Commodities Act, 1930, as amended (7 U.S.C. 499a et seq.). A
timely complaint was filed in which complainant seeks an award of

reparation against respondent in the amount of $8,227.10 in con-

nection with two shipments of frozen pineapple in interstate com-

merce,

A copy of the report of investigation made by the Department

was served upon the parties. A copy of the formal complaint was

served upon respondent which defaulted in the filing of an answer.

Subsequently the proceeding was reopened, and respondent filed an

answer denying liability to complainant.

Since the amount claimed in the formal complaint does not

exceed $15,000,00 the shortened method of procedure provided in

section 47.20 of the Rules of Practice (7 CFR 47.20) is applicable.

Pursuant to this procedure, the verified pleadings of the parties are

considered a part of the evidence in the case, as is the Depart-

ment's report of investigation. In addition, the parties were given

an opportunity to file evidence in the form of sworn statements.

Complainant filed an opening statement, and respondent filed an

answering statement. Complainant did not file a statement in

reply. Respondent filed a brief.

FINDINGS OF FACT

1. Complainant, Global Trading, Inc., is a corporation whose ad-

dress is P.O. Box 6645, Greenville, South Carolina.
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2. Respondent, Limpert Bros., Inc., is a corporation whoso mi-
dress is P.O. Box 520, Vineland, New Jersey. At the timo of the
transactions involved herein respondent was licensed under the
TiCC*

3. On or about July 8, 1983, a broker, Dick Weatfall of Coiinell &
to., Westfield, New Jersey, contacted both parties to tliiH proceed-
ing concernmgthe possible sale by complainant to respondent of
diced and crushed frozen pineapple. Mr. Westfall oontnclotl Arthur
i-rice of complainant and informed him that respondent needed
diced pineapple approximately % inch in size, and also conr*
crushed pineapple Mr. Price replied that he might not bo obit- to

Lmnl
P71PP th

f*
meaSUred 6XaCtly '/ inch, but WOUld MMtd

saZL ^ Ct
^
hich he could ""PP'V' Subao.Mi.nUly a

sample was sent to respondent, and approved by responde.il.

into . rZ" 7' '!r
ly 2

,

6
' thr Ugh July 28 ' 1983 ' the J'W l"

DO mH f

Call
',

ng f r c mPlaina"t to sell to respondent 76* -10

better tZ
S

,f
P/TPPle CUbes

'

'
/2 inch diced fequlwlor.1 or

total o? T^ at 46 CentS Per pound ' and 25 " P'l ">

Texas for IT
P"16^6 at 42 ents Per P und

. ^ ^^"'
New Jersey

y 3 6WSy freezer
' 97 N ' Mil1 R(1 - Vlii.l.ul.

communi^tion a partial shipnu.nl was
f 3U cases o

and nOct 7 9
' /

a tOtal
.

PoundI

' ' Cases of frozen cubed pinonpplo in SS- w,aamers tor a total price of $3,220.00. Prior to
parties agreed that pva^f i,,^,*^i,j- _ ,

nj f .

B
,

wmi' xact weight per carton wouldea alter packing,

and October 12 198? ?lpped y truck and arrived on October 1ft,

broker that the' product^ f
2

'

^u'l
respondenfc notifit?d the

low on brix and the7ut^e
ac Ptable and that product wui

respondent if the orodupf |

e3
fcessive

in size." The broker twked

"ieir other products R j ?
US in another form " nny f

ie would have to "pLu^H^ 8 purchasing agent replied that

?- On or about October lo
^ representafcive -"

sd complainant that "th

or ^ct ber 21, 1988, the broker noli-

[respondent's] products si

pr
, .

ct was not acceptable for use in

large." The broker alsn t^j ? Were Iow and sizes were t<M

could be used in anotw r
Ll^pert would check to see if it

8- On November 2? iJr
*T ther products

' )

broker by telegram inquir'
mplainant

<

communicated with the
been paid and requestin/fi^AV why its two invoices Iw^ not
vember 29, i983

, the brnt! / T
be paid immediately. On No-

broker forwarded the telegram to respondent.
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The letter accompanying the telegram stated in relevant part as

follows:

It was understood that the dices were not acceptable for
,

use in the designated product which Limpert is manufac-

turing because of irregular sizes and large chunks. We had

discussed the possibility of using it as an ingredient in one

of the other products which your company manufacturers.

Please advise at your earliest convenience so that Connell

and Co. can notify the supplier.

On December 1, 1983, the broker wrote the following letter to com-

plainant:

Limpert Brothers has informed Connell and Company that

the diced pineapple shipped from your company is not ac-

ceptable for use in their products. They had agreed to pur-

chase the pineapple on approval of sample and with the

product shipped to be equivalent to the approved sample.

The pineapple shipped was irregular in size and contains

very large chunks which were not in the sample.

Limpert has also investigated the possibility of using the

product in another form for other products but has deter-

mined that this is also not feasible.

9. Upon receipt of the broker's letter of December 1, 1983, com-

plainant, on December 5, 1983, sent the following telegram, in rele-

vant part, to respondent:

YOUR REFUSAL TO HONOR THESE INVOICES FOR

PAYMENT LEAVES US NO OTHER CHOICE BUT TO

FILE FOR IMMEDIATE ACTION A PACA ACTION

AGAINST LIMPERT BROS.

10. On January 19, 1984, the broker wrote the following letter to

Robert Limpert of respondent corporation:

Dear Bob:

This letter is written to your company to document my

findings on the frozen diced pineapple shipped to Limpert

Brothers from Global Trading Company.

On November 3, 1983, in the absence of Bob Green, I

met with Charlie Licareta at your facility to examine the

contents of a carton of Global Trading pineapple. The

product contained segments up to three inches in length,

dome fruit core, appeared to be very light or white in color,
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had a brix measurement of approximately 7 and very
little or no pineapple flavor. Mr. Licaretz tried to find (he
sample but could not locate it in the freezer where it XVHH
placed by Mr. Green.

On December 16, 1983 I met at the Limpert facility to
inspect the sample submitted to your company by Global
Trading. The product consisted of cuts fairly uniform in
size and shape (approximately W* to %"), contained little
or no fruit core, was yellow in color, had a brix measure*
ment of approximately 14, and a distinct pineapple flavor.

If we can be of further assistance to you, please Jot iu
Know.

Sincerely,

Dick Wesi full

n
-

JanUfy 26
' 1984

> a federal ^pection was mado of th
pmeapple with the following results in relevant part:

Style-Chunks

Brix (liquid media only)-6.8 to 8.7 degrees
GRADE:

,

* SUBSTANDARD, account Dofoc*
(core material).

^^ WaS flled n March 1. W84, which wa.months after the causes of action herein accrued.

CONCLUSIONS

the<urthermore e Pares l I"

respondent Ccompla !?" f^ that a samPIe wa " '

ea also agree tha?5l
" "

,
aC?pted by "PmdM>t The pur

ant and received by reapo^dent
* W6r6 SWpped by comin

'm
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purpose." Eespondent also alleges that the pineapple which was

shipped by complainant did not correspond to the sample previous-

ly sent by complainant.

The first issue for determination here is whether the fruit was

accepted by respondent. We have consistently held on many occa-

sions that even a partial unloading of a shipment of produce is an

exercise of sufficient control over the goods to constitute an accept-

ance thereof. See Crown Orchard Co. v. Mid-Valley Produce Corpo-

ration, 34 Agric. Dec. 1381 at 1385 (1975) and cases there cited; See

also Conn & Scalise Co. v. Frank J. Crivella & Co., 20 Agric. Dec.

416 (1961). In addition it is conclusive under the regulations issued

by the Secretary governing the produce industry, that an accept-

ance occurs when there is a "failure of the consignee to give notice

of rejection to the consignor within a reasonable time", and "rea-

sonable time" is specifically defined for frozen fruits and vegetables

shipped by truck as "not to exceed 12 hours after the receiver or a

responsible representative is given notice of arrival and the

produce is made accessible for inspection". See 7 CFR 46.2(ccXD

and (dd)(3). It should also be noted that we have held that notice of

rejection must be given in clear and unmistakable terms and that

the terminology "not acceptable" could be construed as merely an

expression of displeasure and not as expressive of an intention to

reject. This, of course, would be doubly true in the context of the

present case where respondent professed to be exploring the possi-

bility of alternative uses for the product at the same time that it

was stating that the produce was "not acceptable". See Beamon

Brothers v. Cal. Sweet Potato Growers, 38 Agric. Dec. 71 (1979). We

conclude that respondent accepted the pineapple, and thus became

liable to complainant for the full purchase price thereof less any

damages proved to have resulted from any breach of contract on

the part of the complainant. The burden of proving both a breach

and damages flowing therefrom rests upon respondent I fie

Grower-Shipper Potato Co. v. Southwestern Produce Co., M Agric.

Dec. 511 (1969); see also UCC 2-607(4).

Respondent maintains that the federal inspection of the 511

coses of pineapple which resulted in a grade of D or Substandard is

.in itself evidence of complainant's breach of contract. In additxon,

-respondent maintains that the substandard grade is conclusive

proof that the fruit could not be used for any reasonable commer-

cial purpose. Respondent is wrong on both counts. The federal in-

spection made on January 26, 1984, did not disclose the score

pointa for color, uniformity of size and symmetry, absence of de-

fects, and character. The inspection states that the pineapple was

given U S, Grade D or Substandard "account 'defects and charac-
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bh Sales v. Select Distributors, 38 Agric. Dec. 1359 (1979). However,

we do not deem it necessary to decide whether complainant

breached the contract by failing to ship product conforming to

sample, because respondent totally failed to submit any evidence

which would form a basis for computing damages in this proceed-

ing. Without such accounting covering the resale of the 511 cases of

pineapple or some other way of determining the value of such prod-

uct at time of delivery, we cannot award damages resulting from

any breach. See Anthony Brokerage, Inc. v. The Auster Company,

Inc. 38 Agric. Dec. 1643 (1979).

As we earlier found, respondent accepted the 511 cases of frozen

pineapple, and thus became liable to complainant for the full pur-

chase price thereof less any damages shown to have resulted from

any breach by complainant. Since respondent failed to prove dam-

ages respondent is liable to complainant for the full purchase price

of the 511 cases of pineapple, for a total of $8,227.10, Respondent's

failure to pay complainant such amount is a violation of section 2

of the Act for which reparation should be awarded to complainant

with interest.

ORDER

Within thirty days of the date of this order, respondent shall pay

to complainant, as reparation, $8,227.10, with interest thereon at

the rate of 13% per annum from November 1, 1983, until paid.

Copies of this order shall be served upon the parties.

B. G. HARMON FRUIT COMPANY, INC. v. BUMGARNER PRODUCE, INC.

PACA Docket No. 2-6748. Decided December 11, 1J8&.

Consignment--Damages Failure to account.

Where respondent has failed to submit an account of sate
^

campWnant, com-

plainant is entitled to reasonable value of citrus fruit handled on consignment

George S. Whitten, Presiding Officer.

Complainant, pro se.

Respondent, pro se.

Decision by Donald A. Campbell, Judicial Officer.

DECISION AND ORDER

PRELIMINARY STATEMENT

This is a reparation proceeding under the Perishable, AgricuHu,

al Commodities Act, 1930, as amended (7 U.S.C. 499a. a ug.). *
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FINDINGS OF FACT

1. Complainant, B. G. Harmon Fruit Company, Inc., is n corpora-tion whose address is P.O. Box 945, Clermont, Florida.
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substantial amount of the fruit had spoiled. Respondent contends

that the amount of the produce that could be salvaged and sold

was negligible.

Complainant did not make any reply to the allegations of re-

spondent's answer, and accordingly we must conclude that respond-

ent's allegation in regard to having heen told by complainant that

the truck was refrigerated, whereas in fact it was not refrigerated,

is true. However, while under the circumstances the lack of refrig-

eration on the truck would have been adequate grounds for re-

spondent to have rejected the truck, respondent instead accepted

the truckload of citrus. In addition, respondent has not demonstrat-

ed how it was damaged by the failure of the truck to be refngerat-

ed

Complainant specifically alleges in the formal complaint that re

spondent has failed, neglected and refused to render *n account of

sales relative to the truckload of citrus. While respondent denied

this allegation in its answer, respondent has nowhere in th s pro-

ceeding submitted a copy of any accounting to complainant Ne-

ther has respondent offered any proof, in the form of a neutral in

spection, that the citrus was in poor condition on arrival We con

elude that respondent's defenses fail, and respondent is liable to

complainant for the reasonable value of the citrus fruit, at the time

when it was received by respondent. ,.-,,. M,,a

Respondent's failure to account presents us '* a difficult

^s

tua-

tion in regard to assessing the reasonable value of the fiuit. We ad

dressed a very similar situation in Meyer Tomatoes v. Hardcastle

Produce Co., 40 Agric. Dec. 1172 (1981), where we stated:

Although complainant agreed that the shipment.erf; Feb-

ent to that effect. See Mutual Vegetable Safes v. Select a.

tributors 88 A. D. 1859, 1362 (1979). Respondent's failure

E a" ountTto complainant for the tomatoes s a violation of

The Act and 'regulations. Under the
^gnmont

agree-

ment respondent is liable to complainant for the value ot

tba tomatoes at time of delivery less expenses of a prompt

and proper resale. Respondent's failure to account uce-

totes our estimating the amount for which~fa* *

iable. In arriving at ah equitable figure we take into con-
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Andrew Y. Stanton, Presiding Officer,

Complainant, pro se.

Respondent, pro se.

Decision by Donald A. Campbell, Judicial Officer.

DECISION AND ORDER

PRELIMINARY STATEMENT

This is a reparation proceeding under the Perishable AgricuHur-

al Commodities Act, 1930, as amended (7 USXX 499a et segj

timely complaint was filed in which mPlal"a"\^
e*
4

S *
;^-

tion award against respondent in the amount of $7524.001 m con

nection with the sale and shipment to respondent of two truckloads

of tomatoes in interstate commerce.
ripnartment

A copy of the report of investigation *"***%* Sal m-
Was served upon each of the parties. A copy.^"^e
plaint was served upon respondent, which filed an answer thereto,

c claimed a, damages does

the shortened procedure provided in section 47 20

Practice (7 CFR 47.20) is applicabto. PU u
.

antjrt
the report of investigation is considered 4^be

?f.

verified, i

as is the verified complaint. The answer, smc , rt

not part of the evidence. The parties were g van an

submit additional evidence in the form ot vermeu

to file briefs, but elected not to do so.

FINDINGS OF PACT

1. Complainant, Triple M Packing Inc., is a corporation whose

address is P.O. Box 1358, Quincy
Flonda^ ^ ^

2. *W^<**F^&Z^^vt ^ **

a-ta'^S^SS^ herein, respondent was licensed

under the Act. rpsoondent a truckload

3. On June 21, 1984, complainant sold te.reaponden
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;
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and sent a copy to respondent. Respondent returned the invoice
upon which it had made handwritten alterations changing therR

$3l{Ver Cart n t0 $2 '50 ' ****** * * S of
5,148.00. Respondent paid this sum to complainant, but has felled

to make any additional payments for this load

L?^^?^ July 9
' 1984 ' >Pli'wnt sold to respondenta truckload of tomatoes consisting of 1,584 cartons at $3.50 per

carton, plus $.60 per carton for degreening, and $.15 per carton for
palletizing, for a total contract price of $6,732,00, f.o.b. The contract
did not specify any grade. The truckload of tomatoes was inspectedat shipping point and found to consist of U.S. number three ten*
toes with no decay. The tomatoes were shipped to respondentwhich received and accepted them, without objection.

6. Complainant prepared an invoice on July 10, 1984, reflectingthe agreed upon contract terms as set forth in Finding of Fact 5and sent a copy Of the invoice to respondent, which received it

haa failed to make any

loads f tomatoes were ^otiated by
ee of Gargiulo Inc., Naplea, Florida,

comPlainant' nd Doc Case, an employee of
Acres

' FIorida ' actinS as the * tow
'

f

Bomta Br kerage prepared and aent to th Pities conHr-

rmr ^fCh 10ad
' refl6Cting the a^reed UP ^

P^Ji ?*? Confirmation
contained any language concerningthe grade of the tomatoes sold.^ C

^pl
f
int Was flled on October 19

> 1984
'
whi^ waa

nine months from when the causes of action herein accrued.

CONCLUSIONS

contain*d in its unsworn answer, IB

of tomatoes on both loads. Re-
ha8 been Mouetemed to receiving US,
therwise 8tated in the confirmation, and

compl^ant were U.S. number three.

vin^ accept^ the two loads. There-
for the a^eed UP" contract prices,

any breach of warranty
to prove the breach and

429 (1988X ResP^dent's claim that

express ' warrant^ that the tomato
contained only in ita unverified

part of the evidence. Further, the
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broker's confirmations of sale do not mention the grade of the to-

matoes. In addition, although respondent made written alterations

upon one of the invoices returned to complainant, it never indicat-

ed any dissatisfaction with the grade of tomatoes received, There-

fore, it is abundantly clear that respondent has failed to sustain its

burden of proving that complainant expressly warranted the toma-

toes as U.S, number one, and that complainant breached such war-

ranty. See H. C R. Corporation v. Sacks Bros., 16 Agric. Dec. 761

(1957). Respondent is, therefore, liable for the contract price of the

two loads less what it has already paid, or $7,524.00. Respondents

failure to pay this sum to complainant is a violation of section 2 of

the Act, for which reparation should be awarded, with interest.

ORDER

Within 30 days from the date of this order, respondent shall pay

to complainant, as reparation, $7,524.00, with interest thereon at

the rate of 13 percent per annum from August 1, 1984, until paid.

Copies of this order shall be served upon the parties.

CHAPARRAL FRUIT SALES, INC. v. CORGAN & SON, INC- PACA Docket

No. 2-6751. Decided December 16, 1985.

F.O.B. terms-Freight faced by the buyer.

Where the preponderance of the evidence showed that

of m^ for freight, from the amount owed r*
produce, and it was agreed that F.O.B. terms were in effect under

pays the freight, respondent was liable for the unpaid contract price
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respondent, which filed an

Since the amount claimed as damages does not exceed $ir>,<)0000the shortened procedure provided in section 47.20 of the HitooPractice 7 CFR 47.20) is applicable. Pursuant to such pr"the report of investigation is considered to be part of the viJ
as is the verified complaint. The answer, since it is not verified finot considered part of the evidence. The parties were given M
portumty to submit additional evidence in the form of
statement and to file briefs. Complainant submitted an <*
statement Respondent elected not to submit any additional
dence. Neither party filed a brief.

FINDINGS OP PACT

1. Complainant, Chaparral Fruit Sales, Inc., is a
whose address is P.O. Box 7352, San Antonio, Texas.

2. Respondent, Corgan & Son, Inc., is a corporation whoa,
8

of ;-
mna aet' ronx New York.t Ih,

ran
in> re8Pondent

ent Btn,,wu Aprfl 25
' 1984
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c<""P'ainant sold toent a truckload of cabbage for $4,636.95, f.o.b.

to
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n

e

n^
U
f

1 ad
u
f Cabbage was shipPed ln interstate comniertcto respondent, which received and accepted it upon its arrivi.l.

tract tr
ai

p
ant^ t0 resP nde"' an invoice reflecting the con-

the invoice
t'

"Wuctmg $1,672.20 for freight, leaving $2,064.7!;, wl,icl,
went paid to complainant.

"

formal complaint was filed on December 14, 1984, winch ms
une months from when the cause of action herein uccrunf,

CONCLUSIONS
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were f.o.b., respondent was liable for freight. 7 CFR 46.43(1). Re-

spondent's deduction was, therefore, improper.

Respondent's failure to pay to complainant $1,672,20 is a viola-

tion of section 2 of the Act, for which reparation should be award-

ed, with interest.

ORDER

Within 30 days from the date of this order, respondent shall pay

to complainant, as reparation, $1,672.20, with interest thereon at

the rate of 13 percent per annum from June 1, 1984, until paid.

Copies of this order shall be served upon the parties.

ANNE G. DELEO d/b/a ANNE DELEO BROKERAGE v. CORGAN & SON,

INC. PACA Docket No. 2-6779. Decided December 16, 1985.

Burden of proof upon respondent-Breach of warranty-Change in contract

terms. , .

Where respondent admittedly purchased and accepted the produce from complain-

ant, but failed to provide evidence to sustain its burden of proving a breach of war-

ranty, and also failed to prove that complainant authorized any change in the con-

tract terms from a sale to a consignment, respondent is liable for the unpaid con-

tract price.

Andrew Y, Stanton, Presiding Officer,

Complainant, pro se.

Respondent, pro se.

Decision by Donald A. Campbell, Judicial Officer.

DECISION AND ORDER

PRELIMINARY STATEMENT

This is a reparation proceeding under the Perishable Agricultur-

al Commodities Act, 1930, as amended (7 U.S.C. 499a et aeq.). A

timely complaint was filed in which complainant seeks a repara-

tion award against respondent in the amount of $69,495.76 in con-

nection with the sale and shipment to respondent of 15 truckloads

of tomatoes in foreign commerce.

A copy of the report of investigation prepared by the Department

was served upon each of the parties. A copy of the formal com-

plaint was served upon respondent, which filed an answer thereto,

Although the amount claimed as damages exceeds $15,000.00, the

parties waived oral hearing. Therefore, the shortened
P^edure

provided in section 47.20 of the Rules of Practice (7 CFR 47.20) is
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applicable. Pursuant to such procedure, the report of investigation
is considered part of the evidence, as is the verified complaint Theanswer since it is not verified, is not considered part of the evi-
dence. The parties were given an opportunity to submit additional
evidence in the form of verified statements and to file briefs Com-
plamant submitted an opening statement. Respondent elected not
to submit any evidence. Neither party filed a brief.

FINDINGS OP FACT

1. Complainant, Anne G. DeLeo d/b/a Anne DeLeo Brokerage isan individual whose address is 43 Linden Road, Albany, New York
2. Respondent, Corgan & Son, Inc., is a corporation whose a*

dress is 161-162 N.Y.C. Terminal Market, Bronx, New York. At the
times of the transactions involved herein, respondent was licensed
under the Act.

3. From July 21, 1984, through October 1, 1984, in the course of
foreign commerce, complainant sold to respondent 15 truckloads of
produce totaling $60,695.75, delivered, as follows:

Date of Sale

7/21/84

7/30/84

8/1/84

8/8/84

8/21/84

8/29/84

8/31/84

9/4/84

9/5/84

9/8/84

9/10/84

9/11/84

9/12/84

9/21/84

10/1/84

Complainant's Invoice
No.

673

697

706

705

747

762

768

769

776

784

785

790

791

807

823

Amount

$3,200.00

3,600.00

250.00

5,400.00

4,650.00

6,233,25

476.00

1,598.00

G.525.00

5,300.00

5,128,60

5,990.00

7,146.00

3,500.00

2,700.00

by Henry

Pr duce Dipped * ^eign com.

' upon arrivai

fsinvoices included
UNDER PROTEST."

'
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6. Respondent has paid complainant a total of $1,200.00 for the

15 truckloads, but has failed to pay the remaining contract prices

of $59,495.75.

7. A formal complaint was filed on December 6, 1984, which was

within nine months from when the causes of action herein accrued.

CONCLUSIONS

Respondent admits receiving and accepting the 15 truckloads,

but alleges in its unsworn answer that 10 of these truckloads con-

tained produce that was in very poor condition. Respondent claims

that it received these truckloads under protest and obtained per-

mission from the broker to handle many of them on consignment.

Having admittedly received and accepted the 15 truckloads of

produce, respondent became liable for the agreed upon contract

prices, less damages resulting from any breach of warranty by com-

plainant. Respondent bears the burden of proving the breach and

damages by a preponderance of the evidence. Farm Market Service

Inc. v. Albertson's, Inc., 42 Agric. Dec. 429 (1983). Respondent has

failed to sustain its burden of proof. Respondent's alleged defenses

are contained only in its answer, which is unverified and thus

without evidentiary value. However, even if the answer were veri-

fied, respondent has presented no evidence, such as federal inspec-

tions, showing the poor condition of the produce. Further, although

respondent contends that it was permitted by the broker to handle

many of the loads on consignment, it has not provided any evi-

dence to sustain its burden of proving that the alleged change in

the contract terms from a sale to a consignment was authorized by

complainant, American Banana Co, Inc. v. Marvin Gray, 41 Agric.

Dec, 539 (1982). Respondent is, therefore, liable for the contract

prices for the 15 truckloads of produce, less the $1,200.00 it has al-

ready paid, for a total of $59,495.75.

Respondent's failure to pay to complainant $59,495.75 is a viola-

tion of section 2 of the Act, for which reparation should be award-

ed, with interest.

ORDER

Within 30 days from the date of this order, respondent shall pay
to complainant, as reparation, $59,495.75, with interest thereon at

the rate pf 13 percent per annum from November 1, '1984, until

paid.

Copies of this order shall be served upon the parties.
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CONTINENTAL SALES Co. a FLYING FOODS INTEUNAHONAI. IHCPACA Docket No. 2-6724. Decided December 17, 1985.

Burden of proof upon respondent.

that compiainant had auth rM *- - *

George S. Whitten, Presiding Officer,

Complainant, pro se,

Respondent, pro se.

Decision by Donald A. Campbell, Judicial Officer.

DECISION AND ORDER

PRELIMINARY STATEMENT

This is a reparation proceeding under the Perishable Agricultur-al Commodities Act, 1930, as amended (7 U.S.G. 499a et sen} A
timely complaint was filed in which complainant seeks an award of
reparation against respondent in the amount of $2,231.74 in con-
nection with the shipment in interstate commerce of 20 lots of

ma?Av^ n T^' A C Py f the reP rfc of Investigationmade by the Department was served upon the parties, A copy of
the formal complaint was served upon respondent which filed an
answer thereto denying liability to complainant.

$H MOT!; ,i
aiTd in the formal comP^t does not exceed

tinn 4790 ^* ^V^"**1** method of procedure provided iuscc-

-~- InfVL
he RU16

/
f Practice (7 CFR 47 '20> is aPP]"Ie .

ant to this procedure, the verified pleadings of the parties are
ered a part of the evidence in the case, as is the Depart-
s report of

investigation. In addition, the parties were given
portumty to file evidence in the form of sworn statements.
ver, neither party did so. Neither party filed a brief.
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Texas, or Houston, Texas, twenty lots of mixed perishable produce

having a total invoice price of $23,310.18, delivered.

4. Respondent received and accepted all the .produce referred to

in Finding of Fact 3, and has paid complainant $21,014.44. Com-

plainant has admitted that respondent overpaid on one invoice in

the amount of $64.00. The balance due and owing from respondent

to complainant is $2,231.74.

5. The formal complaint was filed on June 29, 1984, which was

within nine months after the causes of action herein accrued.

CONCLUSIONS

Complainant brings this action to recover the alleged balance

due on twenty air shipments of mixed produce to respondent. Re-

spondent admits receiving and accepting the bulk of the produce m
each of the twenty air shipments, but alleges that as to some of the

shipments certain items were not received, were received in less

than the quantity ordered, or were received in damaged condition.

Respondent states in its answer that complainant has been paid in

full by three checks totalling $21,014.44, with the exception of

$97.50 which respondent admits it failed to pay complainant due to

an addition error by respondent. Although respondent claims it

made full payment, with the exception of $97.50, respondent pro-

ceeded in its answer to set forth specifically by invoice the amounts

in dispute between complainant and respondent, and the specific

reasons as to why respondent claims a lower amount is due on

each invoice. Respondent lists nine invoices out of the twenty as to

which it claims there is a dispute in amounts ranging from $19.00

to $298.60, and totalling $908.74. Thus respondent raises specific de-

fenses which total only $908.74 out of the total $2,231.74 which

complainant alleges to be due.

In analyzing the specific defenses raised by respondent we note

that they all amount to a claim that an oral authorization of credit

was granted to respondent by one of complainant's salesmen for

shortages of product, or for damaged product. Respondent attached

documentation in an effort to substantiate the authorizations oJ

credit. However, the documentation for the most part consists o:

self-serving notes made on its own purchase order copies or on com

plainant's invoices. The only exceptions to this are two debr

memorandums" which state that they are from Flying Foods Inc

and to be charged to Continental Sales Co. Apparently these debi

memorandums were issued by respondent and sent to complainant

They are dated January 24, and January 25, 1984 respective!}

These memorandums do not constitute adequate notice to coir
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plamant of the

they were sent.

nnf voo r-i u
cLuru we Una (,ni, tmiiuuiui-an.1 nas proven by a preponderance of the evidence Bif flu. i- n

hnlanfp afilT ^nn J /
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Although the amount claimed as damages is greater than

$15,000.00, the parties waived oral hearing. The shortened proce-

dure provided in section 47.20 of the Rules of Practice (7 CFR 47 20)

is, therefore, applicable. Pursuant to such procedure, the report of

investigation is considered to be a part of the evidence, as is the

verified complaint. The answer, since it is not verified, is not con-

sidered part of the evidence. The parties were given an opportunity

to submit additional evidence in the form of verified statements

and to file briefs, but elected not to do so.

FINDINGS OF FACT

1 Complainant, Pioneer Marketing Company, is a corporation

whose address is P.O. Box 2034, Yuma, Arizona.

2. Respondent, Corgan & Son, Inc., is a corporation whose ad-

dress is 161-162 N.Y.C. Terminal Market, Bronx, New York. At the

times of the transactions involved herein, respondent was licensed

11 Tl fi PI* TnP -A.Ct

3 From July 20, 1984, through September 13, 1984, complainant

sold to respondent seven truckloads of lettuce at the following f.o.b.

prices:

Date of Sale

July 20, 1984

August 7, 1984

August 10, 1984

August 11, 1984

August 14, 1984

September 12, 1984

September 13, 1984

Complainant's Invoice

No.

C0545

C0557

Price

$6,545.00*

7,423.30*>

$7,502.50*

$4,102.50

$5,717.60

$5.717.60S_

Total $41,025.80

voice number

received and accepted it. Respondent has paid

$860.00 allegedly due and owing complainant.

leavincleaving
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5. Complainant shipped the lettuce reflected by complainant's ii

voice number C0657 in interstate commerce to respondent whtc
received and accepted it. Respondent has paid $3,995,00 to con
Plamant, leaving $2,650.00 allegedly due and owing. This paywas not intended to be payment in full for the lettuce.

6- Complainant shipped the lettuce reflected by complainant's fr
voice number C0564 in interstate commerce to respondoitt c

Sn f
a Ztd ]t ' Rea^ld^ has paid

tf.218.30, leaving $4,205.00 allegedly due and owing,

**
evt part:

VARIOUS CONTAINERS Range 42 To 43F.

Secured a ^"^ inspection of

' whlch

Applicant States.

Condition:

850 cartons.

, ,Head leaves: 1 to 2 heads in most cnr-
tons, none in some, average G%
damage by Rib Discoloration. 1 to 4

decayed heads in most cartons, nonem some, average 10% Bacterial Soft
Kot in various stages affecting 1 to
leaves,

,,

Restricted to 160 cartons being unload-
ed and upper 4 layers of 3 complete
stacks nearest rear door in tlmt por-
tion of load remaining: at time of In.
spection.

9. Respondent

price for t any part of the
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12. On September 18, 1984, respondent secured a federal inspec-
tion of the lettuce of invoice number C0636, which reads as follows,

in relevant part:

VARIOUS CONTAINERS Range 41
' To 43F.

Applicant States:

Condition:

850 cartons.

Average 3% damage by Russet Spot-

ting. 1 to 4 heads per carton average
11% damage by Tipburn. 1 to 3 de-

cayed heads per carton average 9%
Bacterial Soft Hot in various states

affecting 1 to 3 leaves.

13. Respondent did not provide any evidence that it resold the

lettuce of invoice number C0636. Respondent has paid $1,467.50 for

the lettuce, leaving $4,250.00 allegedly due and owing to complain-
ant.

14. Complainant shipped the lettuce reflected by complainant's

invoice number C0638 in interstate commerce to respondent, which

received and accepted it,

15. On September 18, 1984, respondent secured a federal inspec-

tion of the lettuce of invoice number CO 638, which found as follows,

in relevant part:

VARIOUS CONTAINERS Range 40 To 41'F.

Applicant States:

Condition:

850 cartons.

Head leaves: 1 to 3 heads per carton

average 8% damage by discoloration

following bruising scattered through-

out pack. Average 3% decay.

16. Respondent has failed to pay complainant any part of the

agreed contract price of $5/717.50 for the lettuce of invoice number

C0638.

17. A formal complaint was filed on December 7, 1984 t which was

within nine months from when the causes of action herein accrued.
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CONCLUSIONS
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presented an inspection report which purportedly supports this al-

legation (Finding of Fact 8). However, the inspection was taken on

only 150 of the 850 cartons in the load and it therefore, will be

given no weight. Respondent ia liable for the full contract price on

this load of $7,602.50.

Respondent has submitted no evidence whatsoever to support its

claim that the lettuce in the load bearing complainant's invoice

number C0573 arrived in very poor condition, and is thus liable for

the full contract price of $4,102.50.

With respect to the load of lettuce bearing complainant s invoice

number C0636, the inspection report pertaining to that shipment

(Finding of Fact 12) does indicate a breach of complainants suita-

ble shipping condition warranty given in this f.o.b. sale (7 CFR

46.43(j)). However, no damages can be awarded for this breach ot

warranty, as respondent is only entitled as damages to the differ-

ence between the actual value of the lettuce and the value it would

have if it had been as warranted. The actual value of the lettuce is

determined by the results of a prompt and proper resale, but re-

spondent has not submitted any evidence of resales made on this

load. See Green Valley Produce Co-op, v. Nicholas A Zentto, lnc.,*L

Agric. Dec. 519 (1982). As there is no other method to determine

the actual value of the lettuce in this case, respondent is liable for

the contract price of $5,717.50, less the $1,467.50 it has already

paid, leaving $4,250.00 due and owing to complainant.
^ _ _

Regarding the final shipment, bearing complainants invoice

number C0638, respondent's defense is that the load arrived with

severe condition problems. However, the federal inspection report

respondent has submitted along with its unswornAnswer
shows

eight percent damage by discoloration following bruising and three

percent decay (Finding of Fact 15). This^^?^^J&
delivery standards for lettuce set forth in 7 CFR 46 44(a)(2), which

states that if the contract does not specify a particular grade,,
aa u

the case here, the lettuce at destination may contain a ****
of 15 percent damage by condition defects, including^ more than

nine percent serious damage of which no more than five percent

may be decay, In this case, there was only three percent decay, and

height percent damage by discoloration ^ .

l

^
d^

not constitute serious damage. Therefore, respondent is liable for

the agreed upon contract price of $5,717.50.

We have determined that respondent is liable to complainant for

number C0545,

C0557, $4,205,50 for invoice number

number C0568, $4,102,50 fpr invoice number
r

voice number C0636; and $5,717.50 for invoice number
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spondent's liability to complainant, therefore, totals $29,170.50, and

respondent's failure to pay this sum to complainant is a violation
of section 2 of the Act, for which reparation should bo awarded,
with interest.

ORDER

Within 30 days from the date of this order, respondent ahnll pay
to complainant, as reparation, $29,176.50, with interest thereon etme rate of 13 percent per annum from October 1, 1984, until paid.
Copies of this order shall be served upon the parties.

- P ' MunPI1Y

, 1985
D Cket N ' 2~6781 ' DeoldBd Decem '

Unverified answer not in evidence.

f
. it b

5. HT.jVten, Presiding Officer
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dence. In addition, the parties were given an opportunity to file

evidence in the form of sworn statements. Complainant did not file

an opening statement. Respondent did not file, an answering state-

ment- Neither party filed a brief.

FINDINGS OF FACT

1. Complainant, O. P. Murphy Produce Co., Inc., is a corporation

doing business as 0. P. Murphy & Sons whose address is P. O. Box

548, Soledad, California.

2. Respondent, Corgan & Son, Inc., is a corporation whose ad-

dress is 161-162 New York City Terminal Market, Bronx, New

York. At the time of the transaction involved herein respondent

was licensed under the Act.

3. On or about September 10, 1984, comlainant sold to respond-

ent, and shipped from loading point in California to respondent in

Bronx, New York, one truckload containing 1,620 25 pound cartons

of size large and larger green "Just Ripe" brand tomatoes at $3.50

per carton, plus 20 cents per carton for palletization, and $20 for a

temperature recorder, for a total invoice price of $6,014.00.

4. Respondent accepted the tomatoes upon arrival, but has not

paid complainant any part of the purchase price thereof. The sum

of $6,014.00 is presently due and owing from respondent to com-

plainant.

5. The formal complaint was filed on December 3, 1984, which

was within nine months after the cause of action herein accrued.

CONCLUSIONS

Respondent admitted receipt of the tomatoes in its answer, but

alleged that they arrived with 3% decay and 4% serious damage by

sunken discolored areas. Respondent further alleged that they ar-

rived mostly green or "just turning" color with very little red color,

and as they ripened up began to show more and more decay. Re-

spondent's answer was not verified, and consequently is not in evi-

dence in this proceeding. Also, respondent did not submit any reply

to the inquiries made by this Department during the informal

stages of this proceeding. Consequently, there is no evidence in the

record to support any of the allegations made by respondent. The

record does not contain any copy of an inspection report on the to-

matoes. ,

We conclude from all of the evidence that respondent accepted

the tomatoes. Since respondent has not proven any breach of con-

tract on the part of complainant, respondent is liable to complain-

ant for the full purchase price of the tomatoes. Half Moon Fruit.&

Produce Company v. V.F. Lanasa, Inc., 39 Agric. Dec, 1520 (1980).
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Respondent's failure to pay complainant the sum of $0.0 14.00 i

violation of section 2 of the Act for which repartition Hhotild

awarded to complainant with interest

ORDER

Within thirty days from the date of this order, respondent
pay to complainant, as reparation, $6,014.00, with intorcat
at the rate of 13% per annum from October 1, 1984, until

Copies of this order shall be served upon the parties.

AL HARRISON COMPANY DISTRIBUTORS a/t/a HARRISON MKMM Go,
OP ARIZONA v. GEORGE VILLALOBOS d/b/a TKKHUN HUND
INTERNATIONAL. PACA Docket No. 2-6806. Decided December
17, 1985.

Partial admission of liability-Contract price Partial paymonU-lfnloftdtaji n-
pnsea.

Where respondent admitted partial liability for the purchase of olRht londs of W.ti
melons for which an (Order Requiring Payment of Undisputed Amount WM taudi,
admitted the contract terms for seven loads, and complainant's vornUin of th* ttfr
tract price for one of the loads found to be proven by a propondranra of (h* *^
dence, respondent is liable for the difference between the contract pricn of th rtf-l
loads, less its partial payment, and the amount it properly deducted for imln*u
expenses.

Complainant, pro se.

Respondent, pro ae,

Decision by Donald A. Campbell, Judicial Officer.

DECISION AND ORDER

PRELIMINARY STATEMENT
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Although the amount involved exceeds $15,000.00, the parties

waived oral hearing. The shortened procedure provided in section

47,20 of the Rules of Practice (7 CFR 47.20) is, therefore, applicable.

Pursuant to such procedure, the report of investigation is consid-

ered part of the evidence, as are the verified complaint and answer.

The parties were given an opportunity to submit additional evi-

dence in the form of verified statements and to file briefs, but elect-

ed not to do so.

FINDINGS OF FACT

1. Complainant, Al Harrison Company Distributors a/t/a Harri-

son Melon Co., of Arizona, is a corporation whose address is P.O.

Box 699, Nogales, Arizona.

2. Respondent, George Villalobos d/b/a Teksun Brand Interna-

tional, is an individual whose address is 1865 Decatur Drive, San

Jose, California. At the times of the transactions involved herein,

respondent was licensed under the Act.

3. From June 19, 1984, through July 5, 1984, complainant sold

and shipped in interstate commerce to respondent eight loads of

watermelons on a delivered basis. The sales were made through a

broker, Central Produce Co., Inc., San Jose, California. The agreed

upon contract prices were as follows:

Com-
_

, ., . , plainant's Sales
Date Shipped Invoice Price

Number

June 19, 1984 83 $4,581.00

June 20, 1984 HB M*1

June 22, 1984 *4>53L1

June 24, 1984 214 R679.QO

June 30, 1984 490 $4,445.00

July 2, 1984 565B $2,570.48

July 3, 1984 609 W.618.76

July 6, 1984 650 9B.M1.88

Total $28,319.42
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4. The broker issued memorandums of sale reflecting the aerced
upon contract terms. For invoice 609, the memorandum of sale
showed a sales price of $.075 per pound for 46,890 pounds

5. Shortly after the watermelons were shipped to respondent
complainant prepared and sent to respondent invoices for all eight
loads showing the agreed upon contract terms, except for invoicem, where the mvoice mistakenly showed a contract price of $045
per pound, or $2,010.05 for all 46,890 pounds. A corrected Inwh*was later prepared and sent showing the actual contract price of
$.075 per pound, or $3,516.75,

6. Respondent returned the invoices to complainant, maktnghandwritten alterations showing the following deductions for un-
loading; For invoice number S3, a deduction of $80.00; for invoice
number 118B, a deduction of $40.00; for invoice number 179 a de-
duction of $36.00; for invoice number 490, a deduction of $33 00- for
invoice number 565B, a deduction of $28.00; for mvoice number

leductlon of *80 -
;
an <* fr mvoice number 650, a deduction

7. Respondent has made the following payments to complainant
tor the eight loads of watermelons at issue, which complainant hng
accepted as partial payment:

Form of Payment Date Amount
Check

August 6, 1984 $4,412.00

International Draft August 17, 1984 $4,679,00

Check October 3, 1984 $2,500,00

Check October 22, 1984 $1,000.00

Check November 6, 1984 $1,000.00

Check December 11, 1984 $1,000,00

Total i4

8. Complainant filed a formal complaint on November 19, 1984,
vrncn was within nine months from when the causes of action
lerem accrued.

9. Respondent filed an angwer Qn Mflrch 2? 19g5 d ltu u.

nfn
y
??

*U '944 -72 ' On Jly 2, 1985, an Order Requiring Pay-
ttted Am unt was issued ' ordering respondent to

^ as the undisputed amount, $11,944.72.
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CONCLUSIONS

III respondent's answer, which is the only evidence filed by re-

spondent in this proceeding, it admits owing a balance of $11,944,72

for the eight loads of watermelons. An Order Requiring Payment of

Undisputed Amount was thus issued on July 2, 1985, directing re-

spondent to pay this sum. Respondent denies any further liability.

Respondent asserts that the contract price for complainant's in-

voice 609 was $2,110.05, not the $3,516.75 alleged in the complaint.

Respondent also asserts that from August 6, 1984, through Decem-

ber 11, 1984, it paid complainant a total of $14,591.00 by virtue of

four checks and an international draft. Respondent contends fur-

ther that it incurred expenses for unloading totaling $377.00, which

should be deducted from the contract price.

"With respect to the contract price for complainant's invoice 60!),

complainant has submitted into evidence a corrected invoice dated

August 13/1984, for $3,516.75. The original invoice sent to respond-

ent, dated July 9, 1984, was for $2,110.05. Complainant's contention

that the corrected invoice reflects the actual contract price is sup-

ported by the broker's July 5, 1984, memorandum of sale, which

shows a price of $.075 per pound for 46,890 pounds, or $3,516.75.

We thus conclude that the preponderance of the evidence estab-

lishes that complainant's invoice 609 had an agreed upon contract

price of $3,516.75.

Respondent's claim of payment is not denied by complainant.

Further, respondent has produced documentation, copies of an

international draft and four canceled checks, which show that pay-

ment was indeed made in the amount of $14,591,00.

We now turn to respondent's allegation that it incurred unload-

ing expenses of $377.00, which are deductible from
the^

contract

price. Complainant does not deny this allegation. In addition, tho

record contains evidence supporting respondent, as respondent

wrote the deductions for unloading expenses on complainant's in-

voices when it returned them to complainant. As the watermelons

at issue were sold on a delivered basis, it was complainant's obliga-

tion to deliver the watermelons to respondent free of any and all

charges for transportation. 7 CFR 46.43(p). Unloading expenses, a

transportation charge, are thus properly deductible.

Therefore, respondent's liability consists of the contract price for

the eight loads of $28,319.42, less $377.00 in deductions for unload-

ing and the $14,591.00 already paid, or $13,351.42. As an order al-

ready has been issued for $11,944.72, respondent is liable for an ad-

ditional $1,406.70. Respondent's failure to pay such sum is a viola-

tion of section 2 of the Act, for which reparation should be award-

ed, with interest
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ORDER

Within 30 days from the date of this order, respondent

Lco^7K:Taiion
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4
,

06 -70
' witlin^tne rate of 13 percent per annum from August 1, 1984 until .midCoples of this order shall be served upon the partiea
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aged with the rest of the load, resulting in a determination by the

Vision and Order that the load was not abnormally
decorated-

However, as made clear in the Decision and Order, the evidence es-

tablishes that the inspection covered only the 200'cartons, of size SO

Autumn Fresh apples, and not the 865 cartons of size 100 Autumrx

Fresh apples. Further, such inspection was restricted, therefore tie

tracting from its credibility. Even if the 200 cartons of app es were

abnormally deteriorated, the Decision and Order correctly aver-

aged them with the other 1,765 cartons in the load m determining

the overall degree of deterioration, as the entire load of apples was

considered to be a single commercial unit, subject to acceptance or

rejection in its entirety. This is in conformance with a provision
^or

the Department's regulations (7 CFR 46.43(ii)), which states that a

commercial unit "means a single shipment of one or more perish-

able agricultural commodities tendered for delivery on a single.con-

tract, [and] such commercial unit must be accepted or rejected m

^naUy^respondent claims in paragraph 12 of Ita ^onfaat
there was insufficient evidence to justify the conclusion of tt deci-

sion and Order that complainant consigned the load to w. vv.

Roger* Dallas, Texas. This claim is wholly without foundat on *a

evidence supporting the existence of such a consignment
*

tained in complainant's sworn statement in reply, where <P
ant'e vice-president asserted that W. W. Rogers was handling-woe

fruit for the account of whom it may concern. In addf
on '

C

plainant has submitted into evidence an invoice it issued to w . -

Rogers reflecting W. W. Rogers' remittance conn*
corn.

consigned apples. Respondent has offered noflung to dspute con*

plainant's evidence. The conclusion made in the Decision and

Order was thus fully warranted.

For the reasons set forth above, there is no merit to ri

petition for reconsideration, and it should be
dianw^-

September 25, 1985, stay order is hereby
***

t e September 26, 1985, stay orer s

28, 1985, Decision and Order is hereby I B1*^^
awarded in the June 28, 1985, Decision and Order shall

within 80 days from the date of this order. ,

Copies of this order shall be served upon the parties.
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BROTHERS

ORDER REOPENING AFTER DEFAULT

Pak Inc failed to f i

9a et seg>)> respondent Vfl^u

'

fauIt inthe'flnl rf It
dm

?Iy' reBP ndent Valu Pak Ino.'s do-

rf"SK-1:-^
order shall be served upon the parUea.

INc PACA nnf o - and/ r BENOHMAI"!

1985
k6t Na 2-6919 ' Order isa^d November fi.

ORDER OP DZSMISSAL AND DEFAULT ORDER

timely comp ant w fi

" a
u^ded ff U 'S 'C ' 499a e' 7-J-

tion iwariSrt"Z , 'I
Whl h ""Pliant seeks a ropava-

of $1,843 20reo2S ^' u"
** altemative, in the amount

' ', eo u
,

state'comme^T'py ofThe ?*Tta of
,

strawb^^ '"tor-

each responden ReZndlt r ^ comPlaint wwd upon
answer y Pr dUCe ^^"^ fiW

- 198
^
oomPIai-nt authorized diamis-

'any, but
11* Lucky Seven Produoe

respondent
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AS respondent Benchmark Brokerage Inc. has failed to file an

answer and is in default, an order without further procedure is ap-

Pr priate pursuant to 7 CFR 47.8(d).

Complainant, Furukawa Sales Co. Inc., is a corporation whose ad-

dress is 865 Black Road, Santa Maria, California. Despondent,

Benchmark Brokerage Inc., is a corporation whose address is 310O

Produce Row, Houston, Texas. At the times of the transactions in-

volved herein, respondent Benchmark Brokerage Inc. was licensed

the Act,
J ,

The facts alleged in the formal complaint are hereby adopted as

findings of fact of this order. On the basis of these facts,^
we con-

clude that the actions of respondent Benchmark Brokerage Inc. are

in violation of section 2 of the Act (7 U.S.G 499b) and have resulted

i* damages to complainant of $1,843.20. Accordingly, withm dU

days from the date of this order, respondent Benchmark Brokerage

Inc. shall pay to complainant, as reparation, $1,843.20, with inter-

est thereon at the rate of 13 percent per annum from July 1, 1H,
until paid.

Copies of this order shall be served upon the parties.

VEGCO INC. v. MOORE MARKETING INTERNATIONAL INC. PACA

Docket No. 2-6890. Decided November 8, 1985.

Bankruptcy Stay order.

Complainant, pro se.

Bertran H. Ross, Los Angeles, California, for respondent,

Decision by Donald A. Campbell, Judicial Officer.

ORDER

This is a reparation proceeding under the able, Ag.icultur-

al Commodities Act, 1930, as amended (7 U.S.C. 499a * <w^

.

of the transactions involved herein.
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Prior to the Decision and Order in this proceeding, the Depart-ment was advised that respondent had filed in the United States
Bankruptcy Court, Eastern District of California, a voluntary neii-

Af^r/eorganization Pursuant to Chapter XI of the Bankruptcy
' UlS 'Cl

ad ,

alBO was advhata teharge in the bankruptcy proceeding would be a release of the
claim before the Department.

f; -' ^ provi
"?

e* for an automatic stay against continuing

the
d nCe a Party has filed a P0titi n unto

Code ' Therefore
> in accordance with 11 USC.

rfn? reparatlon P*edlng is hereby continued until the De-partment receives proper notification that the Chapter 11 proceed-ing now pending in the United States Bankruptcy Court has been
t0 8traight ^nkr/ptcy or that he

confirmation ^ a Plan of Ar-

Copies hereof shall be served upon the parties.

Ord
'

. Order issued November 20, 1985.

ORDER DENYING PETITION FOR RECONSJDERATION AND

e

Decir and Order

delivered. Resdec;? ?* ParHeS Was f''b" and not

Potatoes at Sue were old on ell
an
/fablish th<* *e SWeot

troduce evidence to do So
V61"ed baSJS ' and wish98 to in'

v
order. 7 CPR 47 24rt>) ThIf y 6 re the iss aMe of the final

was filed after the ^n'n^T* ^'* P6tition to

andmustbedenM.
rder Was issued- !t i

* the Decision and Order
and i hefeby denied^! r"nje 0nslderation is witho"'

1985, orderi^*? "T"^ *"* September 27'
30 days from the date of this order.
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Copies of this order shall be served upon the parties.

KWAHAM. FARMS, INC., a/t/a KITAHARA PACKING Co. ,

^

UN^
FnuiT COMPANY. PACA Docket No. 2-6664. Order issued No

vember 25, 1985.

ORDER ON RECONSIDERATION

In this reparation proceeding under the Perishable Agricultural

Commodities Act, 1930, as amended (7 U.S.C. 499a
etse^,

*n

order was issued July 1 1985, awarding reparat:on to c m tonan

against respondent in the amount of $10,324.^. On jury ,

respondent filed a petition for reconsideration. On August 12 198O

the order of July 1, 1985, was stayed, and complainant"W*^*
fifteen days from date of receipt of the stay orde, m wh h to file

an answer to the petition. No answer was filed by "P"*
B

Respondent's objections to the decision ^d order of

Ju^

y 1,1^
were fuUy answered therein, and upon reconsuJeraton

we^

Hnd that

the order of July 1, 1985, is supported by the, ev dence and tta la

days from the date of this order.

Copies of this order shall be served upon the parties.

So, S INC. , FHKSH As CAN B, IKO, PACA Docket No.

6877. Order issued November 25, !&

ORDER OF DISMISSAL

This is a reparation proceeding
under *

al Commodities Act, 1930, as amended1

p_ ation
timely complaint was filed in wh.ch

*ffifco

e

onnejon with
against respondent in the amount of VIM

'^ mi8cellaneoUB
numerous transactions involving the snrpmen,,

produce in interstate commerce, .

_

.

respondent. By

ing complainant's right to e m another
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Copies of this order shall be served upon the parties.

*
ORDER UPON RECONSIDERATION

198E S vedT^
n

1

September
. IKK. the order of July

of re'ceTt ffi sTayST "*""'

tion for reconside^o,

In its petition respondent contends that the order of July I 19H5,

fmd trrr:r .

respfs ' we have remnsi^ ^ d

rated bt reTnont V
C ntentlon

j
a are witho t "writ The matter.

July 1 1985Tn/ ,n

^ C n
fd6red in arrivi"S at llr *" of

supported bv ?Tf ^" recons'dfa " we find that such onlcr is

a or shH.
order

be Pmd WitWn 80^ from > 4>K> of (hh

Copies of this order shall be served upon the parties.

', INC. PACA Docket No. 2-6(137.

ORDER UPON RECONSIDERATION

an oer was ' ' On
'

which -to an answer to the petition to reconaidor.
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Complainant's answer was filed on August 27, 1985, and subse-

Wently served upon respondent. Although respondent was no

granted an opportunity to reply to complainant's answer, respond

ent did file a reply on September 13, 1985.
nm/iit'a

We have carefully considered the matters raised m P*j
Petition, and have reconsidered our order of July i, ia, '

Sight of a reexammation of the entire record m this matte, we

conclude that the questions raised by the P^on
fre

suftoen

considered in arriving at our order of July 2, 1985
J

that

order is supported by the evidence and the law appli ^ *

Accordingly, the petition is dismissed, the stay of Augus .12,

h vacated/and the order of July 2, 1985, is remstated excep

the time for payment shall be within thirty (30) days from the date

of this order.

Copies of this order shall be served upon the parties.

SPADA DEBUTING COMPANV, INC.

INC. PACA Docket No. 2-6933. Order issued December

ORDER OF DISMISSAL

THis Is a reparation proceeding under

al Commodities Act, 1930, as amended .

reparation

timely complaint Was filed in whicV miJ|^^ a

a ommoes c, , reparaton

timely complaint Was filed in whicV
|gmi^J|^^ a

against respondent in the amount of ?ABib.ou
te com.

transaction involving the shipment of potatoes
in

merce. A _ vpaoondent. By
A copy of the formal complaint was djfi Depart-

letter dated September 25, 1985, re

f"tl
"

n Ml settlement of
checK n

ment that it tendered to complainant
a checK ^^ Qc_

complalnant'B claim.
Complaman^

;**
^noWrt

,

y^^ amicably

tober 28, 1985, that we assumed
that^'^

*

fied that unlsss we

resolved between the parties.
It also w

would be dis-

heard from it by November 5, 1986, the omp

missed. Complainant did not respondI to ta le*

Accordingly, the complaint ,s hereby tarns*ed

Copies of this order shall be served upon the pa
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THE NUNES COMPANY, INC. v. PLASKETT ENTERPRISES, INC, n/t/a
PACIFIC VALLEY PRODUCE Co. PACA Docket No. 2-6950. Order
issued December 16, 1985.

ORDER OF DISMISSAL

This is a reparation proceeding under the Perishable Agricultur-
al Commodities Act, 1930, as amended (7 U.S.C. 499a et sea) A
timely complaint was filed in which complainant seeks reparation
against respondent in the amount of $3,690.00 in connection with a
transaction involving the shipment of cauliflower in intoraUito
commerce.

A copy of the formal complaint was served on respondent which

Notmwn
iriQ,

eret d
f
nying any Uability to npfctaont. On

November 12 1985, complainant notified the Department thnt itwas withdrawing its complaint.

Accordingly, the complaint is hereby dismissed.
Copies of this order shall be served upon the parties.
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REPARATION DEFAULT DECISIONS ISSUED BY

DONALD A. CAMPBELL, JUDICIAL OFFICER

BORELLI PRODUCE DISTRIBUTORS a/t/a VALU-FRESH FRUITS & VEGE-

TABLES LTD. v. RONA"LD G. MUSTO PRODUCE Co. PACA Docket No.

RD-86-1. Decided November 4, 1985.

Respondent was ordered to pay complainant, as reparation,

531,961.48 plus 13 percent interest per annum from March 1, 1985,

until paid,

FRANK M. MINARDO v. TONY KASTNER & SONS PRODUCE Co. INC.

PACA Docket No. RD-86-2. Decided November 4, 1985.

Respondent was ordered to pay complainant, as reparation,

7,886.75 plus 13 percent interest per annum from October l, iw,

until paid.

NUGENT & SOHAPANSKI ORCHARD * FICOR MANUFACTURING Co.

PACA Docket No. RD-86-3, Decided November 4, 1886.

Respondent waa ordered to pay Complainant
as rep

$7,886.75 plus 13 percent interest per annum from October

until paid.

COLORADO POTATO GROWERS EXCHANGEi*

ING, a/t/a GET FRESH PRODUCE Co. PACA

cided November 4, 1985.
wa

Respondent was ordered to pay -j*T 3
$497.50 plus 13 percent interest per annum

from May

paid.
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complainant
' -13

1984, untilVaid
""" ""^ P6r annum fro Decintar

SU

" r
until paid.

nerest per annum fr m March 1, 195,

ssr
Ca LTa PACA

e
until paid

eres per annum from August 1,

Co - PACA
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Respondent was ordered to pay complainant, as reparation,

$4,303.30 plus 13 percent interest per annum- from June 1, 1984,

1 1 *T. ti 1 iUntil paid.

SEQUOIA ENTERPRISES INC, v, GILBERT GUERRA d/b/a GILO s

PRODUCE Co. PACA Docket No. RD-86-11. Decided November It,

1985.

Respondent was ordered to pay complainant, as reparation,

,622.50 plus 13 percent interest per annum from February 1,

until paid.

BRUCE CHURCH INC. v. EMANUELLA L. PERAINO d/b/a THE TOMATO

OUTLET. PACA Docket No. RD-86-12. Decided November 14 iSb.

Respondent was ordered to pay complainant, as ^P^'
$847.50 plus 13 percent interest per annum from December 1, itfoo,

i *^i -J 5 1 * ... ^ Juntil paid.

HELLE TOMATO Co. INC. v. GEORGE HOWARD d/b/a THE; PRODITCE Co.

PACA Docket No. RD-86-18. Decided November U lawa.

Respondent was ordered to pay complainant, as reparataon,

$5,653.98 plus 13 percent interest per annum from June 1, ISHH>.

until paid.

LIVER P. WOL.E III d/b/a M & T

GEORGE HOWARD d/b/a THE PRODUCE Co. PACA Docket

86-14. Decided November 13, 1985.

Respondent waa ordered to pay ^
$5,653 98 plus 13 percent interest per annum from June

until paid.

November 13, 1985,
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n
d t0 Pav c mplainant, as reparation,

*5,y58.00 plus 13 percent interest per annum from July 1 1985
until paid.

J ' '

ROGER SALES INC. v. THE PRODUCE Co. PACA Docket No. RD-8G-16
Decided November 13, 1985.

as reparation,
13 percent interest per annum from November 1

, until paid,

BOSTON TOMATO Co. INC. v. CARON FRUIT Co. IN0 . PACA DocketNo. RD-86-18. Decided November 13, 1985.

, t
reparation,

1984, until d
P ' reSt P6r annum from November 1,

^
RO

,

DUOE COMPANY INOOBPOIIATED v. CBOWN PRODUCE Co
Docket No. RD-86-19. Decided NovemberTl986

Ballon,
until paid.

" " P^ annum

S fi n,86-20, Decided November 14, 1985.

-as ordered
t

to pay complainant, as reparation,w percent interest per annum from June 1, 1985,

-21, Decided Novem-
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Respondent was ordered to pay complainant, as reparation,

5103,353,00 plus 13 percent interest per annum from June 1, 1985,

!*V^f"ll nni^Juntil paid.

ELMCO v, ERNEST G. ANDERSON d/b/a ANDY'S PRODUCE Co, PACA

Docket No. RD-86-22. Decided November 14, 1985.

Respondent was ordered to pay complainant, as reparation,

31,732.50, plus 13 percent interest per annum from December 1,

1984, until paid.

BLUE KEY GROWERS INC. u. DANNY HAWKINS and TOMMY HAWKINS

d/b/a HAWKINS & HAWKINS PRODUCE COMPANY. PACA Docket No.

RD-86-23. Decided November 14, 1985.

Respondent was ordered to pay complainant, as reparation,

$30,478.40, plus 13 percent interest per annum from January 1,

1985, until paid.

COEXPQRT INTERNATIONAL INC. v. T & M MARKET SERVICES INC. a/t/

a GET FRESH PRODUCE Co. PACA Docket No. RD-86-24. Decided

November 14, 1985.

Respondent was ordered to pay complainant, as
^

reparation,

2,516,25, plus 13 percent interest per annum from May 1, ISBD,
$12
until paid.

*. & SONS INC. v. GAL-KERN DEBTORS
I/TD. PACA

Docket No- RD-86-25. Decided November 15, 1985.

Respondent was ordered to pay complainant,
j "J""

$12,515.25, plus 13 percent interest per annum from May i,

until paid.

S. KATZMAK PRODUCE INC. , TOM PANNO, JR., INC. PACA Docket
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Respondent was ordered to pay complainant, as reparation,
$4,676.25, plus 13 percent interest per annum from January l'

1985, until paid.
'

STANDARD FRUIT AND STEAMSHIP COMPANY v. CROWN PRODUCE CoPACA Docket No. RD-86-27. Decided November 15, 1986.

ordered to pay complainant, as reparation,
' Plus 13 Percent interest per annum from January 1,

lyoo, until paid.

CHIQUITA BRANDS INC. v. AL NAGELBERT & Co, INC. PACA Docket
No. RD-86-28. Decided November 15, 1985,

To
3 rdered t0 Pay complainant, as reparation,

.47, plus 13 percent interest per annum from April 1, 1985
until paid.

'

SARAS INC.
^

A. PELLEGRINO & SON INC. PACA Docket No. RD-8G-
^9. Decided November 15, 1985.

to pay COI Plainant, as repnratEon,

untn
P6rCent ntereSt Per annum from

No" Rn
A

Sfi

R
?n

U
n
E^ A ' PELLEG*INO & SON INC, PACA Docket

INO. KU-bb-dO. Decided November 18, 1986.

$28 062 03 lu 13 .

to pay complainant, as reparation,

until
- '* ''

S percent mterest Per annum "

M
A> PELLEGR1NO & SON INC. PACA Docket

November 18, 1986.
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Respondent was ordered to pay complainant, ^
$1G9>286.75, plus 13 percent interest per annum from April 1, WHO

until paid.

C. A. C.IIUL, BROKERAGE INC. . A. P'" & SoN IN ' PACA

Docket No. RD-86-32. Decided November 18, 19b.

Respondent was ordered to pay complainant, ^ reparat^n
$5,038.30, plus 13 percent interest per annum from April 1, W*.

until paid.

SALES Co. INC. , ALPL*O * SON Ic. PACA Docket

No. RD-86-33. Decided November 18, 1985.

Respondent was ordered to pay ^^^J
$4,722.90. Plus 13 percent interest per annum from May

until paid.

FAHMERS' MARKETING SEBVZCE v. A.P. * S N lN '

Docket No. BD-86-34. Decided November 18. !"-

Respondent was ordered to pay complainant
* reparat^

$16,632.75, plus 13 percent interest per annum from April

until paid,

H-J DISTR Co. , POKX.O. BE- FARM IN, PACA Docket

No. RD-86-35. Decided November 27,

HeSpondent was ordered to ^J
$6,928.45, plus 13 percent interest per annum

until paid.

1985.
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$749To

n

1

e"t

-WaS-

0rdered t0 Pay comPlainant<

until paid.

pA
B

crDL7M
AN^Nc - " TBIPLE B PRODUCB E

. PACA Docket No. RD-86-40. Decided November 27, 198C

.
,

Interest P- fr- March l!

oRDnNo. RD-86-41. Decided November 29, 1985.

$4 v T rder
f
d t0 Pay PWnt, ^ration,18

ber 291985
Cket N ' RD-86-42' Dedded No ""
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Respondent was ordered to pay complainant, as reparation,

$778.76, plus 13 percent interest per annum from February l> 1985,

until paid,

WESTERN COLD STORAQE Co. INC. u. BENCHMARK BROKERAGE INC.

PACA Docket No. RD-86-43. Decided November 19, 1985.

Respondent was ordered to pay complainant, as reparation,

$49,034,60, plus 13 percent interest per annum from December 1,

1984, until paid.

HUNT OIL COMPANY a/t/a PLANTATION PRODUCE COMPANY u. FREE

STATE PRODUCE INC. PACA Docket No. RD-86-44. Decided Novem-

ber 29, 1986.

Respondent was ordered to pay complainant, as reparation,

7,650.00, plus 13 percent interest per annum from November a,

1985, until paid.

THE A.E. ALBERT & SONS INC. v. WOODSTOCK Patm Co

PACA Docket No, RD-86-45, Decided November &> is

Respondent was ordered to pay complainant,
as r

$23,527.40, plus 13 percent intereat per annum irom

1984, until paid.

THE Caesar COMPAKV v. KKVIN J.

Docket No. RD-86-46. Decided December

Respondent was ordered to pay

$4,826 26, plus 13 percent interest per

until paid.

v MIKE D. PERKINS d/b/a

COLORADO POTATO GROWERS Ex
Wj* 1^86-47. Decided Deeem-

TRIANGLE PRODUCE, PACA Docket, w,
-

ber S, 198B.
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Respondent was ordered to pav
*R4 fififl OH nln 1 Q '

V-i

'

.j
percent interest per annum from April 1

until paid.
rtpni i,

GEORGE E. CHAVEZ and PABLO A. CHAVEZ d/b/a P ft r n
INO. PACA Docket No. RD-86-48. DedS^teVl^T
$6,298.65 plus 13 percent interest pi

il paid.

* rde
f
d t0 Pay oomPlainant.

percent interest per

THE WOODS COMPANY INCORPORATED . MART.N MONTES d/b/a M &

* PHy ^^ reparation,
percent mterest per annum

n u
T
f1NGLE PEODUOE - PACA Docket Na RD-

December 4, 1985.

Tf ? Pay ^P1""^*. as reparation,

1985 untid
P6rCent intereSt P6r annUm f "

ber
-86'53 ' Decided
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Respondent was ordered to pay complainant as reparation,

$5,619.20 plus 13 percent interest per annum from October 1, isso,

until paid.

ROGERS SALES INC. v. FREE STATE PRODUCE INC. PACA Docket No.

RD-85-54. Decided December 4, 1985,

Respondent was ordered to pay complainant, as reparation,

$8,262,36 plus 13 percent interest per annum from October 1, iaD,

until paid.

RIVERBRKD FARMS INC. v. FREE STATE PRODUCT INC. PACA Docket

No. RD-86-55. Decided December 5, 1985.

Respondent was ordered to pay complainant, ^ reparaUon

$2,475.00 plus 13 percent interest per annum from May 1, iwo,

until paid.

HARVEST TIME SALES INC. v. FREE STATE PRODUCE bra. PACA

Docket No. RD-86-56. December 5, 1985.

Respondent was ordered to pay complainant

$2,430 50 plus 13 percent interest per annum from May 1,

until paid.

GZRAZIAN FRU.T Co. INC. , WEST COAST PRODUCE SA^HS INC. PACA

Docket No. RD-86-57. Decided December 5, 1980.

Respondent was ordered to pay ^pl,
$8,911.50 plus 13 percent interest per annum from October

until paid.

T, T P DANIEL PRODUCE INC.

TEKRES NOXRES SHERRINGTON ^ ^^,^5
PACA Docket No. RD-86-68. Decked December 5,
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Respondent was ordered to pay complainant, as reparation
$1,750.00 plus 13 percent interest per annum from March 1 1984
until paid.

' *

GREG ORCHARDS & PRODUCE INC. v. J.A, HOWEL d/b/a J A HOWHI L
PRODUCE. PACA Docket No. RD-86-59. Decided December 6, 1985.

t0 Pay comPlai'^t, as reparation,
U plus 13 percent interest per annum from May 1 1985

until paid,
' '

VAL-MEX FRUIT COMPANY INC. v. CHINO'S PRODUCE INC. PACA
Docket No. RD-86-60. Decided December 6, 1985.

ordered to Pay complainant, as reparation,

*-,
P

-,
18 percent mterest per annum from December L

, until paid.

NORTHOHOSS, KENT W. d/b/a NOETHCHOSS DwoBmnnw v. CnownPHODUOK Co. PACA Docket No. RD-86-6L Decided December 6,

Pay comPlain "t. reparation,

until paid
8t POT annum from

ToE ippn
18 1985

A D k6t N ' RD-86-63. Decided December

$264.00 plus 1 ~--~--
r^ t0 Pay comPlain^ < reparation

until paid.
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reparation,Respondent was ordered to pay complainant, repa

$1,554,00 plus 13 percent interest per annum from May 1,

until paid.

WILLIAM Y. MURPHEY d/b/a NATIVE AMERICAN FARMS v. PRN

FRUIT & VEGETABLE BROKERS. PACA Docket No. RD-86-65. Decided

December 18, 1985.

Respondent was ordered to pay complainant, as reparation,

$17,725.00 plus 13 percent interest per annum from July 1, IBD,

until paid.

Bm GOOSE GROWERS INC. a/t/a DOLE CITRUS
^NATIONAL

PRODUCE DISTRIBUTORS INC. a/t/a CENTRAL PRODUCE. PACA Docket

No. R.D-86-66. Decided December 18, 1985.

Respondent was ordered to pay complainant, wa
$79,177.50 plus 13 percent interest per annum from June 1

until paid.

CAL^MEX DISTRIBUTORS INC. v. CABALLERO PRODUCE INC. PACA

Docket No. RD-86-67. Decided December 18, lo-

ReSpondent was ordered to pay ^>^*mium from Apnl 1, IM,Respondent was ordered to pay _

$11,769.68 plus 13 percent interest per annum from

until paid.

until paid.

>>. PACA Docket

RD-86-69, Decided December
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tsu i

r T t
Pay comPlain nt. as reparation

unfit paW
^ St P6r 3nnUm fr m JUM I-

A. VILA PRODUCE DISTRIBUTORS INC. u. CROWN PRODUCE
Docket No. RD-86-70. Decided December 19, 1985

*91sm, to Pay comPlainant, as reparation'

untifpaW
P " P6rC6nt intereSt POT an"Um from

ANTIGO POTATO GROWERS INC. v. DICKEY CREW d/b/a CRFW
ING. PACA Docket No. RD-86-71. Decided 06^6^ 19, 1985

$1 m87, re
!;

e Pay "^Ptataant, as reparation,:P 6rCen annum from

n
' P LK PRODUOE ' PACA

Decided December 19, 1986.

W * Pay "*fU*s*t. reparation,

until paid

Pe mtereSt P6r annum from Ja"T 1.

NoRD7n NO
, 'i

ISTAR INT ANAL INC. PACA
No. RD-86-74. Decided December 19, 1986.

rdered
.

to P"y Complainant, as reparation,
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Respondent was ordered to pay complainant, as reparation,

$679.50 plus 13 percent interest per annum from December 1, 1984,

until paid.

OSHITA INC. v. WAYNE H. HATANAKA d/b/a W. H. DISTRIBUTING.

PACA Docket No. RD-86-76. Decided December 20, 1985.

Respondent was ordered to pay complainant, as reparation,

$18,369.35 plus 13 percent interest per annum from May 1, 1985,

until paid.

FRUIT COMPANY INC. v. GEORGE HOWARD d/b/a THE

PRODUCE Co. PACA Docket No. RD-86-77. Decided December 20,

1985.

Respondent was ordered to pay complainant, as reparation,

$49,308.69 plus 13 percent interest per annum from June 1, 1985,

until paid.

DOBBINS AND RAMAGE INC. v. TOMMY HAWKINS and DANNY HAW-

KINS d/b/a HAWKINS AND HAWKINS PRODUCE COMPANY. PACA

Docket No. RD-86-78. Decided December 20, 1985.

Respondent was ordered to pay complainant, as reparation,

$3,307,50 plus 13 percent interest per annum from March 1, 15frf

until paid.

INTERSTATE PACKING Co. * PRN FRUIT & VWKABUi BROKERS INC.

PACA Docket No. RD-86-79. Decided December 20, 1B

Respondent was ordered to pay complainant, a.

$4,420.70 plus 13 percent interest per annum from July

until paid.

SuOTRESH INC. V. MOUNTA.K V..W
Ejoooo,

Inc. PACA Docket No.

RD-86-80. Decided December 27, 15.
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1984, until paid.
from Novemmm from November 1

cided December 27, 1985

$5,35000 plus
until paid

No. BD-86-81. De-

C mplainant- as reparSmant, as reparation,
Per annum f m May 1,

>m from May 1, 1985,

HENRY ANKENY Co

Respondent was
$4,301.50 plus 13 percent
1985, until paid.

5=
** rePa^nant

> a reparation,
annum from Februarjm from February 1,

83. Decided December 27, 1985

until paid.

N ' RD-
!' D Cket

n
mplainant' as ^eparatoant, as reparation,

per annum f April 1, 19i from April 1, 1985,

until paid

. ,

comPlainant' "" reparatfoitnt, as reparation,
mterest Per ann from May 1, 198Sfrom May 1, 198B,
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JAMES D. IRIS d/b/a STATE WIDE BROKERAGE Co. v. GEORGE

HOWARD d/b/a THE PRODUCE Co. PACA Docket No. RD-86-85. De-

cided December 27, 1985.

Respondent was ordered to pay complainant, as reparation,

6,503.76 plus 13 percent interest per annum from June 1, 1985,

until paid.

P K M INC. a/t/a FANCIFUL COMPANY v. WAYNE M. HATANAKA d/

b/a W.H. DISTRIBUTING. PACA Docket No. RD-86-86. Decided De-

cember 30, 1985.

Respondent was ordered to pay complainant, as reparation,

$11,308.74 plus 13 percent interest per annum from May 1, 1985,

until paid.

RICHARD S. BROWN INC. v. WAYNE M. HATANAKA d/b/a W.H. DIS-

TRIBUTING, PACA Docket No. RD-86-87. Decided December SO,

1985.

Respondent was ordered to pay complainant, as reparation,

$1,200.00 plus 13 percent interest per annum from May 1, 1985,

until paid.

PURE GOLD INC. v. WAYNE M. HATANAKA d/b/a W.H. DISTRIBUTING.

PACA Docket No. RD-86-88. Decided December 30, 1985.

Respondent was ordered to pay complainant, as reparation,

$24,464.60 plus 13 percent interest per annum from May 1, 1^0,

until paid,

SEABOARD PRODUCE DISTKIBUTORS INC. v. ^IN
q

'

s

iq

P ODUCE IN

PACA Docket No. RD-86-89. Decided December 30, 1085.

Respondent was ordered to pay complainant, as re]

$2,381.30 plus 13 percent interest per annum from June

until paid.
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:, n** STATE PRODUCE INC - PACA Docket No RDDecided December 30, 1985

INO- PACA

complainant, as

until paid."""

A" * IV*U * imereSt Per annum from M*y 1. Iflafii

ssfis

,'9,6-93, Decided December SO, 1985.

erc ,
as repara 0n ,

until paid.

P P6rC6nt lntere9t Per a"n^ from May 1, 1986,
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after default and allow the filing of an answer pursuant to section

47.25 of the Rules of Practice (7 CFR 47,25(e)).

The record has been carefully considered and it is concluded that

the motion to reopen was filed within a reasonable time, and that

good reason has been shown why the relief requested in the motion

should be granted. Mendelson-Zeller Co. v. United Fruit Distribu-

tors, 16 A.D. 790 (1957). Accordingly, respondent's default in the

filing of an answer is set aside and the proposed answer submitted

by respondent is hereby ordered filed.

Copies of this order shall be served upon the parties.

MANN PACKING Co. INC. v. A. LEVY DISTRIBUTING Co, INC. PACA

Docket No. RD-85-359. Order issued November 12, 1985.

ORDER

This is a reparation proceeding under the Perishable Agricultur-

al Commodities Act, 1930, as amended (7 U.S.C. 499a et
8eq>\

A

timely complaint was filed in which complainant seeks reparation

of $7,730.75 against respondent in connection with transactions in

interstate commerce involving shipments of mixed vegetables. A

copy of the formal complaint was served upon respondent, and re-

spondent has filed an answer thereto.

Complainant, Mann Packing Co. Inc., is a corporation whose ad-

dress is P.O. Box 908, Salinas, California. Respondent, A. I*vy Dis-

tributing Co. Inc., is a corporation whose address is 1559 W. bhaw

Avenue, Fresno, California. Respondent was licensed under the Act

at the time of the transactions involved herein.

Prior to the issuance of a Decision and Order in this proceedmi

the Department was advised that respondent had filed in the

United States Bankruptcy Court, Eastern Distnct of Cahforma a

voluntary petition for reorganization pursuant to Chaper XI ot tne

Bankruptcy Act (11 U.S.C. 1101-1174). The Department a so was

advised that a discharge in the bankruptcy proceeding would be a

release of the claim before the Department, _

11 U S C. 362 provides for an automatic stay against; continuing

an action involving a debt once a party has flled a petition under

the Bankruptcy Code. Therefore, m accordance with.11 U.M.

362, this reparation proceeding
is hereby continued until the De-

Lrtment receives proper notification that the Chapter 11 proeeed-

i "the United States Bankruptcy Court has been

or converted to straight bankruptcy, or that the
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of a Plan of A,

parties.
Copies hereof shall be served upon the

ORDER

interstate comrce Z^^ traMaCtiOI1S in

copy of the formal complaSt was !f ? Pea heS and PIums ' A
indent has filed an7nter thereto

UP n reSP ndent' and re-

Complainant, Ito Packine Co Tn,- i.
is P.O. Box 707, Reedley Califorl p

C t10n whose address

ing Co. Inc., i a corp^t whof
8^6"4

' A ' LeVy Distribut-

Avenue, Fresno, CaS^L^T, addr
f.

SS is 1559 W. Shaw
atthe me of theInZtf^*"* - Act

and
dvdhat

United States Bank^ptcy Court P
r

f
sP"d t had filed in the

voluntary petition for reoLZ;-
6 of Cali^nia, a

Bankruptcy Act (1! U. ^UO Tne"'if"^M f the

adyised that a discharge in th, hLJu \ DePartment also wasn ,
release of the dalm <""S would be a
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FURUKAWA SALES Co., INC. v. BENCHMARK BROKERAGE, INC. and/or
CANINO PRODUCE Co., INC. PACA Docket No. RD-85-364, Order
issued November 20, 1985.

ORDER REOPENING AFTER DEFAULT

In this proceeding under the Perishable Agricultural Commod-
ities Act, 1930, as amended (7 U.S.C. 499a et seq.\ the respondents
failed to file a timely answer. A Default Order was issued on Sep-
tember 17, 1985. Respondent Canino Produce Co., Inc. filed a
motion to reopen the proceeding after default and allow the filing
of an answer pursuant to section 47.25 of the Rules of Practice (7

GFR 47.25(e)). A Stay Order was issued on October 1, 1985, staying
the Default Order with respect to Canino Produce Co,, Inc. only.
The record has been carefully considered and it is concluded th*

the motion to reopen was filed within a reasonable time, and the

good reason has been shown why the relief requested in the raotio

should be granted. Mendelson-Zeller Co, v. United Fruit Distribi

tors, 16 A.D. 790 (1957). Accordingly, the default in the filing of a:

answer of respondent Canino Produce Co,, Inc. is set aside and it

proposed answer is hereby ordered filed.

Copies of this order shall be served upon the parties.

[NEW DOCKET NO. IS PACA 2-7007.-EdJ

SARAS INC. v. MACK DEMPSEY Co. PACA Docket No. RD-85-37C

Order issued November 25, 1985.

ORDER DENYING MOTION TO REOPEN AFTKR DEFAULT

In this proceeding under the Perishable Agricultural Commoc
itiea Act, 1930, as amended (7 U.S.C. 499a et seg.\ the responden
failed to file a timely answer, A Default Order was issued on Sej

tember 20, 1985. On October 23, 1985, respondent filed a propose

answer, in effect moving to reopen after default.

Respondent's proposed answer will not be accepted for filing, Th

Rules of Practice state that a default will not be reopened unlei

th.e respondent presents a good reason why an answer was ni

timely filed (7 CFR 47.25(e)), and respondent has not presented ar

such reason. In any event, the Department lost jurisdiction at tl

expiration of 30 days from the date of the Default Order, or Oct

bef 20, 1985. American Fruit Growers v. Lewis D. Goldstein F &
Corp., 78 P. Siipp. 309 (E.D, Pa. 1948); Southland Produce Co.

Caamano Brothers Wholesale, 39 Agric. Dec. 789 (1980).
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Copies of this order shall be served upon the parties.

OTAY PACKING Co. v. J & S PRODUCE CORP. PACA Docket No, RD-
85-333, Order issued December 10, 1985.

ORDER REOPENING AFTER DEFAULT

In this proceeding under the Perishable Agricultural Commod-
ities Act, 1930, as amended (7 U.S.C. 499a et seq.\ the respondent
failed to file a timely answer. However, subsequent to the Septem-
ber .4, 1985, issuance of a Default Order, respondent requested an
extension of time to file a motion to reopen the proceeding lifter
default and allow the filing of an answer pursuant to section 47 25
of the Rules of Practice (7 CFR 47.26(e)). On October 16, 1985, the
Default Order was stayed to give respondent the opportunity to file
a motion to reopen. Such a motion was filed on October 17, 108fi
and complainant has filed an opposition thereto.

'

The record has been carefully considered and it is concluded thnl
the motion to reopen was filed within a reasonable time, and that
good reason has been shown why the relief requested in the motion
should be granted. Mendelson-Zeller Co. v. United Fruit Dutrfou.
tors 16 Agric. Dec. 790 (1967). Accordingly, respondent's default hi

.? *. f
an answer is aet aside - Respondent shall file an answer

within 10 days of service of this order. No extensions of time will
be granted, and the failure to file a timely answer will result in tho
reissuance of a default order against respondent.

Copies of this order shall be served upon the parties.
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Respondent's motion must be denied.

fault Order ordered respondent to pay re

from the date of this order." Therefore, en
before November 1, 1985. The envelope m wto a

motion was mailed contain a postmark which
^hows

t

letter was mailed from San Jose, Calrforma on Oc
ober^

dl 1

rf > P^
p.m. It is obvious that unless' "epondent d rf > P

mail, which he did not, ""^jtcflhe envelope Bhows
the Department by November 1 1985

ree day" ^ ;t wag
that it was received on November 4, 1985, tnree oay

due. Therefore, the Secretary is without Ju"sdlct' ^f^ the

spondenfs motion, as the Default Order became nal due to

expiration of the time allowed for flhng a petit
for rev.ew

Losky v. Commissioner of InternalX%Jpr ê Co.,

1956)! affd per curiam 352 U.S. 1027 (1956); So^dP~
e^

a/t/a Keystone Produce Co. v. Caamano Brothers Wholesale,

Agric. Dec. 789 (1980). .
. ,

Respondent's motion to reopen after default IB denied.

Copies of this order shall be served upon the parbes.

o> r*t

TNP D AL NAGELBERG ct ^'
(UJ.AJ1 JJIWlllL/Qf JLllVVi I/' * " * "

No. RD-86-28. Order issued December 1U,

STAY ORDER

r , - ,- ^n* under the Perishable Agricultural
In this reparation proceeding unaer ui

^^ ^ & Default

Commodities Act, 1930, as amended Ci'U.b.o.
reparation to

_ .1 .T l^nv 1 Si IHrtn. H.Vr l w>J.fci r
Order was issued on November 15 1986, aw

a^

, g
^

the complainant in the amount of $61,826.4 (. ^y

ent has moved that this matter be ^P
e
^

a '

.

h by stayed .

Accordingly, the order of N^^^^cSpTof this order

Complainant may have fifteen (15) days from recetp

to file an answer to the petition
to reopen. Qfto ie an answer o

Copies of this order shall be^J^^
respondent's petition shall be served upon the comp
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PRO-VEG
INC_

K LEVY D,STEIBUTINO Co. INC. PACA Docket No. RD-
8b-d4b. Order issued December 11, 1985.

This is a reparation proceeding under the Perishable Agricultur

UmerT
' 193

J

-^
amended (7 U-S-C. 499a etseq.) A

of $6,958.15 aerainsf. roor>^n^Q 4- ; j... ... paiation

Boxa r
"
P

a corfration whose ** 1- P.O.BOX U7, Lamont, California. Respondent, A. Levy Di8tributin<r Co
Inc., is a corporation whose address is 1559 w < A
Fresno.California. Respondent was licensed und the if7^time of the transactions involved herein

tary petition for reorganization pureuant to Chapter XI o7 th,"
Bankruptcy Act (11 U.S.C, 5 1101-1174) T, n * ? ,

advised f-hn f ^{ i, - 1 1 ,

J< Ihe DePartment also was
proceeding

.

a
m accordance with 11 USCSSfiP t

, m accorance with 11 USC

Copies hereof shall be served upon the parties,

INC . PACA
December 23, 1985,

ORDER OF DISMISSAL

Perishable

'S 'G 499a e' se?J. A
complainant seeks reparation against
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respondent in the amount of $16,803.00 in connection with transac-

tions involving the shipment of vegetables in interstate commerce,

A copy of the formal complaint was served on respondent, which

failed to file an answer. Prior to the issuance of a Default Order, a

review of the record revealed that the date the informal complaint

had been filed with the Department, May 16, 1985, was in excess of

nine months from when the causes of action alleged in the com-

plaint had accrued,

Complainant contended in its informal complaint that respond-

ent was liable for two loads of produce shipped on July 21 and 26,

[984. Although the record does not indicate when the produce ar-

rived at respondent's place of business in Houston, Texas, we can

issume that the transit time from complainant's place of business

n Onley, Virginia, was no more than four days. Therefore, the

>roduce must have arrived not later then July 26 and 29, 1984, re-

ipectively. Where there is no probative evidence as to when pay-

nent was due, it is presumed that such period was 10 days after

he date of acceptance. See 7 CFR 46.2(aa)(5). Although the infer-

nal complaint did not allege any specific period for payment, the

brmal complaint alleged that payment was not due until 90 days

ifter acceptance. However, this contention is contradicted by com-

ilainant's own invoices, attached to the formal complaint, where

he space under the heading "terms" is left blank. We, therefore,

onclude that the 10 day period for payment was in effect, and tne

auaes of action accrued on August 4 and August 8, 1984.

The Department lost jurisdiction after nine onths^ "

he causes of action accrued on August 4 and August 8, IBM, or

Jay 4 and May 8, 1985, respectively, which preceded the filing;
ot

he informal complaint on May 16, 1985. 7 CFE 47.3(a). According-

y, the complaint is hereby dismissed.

Copies of this order shall be served upon the parties.
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In re: AMIGO FOOD CORPORATION P.Q, Docket No, 130. Decided No
vember 5, 1985.

Civil penalty Consent.

Joseph Pembroke, for complainant.

Respondent, pro se,

Decision by William J. Weber, Administrative Law Judge.

CONSENT DECISION

This proceeding was instituted under the Act of August 20 1019as amended (Act) (7 U.S.C. 151-154a and'

fii 1*7/1
'

7
'

30175) Th. r "f^
1*41011 Promulgated thereunder (7 CFE

th* "-I". aLK-
** below and

ontj and th P-visions of

Secretary of the Ztted S^!/n
" ^^"y ^mita that the

risdiction in this matter net"
*****"* { Agriculture has ju-

allegation in the Lint J "fT n r deniea the remaining
forth below, and wa7vs:

' 'tS '" the KndinSs of F " *

(a) any further procednro-Ti Q/T,I
final decision in this proceedin/, ^ .""I

re1uirement* that the
with respect to all matS es nTfT ,

findingS a"d ^<>
- the reasons or ba eslhSllA^ 2 diSCreti n ' as we
review and otherwise challenge or onnt ,r

ghtS tO 8eek Judioial
sion; andI122. Respondenta1so

^

SH , ,

^
Vali<lity of this d^'

United States Department of it.'^
8'68 and aSrees that the

to the
ProceedinganTwate ^ " We 'S the

"Prevailing party-
Department of AgricuCe Under th^F^ the United Stot^

' q
(6 U.S.C. { 504 et 1) t

'" E<5ua Access to Justice Act
'

respondent in connection wit



DELTA AIR LINES, INC. 303S

Volume 44 Number 7

CONCLUSIONS

Respondent having admitting the jurisdictional
facts and having

reed to the provisions set forth in the following order in disposi-

m of the proceeding, such order will be issued.

ORDER

The respondent is assessed a civil penalty of three hundred dol-

B C$300) which shall be payable to the "Treasurer of the United

iteB" by certified check or money order, and which. shall be lor-

ried to Joseph P. Pembroke, Office of the General Counsel,

cm 2422 South Building, United States Department of Agricui-

e, Washington, D.C. 20250-1400, within thirty (30) days from the

ective date of this order.

["his order shall become effective on the day upon which service

this order is made upon respondent.

re: DELTA Am LINES, INC. P.Q. Docket No. 144. Order issued No-

vember 16, 1985.

vision by Edward H. McGrail, Administrative Law Judge.

ORDER DISMISSING COMPLAINT

w good cause shown in Complainant's Motion filed November

1985, the Complaint issued in this matter is "sed^
/S

matter on October1985, the Complaint issue n s ma

IDffiBBD, that the Complaint issued in this matter on October

1985, be, and hereby is, dismissed.



3034 PLANT QUARANTINE ACT
Volume 44 Number 7

In

"JKftST RQ ' Docket Na 118 and

Garbage unloaded in violation of re*ulationa-Civil penalty-Consent.

Joseph Pembroke, for complainant,
Eilleen Gleimer, Washington, D.C., for respondent.

Decision by Dorothea A. Baker, Administrative Law Judge.

CONSENT DECISION

un^LTtl^^ 7-
Mm, 120), the Fetr^^rnf:^^ VSC160aa et seq.) and the Act of August 20 1019

(
, ^ SUSO sifil *A R1co^ i. , f11^81 ^u

> iwl^, as amended, {7

the An m! and Han '^Zf"^^ by the Administrate; f

h "'08 this stipulation and the provisions of

(a) any further procedure-

dedsion i

offw or
to a

theref;

8 retl n
' 8S Weli as the or basis

and otherwise ohallenge

agrees that the United states

incurred by the

-
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FINDINGS OF FACT

1. National Airlines, respondent, is a corporation whose address

is 3333 New Hyde Park Road, New Hyde Park, New York 11042.

2. On or about January 21, 23, and 24, February 7, and June 10,

and 14, 1985, respondent removed foreign origin garbage from

flights arriving at J. F. Kennedy International Airport, Jamaica,

New York.

CONCLUSIONS

The respondent having admitted the jurisdictional facts and

having agreed to the provisions set forth in the following order in

disposition of the proceeding, such order will be issued.

ORDER

1. National Airlines, respondent, is assessed a total civil penalty

days from the effective date of this order.
Kennedy

2. National Airlines Compliance Agreement for J .

F^Kenn
*y

International Airport (Agreement number 23) dated NovemD

1984, is suspended until January 1, 1*
Compliance

3. On or after January 1, 1986, NaWona a

Agreement shall be reinstated, if and only if, the followi

criteria are satisfactorily met.
n,,=rntme (PPQ) P60?'6 as'

4. The local Plant Protection and arantm^, w York,.
,

,

signed to J. F. Kennedy International A.**^ ^ the listed

will make the initial determination as to whether

criteria have been met. wween National Airlines and

5. Any and all disputes amg betweenj ^ york_

PPQ officials at J. F Kennedy
[ ^ be arbitrated

regarding the completion of*e^K^t to the Deputy Ad-

and settled by Doctor Rona d Caffy, A^ g56 Federal

ministrator, Animal Pla^^^O^S^i . .

Building, 6506 Belcrest Road,**""%% continue a traming

6. National Airlines agrees to imp erne"
or di9poBe f

o.

and orientation pMgram for^oy^ ^ that only

foreign-origin garbage.
Nations

l*?rigta g ba8e ' Su h T!
such trained employees

handle
foreign^

rw ^^bon by a

ing shall include a**%%*^ined employeeS
^

->,- ---w^ instructor, in aaumv ,
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te content and purpose
agreement, to

accordance with 7 CFR
Phasis shall be on"

States National ^rames agrees to
participation in the

training

particular cleaning crew The
foreign-origin garbage "ill be
330.400 and 9 CFR 975

8aita* '"

Par"culnr cif"

"'to the United
of

" who
handled by cuch
assuro that nJl

in accordance with 7 OFK

Decision by Victor WJ KWtor W^

with dismissed.

A , .

, Adminiatruttoe Law Judge.

DISMISSAL OP COMPLAINT

complaillfc
on M**h 28, 1986, IB here.

. 7,

OF COMPU.NT AGA.NST JAMES KANDA

thethe

Noven.be,

.
with P^-

t issued in this proceeding on
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March 26, 1985, against James Kanda be, and hereby is, dismissed

with prejudice.

a corn-a com

fn re: STATE'S SHIPPING AGENCY, INC. P.Q. Docket No. 129. Decided

November 26, 1985.

Garbage not in proper receptacles Civil penalty Consent.

Joseph Pembroke, for complainant.

fwspondGntf pro se.

Decision, by John A. Campbell, Administrative Law Judge.

CONSENT DECISION

This proceeding was instituted under the Act of

^bruary
2,

1903, as amended (Act) (21 U.S.C. 111, 120), the Federal Plan

Peat Act, as amended (7 U.S.C. 150aa etseq) and the ACT

August 20, 1912, as amended, (7 U.S.C. 161 a

plaint filed by the Administrator of the Animal

Inspection Service alleging that State's Shippini ^ UIWB_

spondent has violated the Acts t^} s W
, The par

.

under (9 GFR 94.5 et seq.) and (7 CFR
5^

u^ ^rminated by
ties have agreed that this proceeding

s ou
d ^

entry of the Consent Decision set forth oeiow

the following stipulations: , ^e provisions
of

1, For the purposes of this stipulation ^.^^ ^
this Consent Decision only, respondent specii

J' Uure ha3 ju.

Secretary of the United States Department
01 B

risdiction in this matter neither a mi* o

to*^ (

allegations in the complaint, admits to tne

forth below, and waives:

(a) any further Procedure; n
. ^

(b) any requirements
that tne nu

^ ^ ^
ing contain findings and conclusions

witi ^ ^^^ w ^^
issues of fact, law or discretion, as ww

thereof; , ,

review and otherwise challenge

(c) all rights to seek judicial
revi

or contest the validity of thisd^ :
an ^ United States

2. Respondent also stipulates
and^.^ partyl(

in the
pr0;

Department of Agriculture
is *

the United States Depart-

ceeding and waives any ac ion as, ^ JuglifiB Act or ww
merit of Agriculture

under the^^ expenses incurred by the

<5 U.S.C. 504 e^ se9.)/or
lee

d

respondent in connection wi*
**"s P
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FINDINGS OF FACT

1. State's Shipping Agency, Inc., respondent, is a shippingwhose address M 909 Wirt Road, Suite 300, Houston, Texa 77<
2. On or about June 10, 1985, the respondent on its ship the IV

Achilles arrived m Duluth, Minnesota, with foreign origin garbwhich was not contained in tight leak-proof covered receptacles

CONCLUSIONS

The respondent having admitted the jurisdictional facts r
having agreed to the provisions set forth in the

following o^e
disposition of the proceeding, such order will be issued

ORDER

The respondent is assessed a civil penalty of two hunrhwl n
fifty dollars ($250) which shall be payable Jth

*
easme f IUnited States by certified check or money order, and wn h hbe forwarded to Joseph P, Pembroke, Office of the General Go

se Room 2422 South Building, United States Dep

*

f%"culture, Washington, D.C. 20250, within thirty (30) days fromT]
effective date of this order.

n
ShaU

,
beC me effective n *he day upon which aervfc

order is made upon respondent.

NC ' P 'Q ' D cket No< 136 ' Decided Decon:

Consent Civil penalty.

Kris H, Ikqjiri, for complainant.
Jason R. Archambeau, Atlanta, Georgia, for respondent.

Decision by Edward H. McGrail, Administrative Law Judge.

CONSENT DECISION AND ORDER

This proceeding was instituted under the Plant Quarantine Act,as amended (Act) (7 U S.C. 150aa * s ,) by a complaint flwjhe Administrator of the Animal and Plant Health Inspection Serv"
ce alleging that Delta Air Lines, Inc., violated the Act and regufa-tions promulgated thereunder (7 CFR 318.13 et seq,\ Respondent

T ^
r

u ^ ?"
and the comPlainant have agreed that thisu

if f ^ug f
110"1"6 ^minated by entry of the Consent Decfoioa

set forth below and have agreed to the following stipulations:
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1. For the purpose of this stipulation and the provisions of this

Consent Decision only, respondent Delta Air Lines, Inc., admits

specifically that the Secretary of the United States Department of

Agriculture has jurisdiction in this matter, neither admits nor

denies the remaining allegations in the complaint, admits to the

Findings of Fact set forth below, and waives:

(a) Any further procedure;

(b) Any requirement that the final decision in this proceed-

ing contain findings and conclusions with respect to all material

issues of fact, law, or discretion, as well as the reasons or bases

thereof;

(c) All rights to seek judicial review and otherwise challenge

or contest the validity of this decision; and

2. Respondent Delta Air Lines, Inc., waives any action against

the United States Department of Agriculture
under the Equal

Access to Justice Act of 1980 (5 U.S.C. 504 et serf for fees and

other expenses incurred by it in connection with this proceeding.

FINDINGS OF PACT

1, Delta Air Lines, Inc., respondent herein, is a"^^^
business as a common carrier in the United States whose pnncipal

office is at Hartsfield International Airport, Atlanta, Georgia

3
2
2

0n or about August 20, 1985, at Honolulu

port, Honolulu, Hawaii, the respondent received for

for its flight number 24, three (3) pieces of baggage.

CONCLUSION

Respondent Delta Air Lines, Inc., having admitted
^e

jurisdte-

tional facts and having agreed to thepa
j*

forth 1 ^
lowing Order in disposition of this proceeding,

such w
ciaion will be issued.

ORDER

T in nflSAssed a civil penalty
of

Respondent Delta Air Line*.,
Inc, is

assesp to ^
five hundred dollars <*^ wh **,& or money

"Treasurer of the United States ny ^^ of the

order, and which shall^^^^ United States Depart-

General Counsel, Room 2422 South?~
50,1400j ^thin thirty

ment of Agriculture,
**"*

(30) days from the effective date of ti* woe
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This order shall become effective on the day this Order is served
upon the respondent.

In re: PAN AMERICAN WORLD AIRWAYS. P.Q. Docket No. 94, Decided
December 4, 1986.

Straw imported for Central African Republic Civil penalty-Consent,

Mark Dopp, for complainant.

Carl A. Haberbmch, New York, New York, for respondent.

Decision by Dorothea Baker, Administrative Law Judge.

CONSENT DECISION

This proceeding was instituted under the Act of February 2,

1903, as amended, (Act) (21 U.S.C. 111 and 120) by a complaint
filed by the Administrator of the Animal and Plant Health Inspec-
tion Service alleging that the respondent violated the Act and regu-
lations promulgated thereunder (9 CFR 95.1 et set/.). The parties
have agreed that this proceeding should be terminated by entry of
the Consent Decision set forth below and have agreed to the follow-
ing stipulations:

1. For the purposes of this stipulation and the provisions of
this Consent Decision only, respondents specifically admit that the
Secretary of the United States Department of Agriculture has ju-
risdiction in this matter, neither admit nor deny the remaining al-

legations in the complaint, admit to the Findings of Fact set forth
below, and waive:

(a) Any further procedure;
(b) Any requirements that the final decision in this proceed-

ing contain findings and conclusions with respect to all material
issues of fact, law or discretion, as well as the reasons or bases
thereof;

(c) All rights to seek judicial review and otherwise challenge
or contest the validity of this decision; and

2. Respondent and complainant stipulate and agree that nei-
ther party is the "prevailing party',' in the proceeding and respond-
ent waives any action against the United States Department of Ag-
riculture under the Equal Access to Justice Act of 1980 (5 U.S.C.
604 et'SeqJ for fees and other expenses incurred by the respond-ent m connection wjth this proceeding.
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tetm WorM AirwnyH, rwipondenl, is n corporation

i O'llnrn lm.'nmlUnml Airport, Chicago, Illinois,

f hml Offe Box <M4, O'Haro Airport
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.
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This order
_shull

become effective on the day upon which service
of this order is made upon the respondent.

i or
LRS R< WATKR< P<Ql D Cket Na 110 ' Dedded September

ll t 1985.

Fruit Imported without iicuimpimylnjf permitCivil penally.

Thia order shall become effective on the day upon which service
of this order is made upon the respondent.

In re; CHARLES R. WATBU. P.Q. Docket No, 110. Decided September
11, 1985.

fruit Imported without pmmlty permit Civil penalty.

fcBpondonl WHS aliened Lo huvo imported two pounds of limes from Mexico into the
Jnitod Stains without a permit occompiinylng the fruit. toapondent's failure to file

my Biuwor to tho allogalloim constitutes admittance of the allegationa. Respondent
vaa assessed a civil ponulty of $2flO,00.

''mnria Woods, for complainant,

tcspomlont, pro sa.

decision by Victor W. Palmer, Administrative Law Judge,

DECISION AND ORDER

I'KEUMINAllY STATEMENT

This proceeding waa instituted under the Act of August 20, 1912,
8 amended (Act) (7 U,S.C. 161-16da and 167), by a complaint
led by tho Administrator of tho Animal and Plant Health Inapec-
ion Service, United States Department of Agriculture. The com-
latnt alleged that the respondent violated section 319.56-2(e) of

to regulations promulgated thereunder (7 CFR 319,66-2(e)X

opies of the complaint and tha Rules of Practice governing pro-

3@dings under the Act were served by the Hearing Clerk, by certi-

ed mail, upon respondent.
Pursuant to section 1.136 of the Rules of Practice (7 CFR 1.136)

iplicable to thia proceeding, respondent was informed in the com-

,aint and the letter of service that an answer should be filed

ithin twenty days after service of the complaint, and that failure

' file an answer would constitute an admission of the allegations

the complaint, under 7 CFR 1.186(c). The respondent was also

formed that failure to file an answer would constitute a waiver of

mrlng, ae provided in section 1,139 of the Rules of Practice (7

?R 1.139),
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The respondent filed no answer during the twenty-day period al-
lowed. Respondent's failure to file an answer within the time pro-
vided constitutes an admission of the allegations in the complaint
under section 1.136(c) of the Rules of Practice (7 CFR 1 136(c)) Re-
spondent's failure to file an answer also constitutes a waiver of
hearing under section 1.139 of the Rules of Practice (7 CFR 1 139)
Since respondent is deemed to have admitted the material allega-
tions of fact in the complaint, they are adopted and set forth as the
.bindings of Fact.

FINDINGS OF FACT

iq i'qS
1

?!
68\^terSl^Sp0ndent' is an individual whose address

is 4937 Tetons, El Paso, Texas 79904.

.

t EI Pas
' Texas

' Despondenttwo pounds of limes from Mexico into the United Statesm vio atlon of 7 CFR 319.5G-2(e), because the fruit was not ac om!
panied by a permit, as required.

CONCLUSION

The respondent has failed to file any answer to any of the altoa-
consequences of such a failure were S-

complaint and in the letter of

ed of t f n
'

waived
"

FindingS of Paot set forth bove, the respondent
Isated

"

ORDER

Xi;fc-r
appeal to the JuSciaToffi,

UP n resP ndent
> *<*> there is an
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[This decision and order became final December 11, 1985. Ed.]

In re: FLOTA BANENARA. P.Q, Docket No. 115. Decided November 1,

1985.

Foreign origin garbage aboard ship not in proper receptacles Civil penalty,

Joseph Pembroke, for complainant.

Respondent, pro se.

Decision by Edward McGrail, Administrative Law Judge.

DEFAULT DECISION AND ORDER

This proceeding was instituted under the Act of February 2,

1903, as amended (21 U.S.C. 111, 120, and 122), The Federal

Plant Pest Act, as amended (7 U.S.C. 150aa et seq.\ and the Act of

August 20, 1912, as amended (7 U.S.C. 161 and 162) (Acts) by a

complaint issued by the Administrator of the Animal and Plant

Health Inspection Service, United States Department of Agricul-

ture. The complaint alleged that respondent has violated sections

111 and 120 of the Act (21 U.S.C. 111 and 120) and sections 94.5

and 830.400 of the regulations promulgated thereunder (9 CFR

94.5) and (7 CFR 330.400).

Copies of the complaint of the Rules of Practice governing pro-

ceedings under the Act were served upon respondent's agent for

service by certified mail on July 29, 1986.

Pursuant to section 1.136 of the Rules of Practice (7 CFR 1.136)

applicable to this proceeding, respondent was informed in the com-

plaint and the letter of service that an answer should be filed witn

the Hearing Clerk within twenty (20) days after service of the com-

plaint, and that failure to file an answer either denying, admitting,

or explaining the allegations in the complaint and requesting an

oral hearing would constitute an admission of such
actions

and

waiver of such hearing. More than twentyW days have elapsed

since Respondent was served with the complaint in question
^Re-

spondent has not filed an answer to date, ^s
Decision and Order

therefore, is issued pursuant ^sections 1.13 and
R

l the

Rules of Practice applicable to this proceeding (7 CFR 1-136 and

1
Accordingly the material facts alleged in the complaint which

areTd^ a

and set forth herein as the findings of fact.
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FINDINGS OF FACT
1- Flota Banenara, respondent, is a business or in the

a. Un or about, Orfnhpv 17 100,1 *u ,

^--"-^ AUXK.

M/V Rio-i^^C^vio ated 880.400a.XD of the regulations (YCFR 330 in,

,
violated Seon 33'olo drrf" L*"*

Y
f?

fr m E Uador

330.400(b)(l)) and aection 94 Rrh?m
*6

(U
reSuIatl s (Y CFR

94.5(b)(1)), because 3^hlri fn.l
X f the reS"'ationS (9 CFR

was no conta ned in feht fT "T g8rbage n board
' which

quired.
g1"' leak-Proof covered receptacles as re-

violated

and section 94
it had

400ftXl) of

"
Ecua(lor

reSuIaons (7 CFR 330.400(b)U)
M '5(bX1 '

CONCLUSIONS

, re-

ORDER

* c
to two

United States" by crtified ch T"8 4 the "Tr^rer of

to JoseVp Pembtl JS?
"^ rder

' and sha
2422 South^BuildW ?L t ', f

e f the General C n-

>:D C 202!:O^nn
S
t

6S DePart t of Agri-

js 4er
1400

' Wlthm thir*y (SO) days from

a d e, a, if entered
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unless there is an appeal to the Judicial Officer within 30 days pur-
suant to section 1.145 of the Rules of Practice applicable to this

proceeding (7 CPR 1.146),

[This decision and order became final December 12, 1986, Ed.]

In re: PAULA DURAN. P*Q. Docket No, 84. Decided October 8, 1985,

Imported pork tamnlca without certificate Civil penalty.

Respondent imported pork tamalea from Mexico without a required certificate. Re-

spondent neither denied the allegationa nor requested a hearing, Respondent was
assessed a civil penalty of $250.00,

Mark Dopp, for complainant.

Respondent, pro se.

Decision by John A, Campbell, Administrative Law Judge.

DECISION AND ORDER

PRELIMINARY STATEMENT

This proceeding was instituted under the Act of Februa.

1903, as amended, (Act) (21 U.S.C. 111, and 120) by a comp
filed by the Administrator of the Animal and Plant Health Insi

tion Service, United States Department of Agriculture. The co.

plaint alleged that the respondent violated sections 94.9(b)(3) of th

regulations promulgated thereunder (9 CFR 94.9(b)(3)). Copies oi

the complaint and the Rules of Practice Governing Proceedings
"Under the Act were served by the Hearing Clerk, by certified mail,

upon respondent.

Pursuant to section 1.186 of the Rules of Practice (7 CFR 1.186)

applicable to this proceeding, respondent was informed in the com-

plaint and the letter of service that an answer should be filed with
the Hearing Clerk within twenty (20) days after service of the com-

plaint, and that failure to file an answer to, or plead specifically to,

any allegation in the complaint would constitute an admission of

such allegation pursuant to section 1.141 of the Rules of Practice (7

CPR 1.141), and a waiver of such hearing. The letter also advised

the respondent that failure to request an oral hearing within the

time for filing an answer would constitute a waiver, on his part, of

oral hearing.

Respondent filed a letter which was received in the Office of the

Hearing Clerk 22 days after the time to answer had passed and
which purported to explain her letters tardiness. Respondent's
letter did not deny the allegations in the complaint nor did the re-
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spondent request a hearing. Respondent's failure to request a hear-
ing constitutes a waiver of such hearing. There being no basis for a
hearing the material allegations of fact in the complaint are adopt-
ed and set forth as the Findings of Pact.

FINDINGS OP PACT

1. Paula Duran, herein referred to as respondent, is an individ-
ual whose address is 1231 Franklin Avenue, New Orleans, Louisi-
ana 70117.

t

2. On or about December 12, 1984, the respondent violated sec-
tion 94.9(bX3) of the regulations (9 CFR 94.9(b)(3)) in the respond-ent imported pork tamales from Mexico into Houston, Texas, with-
out a certificate, as required,

CONCLUSION

t

Respondent has failed to respond in any manner to the allega-
tions of the complaint. By reason of the Findings of Fact set forth
above the respondent has violated the Act and regulations pi-omul-
gated thereunder. Therefore, the following order is issued

ORDER

Respondent Paula Duran, is hereby assessed a civil penalty of
two hundred fifty dollars ($250). The respondent shall send, payable
to the Treasurer of the United States" a certified check or money
order, to Mark D. Dopp, Office of the General Counsel, Room 2422,South Building, United States Department of Agriculture, Wash-
ington, D C. 20250-1400, not later than thirty (30) days from the
effective date of this order. This order shall have the same force
and effect as if entered after full hearing and shall be final and ef-
fective 35 days after service of this Decision and Order upon re-
spondent, unless there is an appeal to the Judicial Officer pursuant

8
? n

1
;

146 f th6 Rules f Practice aPPl^able to this proceed-f 'FR 1,145),

lecision and order became final December 13, 1985. Ed.]
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In re: FRANCISCO CARRIZALES. P.Q. Docket No. 107. Decided Novem-

ber 1, 1985.

Fruit imported without permitCivil penalty Default.

Joseph Pembroke, for complainant.

Respondent, pro se,

Decision by William J. Weber, Administrative Law Judge.

DEFAULT DECISION AND ORDER

This proceeding was instituted under the Act August 20, 1912, as

amended (7 U.S.C. 151-164 and 167) (Act) by a complaint v issued

by the Administrator of the Animal and Plant Health Inspection

Service, United States Department of Agriculture. The complaint

alleged that respondent has violated sections 111 and 120 of the

Act (21 U.S.C. 111 and 120) and section 319.66-2(e) of the regula-

tions promulgated thereunder (7 CFR 819.56-2(e)).

Copies of the complaint of the Rules of Practice governing pro-

ceedings under the Act were served upon respondent by certified

mail on July 29, 1985.

Pursuant to section 1.136 of the Rules of Practice (7 CFR 1.136)

applicable to this proceeding, respondent was informed in the com-

plaint and the letter of service that an answer should be filed with

the Hearing Clerk within twenty (20) days after service of the com-

plaint, and that failure to file an answer either denying, admitting, ,

or explaining the allegations in the complaint and requesting an

oral hearing would constitute an admission of such allegations and

waiver of such hearing. More than twenty (20) days have elapsed

since Respondent was served with the complaint in question. Re-

spondent has not filed an answer to date. This Decision and Order,

therefore, is issued pursuant to sections 1.136 and 1.139 of the

Rules of Practice applicable to this proceeding (7 CFR 1.136 and

1.139).

Accordingly, the material facts alleged in the complaint, which

are admitted by respondent's failure to file an answer, are adopted

and set forth herein as the findings of fact.

FINDINGS OF FACT

1. Francisco Carrizales, respondent, is an individual, whose mail-

ing address is 2677 Lima Street, Brownsville, Texas 78520.

2. On or about June 19, 1984, the respondent imported one kilo-

gram of limes from Mexico into the United States at Brownsville,

Texas, in violation of section 319.56-2(e) of the regulations (7 CFR

319.56-2(e)), because the fruit was not accompanied by a permit,

as required.
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CONCLUSIONS

By reason of the facts in the findings of fact set forth above re-

SrTl^
8

/
101^^6 A

.

CtS and re^ulations Promulgated there-
under. Therefore, the following order is issued,

ORDER

fifvdorwm v
y
,T nl

d dv" Penalty of two uie
fifty dollars ($250) which shall be payable to the "Treasurer of theUmted States' by certified check and money order, and sha11 beforwarded to Joseph P. Pembroke, Office of the General CounselRoom 2422 South Building, United States Department of

400
' within

rder 8ha11 h ve the same force and effect as if entered

1 U m
earmg 8nd ?? be fmal and effec ve 35 days (7 CFE

ln,tL
S6m0e f

,

thiS Becisi n and 0rdCT P ^pendent,unless there is an appeal to the Judicial Officer within 30 days pur^

[This decision and order became fmal December 13, 1985.--Ed.]

NUKS E8 ' RQ ' Docket No ' W- Decided December

mot" hlBh rl

Kevin B. Thiemann, for complainant.
A. Rm Allen, New York, New York, for respondent,

Decision by William J. Weber, Administrative Law Judge.

CONSENT DECISION

nf
I

?SrSfo
Wa" inatituted under ^ Plant Quarantine Act

) as
j^nended . ^d ^e Federal Plant Peat Act (7i 1 , j

K !u
61

A1
64a and 167

' and 160aa et se^ CAcW by a complaint
by the Administrator of the Animal and Plant Health Inspec-tion Seirwe alleging that Imperial Nurseries, respondent, violated

7 rL regulations promulgated thereunder (7 CFR 801 45* parties have agreed that this proceeding should be ter-

I
61

i *H
f
.

th6 Consent Dedsibn set forth below
'to the following stipulations:

nJ
F
f !

h
n P^P Ses f this 8tiPulation and the provisions of

Consent Decision only, respondent specifically admits that the
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Secretary of the United States Department of Agriculture has ju-

risdiction in this matter, neither admits nor denies the remaining

allegations in the complaint, admits to the Findings of Fact set

forth below, and waives:

(a) any further procedure;

(b) any requirements that the final decision in this proceed-

ing contain findings and conclusions with respect to all material

issues of fact, law or discretion, as well as the reasons or bases

thereof; ,

(c) all rights to seek judicial review and otherwise challenge

or contest the validity of this decision; and

2, Respondent also stipulates and agrees that the United States

Department of Agriculture is the "prevailing party" in the pro-

ceeding and waives any action against the United States Depart-

ment of Agriculture under the Equal Access to Justice Act oi 18U

(5 U.S.C. 504 et seq.) for fees and other expenses incurred by the

respondent in connection with this proceeding.

FINDINGS OF FACT

1. Imperial Nurseries, respondent, is a business whose address is

90 Salmon Brook Street, Granby, Connecticut 06035.

2. On or about April 17, 1985, respondent moved interstate,

through gypsy moth non-regulated areas, regulated articles from

Granby, Connecticut, a gypsy moth high risk area, to Wyandotte,

Michigan. _
. , . ,

3. On or about April 18, 1985, respondent moved interstate,

through gypsy moth non-regulated areas, regulated articles from

Granby, Connecticut, a gypsy moth high risk area, to East Detroit,

Michigan. . . . . .

4. On or about April 18, 1985, respondent moved interstate,

through gypsy moth non-regulated areas, regulated artides from

Granby, Connecticut, a gypsy moth high risk area, to Elgin, Illi-

nois.

5. On or about April 18, 1985, respondent moved interstate,

through gypsy moth non-regulated areas, regulated articles from

Gmnby, Connecticut, a gypsy moth high risk area, to Wood Dale,

n or about April 18, 1985, respondent moved interstate,

-through gypsy moth non-regulated areas, regulated articles from

Granby, Connecticut, a gypsy moth high risk area to Lake Zurich,

7. on or about April 18, 1985, respondent moved interstateiregu-

lated articles from Granby, Connecticut a gypsy moth.high nsk

area, to Morrison, Tennessee, a gypay moth non-regulated area.
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8. On or about April 24, 1985, respondent moved interstate regu-
lated articles from Granby, Connecticut, a gypsy moth high risk
area, to Greensboro, North Carolina, a gypsy moth non-regulated
area.

9 On or about April 24, 1985, respondent moved interstate regu-
lated articles from Granby, Connecticut, a gypsy moth high risk
area, to Winston-Salem, North Carolina, a gypsy moth non-regulat-
ed area.

CONCLUSIONS

The respondent having admitted the jurisdictional facts and
having agreed to the provisions set forth in the following order in
disposition of this proceeding, such order will be issued.

ORDER

The respondent is assessed a civil penalty of one thousand one
hundred twenty five dollars ($1,125.00) which shall be payable to
the Treasurer of the United States" by certified check or money
order, and which shall be forwarded to Kevin B. Thiemann, Office
of the General Counsel, Room 2422 South Building, United States
Department of Agriculture, 12th and Independence Avenue, S.W.,
Washington, D.C. 20250-1400, within (30) days from the effective
date of this order.

This order shall become effective on the day upon which service
ol this order is made upon the respondent.

In re: ALMA ROMERO ESTRADA. P.Q. Docket No. 87. Decided Novem-
ber 8, 1985.

permlt/fumugation Respondent fai
...! 4

Mark Dopp, for complainant.

Respondent, pro se.

Decision by John A. Campbell, Administrative Law Judge.

DEFAULT DECISION AND ORDER

PRELIMINARY STATEMENT

This proceeding was instituted under the Act of February 2
-L?,vi>, as amended (Act) (21 USP 88 111 A i om u /

'fo?
tor of the Animal and Plant Health Inspec-

States Department of Agriculture. The com-
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plaint alleged that the respondent violated sections 319.56-2 and

319.56-2J of the regulations promulgated thereunder (7 CFR

319.56-2 and 319.56-2J). Copies of the complaint and the Rules

of Practice Governing Proceedings Under the Act were served by

the Hearing Clerk, by certified mail, upon respondent.

Pursuant to section 1.136 of the Rules of Practice (7 CFR 1.136)

applicable to this proceeding, respondent was informed in the com-

plaint and the letter of service that an answer should be filed with

the Hearing Clerk within twenty (20) days after service of the com-

plaint, and that failure to file an answer to, or plead specifically to,

any allegation in the complaint would constitute an admission of

such allegation pursuant to section 1.141 of the Rules of Practice (7

CFR 1.141), and a waiver of such hearing. The letter also advised

the respondent that failure to request an oral hearing within the

time for filing an answer would constitute a waiver, on his part, of

oral hearing. Respondent has failed to respond in any manner to

allegations in the complaint and respondent has not requested an

oral hearing.

Respondent's failure to deny or otherwise respond to the a lega-

tions in the complaint constitutes an admission of such allegations,

pursuant to section U86(c) of the Rules of Practice (7 CFR

1.136(c)). Respondent's failure to request a hearing constitutes a

waiver of such hearing. There being no basis for a hearing, the ma-

terial allegations of fact in the complaint are adopted and set forth

as the Findings of Fact.

FINDINGS OF FACT

1. Alma Romero Estrada, herein referred to as ^spondent
J

is an

individual whose address is 7134 London Lane, Apartment C,

Lemon Grove, California 92045. ^itAH sec-

2. On or about September 18, 1984, the
^P^^^^

tions 319.56-2 and 319.56-2J of the regulations
'CFR

J9J
2

out fumigation and a permit for entry.

CONCLUSION
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ORDER

Respondent Alma Romero Estrada is hereby assessed a civil pen-
alty of two hundred fifty dollars ($250). The respondent shall send,
payable to the 'Treasury of the United States" a certified check or
money order to Mark D. Dopp, Office of the General Counsel,Room 2422, South Building, United States Department of Agricul-
ture, Washington, D. C. 20250-1400, not later than thirty (30) dayafrom the effective date of this order. This order shall have thesame force and effect as if entered after full hearing and shall be
final and effective 35 days after service of this Decision and Order

TLT^^' ^f* th
5,

e is an *PPeal to th* Judicial Officer

December

In re: TRANS WORLD AIRLINES. P.Q, Docket No. 122. Decided No-
vember 1, 1986.

Foreign origin garbage not removed to approved facility-Civil penalty.

Fronda Woods, for complainant.

Respondent, pro se.

Decision by Victor W. Palmer, Administrative Law Judge.

DECISION AND ORDER

PRELIMINARY STATEMENT

m ProceedinS was instituted under the Act of February 2,
1903, as amended (21 U.S.C, 111 and 120), the Federal Plant Pest

^ 'iai

S

o
amended (? U 'S *G 150aa-150jj), and the Act of August

20, 1912, as amended (7 U.S.C. 151-164a and 167) (Acts), by a
complaint filed by the Administrator of the Animal and Plant
Health Inspection Service, United States Department of Agricul-

S^/SSi?"
11^!1^^ that the resP ndent violated sections

2 ?
)

.?
ld 94 '5Cb)C1) f the Batons promulgated thereun-

der (7 CFR
J
88(UOO(bXl) and 9 CFR 94.5(b)(l)). CopL of the com-

plaint and the Rules of Practice governing proceedings under the
Act were served by the Hearing Clerk, by certified mail, upon re-
spondent.

Pursuant to section 1.136 of the Rules of Practice (7 CFR 1.186)
applicable to this proceeding, respondent was informed in the com-
plaint and the letter of service that an answer should be filed
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within twenty days after service of the complaint, and that failure

to file an answer would constitute a waiver of hearing, as provided

in section 1.139 of the Rules of Practice (7 CFR 1.139).

The respondent filed no answer during the twenty-day period al-

lowed. Respondent's failure to file an answer within the time pro-

vided constitutes an admission of the allegations in the complaint,

under section 1.136(c) of the Rules of Practice (7 CFR U36(c)). Re-

sjxmdent's failure to file an answer also constitutes a waiver of

hearing under section 1.139 of the Rules of Practice (7 CFR 1.139).

Since respondent is deemed to have admitted the material allega-

tions of fact in the complaint, they are adopted and set forth as the

Findings of Fact.

FINDINGS OF FACT

1. Trans World Airlines, Inc., respondent, is a corporation whose

address is Building 60, JFK International Airport, Jamaica, New

York 11430.

2. On or about January 28, 1985, at John F. Kennedy Interna-

tional Airport, the respondent violated 7 CFR 330.400(bXl) and19

CFR 95.4(b)(D, because it removed, from its flight TWA Ki,

which had arrived in New York from West Germany, foreign

origin garbage which was not removed to an approved facility, as

required.

CONCLUSION

The respondent has failed to file an answer to any of
telega-

tiona in the complaint. The consequences of such a failure were ex-

plained to the respondent in the complaint and in the letter or

service that accompanied it. By Ita silence respondent has admitted

all of the material allegations of fact in the complaint and has

waived a hearing. ,
,.aandpnt

By reason of the Findings of Fact set forth^.*S*&
has violated the Act and regulations promulgated thereunder. The

following order is therefore issued.

ORDER
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This order shall have the same force and effect as if entered
after full hearing and shall be final and effective 35 days after
service of this Decision and Order upon respondent, unless there is
an appeal to the Judicial Officer pursuant to section 1.145 of the
Rules of Practice applicable to this proceeding (1 CFR 1,146).

[This default decision and order became final December 17
1985. Ed.]

In re: CARGO SHIPS MARITIME CORPORATION. P.Q. Docket No 134
Decided December 18, 1985.

Storage of regulated garbage aboard vessel-Civil penalty Consent

Jam Ruley, for complainant.

Respondent, pro se.

Decision by Edward H. McGrail, Administrative Law Judge.

CONSENT DECISION

This proceeding was instituted under the Act of February 2>
1903 as amended (Act) (21 U.S.C. 111 and 120) and the Federal
Plant Pest Act, as amended (Act) (7 U.S.C. 150aa et sea,} by a
complaint filed by the Administrator of the Animal and Plant
Health Inspection Service alleging that Cargo Ships Maritime Cor-
poration, respondent, violated the Acts and regulations promulgat-ed thereunder (9 CFR 95.4 and 7 CFR 330.400). The parties have
agreed that this proceeding should be terminated by entry of the
Consent Decision set forth below and have agreed to the following
stipulations:

1. For the purposes of this stipulation and the provisions of
this Consent Decision only, respondent specifically admits that the
Secre ary of the United States Department of Agriculture has ju-
risdiction in this matter, neither admits nor denies the remaining
allegations in the complaint, admits to the Findings of Fact set
lortn below, and waives:

(a) Any further procedure;
(b) Any requirement that the final decision in this proceed-

SL /? f"
1

,

gS and conclusion* with respect to all material

thereof
^ discretion

' M wel1 as the reasons or bases

or nnJ^l! ^-1 Sf^udicial revi^ and otherwise challengeor contest the validity of this decision; and

De rfmf u
action against the United S

Department of Agriculture under the Equal Access to Justice Act
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of 1980 (5 U.S.C. 504 et seq.) for fees and other expenses incurred

by the respondent in connection with this proceeding.

FINDINGS OF PACT

1. Cargo Ships Maritime Corporation, respondent, has as its

agent International Great Lakes Shipping Company, located at

94QS South Ewing Avenue, Chicago, Illinois 60617.

2. On or about May 24, 1985, the respondent stored regulated

garbage aboard the vessel M/V Peonia, which was docked at the

Port of Chicago, Chicago, Illinois.

CONCLUSIONS

The respondent having admitted the jurisdictional facts and

having agreed to the provisions set forth in the following Order in

disposition of this proceeding with respect to respondent Cargo

Ships Maritime Corporation, such order and decision will be issued.

ORDER

The respondent is assessed a civil penalty of five hundred dollars

($500.00). The respondent shall send a certified check or money

order for $500.00 payable to the "Treasurer of the United States/'

to Jaru Ruley, Office of the General Counsel, Room 2422, South

Building, United States Department of Agriculture, Washington, D.

C. 20250-1400, not later than thirty (30) days from the effective

date of this order.

This order shall become effective on the day upon which service

of this order is made upon the respondent,
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............................................................................... ...................... 409

Oral ...............

................................................................................................................. 416

CONTRACT PRICE

Failure to oav
................................................................................................................ 450

CONTRACT TERM

Breach of, failure to dry onions

Modification of original .........

.................................. 452

COUNTERCLAIM

Dismissal of...... ......

...................................................................................................... 612
COURT DECISION

Circuit, .,rr
sanction, responsibly connected person 304

DAMAGES

Based on lowest known market price

Failure to prove
541

Failure to ship in suitable shipping condition
579

Measured by contract price less resale proceeds



3122 CUMULATIVE SUBJECT INDEX
JANUARY-FEBRUARY 1985

PERISHABLE AGRICULTURAL COMMODITIES ACT, 1930-Cont.

DISMISSAL PAGE

Breach of warranty

Complainant authorized dismissal of complaint 608, 614, 627 628 631

Complainant did not prove it was correct billing party 376

Complainant endorsed respondent's check in full settlement 532

Complainant failed to prove change in contract terms
', 5g4

Complainant failed to prove purchase/receipt or liability 597

Contract terms did not include pick-up date
; 42 i

Due to repudiation by seller 00rt' oHU

Failure to meet burden of proof. fin?

Failure to present evidence of value rRq

Failure to prove agreement to purchase,. t, fr 646

Failure to prove consignment sale KOA

No breach of warranty found

No liability by seller's agent for brokerage fee 464

Respondent tendered check to complainant in full settlement 610

DUMPING

Certificate not secured
.,,446

FAILURE TO PAY PROMPTLY

Publication of the facts
814( S16> 333i 354( 356i g57| m> 361

Revocation of license
330,331,352

Suspension of license ,,

aoo

F.O.B, SALE

Inspection not accepted as accurate
g

INSPECTION

Lack of good delivery notification delayed 419

Partial only

INVOICES

Inaccurate, virtually without evidentiary value 689

Proof of contract terms ...

JURISDICTION

$^8e of actjon acpFu^,,,,,,,,,,,,.,.., SB-?



CUMULATIVE SUBJECT INDEX 3123
JANUARY-FEBRUARY 1985

AGRICULTURAL COMMODITIES ACT, 1930-Cont,"

JURISDICTION-Cont.
PAGE

Subject to license under the Act.,456, 475, 481, 489, 496, 503, 609, 515, 602. 536.

547, 554, 559, 566, 597
LICENSE

Causing liability for payment...456, 476, 481, 489, 496, 503, 509, 515, 547, 554, 559,

566, 597
Revocation of....

........................................................................................ 316, 330, 331, 352

Suspension of....

.............................................................................................................. 333

Terminated due to bankruptcy plan ......................................................... 3H
MERCHANTABILITY

Failure to prove not in merchantable condition
........................................................ 462

MISREPRESENTATION

Failure to prove.
............................................................................................................. 442

PURCHASE PRICE

t0 Pay ...........................................314, 316, 330, 331, 333, 352, 354, 356, 357, 359

Increase due to changed pick-up date
............................................................. 421

RECONSIDERATION/REOPEN

Correction of prior order
...............................

................................................................................... 612
Motion to reopen after default, denied ....... Co rt

................................................................DdU
Order reopening after default....

............................................................................... bfi7

Petition for
reconsideration, denied ...... C1A c , ,

..............................................................oil), bio

Petition for reconsideration, dismissed
......................................................... 60S| 6Q9| 61g

REJECTION

Wrongful .............

......................................................................................................................400

Wrongful, but accepted by seller ................. on
................................................................... OoU

REPARATION AWARDED

Admission of indebtedness ............. ana................................... ................ ....... ...................... 606

Admission ofliability
.......................................................................... 467 4g8

Balances due and owing on transactions.................................................. 541

Breach of "price after sale" agreement................................................................... 388

Contract terms disputed .................................................................... ^
Dissatisfaction not basis for voiding agreement.......................................................... 405
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JANUARY-FEBRUARY 1985

PERISHABLE AGRICULTURAL COMMODITIES ACT, 1930-Cont.

REPARATION AWARDED-Cont.
PAGE

Failed to fulfill contract condition
................................................. 427

Failure to keep account of sales
....................................................

,

Q9

Failure to pay ......... 450, 456, 476, 481, 489, 495, 503, 509, 515, 547, 554, 559, 566, 586

Failure to prove breach of warranty............................................. 364

Failure to prove material misrepresentation
...................................... 442

Inspection not accepted aa accurate .............. n
........................................................... o fU

Lack of good delivery notification delayed .................................................... 418

Merchantability cannot be proved due to inspection delay ...................................... 452

Oral contract upheld .........................
....................................................................... <llb

Respondent bound by broker's actions
........................................... 46g

Respondent found to be purchaser .................... Ano
......................................................... .1. Q.$

Wrongful rejection
.............................................................................

...

RESALE

Breach of "price after sale" agreement
................................................................ 388

Prompt and proper ........................................
,00

.................................................................... Olio

STAY ORDER

Pending filing of an answer to the petition to reopen after de-
fault

......................................................................................... 613, 627, 628, 629, 631, 632

Pending filing of petition to rehear, reargue, and reconsider ...................................613

Vacated-prior order reinstated
.................................................... 607i 610| 611( 629i 630

SUITABLE SHIPPING CONDITION

Averaged condition defects .................................... ,no* ....... """"""".ii.i.ui,. ,,,,,,,,, ..... I..,.,,*,,.,.,, 4UJ

Breach of warranty
........................................................................................... 528,541,586

Bruising/discoloration allowed by contract .......................................... 414

Inspecting less than half the units insufficient
........................................................... 370

..... '

..............................................................................................624,528,579,586

-Breach of, failure to prove....... ,

...........................................................
.

......
. ^ 414



CUMULATIVE SUBJECT INDEX 3125
MARCH-APRIL 19S5

PLANT QUARANTINE ACT

CIVIL PENALTY PAGE
Of $150.00 ........................................................................... :

................................................ (j36

Of $350.00
............................................................................................................................ 63g

Of $960.00
............................................................................................................................ 641

DISMISSAL

Granted
............................................................................... .' ............... 633,634,636,638,640

GARBAGE

Unloaded in violation of regulations................ , ............ , ............................................... 636

PROHIBITED/RESTRICTED ARTICLE
'

Transported from Gypsy Moth high risk area ............................................................. 639



3126 CUMULATIVE SUBJECT INDEX
MARCH-APRIL 1985

AGRICULTURAL MARKETING ACT OF 1946

FEDERAL POULTRY GRADING AND ACCEPTANCE SERVICES PAGE
Withdrawal and denial of service /-aibbl

AGRICULTURAL MARKETING AGREEMENT ACT, 1937

ORDER DENYING INTERIM RELIEF

Reparation order denying interim relief. a*-,

ANIMAL QUARANTINE AND RELATED LAWS
ANIMAL AND PLANT HEALTH INSPECTION

Vi lation
672, 678, 681, GS3, 686, GSG, 688

BRUCELLOSIS

Exposed cattle moved interstate f7
.

Violation of regulations, interstate movement,..670, 678, 680, 683, 686, 686, 688,

689, 001
CIVIL PENALTY

Of $100.00
685

Of $250.00 i

l

- 683, 688
Of $400.00

686
Of $500.00

680, 081
Of $700.00

, 673
Of $1,000.00

663, 670, 672, G74
Of $1,260.00

089
Of $2,000.00

691
Of $3,000.00

G78
Of $4,600.00

675
Of $5,000,00

60S
LICENSE



CUMULATIVE SUBJECT INDEX 3127

MARCH-APRIL 1985

ANIMAL WELFARE ACT

CIVIL PENALTY PAGE

Of $1,000.00 694

DISMISSAL

By motion of complainant 698

No violation shown 699

STANDARDS AND REGULATIONS

Cease and desist from violating 693, 694, 695, 696, 697

Ordered to comply with concerning the buying, selling, and

transporting of live animals,.. 693

Ordered to comply with regarding sanitation 702

HORSE PROTECTION ACT

CIVIL PENALTY

Of $750.00 712

Of $2,000.00 712

SORED HORSE

Showing and exhibiting of. 712

PACKERS AND STOCKYARDS ACT, 1921

ACCOUNTS OF SALE OR PURCHASE

Failure to show true and correct weight and/or prices 740

BILLING AND/OR COLLECTING

Basis other than actual purchase prices and weights 740

BONDING REQUIREMENT

Violation of. B12, 814, 818, 819, 824

CHECKS OR DRAFTS

Issuing drafts without first obtaining written agreements from

sellers authorizing payment by draft 803, 822

Issuing insufficient funds checks 804, 806, 821, 855

CIVIL PENALTY

Of $400,00
814

Of $1,000.00 816, 8V9

Of $1,250.00
81

Of $1,800,00
824





CUMULATIVE SUBJECT JNDEX 3129
MARCH-APRIL 1985

PACKERS AND STOCKYARDS ACT, 1B21 Cont.

SUPPLEMENTAL ORDER

Bonding requirements, in compliance with .......................................................... 828, 829

SUSPENSION OP REGISTRATION

-
............................................................................................ 825

30davs
.................................................................................................................................. 822

36da^
................................................................................................................................. 745

90 days and thereafter until no longer insolvent........................................................ 80S

100days
............................................................................................................................... 821

150 days and thereafter until deficiency eliminated .................................................. 804

ISO days and thereafter until in full compliance ........................................................ 746

270da*s
............................................................................................................................... 808

9 months and thereafter until solvent
..................................................................... 743

lyear
................................................................................................................................... 816

Until in compliance with bonding requirements........................................ 812, 814, S19

UNFAIR TRADE PRACTICES

Robinson-Patman, violation of.
................................................................... 74g

PERISHABLE AGRICULTURAL COMMODITIES ACT, 1930

AGENT

Limitation of authority ................................ 1ft00^i .--,..,,.,,,., ,,.,,,..,., i......,,,,, n,...,,,,,,,.,,,.,^^^^^ j.ii^j

BANKRUPTCY

Not acceptable as defense in failure to pay ................................................... 870

Reparation action continued pending bankruptcy proceeding
BROKER

Invoice shows respondent as buyer, not as broker,.

ONSIGNMENT

Breach of duty.,

1038

CONSIGNMENT

99B

Consignee did not receive funds from sale 986

Defined
880

Failure to pay ,

CONTRACT

Breach of:

Evidence unconvincing
... 1084



3130 CUMULATIVE SUBJECT INDEX
MARCH-APRIL 1985

PERISHABLE AGRICULTURAL COMMODITIES ACT, 1930-Cont.

CONTRACT Cont. PAGE

Failure to pay agreed to price ..................................................................................... 955

Failure to prove............................................................................................................ 1029

Existence of, failure to prove .............................................................. , ............................ggg

Modification through alleged misrepresentation ......................................................,,.982

FEES AND EXPENSES

Awarded to respondent................................................................................ 897, 1004, 1034

INSPECTION

Considered timely................................................ , ............................................................. 945

Obtained 8 days after acceptance ................. .
................................................................. 992

Obtained 12 days after unloading ...................................................................................939

INTERSTATE COMMERCE

Shipment of produce ................................................................................................. 397 902

MARKET PRICE

Despite over
...............................................................................................................

RECONSIDERATION

Petition for, dismissed

Petition for reconsideration, denied
............................................................................. 1068

RECORDS

Loss of.
............................................................................................................................... 1002

REPARATION AWARDED

Balance due and owing................................................................................. ( ................. 1029

Order requiring payment.......................................................................................9^ jQgg

Payment due to complamant...880, 886, 897, 916, 920, 928, 936, 946, 961, 966, 957,

974, 977, 982, 992, 994, 998, 1023, 1038, 1045,

1056, 1060

STAY ORDER

Pending filing of answer to petition for reconsideration,.,1066, 1067, 1070, 1071,

1072,1073,1074,1075

i Pending filing of petition for reconsideration ............................................................ 1066

Pending filing of answer to petition to reopen after default .............. 1066, 1100; 1101

SUITABLE SHIPPING CONDITION

916,920,1020,1027
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MARCH-APRIL 1985
PERISHABLE AGRICULTURAL COMMODITIES ACT, 1930 Cont.

CONTRACT PRICE
PAGE

Liable for full contract price....;
994

"Open" 961

CONTRACT TERM

F.O.B. sale 1045, 1056

Sale price disputed 1060

Unspecified time period for sale 1048

DEFAULT

Order reinstating 1064

Order reopening 1097, 1098, 1099

DISMISSAL

Authorized by complainant 1064

Complainant did not suffer damages - 966

Complainant failed to show and amount remaining due from re-

spondent 902

Conditions not suitable for shipment 1027

Failure to show breach of contract - 1041

For good cause shown 876

Of complaint, following settlement 1074

Of complaint, after reparation vacated 1072

Parties reached "tenative resolve" 1068

Payment owed respondent exceeds complainant's damages ,.,.. 1048

No breach of contract committed by respondent 902

Nothing due from respondent to complainant 877

Respondent performed in accordance with contract 1004

FAILURE TO PAY PROMPTLY

Publication of the facts 870, 872, 874

Breach of warranty, failure to prove 955, 974, 992, 1017

Failure to prove
989

UNDISPUTED AMOUNT

Order requiring payment &, 919, 928, 1026, 1063



3132 CUMULATIVE SUBJECT INDEX
MARCH-APRIL 1985

PERISHABLE AGRICULTURAL COMMODITIES ACT, 1930-Cont.

WARRANTY PAGE

Breach of.
.................................................................................... q,..

Breach of, failed to prove .................................................................... nog
,*>*

PLANT QUARANTINE ACT

BAGGAGE INSPECTION

Failure to submit
..........................................................................

-,-,*.*
,,.,,

CIVIL PENALTY

nog

Of $160.00
..................................................................................................... im

Of $250,00

Of
.......................................................................................................................... 1108

1102

Of $726.00 total for 3 respondents
........................................................................... 1106

DISMISSAL

For cause
........................................................................................................................... U07

For good cause
........................................................................................................ 1105,1109

Prosecution no longer warranted
............................................................. 1107

GARBAGE

Improper storage of.
.............................................................................................. 1102,1108

HOUSEHOLD GOODS MOVEMENT FROM CONTROLLED TO
Failure to inspect...............................................................

., n
JURISDICTION

Admitted
............................................................................................................................ 1108
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MAY-JUNE 1985

AGRICULTURAL MARKETING ACT OF 1946

DISMISSAL PAGE
Not an issue that requires an evidentiary hearing for resolu-

tl0" 1132

ANIMAL QUARANTINE AND RELATED LAWS
CIVIL PENALTY

Of $200.00 U34i H44
Of $250.00 1151

Of $800.00 1156

Of $500.00 1137,1147, 1161

Of $600.00 1163

Of $850.00
, ...1145

Of $900.00 1165

Of $1,000.00 1148, 1155, 1159

Of $1,200.00 1139

Of $1,500.00 1141

Of $2,000.00 1158

Of $3,000.00 1152

Of $8,000.00 1135

DISMISSAL

Dismissal of Complaint 1166

SWINE HEALTH PROTECTION ACT

Violation of, feeding garbage 1143

ANIMAL WELFARE ACT

CIVIL PENALTY

Of $1,000.00 1169,1170

Of $25,000.00 f 1170

STANDARDS AND REGULATIONS

Ordered to comply with standards dealing with, but not limited

to, facilities, space, sanitation, veterinary care, and handling 3167



3134 CUMULATIVE SUBJECT INDEX
MAY-JUNE 1985

PACKERS AND STOCKYARDS ACT, 1921

ACCOUNTS AND RECORDS
PAGE

Keep and maintain, which fully disclose all transactions H92
ADMISSION

Respondent admits not paying for produce 1233 L231

APPEAL

i;iate
1220

BONDING REQUIREMENT

Vi lati0n f'

1175, 1179, 1181, 1188, 1197, 1200, 1205

CHECKS OR DRAFTS

Issuing insufficient Funds checks
1176 11?g

CIVIL PENALTY

Of$826 -00

1UM191
Of $600,00

1188, 1200
Of $3,000.00

1216
Of $7,600.00

1192
Of $8,500.00

1202

CUSTODIAL ACCOUNT

Failure to maintain , , ,

1184

Shippers' proceeds failure to deposit 1184

DEALER

Bond, failure to file and maintain

Failure to pay when due
1199,1212,1213

Issuing insufficient funds checks
; 1194> UBBi^ m&

Misuse of funds received as proceeds from sales 1184

Ordered not to engage in business as dealer or market agency 1191

Suspended as a registrant
;

Suspended for 30 days """"""*"*'*" ^'""'"'

-HR AND MARKET AGENCY
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MAY-JUNE 1985

PACKERS AND STOCKYARDS ACT, 1921 Coot.

DEALER AND MARKET AGENCY Cont, PAGE

Failure to pay when due

Permitting employees to purchase livestock out of consign-
ments .............................................................................................................................. 1206

Suspended as a registrant ................................................... . .......................................... UTS-

INSOLVENCY

Current liabilities exceeds current assets ................................................................... 1186

Engaging in business while insolvent..., ......................................................... . .......,.,..1173

PACKER

Failure to pay when due........................................... , .................................................... 1189

Insufficient funds checks issuing.................................................................................. 1189

PAYMENT

Failure to pay when due............................................................................ 1176, 1179, 1218

SHIPPERS' PROCEEDS ACCOUNT

Failure to deposit into ............. ................... , ........................................................ 1213, 1216

Failure to maintain ......................................................................................................... 1216

Failure to maintain properly ............................................ . ................. ........................ 1213

Misuse of funds ................................................................................................................ 1216

SUPPLEMENTAL ORDER

Bonding requirements, in compliance with, suspension terminat-

ed .......................................................................................................................... 1219, 1220

SUSPENSION OF REGISTRATION

Suspended for:

14 days ........................................................................................................................... 1206

75 days ........................................................................................................................... 1205

90 days........................................................................................................................... 1209

2 Ms years ........................................................................................................................ 1176

Until in compliance with bonding requirements ............................................ 1181, 1182

Until solvent..................................................................................................................... 1176

PERISHABLE AGRICULTURAL COMMODITIES ACT, 1930

ADMISSION

Respondent admits not paying for produce ................................................................ 1299



3136 CUMULATIVE SUBJECT INDEX
MAY-JUNE 1985

PERISHABLE AGRICULTURAL COMMODITIES ACT, 1930-Cont.

APPEAL PAGE

Motion denied ,,,,

Order denying 1240

BANKRUPTCY

Reparation action continued pending bankruptcy proceeding 1371, 1378 1429

CONTRACT

Breach of, failure to prove . QnoioUo

CONTRACT PRICE

Liable for full contract price ,,.r
loot)

CORRECTIONS

Default order corrected . ,00J.4o

COUNTERCLAIM

Dismissal of. . __
J.OOO

DAMAGES

Based on percent of defects

1322

Failure to submit sufficient evidence of loss 1307

DEFAULT

Default order reinstated
1427

DISMISSAL

Amount of damage equal contract price Ig80

Complainant filed claim in another court 137g

Complaint is without merit
1369

No new evidence , 000
-Iois4

Petition for reconsideration denied
1391

Petition for reconsideration dismissed 1384, 1380, 1393, 1396, 1398, 1400

Respondent tendered check to complainant in full settlement.., 1370, 1379, 1380,

1429



CUMULATIVE SUBJECT INDEX
MAY-JUNE 1985

PERISHABLE AGRICULTURAL COMMODITIES ACT, 1930 Cont.

PURCHASE PRICE-Cont. PAGE

Failure to pay and/or failure to pay when due 1261

Failure to pay in full 1240

Failure to pay promptly , 1251

RECONSIDERATION/REOPEN

Correction of prior order , ., 1369

Order reopening after default 3372, 1422, 1424

Petition for reconsideration denied 1234, 1374, 1373, 1377

Petition for reconsideration dismissed 1374

Reinstating default order 1372

REPARATION AWARDED

Admission of liability 1273, 1274, 1297, 1298, 1363, 1364, 1365

Balances due and owing on transactions...! 265, 1268, 1274, 1278, 1280, 1289, 1293,

1327, 1334, 1347, 1353

Failure to pay 1268, 1312, 1315, 1316, 1331

Liable for contract price ., 1338

Method atterbating payment 1346

Respondent admits receiving and accepting produce 1299

STAY ORDER

Pending filing of petition for reconaideration 1368

Pending motion for reconsideration 1376

Pending motion to reopen or reconsider 1375

Pending petition for reconsideration 1376

Pending petition to rehear and reopen 1377

-

Pending petition to reopen after default 1425, 1426, 1428

Pending reply to notice to show good cause 1422, 1423, 1424

Pending submission of good cause for not filing 1423

Vacated 1377,1427

Vacated prior order reinstated., 1370

WARRANTY

Breech of, failure to prove
1353



3138 CUMULATIVE SUBJECT INDEX
MAY-JUNE 1985

PLANT QUARANTINE ACT

CIVIL PENALTY

Of $125.00

Of $260.00

Of $325.00

pAGE

14gg

H35

1440

Of $600.00

DISMISSAL

Complaint dismissed ........................... , , ,

......................................................................... 144B

PROHIBITED/RESTRICTED ARTICLE

Transporting prohibited fruits to U.S
................................................................. 1447
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JULY-AUGUST 1985

ANIMAL QUARANTINE AND RELATED LAWS

BRUCELLOSIS PAGE

Exposed cattle moved interstate 1484

CIVIL PENALTY

Of $150.00 1481

Of $200.00 1466

Of $400.00 1479,1484, I486

Of $500.00 1472

Of $600.00, partially held in abeyance 1474

Of $625.00 1476

Of $750.00 1465,1468

Of $900.00 1469

Of $1,000.00 1477

Of $1,600.00 1484

Of $1,500.00, partially held in abeyance 1482

DISMISSAL

Granted 1468

VETERINARY ACCREDITATION

Suspension 1471

PACKERS AND STOCKYARDS ACT, 1921

ACCOUNTS AND RECORDS

Fully and correctly disclose all transactions 1521, 1623, 1533

Fully and correctly disclose true nature of all transactions 1533

ACCOUNTS OF SALE OR PURCHASE

Keep and maintain, which fully disclose all transactions .1521, 1623

BONDING REQUIREMENT

Violation of. 1490, 1497. 1506, 1509, 1517, 1636, 1538, 1540

CHECKS OR DRAFTS

Issuing insufficient funds checks 1494,1496, 1501, 1513, 1515, 1525

CIVIL PENALTY

Of $7 60.00
1635



3140 CUMULATIVE SUBJECT INDEX
JULY-AUGUST 1985

PACKERS AND STOCKYARDS ACT, 1921 Cont.

CIVIL PENALTY-Cont.

Of $1,000.00
....................................................................................................................... 1504

Of $1,500.00
............................................................................................................. 1490,1640

Of $1.800.00
........................................................................................................... 151?

Of $2,000.00
.................................................................................................................. 1BO&

Of $5,OOO.CO, partially suspended ........................................................... 1490

Of $7,000.00
.............................................................................................................. 1504

Of $10,000.00
........................................................................................................... 1521,1523

CONSIGNMENT

Engaging in any act that would operate as a fraud or deceit re-

garding purchase or sale of livestock

DEALER

Accounts and records, fully and correctly disclose all transac-
tions

................................................................................................................................ 1533

Bond, failure to file and maintain
........................................................... 1490 igQf) 1617

Failure to pay and/or failure to pay when due ..................................... 1513, 1538, 1543

Issuing insufficient funds checks
............................................................. i4gg ( 1513 154 3

Prohibited from engaging in business subject to the Act .............................. 1496, 1499

Suspended as a registrant............................................................... 1499, 1618i 1533, 1538

DEALER AND MARKET AGENCY

Engaging in any act that would operate as a fraud or deceit re-

garding purchase or sale of livestock

Failure to deposit into and/or maintain properly "Shippers' Pro-
ceeds Account"

......................................................................................... 1504,1506,1518

Failure to maintain a reasonable bond ........................................ 1497, 1606, 1518, 1685

Issuing insufficient funds checks
........................................................................ 1506 1627

Suspended as a registrant
.................................................................................... 1537 1535

MARKET AGENCY

Failure to maintain "Shippers' Proceeds Account" ........................................ 1515, 1535

Failure to pay and/or failure to pay when due

Suspended as a registrant for 14 days and thereafter until custo-
dial account deficit is eliminated

Violation of bonding requirement
................................................................................ 1540



CUMULATIVE SUBJECT INDEX 31<il

JULY-AUGUST 1985

PACKERS AND STOCKYARDS ACT, 1921 Ctmt.

NET PROCEEDS PAGE

Failure to remit when due 1488, 1494, 1516, 1525

PACKER

Accounts and records, fully and correctly disclose all transac-

tions 1521, 1523

Failure to pay and/or failure to pay when due , 1621, 1523

PURCHASE PRICE

Failure to pay and/or failure to pay when due 1496

SCALES AND WEIGHING

Failing to operate livestock scales in accordance with regula-
tions 1492

SHIPPERS' PROCEEDS ACCOUNT

Failure to deposit into 1488, 1494, 1504, 1511, 1527, 1536

Failure to maintain properly 1494, 1501, 1506, 1511, 1515, 1518, 1525, 1527, 1536

Suspension of registration until deficit in account is eliminated 1494

SUPPLEMENTAL ORDER

Deficit in custodial account eliminated 1541

Bonding requirement, in compliance with, suspension terminat-

ed 1641

Suspension provisions modified 1542

SUSPENSION OF REGISTRATION

Suspended for:

14 days and thereafter until custodial account deficit is elimi-

nated 1511

21 days and thereafter until custodial account deficit is elimi-

nated 1494

28 days and thereafter until solvent 1488

35 days and thereafter until current assets exceed liabilities 1506, 1518

120 days 1515

120 days and thereafter until in compliance with bonding re-

quirements 1515

180 days
15S3

6 months 1513
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JULY-AUGUST 1985

PACKERS AND STOCKYARDS ACT, 1921-Cont.

SUSPENSION OF REGISTRATION-Cont, PAGE

6 months and thereafter until custodial account it deficit is

eliminated
.................................................................................................... 1497i 1527

6 months and thereafter until in full compliance with bonding
requirements ................................................................................................... 1527

8 months and thereafter until in full compliance with bonding
requirements

......................................................................................................... jggg

5 years
............................................................................................................................ 1499

Until in compliance with bonding requirements ............................................ 1490, 1585

PERISHABLE AGRICULTURAL COMMODITIES ACT, 1930

ACCEPTANCE OF COMMODITY

By unloading
.......................................................................................................... 1684,1690

Causing liability for freight ................................................................... 1717

Mixed truckload treated as commercial unit
............................................................. 1647

Untimely rejection
.................................................................................... 1662

ACCOUNTINGS

Failure to account truly and correctly ............................................................. 1572

BANKRUPTCY

Reparation action continued pending bankruptcy proceeding ............................... 1752

COMPLAINT

Dismissal of.
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